AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

Governing Board of the
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

Meeting Date: June 16, 2022
Time: 3:00 P.M.
Location: This meeting is being conducted via teleconference in

accordance with Assembly Bill No. 361 approved by
Governor Newsom on September 16, 2021, and
Government Code Section 54953(e)(1).

A physical location will not be available for public
observance of the meeting or public comment.

Conference Call for Meeting Attendance Dial: (562) 342-1138
and Live Public Comment. Participant Pin: 2178101

Written Public Comment about Agenda Email: PublicComment@acta.org
Items. Sender’s name and contact information are
appreciated.
|

This meeting is being held in accordance with the Brown Act as currently in effect under
Assembly Bill No. 361 approved by Governor Newsom on September 16, 2021, and Government
Code Section 54953(e)(1) that allows attendance by members of the Governing Board, ACTA
staff, and the public to participate and conduct the meeting by teleconference, videoconference,
or both.

A. ROLL CALL

B. OPENING STATEMENT

Members of the public may join the meeting using the conference call number set
forth on the agenda and may provide public comment on any agenda item. Live
public comments will be heard no later than when each item is considered by the
Governing Board. Each public speaker will be limited to three minutes to
comment on each agenda item.

Any public comment received by email prior to the agenda item being called will
be read into the record; any email received after an item has been considered by
the Governing Board, but before the end of the meeting will be included in the
minutes of the meeting.

The Governing Board may consider and act upon items as set forth on the
agenda. Ordinarily, the Governing Board will not act on any matter which does
not appear on the published agenda.




ACTA GOVERNING BOARD June 16, 2022

C. AGENDA ITEMS

Reports:

1.

April 2022 Performance Report INFORMATION)

Consent Agenda:

2. APPROVE Minutes of the May 19, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority

3. RECEIVE and FILE Monthly Financial Reports as of April 2022

Regular Agenda:

4. APPROVE 2022/2023 Revenue Refunding Bonds — Certain Documents for the
Issuance of 2022 and 2023 Revenue Refunding Bonds and a Tender of Certain
Previously Issued Bonds

5. APPROVE Annual Contract Change Orders 75 and 57 and the Extension of
Agreement No. C0027 with Alameda Corridor Engineering Team

6. APPROVE ACTA Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget

7. APPROVE and Adopt the ACTA Officer and Employee Publicly Available Pay
Schedule

8. APPROVE Reimbursement Agreement with Union Pacific Railroad for
Construction Related Services on Dolores Yard Crossover Project

9. Proposed Alameda Corridor Exhibit at the California State Railroad Museum in
Sacramento (INFORMATION)

10. APPROVE Resolution No. JPA 22-9 authorizing teleconference meetings for the

ACTA Governing Board and its Audit Committee pursuant to AB 361

D. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

E. CLOSED SESSION

None

ADJOURNMENT

As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority (ACTA) does not discriminate on the basis of disability and, upon request,
will provide reasonable accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services, and
activities. Sign language interpreters, assistive listening devices, and translation services may be
provided. To ensure availability, 72-hour advance notice is required. Contact the ACTA Office at

(562) 247-7777.




Item 1

Performance Report
April 2022




Port Container Throughput (TEUs) - April 2022

POLA POLB Combined
Apr-22 %Change* Apr-22 %Change* Apr-22 %Change*
Imports 456,670 -6.8% 400,803 9.2% 857,473 0.0%
Exports 99,878 -12.7% 121,876 -1.8% 221,754 -7.0%
Total Loaded 556,548 -7.9% 522,679 6.4% | 1,079,227 -1.5%
Empty 330,809 -3.4% 298,040 16.9% 628,849 5.3%
Total 887,357 -6.3% 820,719 10.0% | 1,708,076 0.9%
YTD %Change* YTD %Change* YTD %Change*
Imports 1,803,146 -1.5% | 1,607,752 6.2% | 3,410,898 2.0%
Exports 407,285 -11.1% 477,056 -4.5% 884,341 -7.6%
Total Loaded | 2,210,431 -3.4% | 2,084,808 3.6% | 4,295,239 -0.1%
Empty 1,358,960 8.6% | 1,196,571 7.8% | 2,555,531 8.3%
Total 3,569,391 0.8%| 3,281,379 51%| 6,850,770 2.8%

* Relative to same period in CY 2021




Performance Comparison

April 2022
Apr 2022 CY22 FY22
Revenue $8.7 M $30.2 M $76.8 M
Change from 2021 -13.8 % -21.6 % -20.5 %
TEU’s 402,570 1,391,207 3,713,022
Change from 2021 -15.7 % -22.7 % -16.4 %




Monthly Revenue

(in millions)

$12.0

$10.0

$8.0

$6.0

$4.0

$2.0

$0.0

Corridor Revenue Performance

CY2019, CY2020, CY2021 & Apr 2022

N

N

/v—

o

T~

Jan Feb Mar Apr

2019 ===2020 e==——2021 -—2022

May

Jun Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

\'[e)Y

Dec




Port Cargo Mode Split

45%

40%

35%

30%

25%

20% t t t t t t t
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

===|P] ===Transload Truck =—=ACTA % of Ports' Loaded TEUs



Port Cargo Components

60%

50% S~ ——

40%

20%

10%

0% i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

—| 0oaded Imports Loaded Exports ——Empties



Item #02

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY GOVERNING BOARD HELD ON MAY 19, 2022 AT 3:00 P.M. VIA
TELECONFERENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 361 SIGNED BY
GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON SEPTEMBER 16, 2021 AND GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
54953(e)(1)

Members participating via teleconference:
Suzie Price, City of Long Beach
Michael Cano, Los Angeles County Metro
Mario Cordero, Port of Long Beach
Frank Colonna, Port of Long Beach
Edward Renwick, Port of Los Angeles
Alternate Members participating via teleconference:
Tony Gioiello, Port of Los Angeles
Members absent:
Joe Buscaino, City of Los Angeles
Also participating via teleconference:
Michael Leue, ACTA, Chief Executive Officer
Kevin Scott, ACTA, Chief Financial Officer
Heather McCloskey, ACTA, Co-General Counsel
David Albers, ACTA, Co-General Counsel
Maria Melendres, ACTA, Governing Board Secretary
CHAIR PRICE PRECIDED AS CHAIR.

The meeting was called to order at 3:05 p.m. Roll call was taken.

REPORTS
1. MARCH 2022 CORRIDOR PERFORMANCE

Mr. Michael Leue presented the Corridor performance statistics through March 2022.
2. BOND REFINANCING PLAN

Mr. Leue and Mr. Kevin Scott presented the ACTA Bond Refinancing Plan as
discussed with the Ad Hoc Committee for Finance Planning at their meeting on May 12,
2022. Commissioner Renwick stated that he looked at the plan thoroughly and believes it's
an excellent plan, including the use of tender to help reduce the risk of a costly or restricted
refinance in the future with a no-tender two-step process. He added that the refinancing
plan is the responsible thing to do and thanked the team for their efforts.

1



CONSENT AGENDA — ITEM NO. 3-4

3. MINUTES - ACTA GOVERNING BOARD REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 21, 2022
— APPROVED.

Minutes of the Regular Special Meeting of April 21, 2022, of the Governing Board of
the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority, were presented to the Governing Board.

4. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS AS OF MARCH 31, 2022 — RECEIVED AND
FILED.

Communication from Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer, dated May 19, 2022,
recommending that the monthly financial reports as of March 31, 2022, be received and
filed, was presented to the Governing Board.

No public comment was received on the Consent Agenda.

Chair Price motioned, seconded by Board Member Colonna that Item No. 3 be approved as
recommended and that Item No. 4 be received and filed. Roll call was taken and carried by
the following vote:

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, Gioiello, Price, Renwick
NOES: None
ABSENT: Buscaino

REGULAR AGENDA — ITEM NOS. 5-7

5. RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES, INC. — ASSIGNMENT & ASSUMPTION —
AGREEMENT NO. 885 — APPROVED.

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated May 19, 2022,
recommending that the Board authorize the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial
Officer to execute the Assignment and Assumption of Agreement No. 885 with RailWorks
Track Services, Inc. to RailWorks Track Services, LLC., was presented to the Governing
Board.

No public comment was received on Item No. 5.

Board Member Colonna motioned, seconded by Board Member Renwick that Item No. 5 be
approved as recommended. Roll call was taken and carried by the following vote:

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, Gioiello, Price, Renwick
NOES: None
ABSENT: Buscaino



6. RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES, LLC. — CONTRACT TASK ORDER NO. 6 TO
AGREEMENT NO. 885 — BNSF TRAIN DERAILMENT REPAIR - APPROVED.

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated May 19, 2022,
recommending that the Board authorize the Chief Executive Officer or his designee to
execute Contract Task Order No. 6 under Agreement No. 885 with RailWorks Track
Services, LLC., for payment of repair costs in the amount of $710,476 incurred due to BNSF
train derailments at Perry Connector Track MP 21.2, was presented to the Governing
Board.

No public comment was received on Item No. 6.

Board Member Colonna motioned, seconded by Board Member Cordero that Item No. 6 be
approved as recommended. Roll call was taken and carried by the following vote:

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, Gioiello, Price, Renwick
NOES: None
ABSENT: Buscaino

7. RESOLUTION NO. JPA 22-8 - TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS — GOVERNING
BOARD AND AUDIT COMMITTEE — APPROVED.

Communication from Michael C. Leue, Chief Executive Officer, dated May 19, 2022,
recommending that the Board approve Resolution No. JPA 22-8 authorizing the ACTA
Governing Board and its Audit Committee to continue to hold teleconference meetings due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, was presented to the Governing Board.

Mr. Leue provided a status on the Harbor Commission meetings at both Ports. He stated
that ACTA would continue to monitor the Ports and evaluate conducting in-person meetings
in the fall or when the state of emergency is lifted. He added that we are also in the process
of renewing our application to use the Long Beach City College for in-person meetings.

No public comment was received on Item No. 7.

Board Member Colonna motioned, seconded by Board Member Cordero that Item No. 7 be
approved as recommended. Roll call was taken and carried by the following vote:

AYES: Cano, Colonna, Cordero, Gioiello, Price, Renwick
NOES: None

ABSENT: Buscaino

D. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

There were no requests by the public to address the Governing Board.



CLOSED SESSION

None

ADJOURNMENT

At 3:32 p.m., the meeting was adjourned sine die.



M-E-M-0O

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

June 16, 2022

To: | Governing Board

V]

From: | Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer / T

Subject: | Monthly Financial Reports as of April 30, 2022
(RECEIVE & FILE)

Recommendation:

Receive and file the Monthly Financial Reports as of April 2022.
Discussion:

The financial package includes the following:

¢ Executive Summary — Monthly key financial activity (See Transmittal 1).

Performance Comparisons — Current Month (April) and year-to-date (both by fiscal year and
calendar year) of Revenue (corridor use fee) and corresponding TEU information; Change is
compared to prior year actuals by month, fiscal year and calendar year.

Use Fees and Container Charges — Use fee and container charge information is provided in a
bar chart by fiscal year. The current year shows the actuals to date overlain on the approved
fiscal year budget, and with a notation of the latest forecast for fiscal year revenue.

e Monthly Financial Statements (See Transmittal 2).

Statements of Net Position - Unaudited statement of ACTA’s assets and liabilities as of April
30, 2022. The audited June 30, 2021 financial information is also included for comparative
purposes to the beginning of the fiscal year.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — Fiscal Year 2022 unaudited
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position through April 30, 2022. Also
included is the statement as of April 2021 which has been included for comparative purposes
for ten months of information.




Comparison of Budget Functional Expenses—Operating Budget by Expense Type - The fiscal
year-to-date budget is compared to actual revenue and expenditures incurred as of April 30,
2022.

Comparison of Budget Functional Expenses—Operating Budget by Funds - The fiscal year-to-
date budget is compared to actual revenue and expenditures incurred as of April 30, 2022.

Cash and Investment Summary — Cash and investment balances and the corresponding
investment schedule are being presented as of April 30, 2022. The cash and investment
balances are segregated by institution, account number reference, and account description.
Balances are presented in book and market value. Also included are the grant funds received
for the SR-47 project during the current fiscal year. The investment schedule summarizes the
composition of the agency’s investment portfolio and how the portfolio complies with the
Board approved Investment Policy.

Cash Flow — Cash flow for the month of April 2022 is presented. It is presented in both a
summary format and a detailed format. A fiscal year-to-date cash flow showing all activity
through April 30, 2022 is also presented in both a summary format and a detailed format. The
dollar amounts represent the book values for each account.

Co-General Counsel Review:

ACTA’s Co-General Counsel has reviewed this Board Report and there are no legal issues at this
time.

Transmittals:

Transmittal 1 - Executive Summary — Key financial activity
Transmittal 2 - Monthly Financial Statements as of April 30, 2022



Key Financial Activity

April ‘22 vs. ‘21




Corridor Performance
April 22 vs. 21

Railroad Self-Assessment Revenue

22 21 Change
April Revenue $8.7 M $10.0 M -13.8 %
Calendar Year to Date (Jan-Apr) * $30.2 M $38.6 M -21.6 %
Fiscal Year to Date (July-Apr) * $76.8 M $96.6 M -20.5%

* Note: Does not include reconciliations / adjustments for fiscal year-end.




Operations — On Corridor

Corridor Volumes

April ‘22 vs. 21
TEUs (Daily Containers)

22 21 Change
TEU’s * 384,648 (7,032) 452,194 (8,267) -14.9 %
Calendar Year to Date 1,344,491 (6,145) 1,712,650 (7,828) -21.5%
Fiscal Year to Date 3,577,938 (6,455) 4,224,382 (7,621) -15.3 %
Operations — Around Corridor (Container Charges)

'22 21 Change
TEU’s * 17,922 (328) 25,593 (468) -30.0 %
Calendar Year to Date 46,716 (214) 86,955 (397) -46.3 %
Fiscal Year to Date 135,084 (244) 217,876 (393) -38.0 %
Operations — Combined

‘22 21 Change
TEU’s * 402,570 (7,360) 477,787 (8,735) -15.7%
Calendar Year to Date 1,391,207 (6,358) 1,799,605 (8,225) -22.7%
Fiscal Year to Date 3,713,022 (6,699) 4,442,258 (8,014) -16.4 %

Note: Numbers in (

) are the Average Daily Containers, Daily TEU’s +~ 1.82 = Containers

* Containers trucked to off-dock intermodal yards that are charged ACTA fee




Number of Trains

Alameda Corridor Train Counts

20,000 -

18,000 -

16,000 -

14,000 -

12,000 A

10,000 -

8,000 ~

6,000 -

4,000 -

2,000 -

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Average Daily Trains**:
2002 2003 2004

39 40 44
2013 2014 2015

45 47 38

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022*

*CYD 4
** Corridor Capacity 150 Trains per Day



Use Fees & Container Charges
as of April 30, 2022

140 -
120
100
80

] 117.4

ek 112981125
99 4 109.008105.518103.6 [ 102.5 102.1

Millions

i 052 [l 040 032 973

40 - 853 M 505
] 76.8

20 -

FYO7 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

Fiscal Year

- Budget - Actual



Chart1

		FY07

		FY08

		FY09

		FY10

		FY11

		FY12

		FY13

		FY14

		FY15

		FY16

		FY17

		FY18

		FY19

		FY20

		FY21

		FY22



Fiscal Year

Millions

95.2

94

85.3

80.5

93.2

97.3

99.4

109

105.5

103.6

102.8

112.9

112.5

102.1

117.4

76.8



Sheet1

				FY03		FY04		FY05		FY06		FY07		FY08		FY09		FY10		FY11		FY12		FY13		FY14		FY15		FY16		FY17		FY18		FY19		FY20		FY21		FY22

		Millions		54.7		62.0		65.5		80.5		95.2		94.0		85.3		80.5		93.2		97.3		99.4		109.0		105.5		103.6		102.8		112.9		112.5		102.1		117.4		76.8






Transmittal 2

Statements of Net Position

April 30, 2022 & June 30, 2021

April 2022 June 2021
Assets & Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Current Assets:
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 20,659,731 $ 126,944,554
Receivables 11,137,609 13,431,637
Prepaid Expenses 1,836,695 1,330,225
Total Current Assets 33,634,035 141,706,416
Restricted Investments * 124,865 434 66,621,819
Assets Held for Transfer 13,347 625 13,347,625
Net OPEB Asset 513,433 513,433
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 438,148,732 438,148,732
Capital Assets, Net 1,059,110,559 1,076,631,228
Total Assets 1,669,619,818 1,736,969,253
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Charges on Refunding 12,593,312 13,838,654
Pension Contributions & Differences in Experience 680,183 680,183
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,682,893,312 $ 1,751,488,090
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, & Net Position
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 3,061,275 $ 8,256,193
Unearned Revenue 4,239470 1,054,949
Accrued Interest Payable, Current Portion 4,906,007 39,993,990
Revenue Bonds Payable, Current Portion 37,813,264 31,745,591
Other Liabilities 417,399 459,803
Total Current Liabilities 50,437 415 81,510,526
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Collateral Deposit - -
Shortfall Advances Payable to Ports 12,641 827 12,629,403
Net Pension Liability 2,202,035 2,202,035
Accrued Interest Payable, Net of Current Portion 653,470,341 607 589,077
Revenue Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion
& Unamortized Discount 1,474,508 406 1,519,043,277
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,142,822 609 2,141,463,792
Total Liabilities 3 2,193,260,024 $ 2,222,974,318
Deferred Inflows of Resources 265,630 265,630
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 60,028 488 56,048,908
Restricted for Debt Service 100,330,749 107,302,635
Restricted for Capital Projects - -
Restricted by Master Trust Agreement 38,229,070 66,576,480
Unrestricted (718,220,648) (701,679,881)
Total Net Position (510,632,342) (471,751,858)
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, & Net Position $ 1,682,893,312 $ 1,751,488,090
* All investments with a maturity within three months are April 2022 June 2021 FY2022 Decrease
considered cash. for the ye'far-end financial statements. Current § 20659731 $ 126,944 554
Monthly, unaudited financial statements, carry all
investments, regardless of maturity date(s), as Restricted Noncurrent 124865434 66,621,819
Investments. Fully detailed classifications are only done at $ 145,525,165 $ 193,566,373 $ (48,041,208)
year-end in accordance with GASB 41, therefore
classification differences exist.




Statement of Revenues, Expenses, &

Changes in Net Position
For ten months ended April 30, 2022 & April 30, 2021

April 2022 April 2021
Operating Revenues:
Use Fees & Container Charges $ 78,045,780 $ 97,209,627
Maintenance-of-Way Charges 4758 720 4344 131
Total Operating Revenues 82,804,499 101,553,758
Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits 1,894 395 2,031,153
Administrative Expenses 1,155,646 1,637,897
Professional Services 689,199 937,503
Maintenance-of-Way 8,141,745 8,215,797
Depreciation 17,520,669 17,516,231
Total Operating Expenses 29,401,653 30,338,581
Operating Income (Loss) 53,402,846 71,215177
Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest & Investment Revenue, Net (2,302,045) 1,407,016
Public Benefit Income 188,292 254 394
Miscellaneous Revenue 142,122 136,951
Total Nonoperating Revenues (1,971,632) 1,798,361
Nonoperating Expenses:
Interest Expense 90,046,744 90,594 454
Expenses for Public Benefit & Pass Thru Expenses 264,955 450,595
Total Nonoperating Expenses, Net 90,311,699 91,045,049
Changes in Net Position (38,880,484) (18,031,511)
Net Position:
Net Positon, Beginning of Year (471,751,858) (453,012, 480)
Net Position - End of Year $ (510,632,342) $ (471,043,991)




Comparison of Budget By Expense Type

as of April 30, 2022

Fiscal Year-to-Date

($ in thousands) Budget*® Actuals Variance
Revenues
Operating Revenues
Use Fees & Container Charges $ 89,261,852 $ 78,045,780 $ (11,216,072)
Maintenance-of-Way Charges 7,217,870 4,758,720 (2,459,150)
Total Operating Revenues 96,479,722 82,804,499 (13,675,223)
Other Revenues
Projects
Pier Pass 50,000 50,000 -
EPA Order & Pass Thru Income 130,169 - (130,169)
Subtotal Projects 180,169 50,000 (130,169)
Miscellaneous
Public Benefit Income 4,045,468 188,292 (3,857,176)
Ports-Shortfall Advances - - -
Office Rental & Other Income 104,867 92,122 (12,745)
Investment Income 1,873,245 (2,302,045) (4,175,290)
Subtotal Miscellaneous 6,023,580 (2,021,632) (8,045,212)
Subtotal Other Revenues 6,203,749 (1,971,632) (8,175,381)
Total Sources of Funds 102,683,471 80,832,368 (21,850,603)
Expenses
Salaries 1,474,041 1,241,940 (232,101)
Benefits 883,765 652,455 (231,310)
Office Expenses 406,875 371,918 (35,057)
Other Management Expenses 76,000 25,1935 (50,805)
Information Technologies 221,830 143,697 (78,233)
Bank & Investment 136,667 110,238 (26,429)
ACET Administrative & Capital Support 1,200,032 504,598 (695,434)
Audit 172,896 138,042 (34,854)
Legal 733,333 358,972 (374,361)
Governmental Affairs 65,563 47,271 (18,292)
Other Professional Services 369,231 144,913 (224,318)
Pass Thru Expenses & EPA Order 130,169 61,769 (68,400)
Expenses for Public Benefit 4,045 468 203,186 (3,842,282)
Total Administrative Expenses 9,916,070 4,004,194 (5,911,876)
Maintenance-of-Way Expenses-Rail - Contractors 5,060,149 2,755,429 (2,304,720)
Maintenance-of-Way Expenses-Rail - Capital - - -
Maintenance-of-Way Expenses-Rail - Other 2,157,721 1,980,523 (167,198)
Maintenance-of-Way Expenses-Nonrail - Contractors 1,498,850 760,000 (738,850)
Maintenance-of-Way Expenses-Nonrail - Capital 4,907,313 2,439,462 (2,467,851)
Maintenance-of-Way Expenses-Nonrail - Other 149,619 103,919 (45,700)
Maintenance-of-Way Expenses - ACTA 116,202 92,412 (23,790)
Total Maintenance-of-Way Expenses 13,889,854 8,141,745 (5,748,109)
Subtotal Administrative and M&0O Expenses 23,805,924 12,145,938 (11,659,986)
Financing Expenses
Debt Service - Interest 49,766,709 43,881,314 (5,885,395)
Debt Service - Accrued CAB Interest 39,443,823 46,165,430 6,721,607
Subtotal Financing Expenses 89,210,532 90,046,744 836,212
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses
Depreciation 17,486,803 17,520,669 33,866
Subtotal Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 17,486,803 17,520,668 33,866
Total Operating Expenses 130,503,259 119,713,351 (10,789,908)

Income (Loss)

* Y-T-D Budget calculated on a straight line basis.

$ (27,819,788)

$ (38,880,484)

$ (11,060,696)




Comparison of Budget By Funds

as of April 30, 2022

Fiscal Year-to-Date

(% in thousands) Budget* Actuals Variance
Revenues
Operating Revenues
Use Fees & Container Charges $ 89,261,852 $§ 78,045,780 $ (11,216,072)
Maintenance-of-Way Charges 7,217,870 4758720 (2,459,150)
Total Operating Revenues 96,479,722 82,804,499 (13,675,223)
Other Revenues
Projects
Pier Pass 50,000 50,000 -
EPA Order & Pass Thru Income 130,169 - (130,169)
Subtotal Projects 180,169 50,000 (130,169)
Miscellaneous
Public Benefit Income 4,045,468 188,292 (3,857,176)
Ports-Shortfall Advances - - -
Office Rental & Other Income 104,867 82122 (12,745)
Investment Income 1,873,245 (2,302,045) (4,175,290)
Subtotal Miscellaneous 6,023,580 (2,021,632) (8,045,212)
Subtotal Other Revenues 6,203,749 (1,971,632) (8,175,381)
Total Sources of Funds 102,683,471 80,832,868 {21,850,603)
Expenses
Administrative Costs 5,740,433 3,739,239 (2,001,194)
Railroads-M&O 7,217,870 4,745,952 (2,471,918)
Reserve-M&O 6,555,782 3,303,381 (3,252,401)
Financing Fees-M&O 116,202 92,412 (23,790)
Revenue Fund-Interest & COI 49,766,709 43,881,314 (5,885,395)
Expenses for Public Benefit 4.045,468 203,186 (3,842,282)
LAIF General Fund-Pass Thru & EPA 130,169 61,769 (68,401)
Total Expenses 73,572,633 58,027,253 (17,545,381)
Non Cash Expenses
Accrued CAB Debt Service Interest 39,443 823 46,165,430 6,721,607
Depreciation 17,486,803 17,520,669 33,866
Subtotal Interest, Depreciation, & Amortization Expenses 56,930,626 63,686,099 6,755,473
Total Operating Expenses 130,503,259 119,713,351 (10,789,908)
Income {Loss) (27,819,788) $ (38,880,484) {11,060,696)

* ¥-T-D Budget calculated on a straight line basis.




Cash & Investment Summary

as of April 30, 2022

Cash and Investment Balances (§ in thousands)

Institution Bank Chandler Account Description Book Market
24Nk =nandier parket
— Reference # Reference # Value Value
Bank of America
0457 & 0796 - Concentration & Disbursement 1,216 1,216

Pre 1999 Bond Sale Accounts-Union Bank

5080 512 SR-47 3,760 3,732

Grant Reimbursement Received this Month $ -0.00-
Grant Reimbursement Received FY to Date $363,456

US Bank

35000 - Bank of America Collateral - -

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

40-19-006 570 General Fund 9,750 9,750

1999, 2004 and 2016 Bond Funds - US Bank-Trustee

Revenue Funds

1170 507 Revenue Fund 11,008 11,008
1171 508 M & O Fund 1,930 1,925
1172 509 Reserve Account 12,675 12,410
1189 518 Administrative Costs 3,662 3,626
Subtotal Revenue Funds 29275 28,969

Debt Service Funds
1180 - 99A Interest Account - -
1181 - 99A Principal Account - -
1183 - 99A Redemption Account - -
1200 - 99C Interest Account 1,653 1,691
1201 - 99C Principal Account 19,425 19,984
9004 515 04A Debt Service Reserve 33,566 32,041
9006 - 04A Financing fee 693 693
9002 - 04A Debt Service Principal Account - -
8003 516 04B Debt Service Reserve 24,572 23,573
59001 - 12 Debt Service Interest Account 172 172
59004 - 12 Debt Service Reserve Account 7,502 7,130
7001 - 13A Debt Service Interest Account 785 803
7002 - 13A Debt Service Principal Account 11,715 12,052
27001 - 16A Interest Account - -
27004 - 16A Debt Service Reserve 3,550 3,391
108006 - 16B- Financing Fee 326 326
108001 - 16B Interest Account - -
Subtotal Debt Service Funds 103,960 101,856
Total U.S. Bank 133,235 130,825
Total Cash & Investment Balances $ 147,961 145,523




Cash & Investment Summary (cont’'d)

as of April 30, 2022

Investment Schedule (s in thousands)

Tvoe of Investment Book Market Percentage |Investment
yp Value Value of Total  Policy Limit
Money Market Funds $ 8693 $ 9,693 6.66% 20.00%
U.S. Government & Agency Obligations 70,715 70,690 48.59% 100.00%
Commercial Paper - - 0.00% 15.00%
U.S. Treasury Note 46,370 44,343 30.47% 100.00%
Corporate Bonds 10,217 9,831 8.76% 30.00%
Bank of America 1,216 1,216 0.84% 20.00%
Local Agency Investment Fund 9,750 9,750 6.70%  $40 Million
Total $ 147,961 $ 145,623 100.00%
Monthly Cash Flow
April 2022
Total Beginning Cash $ 30,020,682
Receipts
Use Fees & Container Charges $ 8,646,835
M&QO, Grants, & Miscellaneous Revenue 737,082
Total Receipts 9,383,917
Disbursements
Debt Service - Transfer to Accounts 6,814,462
M&O, Administrative, & Financing Expenses 3,384,907
Total Disbursements 10,199,369
Cash Flow for Month $ (815,452)
Total Ending Cash 3 29,275,230




Cash Flow

as of April 30, 2022

April 2022
Beginning Cash
Master Indenture Revenue Fund 1170 9,174,046
Master Indenture M&O Fund 1171 3,360,985
Master Indenture Reserve Fund 1172 13,203,166
1999A Admin Fund 1189 4,352,485
2004A Financing Fund 39006 -
Total Beginning Cash 30,090,682
Receipts
Use Fee & Container Charges 8,646,835
M&O 731,388
Funds Transferred from BOA to Admin Fund -
Funds Transferred from BOA to Reserve Fund -
Semi-Annual Accounting - Transfer from Revenue Fund -
Interest Income / Loss 5,694
Total Receipts 9,383,917
Total Cash 39,474 599
Disbursements
Debt Service - transfer to 1999C Principal 2,762,083
Debt Service - transfer to 1999C Interest 1,665,833
Debt Service - transfer to 2012 Interest 172,076
Debt Service - transfer to 2013A Interest 712,811
Debt Service - transfer to 2013A Principal 1,501,659
Semi-Annual Accounting - Transfers & Debt Service -
Transfer to 2012 Reserve -
Transfer to 2004A Financing Fee -
Transfer to Admin Fund -
Transfer to Master Reserve -
Transfer to 2016A Reserve -
Transfer to 2016B Financing Fee -
Debt service payment - 2016A Interest -
Debt service payment - 2016B Interest -
Debt service payment - 2004 -
M&O - Railroads expense payments 2,162,067
M&O - Reserve expense payments 532,489
Administrative expense payments 690,351
Financing expense payments -
Total Disbursements 10,199,369
Net Ending Cash 29,275,230
Ending Cash
Master Indenture Revenue Fund 1170 11,006,980
Master Indenture M&O Fund 1171 1,930,411
Master Indenture Reserve Fund 1172 12,675,397
1999A Admin Fund 1189 3,662,442
2004A Financing Fund 39006 -
Total Ending Cash 29,275,230




Cash Flow - YTD

as of April 30, 2022

Cash Flow - Fiscal Year-to-Date
April 2022
Total Beginning Cash as of 7/1/21 3 62,486,703
Receipts
Use Fees & Container Charges $ 80,726,833
M&O, Grants, & Miscellanecus Revenue 12,905,467
Total Receipts 93,632,300
Disbursements
Debt Service - Transfer to Accounts 109,595,478
M&Q, Administrative, & Financing Expenses 17,248,295
Total Disbursements 126,843,773
Cash Flow for Fiscal Year $ (33,211,473)
Total Ending Cash 3 29,275,230




Cash Flow - YTD

as of April 30, 2022

April 2022
Beginning Cash as of 7/1/21
Master Indenture Revenue Fund 1170 39,865,512
Master Indenture M&O Fund 1171 3,654,077
Master Indenture Reserve Fund 1172 11,879,710
1999A Admin Fund 1189 7,087,404
2004A Financing Fund 39006 -
Total Beginning Cash 62,486,703
Receipts
Use Fee & Container Charges 80,726,833
M&O 6,119,063
Funds Transferred from BOA to Admin Fund 712,700
Funds Transferred from BOA to Reserve Fund 6,000,000
Semi-Annual Accounting - Transfer from Revenue Fund -
Interest Income / Loss 73,704
Total Receipts 93,632,300
Total Cash 156,119,003
Disbursements
Debt Service - transfer to 1999C Principal 26,905,044
Debt Service - transfer to 1999C Interest 16,189,303
Debt Service - transfer to 2012 Interest 1,705,183
Debt Service - transfer to 2013A Interest 7,857,806
Debt Service- transfer to 2013A Principal 15,890,861
Semi-Annual Accounting - Transfers & Debt Service -
Transfer to 2012 Reserve -
Transfer to 2004A Financing Fee 325,600
Transfer to Admin Fund 712,700
Transferto Master Reserve 6,000,000
Transferto 2016A Reserve -
Transfer to 2016B Financing Fee 655,800
Debt service payment - 2016A Interest 7,178,986
Debt service payment - 2016B Interest 26,174,193
Debt service payment - 2004 -
M&O - Railroads expense payments 7,843,899
M&Q - Reserve expense payments 5,280,085
Administrative expense payments 4,124,311
Financing expense payments -
Total Disbursements 126,843,773
Net Ending Cash 29,275,230
Ending Cash
Master Indenture Revenue Fund 1170 11,006,980
Master Indenture M&O Fund 1171 1,930,411
Master Indenture Reserve Fund 1172 12,675,397
1999A Admin Fund 1189 3,662,442
2004A Financing Fund 39006 -
Total Ending Cash 29,275,230




Item #04

M.E.M.O

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

June 16, 2022

To: | Governing Board

VA

From: | Kevin L. Scott, Chief Financial Officer / ;

Subject: | 2022/2023 Revenue Refunding Bonds — Approval of Certain Documents
Jor the Issuance of 2022 and 2023 Revenue Refunding Bonds and a
Tender of Certain Previously Issued bonds (APPROVAL)

Recommendation:

Adopt the Resolution of the Governing Board of the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority.
This Resolution:

1) Approves and authorizes the issuance and sale of Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A
Bonds”), Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B
Bonds”), and Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022C
(the “Series 2022C Bonds,” and collectively, the “Series 2022 Bonds”); and Tax-Exempt Senior
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023 A (the “Series 2023 A Bonds,” and together with the
Series 2022 Bonds, the “Series 2022/2023 Bonds™); and

2) Authorizes a cash tender offer and/or exchange offer to holders of ACTA’s Tax-Exempt
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A, to holders of certain of ACTA’s Taxable Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C, and to holders of ACTA’s Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B; and

3) Authorizes (1) the execution and delivery of the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture
providing the terms of the Series 2022A Bonds; (ii) the execution and delivery of the Thirteenth
Supplemental Trust Indenture providing the terms of the Series 2022B Bonds; (iii) the execution
and delivery of the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture providing the terms of the Series
2022C Bonds; (iv) the execution and delivery of the Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture
providing the terms of the Series 2023 A Bonds; (v) the preparation and distribution of a
Preliminary Official Statement and a Final Official Statement relating to the sale of the Series
2022 Bonds and a Preliminary Official Statement, Final Official Statement, and Supplemental
Final Official Statement relating to the sale of the Series 2023 A Bonds; (vi) the execution and
delivery of one or more Bond Purchase Agreements for the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, one or
more Continuing Disclosure Certificates related to the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, and contracts for
credit enhancement relating to the Series 2022/2023 Bonds; (vii) execution and delivery of the
Dealer Manager Agreement and certain related documents; and (viii) the escrow of funds for the
future redemption or payment at maturity of certain of ACTA’s outstanding Taxable Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C and Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds Series
2013A, and (ix) the execution and delivery of related documents and notices; and




4) Authorizes the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer, or their respective
designees, acting individually, to take such other actions as are necessary or desirable in
connection with the tender and exchange offers, the issuance of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, and
the necessary escrow arrangements, including payment of Costs of Issuance and any
amendments to the 2000 Forward Delivery Agreement as may be necessary or appropriate in
connection with the changes to ACTA’s debt service obligations in connection with the
refinancing.

Discussion:

Since the COVID-19 crisis, San Pedro Bay Port TEU volume has grown significantly. However,
ACTA Use Fee and Container Charge Revenues have not and are not forecasted to keep pace
with growth in ACTA debt service payments. As a result, ACTA staff is proposing to restructure
ACTA'’s outstanding debt in order to more closely align debt service payments with projected
revenues and to reduce the need for potential future Port Shortfall Advances. Staff proposes a
two-phase plan of finance. Phase 1 will be executed in 2022 and 2023 and to address shortfalls
of revenue to expenses in the near term, 2022 through 2025. Phase 1 includes the defeasance of
certain ACTA bonds and an offer to tender or exchange certain outstanding ACTA bonds to
lower the cost of both the Phase 1 and Phase 2 transactions. Phase 2 is anticipated to occur in
2026 and would address shortfalls between 2026 and 2037. With regard to Phase 1 in 2022 and
2023, ACTA staff proposes to issue:

e Series 2022 A Bonds to refund the 2022 maturity of the Series 2013A Bonds and to
exchange for, or fund the purchase of, tendered Series 1999A Bonds;

e Series 2022B Bonds to refund the 2022 maturity of the Series 1999C Bonds and a portion
of the 2029 maturity of the Series 1999C Bonds, and to exchange for, or fund the
purchase of, tendered Series 1999C Bonds;

e Series 2022C Bonds to exchange for, or fund the purchase of, tendered Series 2016B
Bonds and

e Series 2023 A Bonds to refund all remaining 2013 A bonds, maturing on or after October
1,2023.

Costs of the transaction such as, but not limited to, insurance, transaction fees, information and
tender agent fees, verification agent fees, rating agency fees, bond, tax and disclosure counsel,
financial advisory fees, offering document preparation and closing will be funded from proceeds
of the transaction. Total costs of the base case refunding of the 2022 maturity of the Series
2013A Bonds, the 2022 maturity of the Series 1999C Bonds and a portion of the 2029 maturity
of the Series 1999C Bonds and all remaining 2013 A bonds, maturing on or after October 1, 2023
are anticipated to be approximately $2.45 million excluding bond insurance and surety fees,
tender/exchange fees and underwriting charges and expenses.

Principal 2022/2023 Bond Transaction Documents

There are a number of transaction documents related to the Series 2022/2023 Bond financings
which are attached in substantially final form for consideration by ACTA’s Governing Board as
follows:

e Governing Board Resolution for 2022/2023 Bonds (Transmittal 1): Approves and
authorizes the issuance and sale of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds in an aggregate principal




amount not to exceed $2.6 billion; Approves and authorizes the tender and exchange offer
with respect to the Series 1999A Bonds, the Series 1999C Bonds, and the Series 2016B
Bonds; Approves the forms of the primary financing documents and delegates to the CEO
and CFO, or their designees, the ability to execute and deliver such documents with such
changes as the CEO and CFO, or their designees, shall require or approve and such other
ancillary documents necessary or desirable in connection with the transaction; Authorizes
municipal bond insurance and debt service reserve surety policies for the Series 2022/2023
Bonds; Authorizes (a) the defeasance of the October 1, 2022 maturity of the Series 2013A
Bonds and certain of the Series 1999C Bonds, (b) paying the purchase price for tendered
Series 1999A Bonds and Series 2013 A Bonds, if any (or the Series 2022A Bonds may be
exchanged for Series 1999A Bonds or Series 2013 A Bonds), (c) paying the purchase price
for tendered Series 1999C Bonds, if any (or the Series 2022B Bonds may be exchanged for
Series 1999C Bonds), (d) paying the purchase price for the Tendered Series 2016B Bonds,
if any (or the Series 2022C Bonds may be exchanged for Series 2016B Bonds), and (d)
refunding with the proceeds of the Series 2023 A Bonds the Series 2013 A Bonds maturing
after October 1, 2023; Sets an outside limit for the true interest cost of the Series 2022/2023
Bonds to 8% and a maximum underwriters’ discount of 0.7% of the aggregate par amount
of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds. The maximum Dealer Manager fee will not exceed 0.4%
of the aggregate par amount of the bonds, including the Series 1999A, Series 1999C, Series
2013A, and Series 2016B Bonds, that are offered for tender or exchange and accepted by
the Authority, plus out-of-pocket expenses.

2022 Dealer Manager Agreement (Exhibit B-1): Provides for the terms, conditions and
compensation for the Dealer Managers, JP Morgan and RBC, in the execution of the tender
or exchange of outstanding bonds, including the Series 1999A, Series 1999C, Series
2013A, and Series 2016B Bonds.

12th Supplemental Trust Indenture (Exhibit C-1): Authorizes the issuance of ACTA’s
Series 2022 A Bonds which will be senior lien bonds under ACTA’s existing Master Trust
Indenture; the Series 2022A Bonds are expected to (a) defease to their maturity the October
1, 2022 maturity of the Series 2013 A Bonds, (b) pay the purchase price for tendered Series
1999A Bonds and Series 2013A bonds, if any (or the Series 2022A Bonds may be
exchanged for Series 1999A or Series 2013A Bonds). The 12th Supplement contemplates
that, subject to market conditions, a debt service reserve surety may be provided by a bond
insurer.

13th Supplemental Trust Indenture (Exhibit C-2): Authorizes the issuance of ACTA’s
Series 2022B Bonds which will be senior lien bonds under ACTA’s existing Master Trust
Indenture; the Series 2022B Bonds are expected to be used to (a) defease to their maturity
the October 1, 2022 maturity of the Series 1999C Bonds and to their sinking fund redemption
dates a portion of the October 1, 2029 maturity of the 1999C Bonds, and (b), pay the purchase
price for tendered Series 1999C Bonds, if any (or the Series 2022B Bonds may be
exchanged for Series 1999C Bonds). The 13th Supplement also contemplates that, subject
to market conditions, a debt service reserve surety may be provided by a bond insurer.

14th Supplemental Trust Indenture (Exhibit C-3): Authorizes the issuance of ACTA’s
Series 2022C Bonds which will be second subordinate lien bonds under ACTA’s existing
Master Trust Indenture; the Series 2022C Bonds are expected to be used to pay the
purchase price for the Tendered Series 2016B Bonds, if any (or the Series 2022C Bonds
may be exchanged for Series 2016B Bonds) The 14th Supplement also contemplates that,

3



subject to market conditions, a debt service reserve surety may be provided by a bond
insurer. Depending on the results of the tender and exchange process with respect to the
Series 2016B Bonds, the Series 2022C Bonds may not be issued.

e 15th Supplemental Trust Indenture (Exhibit C-4): Authorizes the issuance of ACTA’s
Series 2023 A Bonds - Forward Delivery which will be senior lien bonds under ACTA’s
existing Master Trust Indenture; the Series 2023 A Bonds will be used to refund the 2013 A
Bonds not tendered or exchanged and maturing on or after October 1, 2023. The 15th
Supplement also contemplates that, subject to market conditions, a debt service reserve
surety may be provided by a bond insurer.

e 2022/2023 Bond Purchase Agreements (Exhibits D-1 and D-2): Provide for the sale and
distribution of the Series 2022 Bonds and the sale and forward delivery of the Series 2023A
Bonds by the underwriters designated therein; Designates J.P. Morgan Securities, LLC as
lead underwriter.

e 2022/2023 Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statements (Exhibits E-1 and
E-2): Discloses to investors the terms of the 2022/2023 Bonds and other material
information concerning ACTA’s Bonds and the Alameda Corridor Project, including the
Ports’ and Railroads’ obligations under the Use and Operating Agreement and other
relevant documents.

o Escrow Agreement (Exhibit F): Provide for the establishment and funding of escrow
accounts for the purpose of defeasing the applicable Series 1999C Bonds and Series 2013 A
Bonds. Requires the execution of escrow purchases by the selected escrow bidding agent
and the delivery of verification reports by an independent certified public accountant
verifying that the amounts deposited in the escrow accounts (and earnings thereon) will be
sufficient to defease the applicable Series 2022/2023 Bonds upon redemption or maturity,
as applicable.

e Continuing Disclosure Certificates (Exhibit G): Provides that ACTA, and each Port, will
provide certain financial and operating information to bondholders annually in accordance
with SEC Rule 15¢2-12. Similar agreements will be entered into by BNSF and UP.

Schedule

By the June 16, 2022 meeting of ACTA’s Governing Board, and assuming approval of the
Resolution, the Harbor Commissions of each Port will have considered approval of a Resolution,
Letter of Representation, and Continuing Disclosure Certificate in connection with the
restructuring transaction. In addition, ACTA and its consultants will have met with rating
agencies, negotiated terms for bond insurance and a debt service reserve fund surety, if
applicable, and taken other actions set forth in the Resolution with respect to the offering and
sale of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds. The tender and exchange offer will most likely occur in
mid-June through mid-July 2022. The Series 2022/2023 Bond sale is currently scheduled for the
week of July 17 with closing before the end of July 2022, and the settlement for the Series
2023 A Bonds, which will be Forward Delivery Bonds, is scheduled for July 2023.

Budget Impact:

No budget appropriation is necessary at this time.



Co-General Counsel:

ACTA’s Co-General Counsel has reviewed and approved as to form the proposed Resolution,
and the Dealer Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreements, Escrow Agreement and Continuing
Disclosure Certificates subject to final completion of these documents as authorized in the
Resolution.

Transmittals

Transmittal 1: Board Resolution
e Exhibit A: Good Faith Estimate
Exhibit B-1: Form of Dealer Manager Agreement
Exhibit B-2: Invitation to Tender or Exchange Bonds
Exhibit C-1: Form of 12" Supplemental Trust Indenture
Exhibit C-2: Form of 13" Supplemental Trust Indenture
Exhibit C-3: Form of 14" Supplemental Trust Indenture
Exhibit C-4: Form of 15™ Supplemental Trust Indenture
Exhibit D-1 Form of Bond Purchase Agreement
Exhibit D-2: Form of Bond Purchase Agreement (Forward Delivery)
Exhibit E-1: Form of Preliminary Official Statement
Exhibit E-2: Form of Preliminary Official Statement (Forward Delivery)
Exhibit F: Form of Escrow Agreement
Exhibit G: Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate



RESOLUTION NO. JPA-22-[]

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAKING
OF A TENDER OFFER FOR CERTAIN OF THE AUTHORITY’'S OUTSTANDING
BONDS;, THE NEGOTIATION, PREPARATION, ENTERING INTO, EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY, AS APPLICABLE, OF A DEALER MANAGER AGREEMENT AND AN
INVITATION TO TENDER OR EXCHANGE BONDS RELATING TO SUCH TENDER
OFFER AND THE PURCHASE OF BONDSTENDERED PURSUANT TO THE TENDER
OFFER; THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS,
SERIES 2022A, TAXABLE SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES
2022B, TAX-EXEMPT SECOND SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING
BONDS, SERIES 2022C, AND TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING
BONDS, SERIES 2023A (FORWARD DELIVERY); THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY
OF THETWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE PROVIDING THETERMS
OF THE SERIES2022A BONDS;, THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE
THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE PROVIDING THE TERMS OF
THE SERIES2022B BONDS; THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE
FOURTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE PROVIDING THE TERMS OF
THE SERIES 2022C BONDS; THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE FIFTEENTH
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE PROVIDING THE TERMS OF THE
SERIES 2023A BONDS; THE PREPARATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF ONE OR MORE
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENTS AND ONE OR MORE FINAL OFFICIAL
STATEMENTSRELATING TO THE SALE OF THE BONDS,AND ANY SUPPLEMENTS
OR AMENDMENTS THERETO,; THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ONE OR
MORE BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENTS, ONE OR MORE CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATES, AND CONTRACTS FOR CREDIT ENHANCEMENT
RELATING TO THE BONDS;, THE DEFEASANCE OF CERTAIN OUTSTANDING
SERIES 2013A BONDS AND SERIES 1999C BONDS AND THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF RELATED DOCUMENTS AND NOTICES, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ONE OR MORE ESCROW
AGREEMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING SUCH OTHER ACTIONSASARE NECESSARY
OR DESIRABLE IN CONNECTION WITH THE TENDER OFFER, THE ISSUANCE OF
THE SERIES2022A BONDS, SERIES 2022B BONDS, SERIES 2022C BONDS, AND
SERIES 2023A BONDS, AND SUCH DEFEASANCES.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the Government
Code of the State of California, as amended (the “ Joint PowersAct”), the City of Long Beach and
the City of Los Angeles, (collectively, the “Cities”) entered into the Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement, as amended and restated December 18, 1996 and as further amended on July 1, 2006
(as amended and restated, the “Joint Powers Agreement”), creating the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority (the “ Authority”), a public entity separate and apart from the Cities;



WHEREAS, pursuant to the Joint Powers Act and a Master Trust Indenture dated as of
January 1, 1999 (as amended, the “Master Indenture,” and as amended and supplemented, the
“Indenture”), the Authority has issued, among other bonds. (i) $494,893,616.80 in aggregate
principal amount and Initial Amount (as defined in the Indenture) of its Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “Series 1999A Bonds’); (ii) $497,453,395.70 in aggregate
principal amount and Initial Amount of its Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C (the
“Series 1999C Bonds’); (iii) $248,325,000 in aggregate principal amount of its Tax-Exempt Senior
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A (the“ Series 2013A Bonds”); and (iv) $566,860,000
in aggregate principal amount of its Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2016B (the “ Series 2016B Bonds’), in each case for the purpose of financing or
refinancing Costs of the Project (asdefined in the Master Indenture). Capitalized termsused herein
which are not defined herein shall have meanings given to such termsin the Master Indenture;

WHEREAS, the Series 2013A Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2024 are subject to
redemption, at the option of the Authority, on or after October 1, 2023 at a price equal to 100% of
the principal amount plus accrued interest;

WHEREAS, Section 2.08 of the Master Indenture provides that the Authority may issue
Refunding Bonds from time to time for the purpose, in pertinent part, of providing fundsto refund
all or aportion of its outstanding bonds (the “ Outstanding Bonds”);

WHEREAS, Section 2.09(a) of the Master Indenture provides that such Refunding Bonds
may be issued for the purpose of providing funds to refund the Authority’s outstanding Senior
Bonds provided that certain conditions are satisfied, including, anong others, the requirement that
Maximum Annual Debt Service following the issuance of such Refunding Bonds will not exceed
the Maximum Annual Debt Service prior to such issuance;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue Senior Lien Bonds, in part, for the following
purposes: (i) on acurrent delivery basis, for the purpose of defeasing to their maturity the October
1, 2022 maturity of its Series 2013A Bonds, (ii) on a forward delivery basis, for the purpose of
defeasing the Series 2013A Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2023 to their October 1, 2023
maturity or redemption date, as applicable, and (iii) on acurrent delivery basis, for the purpose of
defeasing to their maturity the October 1, 2022 maturity of its Series 1999C Bonds and defeasing
to the October 1, 2023, 2024, and 2025 sinking fund payment dates a portion of the October 1,
2029 maturity of its Series 1999C Bonds;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article V of the Master Indenture, the Authority is authorized to
defease all or aportion of the Series 2013A Bonds and the Series 1999C Bonds prior to their stated
maturities in accordance with the terms set forth in the Master Indenture;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to make a cash tender offer and/or exchange offer (the
“Senior Tender Offer”) to all holdersof: (i) its outstanding Series 1999A Bonds, (ii) its outstanding
Series 1999C Bonds, and (iii) its outstanding Series 2013A Bonds maturing on or after October 1,
2023 (collectively, the “ Tender Offer Senior Bonds’) on substantially the terms described in the
draft Tender Offer Documents (as defined below);



WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue Senior Lien Bonds, in part, for the purpose of
providing funds to refund, or exchanging, such of the Tender Offer Senior Bonds as the holders
thereof elect to tender to or exchange with the Authority (such tendered or exchanged bonds, the
“Tendered Senior Bonds”);

WHEREAS, Section 2.09(c) of the Master Indenture, as amended, provides that the
Authority may issue Second Subordinate Lien Bonds for the purpose of providing fundsto refund
the Outstanding Bonds provided that certain conditions are satisfied, including, among others, the
requirement that Maximum Annual Debt Service on all outstanding Second Subordinate Lien
Bonds after the issuance of such Second Subordinate Lien Bonds will not exceed Maximum
Annual Debt Service on al outstanding Second Subordinate Lien Bonds prior to such issuance;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to make a cash tender offer and/or exchange offer (the
“Subordinate Tender Offer,” and together with the Senior Tender Offer, the “ Tender Offers’) to all
holders of its outstanding Series 2016B Bonds (together with the Tender Offer Senior Bonds, the
“Tender Offer Bonds™) on substantially the terms described in the Tender Offer Documents;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding
Bondsfor the purpose of providing fundsto refund, or exchanging, such of the Series 2016B Bonds
asthe holdersthereof elect to tender to or exchange with the Authority (such tendered or exchanged
bonds, the “ Tendered Series 2016B Bonds,” and together with the Tendered Senior Bonds, the
“Tendered Bonds’);

WHEREAS, the Authority may elect to purchase a portion of the Outstanding Bonds on the
open market for cancellation;

WHEREAS, in particular, the Authority proposes to issue, as Refunding Bonds under the
Master Indenture, its Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the “ Series 2022A Bonds’), its Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the
“Series 2022B Bonds’), its Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022C (the “ Series 2022C Bonds’), and its
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2023A (the “Series 2023A Bonds,” and together with the Series 2022A Bonds, the Series
2022B Bonds, and the Series 2022C Bonds, the “ Series 2022/2023 Bonds’) in a total aggregate
principal amount or Initial Amount not to exceed $2,600,000,000 for the purposes of defeasing in
full the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds, defeasing all or a portion of certain maturities of the
Series 1999C Bonds, and purchasing and/or exchanging the Tendered Bonds; provided, however,
that the Authority reserves the right, at its option, to elect not to issue the Series 2022C Bonds;

WHEREAS, in connection with the Tender Offersfor the Tender Offer Bonds, the Authority
will cause to be prepared, among other things, as applicable, a dealer manager agreement between
the Authority and such dealer manager(s) as the Authorized Authority Representative may
hereinafter appoint (each a “Dealer Manager” and collectively the “Dealer Managers’) for the
Tender Offers (the “Dealer Manager Agreement”), an invitation to tender or exchange bonds (the
“Invitation”), and other documents, instruments, applications, presentations, agreements, notes,



undertakings, filings, forms, certificates, and other ancillary documents and materials in
connection therewith (collectively, the “ Tender Offer Documents’);

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance and sale of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, the
Authority desires to prepare and distribute one or more Preliminary Official Statements and one
or more Final Official Statements (each as hereinafter defined), and any necessary or desirable
supplements or amendments thereto;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enter into one or more Bond Purchase Agreements
(collectively, the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), by and between the Authority and J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, as representative of the underwriters named therein (collectively, the
“Underwriters’), pursuant to which the Authority will agreeto issue and sell, and the Underwriters
will agree to purchase, the Series 2022/2023 Bonds on the terms and conditions contained therein;

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance and sale of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, the
Authority desires to execute and deliver one or more Continuing Disclosure Certificates
(collectively, the “ Continuing Disclosure Certificate”) for the benefit of the holders and beneficial
owners of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds;

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code Section 5852.1, the Authority has
obtained from its financial adviser the required good faith estimates and such estimates are
disclosed and set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto;

WHEREAS, the Underwriters under the Bond Purchase Agreement will require that the
City of Long Beach, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (*POLB”), and the
City of Los Angeles, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (“*POLA™), each
execute a letter of representation, a continuing disclosure certificate and certain other documents
(collectively, the “Port Documents’) prior to and in connection with the issuance of the Series
2022/2023 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, both POLB and POLA will need to take actions to approve the execution and
delivery of their respective Port Documents.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Governing Board of the Authority as follows:

1. The Tender Offers on the Tender Offer Bonds by the Authority, including the
payment of cash or exchange of Series 2022/2023 Bonds as the consideration to be offered to the
tendering holders of the Tendered Bonds and the cancellation of the Tendered Bonds, are hereby
approved on substantially the terms and conditions as set forth in the Dealer Manager Agreement
and the Invitation. Each of the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer of the
Authority, or their respective designee(s) (each an “ Authorized Authority Representative”), acting
individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the name of and on behalf
of the Authority, (i) to negotiate, prepare or cause to be prepared, enter into, execute and file, as
applicable, with any federal or state regulatory body any form, schedule, document, instrument or
agreement required to obtain approval of the Tender Offers, (ii) to take any full and final action
deemed necessary, desirable or appropriate with respect to any amendment or modification of, or
supplement to, or extension of, the Tender Offers and/or any waiver of the conditions set forth in



the Tender Offer Documents with respect to the Tender Offers, the necessity, desirability or
appropriateness thereof to be conclusively evidenced by the taking of such action, and (iii) cause
the Authority to perform its obligations and exercise its rights under the Tender Offer Documents
in connection with the Tender Offers.

2. The draft forms of the Dealer Manager Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B-1
and the Invitation attached hereto as Exhibit B-2 are hereby authorized and approved, in
substantially the forms attached hereto. Each Authorized Authority Representative, acting
individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the name of and on behalf
of the Authority, (i) to negotiate, prepare or cause to be prepared, enter into, execute and deliver,
as applicable, the Dealer Manager Agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
B-1, the Invitation, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B-2, and the other Tender
Offer Documents, with such changes thereto as the Authorized Authority Representative
executing and delivering, as applicable, such Tender Offer Documents may require or approve
(with the concurrence of counsel to the Authority), such requirement or approval (and such
concurrence) to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof, as applicable;
(ii) to appoint the Dealer Managers, information agent and/or depositary in accordance with the
Tender Offer Documents; (iii) to execute and deliver, as applicable, any additional documents,
certificates or instruments related thereto; and (iv) to take such other actions as may be deemed
necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

3. Theissuance and sale of the Series 2022A Bonds, the Series 2022B Bonds and the
Series 2023A Bonds by the Authority are hereby approved in atotal aggregate principal amount
or Initial Amount not to exceed $1,800,000,000. The issuance and sale of the Series 2022C Bonds
by the Authority are hereby approved in an aggregate principal amount or Initial Amount not to
exceed $800,000,000.

4. The Series 2022A Bonds shall be special limited obligations of the Authority
secured only by the Trust Estate (as defined in the Indenture) and a pledge of Revenues (as defined
in the Indenture), as provided in the Indenture. The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2022A
Bonds shall be applied as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture and be used (a)
to defease to their maturity the October 1, 2022 maturity of the Series 2013A Bonds, (b) to pay the
purchase price for tendered Series 1999A Bonds or tendered Series 2013A Bonds, if any (or the
Series 2022A Bonds may be exchanged for Series 1999A Bonds or Series 2013A Bonds), (c) to
pay costs of issuing the Series 2022A Bonds, including any premiums with respect to bond
insurance, (d) to pay all fees, costs and expenses associated with conducting the Senior Tender
Offer for the Series 1999A Bonds and the Series 2013A Bonds, and (€) to satisfy the debt service
reserve reguirement with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds, including the cost of obtaining a debt
service reserve surety agreement with respect thereto, if applicable. The Authority may elect, in
its discretion, not to use any proceeds of the issuance and sale of the Series 2022A Bonds for the
purchase of tendered Series 1999A Bonds and/or Series 2013A Bonds (and/or not to exchange
any Series 1999A Bonds and/or Series 2013A Bonds for Series 2022A Bonds) if the Authority
determines that, based on the results of the Senior Tender Offer, proceeding with the tender or
exchange of the Series 1999A Bonds and/or Series 2013A Bondsis not in the best interests of the
Authority.



5. The Series 2022B Bonds shall be special limited obligations of the Authority
secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The
proceeds from the sale of the Series 2022B Bonds shall be applied as provided in the Thirteenth
Supplemental Trust Indenture and be used (a) to defease all of the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds
maturing on October 1, 2022 to their October 1, 2022 maturity date, and to defease to the October
1, 2023, 2024, and 2025 sinking fund payment dates a portion of the October 1, 2029 maturity of
the Series 1999C Bonds, (b) to pay the purchase price for tendered Series 1999C Bonds, if any
(or the Series 2022B Bonds may be exchanged for Series 1999C Bonds), (c) to pay costs of issuing
the Series 2022B Bonds, including any premiums with respect to bond insurance, (d) to pay all
fees, costs and expenses associated with conducting the Senior Tender Offer for the Series 1999C
Bonds, and (e) to satisfy the debt service reserve requirement with respect to the Series 2022B
Bonds, including the cost of obtaining a debt service reserve surety agreement with respect
thereto, if applicable. TheAuthority may elect, inits discretion, not to proceed with the issuance
and sale of the Series 2022B Bonds (and/or not to exchange any Series 1999C Bonds for Series
2022B Bonds) if the Authority determines that, based on the results of the Senior Tender Offer,
proceeding with the tender or exchange of the Series 1999C Bonds is not in the best interests of
the Authority.

6. The Series 2022C Bonds shall be special limited obligations of the Authority
secured only by a second subordinate lien on the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as
provided in the Indenture. The proceedsfrom the sale of the Series 2022C Bonds shall be applied
as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture and be used (a) to pay the purchase
price for the Tendered Series 2016B Bonds, if any (or the Series 2022C Bonds may be exchanged
for Series 2016B Bonds) (b) to pay costs of issuing the Series 2022C Bonds, including any
premiums with respect to bond insurance, (c) to pay all fees, costs and expenses associated with
conducting the Subordinate Tender Offer, and (d) to satisfy the debt service reserve requirement
with respect to the Series 2022C Bonds, including the cost of obtaining a debt service reserve
surety agreement with respect thereto, if applicable. The Authority may elect, in its discretion,
not to proceed with the issuance and sale of the Series 2022C Bonds (and/or not to exchange any
Series 2016B Bondsfor Series 2022C Bonds) if the Authority determinesthat, based on the results
of the Subordinate Tender Offer, proceeding with the tender or exchange of the Series 2016B
Bonds is not in the best interests of the Authority.

7. The Series 2023A Bonds shall be special limited obligations of the Authority
secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The
proceeds from the sale of the Series 2023A Bonds shall be applied as provided in the Fifteenth
Supplemental Trust Indenture and be used (a) to defease all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds
maturing on or after October 1, 2023 to their October 1, 2023 maturity or redemption date, as
applicable, (b) to pay costs of issuing the Series 2023A Bonds, including any premiums with
respect to bond insurance, and (c) to satisfy the debt service reserve requirement with respect to
the Series 2023A Bonds, including the cost of obtaining a debt service reserve surety agreement
with respect thereto, if applicable.

8. The draft form of the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture attached hereto as
Exhibit C-1 is hereby authorized and approved, in substantially the form attached hereto. Each
Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and



directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Twelfth
Supplemental Trust Indenture, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-1, with such
changesthereto asthe Authorized Authority Representative executing and delivering such Twelfth
Supplemental Trust Indenture may require or approve (with the concurrence of counsel to the
Authority), such requirement or approval (and such concurrence) to be conclusively evidenced by
the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any additional documents,
certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as may be deemed
necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

9. The draft form of the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture attached hereto as
Exhibit C-2 is hereby authorized and approved, in substantially the form attached hereto. Each
Authorized Authority Representative, acting individualy, is hereby authorized, empowered and
directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the
Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, substantialy in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-
2, with such changes thereto as the Authorized Authority Representative executing and delivering
such Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture may require or approve (with the concurrence of
counsel to the Authority), such requirement or approval (and such concurrence) to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any additional
documents, certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as may be
deemed necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

10.  Thedraft form of the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture attached hereto as
Exhibit C-3 is hereby authorized and approved, in substantially the form attached hereto. Each
Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and
directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the
Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-
3, with such changes thereto as the Authorized Authority Representative executing and delivering
such Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture may require or approve (with the concurrence of
counsel to the Authority), such requirement or approval (and such concurrence) to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any additional
documents, certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as may be
deemed necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

11.  The draft form of the Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture attached hereto as
Exhibit C-4 is hereby authorized and approved, in substantially the form attached hereto. Each
Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and
directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Fifteenth
Supplemental Trust Indenture, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-4, with such
changes thereto as the Authorized Authority Representative executing and delivering such
Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture may require or approve (with the concurrence of counsel
to the Authority), such requirement or approva (and such concurrence) to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any additional
documents, certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as may be
deemed necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

12.  The draft forms of the Bond Purchase Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit D-1



(with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds and the Series 2022B Bonds), Exhibit D-2 (with respect
to the Series 2022C Bonds), and Exhibit D-3 (with respect to the Series 2023A Bonds) are hereby
authorized and approved, in substantially the forms attached hereto. Each Authorized Authority
Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the
name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreements,
substantially in the forms attached hereto as Exhibit D-1, Exhibit D-2 and Exhibit D-3, as
applicable, with such changes thereto as the Authorized Authority Representative executing and
delivering such Bond Purchase Agreement may require or approve (with the concurrence of
counsel to the Authority), such requirement or approval (and such concurrence) to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any additional
documents, certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as may be
deemed necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution. In connection
with the negotiation, execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase Agreements, each Authorized
Authority Representative is further hereby authorized, empowered and directed to negotiate the
purchase price, interest rates, redemption provisions, dated dates, maturity dates, principa
amounts and prepayment provisions with respect to the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, and are further
authorized to negotiate any and all other terms and agreementsrelated to the issuance of the Series
2022/2023 Bonds, as an Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, may determine
to be in the best interest of the Authority, all to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and
delivery of the applicable Bond Purchase Agreement; provided, however, that (a) the true interest
cost of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds to the Authority shall not exceed eight percent (8%), and (b)
the aggregate underwriters’ discount shall not exceed seven tenths of one percent (0.7%) of the
aggregate par amount of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, and (¢) the maximum Deaer Manager fee
will not exceed four tenths of one percent (0.4%) of the aggregate par amount of the bonds,
including the Series 1999A Bonds, the Series 1999C Bonds, the Series 2013A Bonds, and the
Series 2016B Bonds, that are offered for tender or exchange and accepted by the Authority, plus
out-of-pocket expenses.

13.  All or any portion of any series of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds may be sold with
credit enhancement (such as, but not limited to, municipal bond insurance or letters of credit) as
any Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, may determine to be in the best
interests of the Authority. Further, the Authority may obtain one or more debt service reserve
account surety policies, letters of credit, or similar credit facilities to satisfy the Debt Service
Reserve Requirement for all or any portion of any series of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, as any
Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, may determineto bein the best interests
of the Authority. Each Authorized Authority Representative, acting individualy, is hereby
authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to
execute and deliver any documents required to be executed and delivered in connection with such
credit enhancement or credit facilities, with such termsand provisions asthe Authorized Authority
Representative executing and delivering such documents may require or approve (with the
concurrence of counsel to the Authority), such requirement or approval (and such concurrence) to
be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any
additional documents, certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as
may be deemed necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

14.  The defeasance of the Series 2013A Bonds as provided in Paragraphs 4 and 7



hereof and the defeasance of a portion of the Series 1999C Bonds as provided in Paragraph 5
hereof are hereby authorized and approved, at such time and using proceeds of the sale of the
Series 2022A Bonds, the Series 2022B Bonds and the Series 2023A Bonds, as provided in the
Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Fifteenth
Supplemental Trust Indenture, and the Escrow Agreements (as defined in Paragraph 19 below).
Each Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered
and directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to negotiate, prepare, or cause
to be prepared, execute and deliver such defeasance notices (conditional or otherwise),
certificates, instruments and documents, as applicable, as are necessary or desirable to defease
such Series 2013A Bonds and Series 1999C Bonds in accordance with the Indenture, and to take
any and all actions as may be necessary or desirable to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.

15.  Thepurchase or exchange of the Tendered Senior Bonds as provided in Paragraphs
4 and 5 hereof is hereby authorized and approved, at such time and using proceeds of the sale of
the Series 2022A Bonds and the Series 2022B Bonds, as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental
Trust Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture. Each Authorized Authority
Representative, acting individualy, is hereby authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the
name of and on behalf of the Authority, to negotiate, prepare, or cause to be prepared, execute and
deliver such certificates, instruments and documents, as applicable, as are necessary or desirable
to purchase or exchange such Tendered Senior Bonds in accordance with the Indenture, and to
take any and all actions as may be necessary or desirable to effectuate the purposes of this
Resolution. The Authority may elect, in its discretion, not to proceed with the purchase or
exchange of and one or more series of the Tendered Senior Bondsif the Authority determinesthat,
based on the results of the Senior Tender Offer, proceeding with the purchase or exchange of any
such series of the Tendered Senior Bonds is not in the best interests of the Authority.

16. The purchase or exchange of the Tendered Series 2016B Bonds, as provided in
Paragraph 6 hereof, is hereby authorized and approved, at such time and using proceeds of the
sale of the Series 2022C Bonds, as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture.
Each Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered
and directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to negotiate, prepare, or cause
to be prepared, execute and deliver such certificates, instruments and documents, as applicable,
as are necessary or desirable to purchase or exchange such Tendered Bonds in accordance with
the Indenture, and to take any and all actions as may be necessary or desirable to effectuate the
purposes of this Resolution. The Authority may elect, in its discretion, not to proceed with the
purchase or exchange of the Tendered Series 2016B Bondsif the Authority determinesthat, based
on the results of the Subordinate Tender Offer, proceeding with the purchase or exchange of the
Tendered Series 2016B Bonds is not in the best interests of the Authority.

17.  The purchase of any of the Authority’s Outstanding Bonds on the open market for
cancellation is hereby authorized and approved, at such time and using such Authority funds, if
and as determined by an Authorized Authority Representative.

18.  Theforms of the Preliminary Official Statement (as hereinafter defined) attached
hereto as Exhibit E-1 (with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds, the Series 2022B Bonds, and the
Series 2022C Bonds) and Exhibit E-2 (with respect to the Series 2023A Bonds) are hereby



authorized and approved, in substantially the forms attached hereto. The Preliminary Officia
Statements are to be distributed substantially in the forms attached hereto as Exhibit E-1 and
Exhibit E-2, with such changes thereto as any Authorized Authority Representative may require
or approve (with the concurrence of the counsel to the Authority) (together with all supplements
and amendments prior to the execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the
“Preliminary Official Statements’), which requirement or approva shall be evidenced by the
Authority’s certification, by its execution of the applicable Bond Purchase Agreement, to the
effect that the applicable Preliminary Official Statement is deemed final as of its date, within the
meaning of Rule 15¢c2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(except for the omission of certain information as permitted by said Rule). Further, each
Authorized Authority Representative, acting individualy, is hereby authorized, empowered and
directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the fina
Official Statements, substantially in the forms of the Preliminary Official Statements, with such
changes thereto as any Authorized Authority Representative executing and delivering the final
Official Statements may require or approve (with the concurrence of counsel to the Authority),
including such supplement as may be required in connection with the forward delivery of the
Series 2023A Bonds (collectively, the “ Final Official Statements”), such requirement or approval
(and such concurrence) to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and
to execute and deliver any additional documents, certificates or instruments related thereto, and
to take such other actions as may be deemed necessary or desirable in order to effect the purpose
of thisResolution. The Underwriters are hereby authorized to distribute copies of the Preliminary
Official Statements and the Final Official Statements to persons who may be interested in the
purchase of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds, and to deliver the Fina Official Statements to the
purchasers of the Series 2022/2023 Bonds.

19.  The draft form of the Escrow Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit F is hereby
authorized and approved, in substantially the form attached hereto. Each Authorized Authority
Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the
name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver one or more such escrow
agreements (each an “Escrow Agreement”), each substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit F, with such changes thereto as the Authorized Authority Representative executing and
delivering such Escrow Agreements may require or approve (with the concurrence of counsel to
the Authority), such requirement or approval (and such concurrence) to be conclusively evidenced
by the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any additional documents,
certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as may be deemed
necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

20.  The draft form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate attached hereto as
Exhibit G is hereby authorized and approved, in substantially the form attached hereto. Each
Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, is hereby authorized, empowered and
directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver one or more
such Continuing Disclosure Certificates, each substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit G, with such changes thereto as the Authorized Authority Representative executing and
delivering such Continuing Disclosure Certificate may require or approve (with the concurrence
of the counsel to the Authority), such requirement or approval (and such concurrence) to be
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; and to execute and deliver any

10



additional documents, certificates or instruments related thereto; and to take such other actions as
may be deemed necessary or desirable in order to effect the purposes of this Resolution.

21. Each Authorized Authority Representative, acting individualy, is hereby
authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to
appoint one or more Dealer Managers, information agent and/or depositary, as applicable and as
desired by such Authorized Authority Representative, in respect of the Tender Offers, to appoint
such other agents as may be deemed necessary by the Authorized Authority Representative in
connection with the Tender Offers, and to pay the fees and costs of the Dealer Managers,
information agent, depositary and such other agents, as applicable, in accordance with the Tender
Offer Documents.

22. All actions heretofore taken (a) by any officer or agent of the Authority in
connection with or related to the Tender Offers, the issuance and sale of the Bonds, or the
defeasance of the Series 2013A Bonds and the Series 1999C Bonds, and (b) by the Authority in
connection with its authorization of the execution and delivery of, and the performance of its
obligations under, the Use and Operating Agreement and the Master Indenture, and its
authorization of the performance of its obligations under the Joint Powers Agreement, are hereby
approved, confirmed and ratified.

23. Each Authorized Authority Representative, acting individually, is hereby
authorized, empowered and directed, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to
take any and all actions and to execute any and all documents, including any amendments to the
Forward Delivery Agreement among the Authority, the bond trustee, and Bank of America, N.A.
dated as of July 12, 2000 (as previously amended and supplemented), as may be necessary or
desirable to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution and the documents and transactions herein
authorized and to comply with the terms of the documents herein authorized.

24, This Resolution shall take effect immediately. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of this Resolution by the Authority and shall cause a copy of this Resolution to be
transmitted to the Board of Harbor Commissioners of the City of Long Beach and to the Board of
Harbor Commissioners of the City of LosAngeles.

11



| hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Authority at its meeting

this___ day of , 2022 by the following vote:
Ayes:
Noes:
Absent:
Not Voting:
ATTEST:
By:
Secretary of Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority
APPROVED ASTO FORM:
, 2022

MICHAEL N. FEUER, City Attorney

By:
Heather M. McCloskey, Deputy City Attorney
ACTA Co-General Counsel

12



EXHIBIT A
GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE

[to be attached)]

A-1



pfm

June 9, 2022

Memorandum

To:  Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Kevin Lloyd Scott, Chief Financial Officer

From: PFM Financial Advisors, LLC
Re: Good Faith Estimate of Series 2022 and Series 2023 Bonds

As financial advisor to the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (‘“ACTA”), PFM
Financial Advisors LLC (“PFMFA”) has been asked to provide a good faith estimate for the
upcoming Series 2022 and 2023 Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bonds (the “Senior Lien
Bonds”) pursuant to California Government Code Section 5852.1. The Code requires that
the public body obtain and disclose the following information:

1. The true interest cost of the bonds

2. The finance charge of the bonds (all fees and charges paid to third parties)

3. The amount of proceeds received by the public body for the sale of the bonds less
the finance charge of the bonds and any reserves and capitalized interest funded
with bond proceeds

4. The total payment amount to the final maturity of the bonds, including debt service
and any fees and charges not paid with bond proceeds

ACTA is planning to offer approximately $475 million in bonds (“Base Case”) to eliminate
debt service shortfalls estimated to occur from FY22 to FY25. The refunding escrow is
assumed to be invested in State and Local Government Series Securities (“SLGS”). In
addition, ACTA will be pursuing a tender/exchange of outstanding bonds to reduce shortfalls
expected to occur in FY26-FY38, as well as reduce the cost of the current base case. The
Base Case financing will extend maturities beyond FY38 (current maximum maturity) to FY39
to FY62. The Good Faith Estimate evaluates only the base case financing.

The base case financing consists of three series of Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds,
2022A — Tax-Exempt Current Interest Bonds; 2022B — Taxable Capital Appreciation Bonds;
2023A —Tax-Exempt Forward Delivery Current Interest Bonds. The sale of the Bonds is
tentatively scheduled for the week of July 17, closing in mid-August. The 2023A Bonds are
expected to be delivered on or about July 1, 2023. Interest rates are as of June 7, 2022.
The actual interest rates on the refunding are subject to change until the Bonds are sold and,
as such, may be higher or lower than the rates used as the basis for this good faith estimate.

ACTA is pursuing bond insurance on the financings, including using a surety to replace cash
debt service reserve fund deposits. The Base Case does not assume bond insurance or

sureties. Approximately $48 million of proceeds will be used to fund Debt Service Reserve
Funds.

Bonds are expected to mature on October 1, consistent with the amortization date of
outstanding ACTA bonds. The 2022A bonds are expected to amortize in 2052 and 2053, the
2022B bonds from 2038 to 2050 and the 2023A bonds from 2050 to 2052. The 2022B
Capital Appreciation Bonds will compound interest until the maturity date. Cost of Issuance



and Underwriter's Discount are each estimated at $5.00 per bond ($1,000 of principal),
totaling 1% of principal, allocated among the Series.

The table below provides the information requested by Section 5852.1:

Series 2022A — Tax Exempt

True Interest Cost Estimate 4.69%
Fees and Charges Estimate $.11 million
Net Proceeds Estimate $20.5 million
Total Debt Service Estimate $54.8 million
Series 2022B - Taxable

True Interest Cost Estimate 7.24%
Fees and Charges Estimate $2.5 million
Net Proceeds Estimate $222.2 million
Total Debt Service Estimate $1.2 billion
Series 2023A — Tax Exempt

True Interest Cost Estimate 4.90%
Fees and Charges Estimate $2.0 million
Net Proceeds Estimate $184.7 million
Total Debt Service Estimate $490.0 million
All Series

True Interest Cost Estimate 6.45%
Fees and Charges Estimate $4.7 million
Net Proceeds Estimate $427.5 million
Total Debt Service Estimate $1.7 billion

Should you have any questions, please contact Robert Rich at 609-306-5888 or Darren
Hodge at 480-264-5145.




EXHIBIT B-1

FORM OF DEALER MANAGER AGREEMENT

[to be attached)]

B-1-1



Sradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft 06/08/22

DEALER MANAGER AGREEMENT!

June __, 2022

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200
Long Beach, California 90806

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) plans to commence an Offer
to Tender Bonds, dated June __, 2022 (the “Invitation™), attached hereto as Attachment A, whereby
the Authority will offer to beneficial owners (the “holders”) of certain of the Authority’s outstanding
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “Target 1999A Bonds”), outstanding
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C (the “Target 1999C Bonds”), outstanding Tax-
Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A (the “Target 2013A Bonds”) and
outstanding Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016B (the
“Target 2016B Bonds” and, together with the Target 1999A Bonds, the Target 1999C Bonds and the
Target 2013A Bonds, the “Target Bonds™), as described in the Invitation (i) to purchase for cash the
Target Bonds (the “Tender Offer”), such purchase for cash to be funded with proceeds of the
Authority’s Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A
Bonds™) with respect to the Target 1999A Bonds and the Target 2013A Bonds, the Authority’s Taxable
Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B Bonds™) with respect to the
Target 1999C Bonds and the Authority’s Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2022C (the “Series 2022C Bonds” and collectively with the Series 2022A Bonds and
the Series 2022B Bonds, the “Series 2022 Bonds™) with respect to the Target 2016B Bonds, all upon
the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Invitation. The date upon which the Invitation
is commenced by the Authority is herein referred to as the “Launch Date”. This dealer manager
agreement (this “Agreement”) will confirm the understanding among the Authority, J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC (“JPM”) and RBC Capital Markets, LLC (“RBC”) pursuant to which the Authority
has retained JPM and RBC to act as the exclusive dealer managers (collectively, the “Dealer
Managers™) and JPM to act as lead Dealer Manager, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth
herein, in connection with the proposed Tender Offer.

On or prior to the Launch Date, the Authority shall furnish to the Dealer Managers the
Preliminary Official Statement of the Authority dated June __, 2022 attached to the Invitation (as
amended or supplemented, the “Preliminary Official Statement”) relating to the Series 2022 Bonds for
use in connection with the Invitation. Any other offering materials and information relating to the
Invitation furnished to holders of the Target Bonds (including, any advertisements, press releases or
summaries relating to the Invitation and any forms of letters to brokers, securities dealers, commercial
banks, trust companies and other nominees relating to the Invitation), that the Authority may prepare
or cause to be prepared or approved, including any amendments or supplements thereto, as of the
Launch Date, together with the Preliminary Official Statement and the Invitation, are collectively
referred to herein as the “Tender Documents™). Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in the Preliminary Official Statement.

1 To be revised if exchange is undertaken, including additional representations and warranties of the Authority.

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



The Authority has caused complete and correct copies of the Tender Documents to be prepared
and furnished to the Dealer Managers on or prior to the Launch Date. The Tender Documents have
been prepared and approved by the Authority, and the Dealer Managers are authorized to use the
Tender Documents delivered on or prior to the date hereof in connection with the Tender Offer in the
manner contemplated by the Tender Documents along with such other offering materials and
information that the Authority may approve for use subsequent to the date hereof in connection with
the Tender Offer (together with any and all information and documents incorporated by reference
therein, collectively, the “Additional Material”).

In connection with the Invitation, the Authority will (i) purchase Target 1999A Bonds and
Target 2013A Bonds tendered for purchase with proceeds of the Series 2022A Bonds, (ii) will purchase
Target 1999C Bonds tendered for purchase with proceeds of the Series 2022B Bonds and (iii) will
purchase Target 2016B Bonds tendered for purchase with proceeds of the Series 2022C Bonds. The
purchase of any Target 1999A Bonds and Target 2013A Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to the
Tender Offer is contingent upon the issuance of the Series 2022A Bonds. The purchase of any Target
1999C Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to the Tender Offer is contingent upon the issuance of
the Series 2022B Bonds. The purchase of any Target 2016B Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to
the Tender Offer is contingent upon the issuance of the Series 2022C Bonds.

The Series 2022 Bonds shall be issued under and secured by a Master Trust Indenture, dated
as of January 1, 1999 (the “Master Indenture”), as supplemented and amended by the First
Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Third Supplemental Trust
Indenture and the Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of January 1, 1999, the Fifth
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2003, the Sixth Supplemental Trust Indenture and
the Seventh Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of February 1, 2004, the Eighth Supplemental
Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2012, the Ninth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of
February 1, 2013, the Tenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2016, the Eleventh
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2016 (collectively, the “Prior Supplemental
Indentures™), and by the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture with respect to the Series 2022A
Bonds, the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture with respect to the Series 2022B Bonds and the
Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture with respect to the Series 2022C Bonds, each to be dated as
of 11,2022 (the “Twelfth Supplemental Indenture,” the “Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture” and
the “Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture,” respectively, and the Master Indenture, as supplemented and
amended by the Prior Supplemental Indentures and by the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, the “Indenture”), each between
the Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), and pursuant to Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of
the California Government Code, commencing with Section 6500 thereof (the “Act”). The execution
and delivery by the Authority of the Master Indenture and the Prior Supplemental Indentures were
authorized by the Governing Board of the Authority (the “Board”) pursuant to Resolution No. JPA-
26-98, adopted by the Board on October 14, 1998, as supplemented by Resolution No. JPA-30-98,
adopted by the Board on December 17, 1998, Resolution No. JPA-3-03, adopted by the Board on
July 10, 2003, Resolution No. JPA-1-04, adopted by the Board on February 5, 2004, Resolution
No. JPA-12-1, adopted by the Board on June 14, 2012, Resolution No. JPA-12-3, adopted by the Board
on November 8, 2012, Resolution No. JPA-13-1, adopted by the Board on January 10, 2013,
Resolution No. JPA-16-2, adopted by the Board on March 10, 2016 and Resolution No. JPA-16-3,
adopted by the Board on April 14, 2016 (collectively, the “Prior Resolutions™). The issuance of the
Series 2022 Bonds and the execution and delivery by the Authority of the Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture were

2
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



authorized by the Board pursuant to Resolution No. JPA-22-__, adopted by the Board on , 2022
the “2022 Resolution” and the 2022 Resolution together with the Prior Resolutions, the “Resolutions”).

The date on which Target Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to the Tender Offer are
purchased is referred to herein as the “Settlement Date”.

SECTION 1. Engagement. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein:

@) The Authority hereby retains the Dealer Managers, and subject to the terms and
conditions hereof, the Dealer Managers agree to act, as the exclusive dealer managers to the Authority
in connection with the Invitation until the Settlement Date or earlier termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Section 3 hereof.

(b) The Authority acknowledges that the Dealer Managers have been retained solely to
provide the services set forth in this Agreement. The Authority also acknowledges and agrees that the
Dealer Managers shall each act as an independent contractor, on an arms-length basis under this
Agreement with duties solely to the Authority, and not as a financial advisor (including a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975(c) of the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act), and that nothing contained herein or the nature of the Dealer Managers’ services hereunder is
intended to create or shall be construed as creating an agency or fiduciary relationship between a Dealer
Manager (or any of its affiliates) and the Authority (or its security holders, directors, officers,
employees or creditors) or any other person. The Authority further acknowledges that (i) neither JPM
or RBC shall be deemed to act as a partner, joint venturer or agent of, or a member of a syndicate with,
the Authority (except that in any jurisdiction in which the Invitation is required to be made by a
registered licensed broker or dealer, it shall be deemed made by the Dealer Managers on behalf of the
Authority), and the Authority shall not be deemed to act as the agent of JPM or RBC, and (ii) no
securities broker, dealer, bank, trust company or nominee shall be deemed to act as the agent of JPM
or RBC or as the agent of the Authority, and neither JPM nor RBC shall be deemed to act as the agent
of any securities broker, dealer, bank, trust company or nominee. In connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby and the process leading to such transactions, each of JPM and RBC is and has
been acting solely as a principal and not the agent or fiduciary of the Authority or its security holders,
directors, officers, employees, creditors or any other person. The Authority acknowledges and agrees
that none of JPM or RBC, their respective affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees,
agents and controlling persons shall have any liability in tort, contract or otherwise to the Authority for
any act or omission on the part of any securities broker, dealer, bank, trust company or nominee or any
other person other than JPM or RBC.

(© Accordingly, the Authority expressly disclaims any agency or fiduciary relationship
with JPM and RBC hereunder. The Authority understands that JPM and RBC and their respective
affiliates are not providing (nor is the Authority relying on JPM or RBC or their respective affiliates
for) tax, regulatory, legal or accounting advice. The rights and obligations the Authority may have to
JPM or RBC or their respective affiliates under any credit or other agreement are separate from the
Authority’s rights and obligations under this Agreement and will not be affected in any way by this
Agreement. JPM and RBC may, to the extent it deems appropriate, retain the services of any of its
affiliates to assist JPM or RBC in providing its services hereunder and share with any such affiliates
any information made available by or on behalf of the Authority. In connection with the Invitation, the
Authority has consulted its own municipal, legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as
applicable, to the extent it has deemed appropriate.

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



(d) The Authority acknowledges that JPM and RBC and their respective affiliates are
engaged in a broad range of securities activities and financial services. In the ordinary course of JPM’s
and RBC’s business, JPM or RBC or their respective affiliates (i) may at any time hold long or short
positions, and may trade or otherwise effect transactions, for JPM’s or RBC’s own account or the
accounts of their customers, in debt securities of the Authority (including the Target Bonds) and (ii)
may at any time be providing or arranging financing and other financial services to companies or
entities that may be involved in a competing transaction. In the event that JPM or RBC owns any Target
Bonds, the Authority acknowledges that JPM or RBC may participate in the tender of such Target
Bonds pursuant to the Tender Offer.

(e) The Dealer Managers agree, in accordance with their customary practice and consistent
with industry practice and in accordance with the terms of the Invitation, to perform those services in
connection with the Invitation as are customarily performed by dealer managers in connection with
similar transactions of a like nature, including, without limitation, using all reasonable efforts to solicit
tenders of Target Bonds pursuant to the Invitation, communicating generally regarding the Invitation
with securities brokers, dealers, banks, trust companies and nominees and other holders of the Target
Bonds, and participating in meetings with, furnishing information to, and assisting the Authority in
negotiating with holders of the Target Bonds. In soliciting tenders of Target Bonds for purchase, no
securities broker or dealer (other than the Dealer Managers), commercial bank or trust company shall
be deemed to act as the agent of either Dealer Manager or the agent of the Authority; and neither Dealer
Manager shall be deemed the agent of the other Dealer Manager or any other securities broker or dealer
or of any commercial bank or trust company. The Authority further understands and agrees that each
Dealer Manager shall provide its services hereunder independently from the other Dealer Manager and
that neither Dealer Manager will rely upon any services or work performed by the other Dealer
Manager. Accordingly, the Authority agrees that neither Dealer Manager shall have any liability to
the Authority or any other party for any actions or omissions of the other Dealer Manager. The
Authority shall have sole authority for the acceptance or rejection of any and all tenders of Target
Bonds for purchase.

()] The Authority has selected Bondholder Communications Group LLC to act as an
information agent (the “Information Agent”) in connection with the Invitation and as such to advise
the Dealer Manager as to such matters relating to the Invitation as the Dealer Managers may reasonably
request. In addition, the Authority hereby authorizes the Dealer Managers to communicate with the
Information Agent with respect to matters relating to the Invitation. The Authority has instructed or
will instruct the Information Agent to advise the Dealer Managers at least daily in writing as to the
principal amount of the Target Bonds tendered and not validly withdrawn pursuant to the Invitation
prior to the Expiration Date(s) (as defined in the Invitation) set forth in the Invitation and such other
matters in connection with the Invitation as the Dealer Managers may reasonably request.

(9) The Authority, with the assistance of the Information Agent, shall cause to be delivered
to the holders of the Target Bonds and to each participant in the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”)
appearing in the most recent available DTC securities listing as a holder of the Target Bonds, as soon
as practicable, by hand, by overnight courier by electronic means, or by another means of expedited
delivery copies of the Tender Documents. Thereafter, to the extent practicable, until the Expiration
Date(s) of the Invitation, the Authority shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause copies of such
materials to be sent to each person who becomes a holder or beneficial owner of the Target Bonds. In
addition, the Authority shall update such information from time to time during the term of this
Agreement as reasonably requested by the Dealer Managers and to the extent such information is
reasonably available to the Authority within the time constraints specified.

4
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



(h) The Authority authorizes the Dealer Managers to use the Tender Documents and any
Additional Material in connection with the Tender Offer and for such period of time as any materials
are required by law to be delivered in connection therewith. The Dealer Managers shall not have any
obligation to cause any Tender Documents or Additional Material to be transmitted generally to the
holders of the Target Bonds.

(i) The Authority agrees to cause the Preliminary Official Statement and the other Tender
Documents to be filed with the Electronic Municipal Market Access system (“EMMA”) maintained
by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) on or prior to the Launch Date and any
Additional Materials to be filed with EMMA when issued and delivered by the Authority. The
Authority represents and warrants that the Preliminary Official Statement has been deemed final as of
its date, except for the omission of not more than the information permitted by Rule 15¢2-12 (the
“Rule”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Authority
will deliver to the Dealer Managers the final official statement (the “Official Statement”).

()] The Authority agrees to advise the Dealer Managers promptly of the occurrence of any
event which could cause or require the Authority to withdraw, rescind or modify the Tender Documents
or any Additional Material. In addition, if any event occurs as a result of which it shall be necessary to
amend or supplement any Tender Documents or any Additional Material in order to correct any untrue
statement of a material fact contained therein or omission to state a material fact necessary in order to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, the Authority shall, promptly upon becoming aware of any such event, advise the Dealer
Managers of such event and, as promptly as practicable under the circumstances, prepare and furnish
copies of such amendments or supplements of any such Tender Documents or any Additional Material
to the Dealer Managers, so that the statements in such Tender Documents or Additional Material, as
so amended or supplemented, will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading. The Authority agrees to file or cause to be filed with EMMA
any amendments or supplements of any Tender Documents or any Additional Material.

(k) [Except as otherwise required by law or regulation, the Authority will not use or publish
any material in connection with the Invitation, other than (i) the Tender Documents, (ii) any material
related to the offering of the Series 2022 Bonds pursuant to the Preliminary Official Statement and the
Official Statement or the purchase and sale of such Series 2022 Bonds, and (iii) any Additional
Material approved in writing by the Dealer Managers, or refer to the Dealer Managers in any such
material, without the prior written approval of the Dealer Managers, which in either instance shall not
be unreasonably withheld.] The Authority, upon receiving such written approval, will promptly furnish
the Dealer Managers with as many copies of such approved materials as the Dealer Managers may
reasonably request. The Authority will promptly inform the Dealer Managers of any litigation or
administrative or similar proceeding of which it becomes aware which is initiated or threatened with
respect to the Invitation. The Dealer Managers agree that they will not make any statements in
connection with the Invitation other than the statements that are set forth in, or derived from, the Tender
Documents or Additional Material without the prior written consent of the Authority.

() The Authority agrees to pay promptly, in accordance with the terms of and subject to
the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Tender Documents, the applicable purchase price for
the Target Bonds accepted for purchase by the Authority to the holders entitled thereto; provided,
however, that the purchase of Target Bonds is contingent upon issuance of the Series 2022 Bonds and
the source of payment therefor is solely from the proceeds of the Series 2022 Bonds; and provided

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



further that the Authority will not be required to purchase any Target Bonds, except as otherwise
provided in the Tender Documents. The Authority agrees not to purchase any Target Bonds during the
term of this Agreement except pursuant to and in accordance with the Invitation or as otherwise agreed
in writing by the parties hereto and permitted under applicable laws and regulations.

(m)  The Authority acknowledges that in providing advice to the Authority in connection
with the Tender Offer as contemplated hereby, the Dealer Managers are relying on the independent
registered municipal advisor exemption to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Municipal
Advisor Rule. The Authority is represented by PFM Financial Advisors LLC as its independent
registered municipal advisor and has relied on the advice of PFM Financial Advisors LLC with respect
to the Tender Offer.

SECTION 2. Compensation and Expenses.

@) The Authority shall pay to Dealer Managers, as compensation for services as Dealer
Manager, a fee of $ _ for each $1,000 principal amount of Target Bonds tendered and purchased
pursuant to the Invitation. Of such fee, 75% shall be paid to JPM and 25% to RBC. The Dealer
Managers’ fee and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses will be paid from the proceeds of the Series 2022
Bonds issued by the Authority to fund the Invitation or other available moneys of the Authority.

(b) The Authority shall pay all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection
with the Invitation, whether or not any Target Bonds are tendered pursuant to the Tender Offer,
including, without limitation, all fees and expenses relating to preparation, printing, mailing, and
publishing of the Tender Documents and any Additional Materials, and all amounts payable to
securities dealers (including the Dealer Managers), brokers, banks, trust companies, and nominees as
reimbursements of their customary mailing and handling expenses incurred in forwarding the Tender
Documents and any Additional Materials to their customers, and of any forwarding agent, all
advertising charges and all other expenses of the Authority in connection with the Invitation and shall
reimburse the Dealer Managers for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Dealer
Managers in connection with their services as Dealer Managers under this Agreement, including the
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel to the Dealer Managers. This Section 2(b) shall survive
the termination of this Agreement (other than pursuant to Section 3(b)(ii)).

SECTION 3. Termination; Withdrawal.

@) Subject to Section 7 hereof, this Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest to occur
of (i) the termination, withdrawal or cancellation of the Invitation, (ii) the close of business on the
Settlement Date, (iii) the withdrawal by JPM and RBC as the Dealer Managers pursuant to Section
3(c) hereof, and (iv) the date that is [six months] from the date hereof.

(b) Subject to Section 7 hereof, this Agreement may be terminated in the absolute
discretion of the Authority at any time upon notice to the Dealer Managers, if (i) at any time prior to
the Settlement Date, the Invitation is terminated or withdrawn by the Authority for any reason, or (ii)
the Dealer Managers do not comply in any material respect with any term, covenant or obligation in
Section 1 in the reasonable opinion of the Authority.

() Subject to Section 7 hereof, this Agreement shall be subject to termination in the

absolute discretion of the Dealer Managers without any liability or penalty to the Dealer Managers or
any of their respective affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



controlling persons (each, a “Dealer Manager-Related Person”), at any time upon notice to the
Authority, provided no Dealer Manager is then in breach or default of any obligation on the part of
such Dealer Manager under this Agreement, if (i) at any time prior to the Settlement Date, the Invitation
is terminated or withdrawn by the Authority for any reason other than as provided in Section 3(b)(ii)
above, or any stop order, restraining order, injunction or denial of an application for approval has been
issued and not thereafter stayed or vacated, or any proceeding, litigation or investigation has been
initiated, with respect to or otherwise affecting the Invitation or any other action or transaction
contemplated by the Tender Documents or this Agreement, which the Dealer Managers reasonably
believe renders it inadvisable for the Dealer Managers to continue to act hereunder, then in any such
case the Dealer Manager shall be entitled to withdraw as Dealer Managers without any liability or
penalty to it or any other Dealer Manager-Related Person and without loss of any right to
reimbursement for its expenses, fees and costs pursuant to Section 2 hereof that have accrued prior to
the date of such termination or withdrawal, (ii) the Authority shall have breached in any material
respects any representation, warranty or covenant contained herein (including, but not limited to, the
conditions set forth in Section 4 hereof), or (iii) [the Authority shall publish, send or otherwise
distribute any amendment or supplement to the Tender Documents or any Additional Material to which
the Dealer Managers shall reasonably object in writing to the Authority.]

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section
3(b)(i) only, at any time prior to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Tender
Documents, the Dealer Managers will be entitled to their full fees described in Section 2 in the event
that, at any time prior to [6 months] from any such termination by the Authority, the Authority
consummates an offer or offers or consent solicitations in a form similar to the Invitation with respect
to the Target Bonds in a transaction or series of transactions in which JPM or RBC did not act as dealer
manager or solicitation agent to the Authority.

SECTION 4. Representationsand Warranties by the Authority. The Authority represents and
warrants to the Dealer Managers, as of the date hereof, as of each date that any Tender Documents are
published, sent, given or otherwise distributed, throughout the continuance of the Invitation, and as of
the Settlement Date that:

@) The Authority is a validly existing joint powers authority of the State of California (the
“State”) established under the Act.

(b) The Authority has full legal right, power and authority to execute and deliver this
Agreement, to observe and perform the covenants and agreements provided for in this Agreement, and
to consummate the Invitation and the transactions to which it is or is to be a party as contemplated
hereby and by the Invitation. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the
consummation by the Authority of the Invitation and the transactions to which it is or is to be a party
as contemplated hereby and by the Invitation, have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the
part of the Authority (including authorizing any provisions for the payment from proceeds of the Series
2022 Bonds by the Authority for Target Bonds tendered for purchase).

(©) This Agreement has been duly authorized, approved, executed and delivered by the
Authority. This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Authority,
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that enforceability is subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws affecting creditors’ rights and
remedies generally and to the application of equitable principles where equitable remedies are sought

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



and to the limitations on the exercise of legal remedies against public agencies in the State of
California.

(d) The Tender Documents comply and (as amended or supplemented, if amended or
supplemented) will comply in all material respects with all applicable requirements of the federal
securities laws; and the Tender Documents and the Additional Material are true and correct in all
material respects and do not and (as amended or supplemented, if amended or supplemented) will not
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading.

(e) Except as otherwise disclosed in the Tender Documents (exclusive of any amendment
or supplement thereto), there is no event or circumstance which would have a material adverse effect
on the power or ability of the Authority to perform its obligations hereunder or to make or consummate
the Invitation or to consummate the transactions to which it is or is to be a party as contemplated hereby
and by the Tender Documents.

()] The execution and delivery of this Agreement and compliance with the provisions on
the Authority’s part contained herein and the making and consummation of the Invitation (including
any provisions for the payment by the Authority from proceeds of the Series 2022 Bonds for Target
Bonds tendered for purchase) and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby do not and will (i) not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any constitutional
provision, administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note,
resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the Authority is a party or to which any of its
property or assets are otherwise subject, (ii) result in any violation of the laws of the State of California
or the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of December 18, 1996,
between the City of Long Beach, California and the City of Los Angeles, California, as amended by
the First Amendment to Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of
July 1, 2006, as amended, or (iii) contravene any federal, state or local law, rule or regulation applicable
to the Authority, or any order applicable to the Authority of any court or of any other governmental
agency or instrumentality having jurisdiction over it or any of its property.

(0) Except as disclosed in the Tender Documents, no litigation or other action, suit,
proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court or agency or other administrative body
(either of the State of California or the United States Government) is pending or, to the knowledge of
the Authority, threatened, in any way restraining or enjoining, or threatening or seeking to restrain or
enjoin the making or consummation of the Invitation, the acquisition or cancellation of Target Bonds
or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Tender Documents or (i) in any way
contesting, questioning or affecting the validity or enforceability of any provision of this Agreement;
(if) in any way contesting, questioning or affecting the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the Tender
Documents; (iii) in any way contesting, questioning or affecting the legal existence of the Authority,
the title of its officers and the Board to their respective offices, or its ability to perform its obligations
hereunder, with respect to the making or consummation of the Invitation, the acquisition or cancellation
of Target Bonds or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Tender Documents;
(iv) in any way contesting, questioning or affecting the ability of the Authority to consummate, or
substantially comply with, the making or consummation of the Invitation, the acquisition or
cancellation of Target Bonds or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Tender
Documents; or (v) which, if adversely determined, could result in a material adverse change in the
financial condition of the Authority or could have a material adverse effect in the making or

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



consummation of the Invitation, the acquisition or cancellation of Target Bonds or the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Tender Documents. The Authority shall advise the
Dealer Managers promptly of the institution of any proceedings known to it by any governmental
agency prohibiting or otherwise affecting the use of the Tender Documents in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby and by the Invitation.

(h) All authorizations, approvals, licenses, permits, consents and orders of any
governmental authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of the
matter which are required to be obtained by the Authority for (i) the due authorization of, or which
would constitute a condition precedent to or the absence of which would materially adversely affect
the making and consummation of, the Invitation (including any provisions for the payment by the
Authority for Target Bonds tendered for purchase), (ii) the execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement by the Authority or (iii) the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby by the
Authority have been duly obtained, except for such approvals, consents and orders as are not required
until, and will be obtained prior to the Settlement Date, or as may be required under the blue sky or
securities laws of any state in connection with the offering and sale of the Series 2022 Bonds.

(i) Subject to the successful sale and closing of the Series 2022 Bonds, the Authority has
or will have available funds, is authorized to apply, and will apply, or cause to be applied, such funds
to pay the full purchase price of the Target Bonds tendered for purchase that the Authority elects to
purchase pursuant to the Invitation and all related fees and expenses, and will have available for
delivery, all as provided in and subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Indenture and the
Tender Documents.

() The Authority is not in material breach of, or in default under, (A) any applicable
constitutional provision, law or administrative regulation of the State or the United States of America
or any agency or instrumentality of either or any applicable judgment or decree or (B) any other loan
agreement, note, bond, resolution, indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the Authority is
subject, or by which it or any of its properties is bound or affected, and no event has occurred and is
continuing which, with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or
event of default under any such instrument.

(k) Prior to the Settlement Date the Authority will not take any action within or under its
control that will cause any material adverse change in the Authority’s ability to perform its obligations
under or consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Tender Documents.

() The representations and warranties of the Authority with respect to the Series 2022
Bonds set forth in any purchase agreement executed by the Authority with the underwriters of Series
2022 Bonds to be sold in a public offering thereof (the “Purchase Agreements”) are hereby
incorporated into this Agreement and made to the Dealer Managers.

(m)  The Authority has made or cause to be made appropriate arrangements with DTC to
allow for the book-entry movement of tendered Target Bonds between depository participants and
DTC.

(n) The representations and warranties set forth in this Section 4 shall remain operative
and in full force and effect regardless of any termination, expiration or cancellation of this Agreement.

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



SECTION 5. Conditions and Obligations. The obligation of each Dealer Manager to act as
a Dealer Manager hereunder shall at all times be subject, in its discretion, to the conditions that:

@) All representations and warranties of the Authority contained herein or in any
certificate or writing delivered hereunder at all times during the Invitation and at all times at or prior
to the Settlement Date, shall be true and correct.

(b) The Authority at all times during the Invitation and at all times at or prior to the
Settlement Date shall have performed all of its obligations hereunder required as of such time to have
been performed by it.

(©) Counsel for the Authority shall have delivered to the Dealer Managers opinions, dated
as of the Launch Date and as of the Settlement Date, substantially in the forms attached hereto as
Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2, respectively.

(d) As of the Launch Date and as of the Settlement Date, the Dealer Managers shall have
received the opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, counsel to the
Dealer Managers, (i) to the effect that the Invitation, and the actions of the Authority in connection
with the Invitation as specifically set forth in the Tender Documents, are exempt from the provisions
of Section 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), Regulation
14D and 14E of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the related rules promulgated
thereunder, and (ii) negative assurance on the Tender Documents.

(e) The Authority shall furnish to the Dealer Managers the opinion of O’Melveny & Myers
LLP (*Bond Counsel”) dated the Launch Date, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.

() The Authority shall furnish to the Dealer Managers the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP
(“Special Tax Counsel”) dated the Launch Date, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
C.

(9) The Authority shall furnish to the Dealer Managers the opinion of Sheppard, Mullin,
Richter & Hampton LLP (“Disclosure Counsel”), dated the Launch Date, substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit D.

(h) [The Authority shall furnish to the Dealer Managers the legal opinions, certificates,
instruments and other documents delivered under the Purchase Agreements, including the respective
letters of representation from BNSF Railway Company, the Union Pacific Railroad Company, the City
of Los Angeles, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners, and the City of Long Beach,
acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners, to the underwriters for the publicly offered
Series 2022 Bonds, or, in the event that a Purchase Agreement is not then executed, in the forms set
forth in the form of the respective Purchase Agreements approved by the Authority.]

(i) At the Settlement Date, there shall have been delivered to the Dealer Managers, on
behalf of the Authority, a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority or by his authorized
designee, dated the Settlement Date, and stating that the representations and warranties set forth in
Section 4 hereof are true and accurate as if made on the Settlement Date.

() The Authority shall have advised the Dealer Managers promptly of (i) the occurrence

of any event (other than one expressly contemplated by the terms of the Invitation), which could cause

10
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



the Authority to withdraw, rescind or terminate the Invitation or would permit the Authority to exercise
any right not to purchase Target Bonds tendered under the Invitation, (ii) the occurrence of any event,
or the discovery of any fact, the occurrence or existence of which the Authority believes would make
it necessary or advisable to make any change in the Tender Documents or any Additional Materials
being used or would cause any representation or warranty contained in this Agreement to be untrue or
inaccurate in any material respect, (iii) any proposal by the Authority or requirement to make, amend
or supplement any Tender Document or any Additional Material pursuant to any applicable law, rule
or regulation, (iv) its awareness of the issuance by any regulatory authority of any comment or order
or the taking of any other action concerning the Invitation (and, if in writing, will have furnished the
Dealer Managers with a copy thereof), (v) its awareness of any material developments in connection
with the Invitation or the financing thereof, including, without limitation, the commencement of any
lawsuit relating to the Invitation and (vi) any other information relating to the Invitation, the Tender
Documents, any Additional Material or this Agreement which the Dealer Managers may from time to
time reasonably request.

SECTION 6. Indemnification and Contribution. (a) To the extent permitted by law, the
Authority agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Dealer Managers, and each person, if any, who
controls (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act)
the Dealer Managers, and their directors, officers, agents and employees, (each a “Dealer Manager
Indemnified Person™) from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses
(each a “Loss” and, collectively, the “Losses”) (or actions in respect thereof), joint or several, to which
the Dealer Managers may become subject, (i) arising out of or based upon (A) any untrue statement
or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Preliminary Official Statement, the
Official Statement or any other Tender Documents or Additional Material, or any omission or alleged
omission to state therein a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that the Authority
shall not be liable in any such case to the extent that any such loss, claim, damage or liability arises out
of or is based upon any such untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged
omission made: (1) in written information the Dealer Managers furnished to the Authority by such
Dealer Managers expressly for use in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement (or
any supplement or amendment thereto) or under any Tender Document or Additional Material (the
“Dealer Manager Information”), it being understood that the Dealer Manager Information shall include
only the name and the contact information of the Dealer Managers in the Preliminary Official
Statement, the Official Statement and the Offer to Tender and the information contained under
“UNDERWRITING” in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement or information
contained Section 17 of the Invitation, or (2) information relating to DTC or DTC's book-entry system,
[the Insurer], the Cities, the yields on the Bonds stated on the inside front cover of the Official
Statement, CUSIP numbers, and information under the headings “THE PORTS” and “THE
RAILROADS,” and information under the headings “THE SERIES 2022_ BOND INSURER,”
“RATINGS” [(but only with respect to the ratings assigned to the Insurer)], “UNDERWRITING,”
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE—The Authority and the Ports” (with respect to information about the
Ports) and “—The Railroads” and “FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” (with respect to information about
the Ports) and in Appendices B, C, D, F, G and I, [(B) any breach by the Authority of any representation
or warranty or failure to comply with any of the agreements set forth in this Agreement, or (C) any
withdrawal, termination, rescission or modification of the Tender Offer, any failure to pay cash for the
Target Bonds tendered pursuant to the Tender Offer] or (ii) otherwise arising out of, relating to or in
connection with or alleged to arise out of, relate to or be in connection with the Tender Offer, the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the engagement of, and services performed by, the
Dealer Managers under this Agreement, or any claim, litigation, investigation (including any

11
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



governmental or regulatory investigation) or proceedings relating to the foregoing (“Proceedings™)
regardless of whether any of such Dealer Manager Indemnified Persons is a party thereto, and to
reimburse such Dealer Manager Indemnified Persons for any and all expenses (including, without
limitation, reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel and other out-of-pocket expenses) as they are
incurred in connection with investigating, responding to or defending any of the foregoing, provided
that the indemnification in clause (ii) above will not, as to any Indemnified Person, apply to losses,
claims, damages, liabilities or expenses to the extent that they are finally judicially determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted primarily from the bad faith, gross negligence or willful
misconduct of such Dealer Manager Indemnified Person.]

(b) The Dealer Managers, jointly and severally, will indemnify and hold harmless the
Authority, each of its Board Members, officers and employees, and each person who controls the
Authority within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act
(each an “Authority Indemnified Person” and, together with the Dealer Manager Indemnified Person,
the “Indemnified Persons” and each an “Indemnified Person”), against any and all Losses (or actions
in respect thereof) arising out of or based upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a
material fact contained in the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement or any other
Tender Documents or Additional Material, or any omission or alleged omission to state therein a
material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading, in each case to the extent, but only to the extent, that such
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission was made in the
Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement or any other Tender Documents or Additional
Material in reliance upon and in conformity with Dealer Manager Information provided by the Dealer
Managers expressly for use under the heading “UNDERWRITING” and the sentence on page (ii) of
the Preliminary Official Statement and of the Official Statement and Section 17 of the Invitation
provided by the Dealer Managers and will reimburse the Authority for any legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred by the Authority in connection with investigating or defending any such action or
claim as such expenses are incurred.

(©) Promptly after the receipt by an Indemnified Person under subparagraph (a) or (b)
above of notice of the commencement of any Proceedings, such Indemnified Person will, if a claim in
respect thereof is to be made hereunder against the indemnifying party under such subparagraph in
respect thereof, notify the indemnifying party in writing of the commencement thereof; provided that
(i) the failure to so notify indemnifying party will not relieve indemnifying party from any liability
which it may have hereunder except to the extent it has been materially prejudiced (through forfeiture
of substantive rights or defenses) by such failure and (ii) the failure to so notify indemnifying party
will not relieve the Authority from any liability which it may have to an Indemnified Person otherwise
than on account of this indemnity agreement. In case any such Proceedings are brought against any
Indemnified Person and it notifies indemnifying party of the commencement thereof, the indemnifying
party shall be entitled to participate therein and, to the extent that it shall wish, jointly with any other
indemnifying party similarly notified, to assume the defense thereof, with counsel reasonably
satisfactory to such Indemnified Person (who shall not, except with the consent of the Indemnified
Person, be counsel to the indemnifying party), and, after notice from the indemnifying party to such
Indemnified Person of its election so to assume the defense thereof, the indemnifying party shall not
be liable to such Indemnified Person under such subparagraph for any legal expenses of other counsel
or any other expenses, in each case subsequently incurred by such Indemnified Person, in connection
with the defense thereof other than reasonable costs of investigation. The Indemnified Person shall
have the right to employ separate counsel in any such action and participate in the defense thereof, but
the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of the Indemnified Person, unless (i) the

12
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



employment of such counsel has been specifically authorized by the indemnifying party in writing
prior to the employment of such counsel, or (ii) the named parties to any such action (including any
impleaded parties) included both the Indemnified Person and the indemnifying party, and the
Indemnified Person shall have been advised by such counsel that there may be one or more legal
defenses available to it which are different from or additional to those available to the indemnifying
party and that joint representation may be inappropriate under professional standards, in which case
the indemnifying party shall not have the right to assume the defense of such action on behalf of the
Indemnified Person it being understood, however, the indemnifying party shall not, in connection with
any one such action or separate but substantially similar or related action in the same jurisdiction of
the same general allegations or circumstances, be liable for the reasonable fees and expenses of more
than one separate firm of attorneys for the Indemnified Person, and any such firm shall be designated
in writing by the Indemnified Person. No indemnifying party shall, without the written consent of the
Indemnified Person, effect the settlement or compromise of, or consent to the entry of any judgment
with respect to, any pending or threatened action or claim in respect of which indemnification or
contribution may be sought hereunder (whether or not the Indemnified Person is an actual or potential
party to such action or claim) unless such settlement, compromise or judgment (i) includes an
unconditional release of the Indemnified Person from all liability arising out of such action or claim
and (ii) does not include a statement as to, or an admission of, fault, culpability or a failure to act, by
or on behalf of any Indemnified Person.

(d) If for any reason the foregoing indemnification is unavailable to any Indemnified
Person or insufficient to hold it harmless in respect of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or
actions in respect thereof) referred to in subparagraph (a) or (b) above, then each indemnifying party
shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such Indemnified Person as a result of such loss,
claim, damage, liability or expense (i) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative benefits
received by the Authority, on the one hand, and by the Dealer Managers, on the other hand, from the
Tender Offer and the transactions contemplated thereby, or (ii) if the allocation provided by the
foregoing clause (i) is not permitted by applicable law or if the Indemnified Person failed to give the
notice required under subparagraph (c) above, then each indemnifying party shall contribute to such
amount paid or payable by such Indemnified Person, in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect not
only the relative benefits referred to in the foregoing clause (i), but also the relative fault of the
Authority, on the one hand, and of the Dealer Managers, on the other hand, in connection with the
statements, actions, or omissions which resulted in such loss, claim, damage, liability or expense, as
well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative benefits received by the Authority, on
the one hand, and by the Dealer Managers, on the other hand, shall be deemed to be in the same
proportion as (i) the aggregate principal amount of the Target Bonds tendered for purchase bears to (ii)
the aggregate fee paid to the Dealer Managers pursuant to Section 2(a) of this Agreement. The relative
fault of the Authority, on the one hand, and of the Dealer Managers, on the other hand,[(i)] in the case
of an untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or an omission or alleged omission to state
a material fact, shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether such statement or
omission relates to information supplied by the Authority or by the Dealer Managers and the parties’
relative intent, knowledge, access to information, and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement
or omission, [and (ii) in the case of any other action or omission, shall be determined by reference to,
among other things, whether such action or omission was taken or omitted to be taken by the Authority
or by the Dealer Managers and the parties relative intent, knowledge, access to information, and
opportunity to prevent such action or omission]. The Authority and the Dealer Managers agree that it
would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section 6 were determined by pro rata
allocation or by any other method of allocation which does not take account of the equitable
considerations referred to in this paragraph. The amount paid or payable by an Indemnified Person as

13
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



a result of the losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses referred to in this paragraph shall be
deemed to include, subject to the limitations set forth above, any legal or other expenses reasonably
incurred by such Indemnified Person in connection with investigating or defending any such action or
claim.

(e The indemnity, reimbursement and contribution obligations of the Authority under this
Section 6 shall be in addition to any liability which the Authority may otherwise have to an Indemnified
Person.

SECTION 7. Survival. This Section [7 and Sections 2, 6, 8 and 10] hereof, and the
representations and warranties of the Authority set forth in Section 4 hereof (to the extent expressly
stated in such Section 4) shall survive any failure by the Authority to commence, or termination,
expiration or cancellation of this Agreement, any completion of the engagement provided for by this
Agreement or any investigation made on behalf of the Authority, the Dealer Managers or any Dealer
Manager-Related Person and shall survive the termination of the Invitation.

SECTION 8. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New York without reference to choice of law doctrine.

SECTION 9. Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, whenever
notice or other communication is required by the provisions of this Agreement to be given, such notice
or other communication shall be in writing addressed as follows and effective when received:

If to the Authority:

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200

Long Beach, California 90806

Attention: Chief Financial Officer

If to the Dealer Managers:

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC

560 Mission Street, Floor 3

San Francisco, California 94105

Email: michael.a.carlson@jpmorgan.com
Attention: Michael Carlson, Managing Director

RBC Capital Markets, LLC

777 S. Figueroa Street, Suite 850

Los Angeles, California 90017

Email: greg.dawley@rbccm.com
Attention: Greg Dawley, Managing Director

SECTION 10. [Advertisements. The Authority agrees that the Dealer Managers shall have the
right to place advertisements in financial and other newspapers and journals at their own expense
describing their services to the Authority hereunder, subject to the Authority’s prior approval in the
Authority’s sole discretion.]

SECTION 11. Miscellaneous.

14
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



€)) This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the
subject matter hereof and supersedes all oral statements and prior writings with respect thereto. This
Agreement may not be amended or modified except by a writing executed by each of the parties hereto.
Section headings herein are for convenience only and are not a part of this Agreement.

(b) This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Authority and the Dealer Managers, and
their respective successors, heirs and assigns, and no other person shall acquire or have any rights
under or by virtue of this Agreement.

(©) The Dealer Managers may share any information or matters relating to the Authority,
the Invitation and the transactions contemplated hereby with their respective affiliates and such
affiliates may likewise share information relating to the Authority with the Dealer Manager.

(d) If any term, provision, covenant or restriction contained in this Agreement is held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable or against public policy, the
remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants, and restrictions contained herein shall remain in full
force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated. The Authority and the Dealer
Managers shall endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the invalid, void or unenforceable
provisions with valid provisions, the economic effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the
invalid, void or unenforceable provisions.

(e) This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed an
original, but all of which, taken together, will constitute one and the same instrument.

15
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



If the foregoing correctly sets forth our understanding, please indicate your acceptance of the
terms hereof by signing in the appropriate space below and returning to the Dealer Managers the

enclosed duplicate originals hereof, whereupon this letter shall become a binding agreement between
us.

Very truly yours,

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC

By:

Name:
Title:

RBC CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC

By:

Name:
Title:

Accepted and agreed to as
of the date first written above:

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

By:

Name:
Title:

[ Sgnature Page to Dealer Manager Agreement]

4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



EXHIBIT A-1

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE AUTHORITY TO BE DELIVERED
ON THE LAUNCH DATE

[Launch Date], 2022

[TO COME]

A-1-1
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



EXHIBIT A-2

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE AUTHORITY TO BE DELIVERED
ON THE SETTLEMENT DATE

[Closing Date], 2022

[TO COME]

A-1-1
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



EXHIBIT B

OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL TO BE DELIVERED ON THE LAUNCH DATE

, 2022

[TO COME]

A-1-1
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



EXHIBITC

OPINION OF SPECIAL TAX COUNSEL TO BE DELIVERED ON THE LAUNCH DATE

, 2022

[TO COME]

A-1-1
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



EXHIBIT D

OPINION OF DISCLOSURE COUNSEL TO BE DELIVERED ON THE LAUNCH DATE

2022

[TO COME]

D-1
4875-5092-0478v7/200121-0084



EXHIBIT B-2

INVITATION TO TENDER OR EXCHANGE BONDS

[to be attached)]

B-2-1



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 6/8/2022

THIS INVITATION WILL EXPIRE AT [5:00 P.M.], NEW YORK CITY TIME
ON JUNE __, 2022 UNLESS EARLIER TERMINATED OR EXTENDED.

INVITATION TO TENDER BONDS MADE
BY THE
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

To the Bondowners described herein of all or a portion of the maturities
listed on pages (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) herein of the

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B

This Invitation to Tender Bonds, (as it may be amended or supplemented), (the “Invitation”), describes
an offer by Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) with the assistance of J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, as dealer managers (the “Dealer Managers”), to the beneficial owners
(the “Holders”, “Bondowners” or “Bondholders”) of certain of the Authority’s outstanding Tax-Exempt Senior
Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “Target 1999A Bonds™), Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series
1999C (the “Target 1999C Bonds™), Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A (the
“Target 2013A Bonds”) and the Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B
(the “Target 2016B Bonds”) as listed and maturing on the dates set forth in the tables beginning on page (i)
(collectively, the “Target Bonds”) to purchase for cash certain of the Target Bonds in accordance with the terms
and subject to the conditions as described in this Invitation, plus, in the case of Target Bonds that are current
interest bonds, accrued interest, all on the terms and conditions as set forth in more detail herein.

The purchase of any Target Bonds by the Authority pursuant to this Invitation is contingent on the
issuance of the Authority’s applicable series of Series 2022 Bonds (as defined herein), and is also subject to the
terms of this Invitation and certain other conditions as described herein. The Authority is offering to purchase
certain Target Bonds tendered by any Bondholder for cash at the terms described herein. The Authority is
offering its: (i) Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A to fund the purchase of the
Target 1999A Bonds and the Target 2013A Bonds, (ii) its Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2022B to fund the purchase of the Target 1999C Bonds and (iii) its Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022C to fund the purchase Target 2016B Bonds, plus, as applicable, accrued
interest on the Target Bonds that are current interest bonds, as further described in the Preliminary Official
Statement of the Authority dated June __, 2022 (the “2022 Bonds POS”) attached hereto as Appendix A.

This Invitation is part of a plan by the Authority to refinance some of the Authority’s outstanding
indebtedness, as described in the 2022 Bonds POS. Bondowners of Target Bonds who do not accept this
Invitation will continue to hold their interest in such Target Bonds (“the Untendered Bonds”), and such
Untendered Bonds will remain outstanding under the Indenture pursuant to which such Untendered Bonds
were originally issued. It is anticipated that, subject to market conditions, a portion of the Series Taxable
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C and all or a portion of the Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A not tendered for purchase pursuant to this Invitation may be redeemed
and/or defeased to their maturity or, if applicable, their first optional call date, from proceeds of refunding
bonds anticipated to be issued by the Authority (i) on or about August 15, 2022 with respect to the Series
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C and (ii) on or about __ |, 2023 with respect to the Tax-
Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A, as described under the caption “PLAN OF
FINANCE” in the 2022 Bonds POS. The refunding bonds expected to be issued to refund the untendered
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A are expected to be sold on a forward
delivery basis. In addition, the Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C maturing on October 1,
2022 and the Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A maturing on October 1,
2022, are each expected to be defeased to their respective maturities with proceeds of refunding bonds
expected to be issued by the Authority on or about August 15, 2022. All other Target Bonds are not
currently expected to be redeemed and/or defeased as part of the plan of finance.

To make an informed decision as to whether, and how, to offer Target Bonds for purchase pursuant to the
Invitation, a Bondowner must read this Invitation carefully, including, the 2022 Bonds POS attached as
Appendix A, and consult their broker, account executive, financial advisor, attorney and/or other professionals.

Key Dates and Times

All of these dates and times are subject to change. All times are New York City time.
Notices of changes will be sent in the manner provided for in this Invitation.

LAUNCH DALE .....ccvieeiiciiicice e , 2022
EXPIFation DAt ......ccciuiiiiiiieiiese e , 2022 at [5] P.M.
Notice of Results/Notice of ACCeptance ..........ccocevvvvreerenennenne, , 2022 by [5] P.M.
Expected Settlement Date ..........ccccveeevierevire e , 2022

The Information Agent and Tender Agent for thisInvitation is
BONDHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS GROUP LLC

Attention:
@ .com
Document Website: www.bondcom.com/

The Dealer Managers for this I nvitation are

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC
383 Madison Avenue, Floor 3
New York, New York 10179
Tel: (212) 834-3261
Fax: (917) 463-0871
Attn: Debt Capital Markets
Email: public_finance_dcm@jpmorgan.com

And

RBC CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC
Liability Management Team
Tel:212-618-7843; 877-381-2099,
Email: liability.management@rbccm.com

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Any Bondowner wishing to tender Target Bonds for purchase by the Authority pursuant to this Invitation
should follow the procedures more fully described herein. Bondowners and their brokers and account executives
with questions about this Invitation should contact the Dealer Managers or the Information Agent.

The date of this Invitation is June __, 2022.

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Invitation — Offer to Purchase Target Bonds for Cash

(Available to all Bondowners)
TARGET BONDS SUBJECT TO INVITATION TO TENDER FOR CASH
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A

Capital Appreciation Bonds

Principal
Amount Offer Purchase
CUSIP No. Maturity Date at Issuance Yield to Maturity Accreted Value Price
010869AR6 10/01/2030 $7,298,873.75 5.25%
010869AS4 10/01/2031 6,999,600.00 525
010869AT?2 10/01/2032 6,690,401.60 526
010869AU9 10/01/2033 6,415,607.50 526
010869AV7 10/01/2034 6,130,889.90 5927
010869AWS5 10/01/2035 5,878,364.25 527
010869AX3 10/01/2036 5,635,933.40 527
010869AY1 10/01/2037 5,403,946.40 527

(i)

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C

Current Interest Bonds

Outstanding

Interest Principal Offer Purchase
CUSIP No. Maturity Date Rate Amount Price *
010869CD5 10/01/2029 6.60% $300,480,000
Capital Appreciation Bonds
Principal
Amount Offer Purchase
CUSIP No. Maturity Date at Issuance Yield to Maturity Accreted Value Price
010869CE3 10/01/2030 $6,850,575.00 6.83%
010869CFO0 10/01/2031 6,469,538.00 6.83
010869CG8 10/01/2032 6,109,946.70 6.83
010869CH6 10/01/2033 5,770,215.15 6.83
010869CJ2 10/01/2034 5,449,275.35 6.83
010869CK9 10/01/2035 5,146,002.00 6.83
010869CL7 10/01/2036 4,860,219.00 6.83
010869CM5 10/01/2037 4,589,634.15 6.83

* Plus accrued interest.

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A

Outstanding

Interest Principal Offer Purchase
CUSIP No. Maturity Date Rate Amount Price
010869GF6 10/01/2023 5.000% $21,335,000
010869GG4 10/01/2024 5.000 22,750,000
010869GH2 10/01/2025 5.000 24,245,000
010869GJ8 10/01/2026 5.000 20,000,000
010869GK5 10/01/2026 3.000 5,815,000
010869GL3 10/01/2027 5.000 20,000,000
010869GM1 10/01/2027 3.000 7,350,000
010869GN9 10/01/2028 5.000 20,000,000
010869GP4 10/01/2028 3.125 8,935,000
010869GQ2 10/01/2029 5.000 20,000,000
010869GRO 10/01/2029 3.125 10,585,000

* Plus accrued interest.

i
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B

Outstanding

Interest Principal Offer Purchase
CUSIP No. Maturity Date Rate Amount Price ”
010869GY5 10/01/2034 5.000% $99,865,000
010869HC2 10/01/2034 3.000 30,000,000
010869GZ2 10/01/2035 5.000 85,760,000
010869HDO 10/01/2035 4.000 25,000,000
010869HG3 10/01/2035 5.000 25,000,000
010869HAG6 10/01/2036 5.000 92,295,000
010869HE8 10/01/2036 3.125 25,000,000
010869HH1 10/01/2036 5.000 25,000,000
010869HB4 10/01/2037 5.000 98,940,000
010869HF5 10/01/2037 4.000 35,000,000
010869HJ7 10/01/2037 5.000 15,000,000
* Plus accrued interest.
Y

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This Invitation and other information with respect to the Invitation [are and will be available from the
Dealer Managers and the Information Agent at www.bondcom.com/ . Bondowners wishing to offer their
Target Bonds for purchase pursuant to the Invitation should follow the procedures more fully described herein.
The Authority reserves the right to cancel or modify the Invitation at any time on or prior to the Expiration Date
and reserves the right to make a future invitation to tender bonds at prices different than the offer purchase prices
and terms described herein or a future invitation to exchange bonds for new bonds, in each case, in its sole
discretion. The Authority will have no obligation to purchase Target Bonds offered pursuant to the Invitation if
cancellation or modification occurs, or the conditions described herein are not met. The Authority further
reserves the right to waive any irregularities or defects in any tenders received.

The Authority also reserves the right in the future to refund (on an advance or current basis) any
remaining portion of outstanding Target Bonds through the issuance of publicly offered or privately placed bonds.

It is anticipated that, subject to market conditions, a portion of the Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999C maturing on October 1, 2029 not tendered for purchase pursuant to this I nvitation may be
defeased to the respective sinking fund payment dates occurring on October 1 of the years 2023 through 2025
from proceeds of the Authority’s 2022C Bonds (as herein after defined) anticipated to be issued on or about
August 15, 2022. In addition, it is anticipated that all or a portion of the Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A not tendered for purchase pursuant to this I nvitation may be redeemed and/or
defeased to their maturity or, if applicable, their first optional call date, from proceeds of an additional series of
refunding bonds anticipated to be issued by the Authority on or about __ , 2023 as described under the
caption “PLAN OF FINANCE” in the 2022 Bonds POS. The refunding bonds expected to be issued to refund
the untendered Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A are expected to be sold on a
forward delivery basis. In addition, the Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C maturing on
October 1, 2022 and the Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A maturing on
October 1, 2022, are each expected to be defeased to their respective maturities with proceeds of Series 2022B
Bonds and the Series 2022A Bonds (as hereinafter defined, respectively, expected to be issued by the Authority
on or about August 15, 2022. All other Target Bonds are not currently expected to be redeemed and/or
defeased as part of the plan of finance. See the caption “FINANCING PLAN” in the 2022 Bonds POS.

This Invitation is not being made to, and Target Bonds tendered for purchase in response to this Invitation
will not be accepted from or on behalf of, Bondowners in any jurisdiction in which the Invitation, the making of
offers to purchase Target Bonds or the acceptance thereof would not be in compliance with the laws of such
jurisdiction. In those jurisdictions whose laws require the Invitation to be made through a licensed or registered
broker or dealer, the Invitation is being made on behalf of the Authority by the Dealer Managers.

The Authority is not recommending to any Bondowner whether to tender their Target Bonds for purchase
in connection with the Invitation. Each Bondowner must make these decisions and should read this Invitation and
the 2022 Bonds POS attached as Appendix A,] in its entirety and consult with their broker-dealer, financial, legal,
accounting, tax and other advisors in making these decisions.

No dealer, salesperson or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in this Invitation[, including Appendix A]; and, if given or made, such information or
representation may not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Authority.

The delivery of this Invitation shall not under any circumstances create any implication that the
information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof or that there has been no
change in the information set forth herein or in any attachments hereto or materials delivered herewith or in the
affairs of the Authority since the date hereof.

This Invitation contains statements relating to future results that are “forward-looking statements” as
defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. When used in this Invitation and other materials
referred to or incorporated herein, the words “estimate,” “anticipate,” “forecast,” “project,” “intend,” “propose,”
“plan,” “expect” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in such forward-
looking statements. Any forecast is subject to such uncertainties. Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop

\'
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



the forecasts will not be realized and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur. Therefore, there are
likely to be differences between forecasts and actual results, and those differences may be material.

This Invitation has not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange Commission or any
state securities commission, nor has the Securities and Exchange Commission or any state securities commission
passed upon the fairness or merits of this Invitation or upon the accuracy or adequacy of the information contained
in this Invitation. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Vi
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Page
1. IMEFOTUCTION ...t b bbbttt b bt n et 1
2. INfOrmMation t0 BONAOWNETS. ........cviiiieiiiiiie et 6
3. Expiration Date; Offers Only Through Financial Institutions; Brokerage Commissions..................... 6
4, Minimum Denominations and Consideration for Offers; Changes to the Terms of the Invitation....... 7
5. Provisions Applicable to all OFfers ........ccveiieiie e 8
6. Transmission of Offers by Financial Institutions; DTC ATOP Procedures .........ccccvevvevvneeresesvennenns 9
7. Determinations as to Form and Validity of Offers; Right of Waiver and Rejection.............c.cccceevenee. 9
8. Withdrawals of Offers Prior to Expiration Date; Irrevocability of Offers on Expiration Date............. 9
9. Acceptance of Offers for Purchase or EXChange.........ccoovvveieiiiie i 10
10. Acceptance of Offers Constitutes Irrevocable AQreement ...........ccoveviiiiieneneieiss e 11
11. Expected Settlement Date; Purchase and Exchange of Target Bonds............ccoocovoviieieiivciencineenne 11
12. SOUICE OF FUNGS ...t ne et nre s 12
13. Conditions to PUrchase Or EXCRANGE .......ccviviiiieiie ettt st 12
14, Extension, Termination and Amendment Of INVITATION .......oooooiiieoeeiiieeeee ettt e e 13
15. Certain Federal INCOME TaX CONSEUUENCES .....veeveeireeiterireeeeesteesteesreesseesssessseasseesseessesssesssssnsssssesnees 13
16. Additional CONSIAEIALIONS ..ot 15
17. THE DEAIET IMIANAGET ...ttt bbbt bbbttt sttt st nnen e 16
18. Information Agent and Tender/EXChange AGENT........cccuiiiirireiieieesese s 16
19. IVIISCEITANEOUS ...t b bbb bbb 17
APPENDIX A — PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT ....oooiiiieeeee e A-1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(vii)

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



INVITATION TO TENDER BONDS
made by
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

1. Introduction

This Invitation to Tender Bonds, dated , 2022 (as it may be amended or supplemented,
including the cover page, Annex I, and Appendix A hereto, this “Invitation”) is made by Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) with respect to the bonds listed and maturing on
the dates set forth in the tables below (the “Target Bonds”), to the beneficial owners (the
“Bondowners”) of such Target Bonds:

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A

Capital Appreciation Bonds

Principal

Amount
CUSIP No. Maturity Date at Issuance Yield to Maturity Accreted Value
010869AR6 10/01/2030 $7,298,873.75 5.25%
010869AS4 10/01/2031 6,999,600.00 5.25
010869AT2 10/01/2032 6,690,401.60 5.26
010869AU9 10/01/2033 6,415,607.50 526
010869AV7 10/01/2034 6,130,889.90 527
010869AWS5 10/01/2035 5,878,364.25 527
010869AX3 10/01/2036 5,635,933.40 527
010869AY1 10/01/2037 5,403,946.40 527

1

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C

Current Interest Bonds

Outstanding

Interest Principal
CUSIP No. Maturity Date Rate Amount
010869CD5 10/01/2029 6.60% $300,480,000
Capital Appreciation Bonds
Principal
Amount
CUSIP No. Maturity Date at Issuance Yield to Maturity Accreted Value
010869CC7 10/01/2022 $6,993,263.55 6.69%
010869CE3 10/01/2030 6,850,575.00 6.83
010869CF0 10/01/2031 6,469,538.00 6.83
010869CG8 10/01/2032 6,109,946.70 6.83
010869CH6 10/01/2033 5,770,215.15 6.83
010869CJ2 10/01/2034 5,449,275.35 6.83
010869CK9 10/01/2035 5,146,002.00 6.83
010869CL7 10/01/2036 4,860,219.00 6.83
010869CM5 10/01/2037 4,589,634.15 6.83

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A®

Outstanding

Interest Principal
CUSIP No. Maturity Date Rate Amount
010869GF6 10/01/2023 5.000% $21,335,000
010869GG4 10/01/2024 5.000 22,750,000
010869GH?2 10/01/2025 5.000 24,245,000
010869GJ8 10/01/2026 5.000 20,000,000
010869GK5 10/01/2026 3.000 5,815,000
010869GL3 10/01/2027 5.000 20,000,000
010869GM1 10/01/2027 3.000 7,350,000
010869GN9 10/01/2028 5.000 20,000,000
010869GP4 10/01/2028 3.125 8,935,000
010869GQ2 10/01/2029 5.000 20,000,000
010869GR0O 10/01/2029 3.125 10,585,000

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084

) First optional redemption date is October 1, 2023.



Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B®M

Outstanding

Interest Principal
CUSIP No. Maturity Date Rate Amount
010869GY5 10/01/2034 5.000% $99,865,000
010869HC2 10/01/2034 3.000 30,000,000
010869GZ2 10/01/2035 5.000 85,760,000
010869HDO 10/01/2035 4.000 25,000,000
010869HG3 10/01/2035 5.000 25,000,000
010869HAG 10/01/2036 5.000 92,295,000
010869HES 10/01/2036 3.125 25,000,000
010869HH1 10/01/2036 5.000 25,000,000
010869HB4 10/01/2037 5.000 98,940,000
010869HF5 10/01/2037 4.000 35,000,000
010869HJ7 10/01/2037 5.000 15,000,000

@) First optional redemption date is October 1, 2026.

The Authority invites the Bondowners of certain of the Authority’s outstanding Tax-Exempt
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “Target 1999A Bonds”), Taxable Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C (the “Target 1999C Bonds”), Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A (the “Target 2013A Bonds”) and the Tax-Exempt Second
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B (the “Target 2016B Bonds”) as listed and
maturing on the dates set forth in the tables beginning on page (i) to offer to tender to the Authority
for payment in cash certain of the Target Bonds at the applicable tender offer purchase prices
designated on pages (i) through (iv) of this Invitation (the “Invitation”) plus, in case of the Target
Bonds that are current interest bonds, accrued interest on such Target Bonds tendered for purchase to
but not including the Expected Settlement Date (“Accrued Interest”).

The purchase of any Target 1999A Bonds or Target 2013A Bonds pursuant to the Invitation
is contingent on the issuance of the Authority’s Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A Bonds™). The purchase of any Target 1999C Bonds pursuant to the
Invitation is contingent on the issuance of the Authority’s Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B Bonds”). The purchase of any Target 2016B Bonds is
contingent upon the issuance of Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2022C (the “Series 2022C Bonds” and, together with the Series 2022A Bonds and the Series
2022C Bonds, the “Series 2022 Bonds”). If issued, each series of the Series 2022 Bonds will be dated
the August 15, 2022, and will be issued in the manner, on the terms and with the security therefor
described in the Preliminary Official Statement of the Authority dated __, 2022 (the “2022 Bonds
POS”) attached as Appendix A.

The Target Bonds were issued by the Authority pursuant to a Master Trust Indenture, dated

as of January 1, 1999, as amended and supplemented (the “Master Indenture”), between the
Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), as amended and supplemented, including as
amended and supplemented by a First Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, a
Third Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, a Ninth Supplemental Trust
Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2013 and an Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of
May 1, 2016, each between the Authority and the Trustee, relating to the Target Bonds (the Master
Indenture, together with all amendments or supplements thereto effected in accordance with its
terms, the “Indenture™). This Invitation is part of a plan by the Authority to refinance some or all of
the outstanding Target Bonds, as described in the 2022 Bonds POS. The Authority’s outstanding
bonds (including Series 1999A Bonds, Series 1999C Bonds, Series 2013A Bonds and Series
2016B Bonds of other maturity dates, if any) which are not identified in the table above are not
subject to this Invitation. For additional information concerning the Authority, its plan of refunding
and its outstanding indebtedness, see the 2022 Bonds POS attached hereto as Appendix A.

Pursuant to the Invitation, each Bondowner may tender to the Authority for purchase certain
Target Bonds, in Authorized Denominations with respect to which the Bondowner has a beneficial
ownership interest. As used herein, “Authorized Denominations” means (i) with respect to the Target
1999C Bonds that are current interest bonds, the Target 2013A Bonds and the Target 2016B Bonds,
denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, and
(i) with respect to the Target 1999A Bonds and the Target 1999C Bonds that are capital appreciation
bonds, such amount so that the accreted value of such bonds on their maturity date shall be $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof. The purchase price for each CUSIP of the Target Bonds at which such
Target Bonds may be tendered by a Bondowner for purchase pursuant to the Invitation (the “Offer
Purchase Price”) is set forth on pages (i) through (iv) of this Invitation.

See also Section 4, “Authorized Denominations and Consideration for Offers,” Section 5,
“Provisions Applicable to all Offers,” and Section 6, “Transmission of Offers by Financial
Institutions; DTC ATOP Procedures,” below for more information on the consideration for which
and how a Bondowner can offer to tender his, her or its Target Bonds for purchase.

The source of funds to purchase the Target Bonds validly tendered for purchase pursuant to
the Invitation is anticipated to be proceeds of the Authority’s Series 2022 Bonds to be issued on or
about August 15, 2022. The purchase of any of the Target 1999A Bonds and the Target 2013A
Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to the Invitation is contingent on the issuance of the Series
2022A Bonds. The purchase of any of the Target 1999C Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to the
Invitation is contingent on the issuance of the Series 2022B Bonds. The purchase of any of the
Target 2016B Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to the Invitation is contingent on the issuance of
the Series 2022C Bonds.

The Authority’s obligations to accept for purchase, and to pay for Target Bonds validly
tendered (and not withdrawn) pursuant to this Invitation are also subject to the satisfaction or waiver
of certain conditions. See Section 13, “Conditions to Purchase,” for additional information regarding
certain of such conditions.

Subject to the terms of this Invitation and the satisfaction of all conditions to the Authority’s
obligation to purchase tendered Target Bonds as described herein, and provided that (i) the Target
Bonds offered by a Bondholder for purchase have been validly tendered by [5:00] p.m., New York
City time, on July __, 2022 (as extended from time to time in accordance with this Invitation, the
“Expiration Date”), and (ii) accepted by the Authority on or before [5:00] p.m., New York City time,
onJuly __, 2022 (as extended from time to time in accordance with this Invitation, the “Acceptance
Date”), the Authority will purchase such Target Bonds tendered for purchase on ___, 2022 or such

4
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



later date as the Authority shall determine (such date, the “Expected Settlement Date”). Accrued
Interest on the Target Bonds that are current interest bonds purchased will also be paid on the
Expected Settlement Date.

All times in this Invitation are local time in New York City.

No assurances can be given that the Series Bonds will be issued or that any Target Bonds
tendered for purchase by a Bondowner will be purchased. See Section 9, “Acceptance of Offers for
Purchase,” for more information on the selection of tendered Target Bonds to be purchased, if any.
The Authority reserves the right to amend or waive the terms of this Invitation as to any or all of the
Target Bonds in any respect and at any time prior to the Expiration Date or from time to time, in its
sole discretion. The Authority also has the right to terminate this Invitation at any time up to and
including the Expiration Date. See Section 14, “Extension, Termination and Amendment of
Invitation; Changes to Terms,” below.

The Authority is under no obligation to accept any of the Target Bonds that are tendered for
purchase pursuant to this Invitation, and will accept Target Bonds as described in Section 9,
“Acceptance of Offers for Purchase.” Any Target Bonds tendered by Bondowners pursuant to this
Invitation but not accepted by the Authority will be returned to the Bondowners and will continue to
be payable and secured under the terms of the Indenture until maturity or prior redemption. In the
event all conditions to this Invitation are not satisfied or waived by the Authority on or prior to the
Settlement Date, any Target Bonds tendered by Bondowners pursuant to this Invitation will be
returned to the Bondowners and will continue to be payable and secured under the terms of the
Indenture.

It is anticipated that, subject to market conditions, a portion of the Target 1999C Bonds
maturing on October 1, 2029 not tendered for purchase pursuant to this invitation will be
defeased to the respective sinking fund payment dates occurring on October 1 of the years 2023
through 2025 from proceeds of the Authority’s 2022C Bonds anticipated to be issued on or
about August 15, 2022. Further, it is anticipated that all or a portion of the Target 2013A
Bonds will be defeased to maturity or the first optional redemption date, as applicable, of the
Authority’s Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A (the “Series
2023A Bonds™), which are expected to be sold on a forward delivery basis on or about ,
2022 and issued by the Authority on or about ___, 2023.

In addition, the Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C maturing on
October 1, 2022 and the Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A
maturing on October 1, 2022, are each expected to be defeased to their respective maturities
with proceeds of Series 2022C Bonds and the Series 2022A Bonds, respectively, each
anticipated to be issued by the Authority on or about August 15, 2022. All other Target Bonds
are not currently expected to be redeemed and/or defeased as part of the plan of finance.
Further details concerning the Authority’s debt refunding plan and the possible defeasance of
Target Bonds that are not purchased pursuant to this Invitation are contained in the 2022
Bonds POS attached as Appendix A. See also Section 16, “Additional Considerations,” below.

To make an informed decision as to whether, and how, to offer Target Bonds for

purchase pursuant to the Invitation, a Bondowner must read this Invitation carefully,
including Appendix A attached hereto.

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



None of the Authority, the Dealer Managers (as defined below) or the Information
Agent and Tender Agent (as defined below) make any recommendation that any Bondowner
offer and tender or refrain from offering and tendering all or any portion of such Bondowner’s
Target Bonds for purchase. Bondowners must make these decisions and should consult with
their broker, account executive, financial advisor, attorney and/or other appropriate
professionals.

The Dealer Managers for this Invitation are J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital
Markets, LLC (the “Dealer Manager”). Bondholder Communications Group LLC is serving as
information agent and tender agent (the “Information Agent” or the “Tender Agent”) in connection
with this Invitation. Bondowners with questions about the substance of this Invitation should contact
the Dealer Managers. Bondowners with questions about the mechanics of this Invitation should
contact the Information Agent at the email address and telephone number set forth on the inside
cover page of this Invitation.

2. Information to Bondowners

The Authority will give information about this Invitation to the market and Bondowners,
including, without limitation, any supplement to the 2022 Bonds POS, by delivery of such
information in the following ways: (i) to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through its
Electronic Municipal Market Access website, currently located at http://emma.msrb.org (the
“EMMA Website”), using the CUSIP numbers for the Target Bonds listed in the table on the cover
page of this Invitation; (ii) to DTC (defined below) and to the DTC participants holding the Target
Bonds; (iii) by posting electronically on the website of the Information Agent at
www.bondcom.com/ ; and (iv) to [Bloomberg Financial Market Systems]. Delivery by the
Authority of information in this manner will be deemed to constitute delivery of the information to
each Bondowner. The Authority, the Dealer Managers, and the Information Agent and Tender Agent
have no obligation to ensure that a Bondowner actually receives any information provided by the
Authority in this manner. A Bondowner who would like to receive information furnished by or on
behalf of the Authority as described above must make appropriate arrangements with its broker,
account executive or other financial advisor or representative.

The final Official Statement with respect to the Series 2022 Bonds will be posted to the
EMMA Website.

3. Expiration Date; Offers Only Through Financial Institutions; Brokerage Commissions

This Invitation to Tender Target Bonds will expire at [5:00] p.m., New York City time, on
July _, 2022, the Expiration Date, unless earlier terminated or extended as described in this
Invitation. Offers to sell Target Bonds received after [5:00] p.m., New York City time, on the
Expiration Date (as it may be extended) will not be considered. See Section 14 for a discussion of the
Authority’s ability to extend the Expiration Date and to terminate or amend this Invitation.

All of the Target Bonds are held in book-entry-only form through the facilities of The
Depository Trust Company of New York (“DTC”). The Information Agent and Tender Agent and
DTC have confirmed that the Invitation are each eligible for submission of tenders for purchase
through DTC’s Automated Tender Offer Program (known as the “ATOP” system). Bondowners of
Target Bonds who want to accept the Authority’s Invitation to sell Target Bonds must do so
through a DTC participant in accordance with the relevant DTC procedures for the ATOP system.
The Authority will not accept any tenders of Target Bonds for purchase that are not made through

6
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



the ATOP system. Bondowners who are not DTC participants can only offer Target Bonds for
purchase pursuant to this Invitation by making arrangements with and instructing the bank or
brokerage firm through which they hold their Target Bonds (sometimes referred to herein as a
“custodial intermediary”) to tender the Bondowner’s Target Bonds on their behalf through the ATOP
system. To ensure a Bondowner’s Target Bonds are tendered through the ATOP system by [5:00]
p.m., New York City time, on the Expiration Date, Bondowners must provide instructions to the
bank or brokerage firm through which their Target Bonds are held in sufficient time for such
custodial intermediary to tender the Target Bonds in accordance with DTC procedures through the
ATOP system by this deadline. Bondowners should contact their bank or brokerage firm through
which they hold their Target Bonds for information on when such custodial intermediary needs the
Bondowner’s instructions in order to tender the Bondowner’s Target Bonds through the ATOP
system by [5:00] p.m., New York City time, on the Expiration Date. See also Section 6 below.

The Authority, the Dealer Managers, and the Information Agent and Tender Agent are not
responsible for making or transmitting any offer to purchase Target Bonds or for the transfer of any
tendered Target Bonds through the ATOP system or for any mistakes, errors or omissions in the
making or transmission of any offer or transfer.

Bondowners will not be obligated to pay any brokerage commissions or solicitation fees to
the Authority, the Dealer Managers or the Information Agent and Tender Agent in connection with
this Invitation. However, Bondowners should check with their broker, account executive or other
financial institution which maintains the account in which their Target Bonds are held to determine if
it will charge any commission or fees.

4. Minimum Denominations and Consideration for Offers; Changes to the Terms of the
Invitation

Authorized Denominations for Offers. A Bondowner may make an offer to sell all or a
portion of Target Bonds of a particular CUSIP that it owns in an amount of its choosing, but only in
Authorized Denominations.

Tender Consideration. Target Bonds may only be offered by a Bondowner for purchase by
the Authority pursuant to the Invitation at the Offer Purchase Price for each CUSIP set forth on
page (i) through (iv) of this Invitation. In addition to the Offer Purchase Price of the Target Bonds
accepted for purchase by the Authority, Accrued Interest on such Target Bonds that are current
interest bonds will be paid by, or on behalf of, the Authority to the tendering Bondowners on the
Expected Settlement Date. The Offer Purchase Prices (and the Accrued Interest on Target Bonds that
are current interest bonds) will constitute the sole consideration payable by the Authority for Target
Bonds purchased by the Authority pursuant to the Invitation.

Changes to Terms of the Invitation. As described in Section 14 hereof, the Authority may
revise the terms of this Invitation prior to the Expiration Date. In the event that the Authority
determines to revise the terms of the Invitation, it shall provide notice thereof in the manner
described in Section 2 of this Invitation no later than [11:00] a.m., New York City time, on the day
prior to the Expiration Date. If the Authority changes the Offer Purchase Price for any of the Target
Bonds pursuant to the Invitation, the Authority shall provide notice thereof (as described in Section
2) no less than three (3) business days prior to the Expiration Date, as extended. In such event, any
offers submitted with respect to the affected Target Bonds prior to such change in the Offer Purchase
Price for such Target Bonds pursuant to the Invitation, will remain in full force and effect and any

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Bondowner of such affected Target Bonds wishing to revoke their offer to tender such Target Bonds
must affirmatively withdraw such offer prior to the Expiration Date as described in Section 8 hereof.

5. Provisions Applicable to all Offers to Tender Target Bonds

A Bondowner should ask its financial advisor, investment manager, broker or account
executive for advice in determining whether to tender Target Bonds for purchase and the principal
amount of Target Bonds to be tendered. A Bondowner should also inquire as to whether its financial
institution will charge a fee for submitting offers. The Authority, the Dealer Managers, and the
Information Agent and Tender Agent will not charge fees to any Bondowner tendering Target
Bonds.

A tender of Target Bonds cannot exceed the par amount of Target Bonds owned by the
Bondowner and can only be for the applicable Offer Purchase Price. Target Bonds may be tendered
and accepted for payment only in Authorized Denominations.

No alternative, conditional or contingent tenders will be accepted. All tenders shall survive
the death or incapacity of the tendering Bondowner.

By tendering Target Bonds for purchase in accordance with the terms of this Invitation, each
Bondowner will be deemed to have represented and warranted to and agreed with the Authority and
each Dealer Manager that:

(a) the Bondowner has received, and has had the opportunity to review, this Invitation
(including the 2022 Bonds POS attached as Appendix A hereto) prior to making the decision as
to whether or not they should tender their Target Bonds for purchase;

(b) the Bondowner has full authority to tender, sell, assign and transfer such Target
Bonds, and that, on the Expected Settlement Date, the Authority, as transferee, will acquire good
title, free and clear of all liens, charges, encumbrances, conditional sales agreements or other
obligations and not subject to any adverse claims, subject to payment to the Bondowner of the
applicable Offer Purchase Price, plus in the case of Target Bonds that are current interest bonds,
payment of the Accrued Interest;

(c) the Bondowner has made its own independent decision to make the offer, the
appropriateness of the terms thereof, and whether the offer is appropriate for the Bondowner;

(d) such decisions are based upon the Bondowner's own judgment and upon advice from
such advisors as the Bondowner has consulted;

(e) the Bondowner is not relying on any communication from the Authority or any
Dealer Manager as investment advice or as a recommendation to make the offer, it being
understood that the information from the Authority or the Dealer Managers related to the terms
and conditions of the Invitation shall not be considered investment advice or a recommendation
to make an offer; and

(f) the Bondowner is capable of assessing the merits of and understanding (on its own
and/or through independent professional advice), and does understand and accept, the terms and
conditions of the Invitation.

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



6. Transmission of Offers by Financial Institutions; DTC ATOP Procedures

Tenders of Target Bonds pursuant to this Invitation may only be made to the Authority
through DTC’s ATOP system. Bondowners who are not DTC participants must make their offers
through their custodial intermediary. A DTC participant must tender the Target Bonds pursuant to the
Invitation on behalf of the Bondowner for whom it is acting, by book-entry through the ATOP
system. In so doing, such custodial intermediary and the Bondowner on whose behalf the custodial
intermediary is acting, agree to be bound by DTC’s rules for the ATOP system. In accordance with
ATOP procedures, DTC will then verify receipt of the tender offer and send an Agent’s Message (as
described below) to the Information Agent and Tender Agent.

The term “Agent’s Message” means a message transmitted by DTC to, and received by, the
Information Agent and Tender Agent and forming a part of the book-entry confirmation which states
that DTC has received an express acknowledgement from the DTC participant tendering Target
Bonds for purchase that are the subject of such book-entry confirmation, stating (i) the par amount of
the Target Bonds that have been tendered by such DTC participant on behalf of the Bondowner
pursuant to the applicable Invitation, and (ii) that the Bondowner agrees to be bound by the terms of
the Invitation, including the representations, warranties, agreements and affirmations deemed made
by it as set forth in Section 5 above.

Agent’s Messages must be transmitted to and received by the Information Agent and Tender
Agent by not later than [5:00] p.m., New York City time, on the Expiration Date (as the date may
have been changed as provided in this Invitation). Target Bonds will not be deemed to have been
tendered for cash purchase pursuant to the Invitation until an Agent’s Message with respect thereto is
received by the Information Agent and Tender Agent.

7. Determinations as to Form and Validity of Offers; Right of Waiver and Rejection

All questions as to the validity (including the time of receipt of Agent’s Messages by the
Information Agent and Tender Agent), eligibility, and acceptance of any offers to sell Target Bonds
will be determined by the Authority in its sole discretion and will be final, conclusive and binding.

The Authority reserves the right to waive any irregularities or defects in any offer. The
Authority, the Dealer Managers, and the Information Agent and Tender Agent are not obligated to
give notice of any defects or irregularities in offers, and they will have no liability for failing to give
such notice.

8. Withdrawals of Offers Prior to Expiration Date; Irrevocability of Offers on Expiration
Date

A Bondowner may withdraw its Target Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to this
Invitation by causing a withdrawal notice to be transmitted via DTC’s ATOP system to, and received
by, the Information Agent and Tender Agent at or before [5:00] p.m., New York City time, on the
Expiration Date (as the date and time may have been changed as provided in this Invitation).

Bondowners who are not DTC participants can only withdraw their offers by making

arrangements with and instructing the custodial intermediary through which they hold their Target
Bonds to submit the Bondowner’s notice of withdrawal through the DTC ATOP system.

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



All tenders of Target Bonds will become irrevocable as of [5:00] p.m., New York City
Time, on the Expiration Date (as the date may have been changed from time-to-time as
provided in this Invitation).

9. Acceptance of Offers for Purchase

On or before [5:00] p.m., New York City Time, on the Acceptance Date (i.e., July __, 2022,
unless extended), upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Invitation, the Authority will
announce its acceptance for purchase of Target Bonds, if any, offered and validly tendered by
Bondowners pursuant to this Invitation by giving notice in the manner described in Section 2, with
acceptance subject to the satisfaction or waiver by the Authority of the conditions to the purchase of
tendered Target Bonds. See Section 10, “Acceptance of Offers Constitutes Irrevocable Agreement;
Notice of Results” and Section 13, “Conditions to Purchase.”

The Authority intends to purchase Target Bonds at their respective Offer Purchase Prices in
amounts expected to result in an economic benefit to the Authority, taking into account the
Authority’s debt profile and capacity following the tender of such Target Bonds. The Authority may,
but shall not be required to, prioritize the purchase of tendered bonds by series and maturity, as
follows in order of highest priority first: the Target 2013A Bonds, sinking fund installment payments
coming due on October 1 of 2023 through 2025 with respect to the Target 1999C Bonds maturing on
October 1, 2029, the Target 1999A Bonds, sinking fund installment payments coming due on
October 1 of 2026 through 2029 with respect to the Target 1999C Bonds maturing on October 1,
2029, the Target 1999C Bonds maturing in 2030 through 2037, inclusive, and the Target 2016B
Bonds.

The Authority shall be under no obligation to accept any Target Bonds tendered for purchase
pursuant to this Invitation. Among Target Bonds tendered for purchase, the Authority in its sole
discretion will select which, if any, tendered Target Bonds to purchase of a particular CUSIP or
portion of a particular CUSIP based on its determination of the economic benefit from such purchase.
In the event that the Authority determines to purchase only a portion of a tendered Target Bond
CUSIP and more Target Bonds of that CUSIP are tendered than selected for purchase, the portion
selected for purchase will be done on a pro rata basis among tendered Target Bonds of such CUSIP,
subject to DTC operating procedures and minimum Authorized Denominations. [The principal
amount (or accreted value) of each individual tender offer will be accepted, pro rata, based upon the
ratio of the principal amount (or accreted value) of the tendered Target Bonds accepted for purchase
divided by the aggregate principal (or accreted value) of Target Bonds tendered for purchase. Any
bonds not accepted will be returned to Bondowners] If DTC is not able to allocate the purchase of
tendered Target Bonds on a pro rata basis for the applicable CUSIP, the Target Bonds selected for
purchase will be done by lot. In addition, the amount of each individual tender offer for each CUSIP
accepted for purchase by the Authority may be rounded down, as necessary, to purchase such Target
Bonds in Authorized Denominations.

The acceptance notification will state (i) the principal amount (or maturity value) of the
Target Bonds of each CUSIP number that the Authority has accepted for purchase in accordance with
the Invitation, which may be zero for a particular CUSIP number, or (ii) that the Authority has
decided not to purchase any Target Bonds.

Shortly following the giving of notice of its acceptance of offers, the Authority will instruct
DTC to release from the controls of the ATOP system all Target Bonds that were offered but were
not accepted for purchase. The release of such Target Bonds will take place in accordance with

10
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



DTC’s ATOP procedures. The Authority, the Dealer Managers, and the Information Agent and
Tender Agent are not responsible or liable for the operation of the ATOP system by DTC to properly
credit such released Target Bonds to the applicable account of the DTC participant or custodial
intermediary or by such DTC participant or custodial intermediary for the account of the Bondowner.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Invitation, the obligation of the Authority
to accept for purchase, and to pay for Target Bonds offered and validly tendered (and not
validly withdrawn) by Bondowners pursuant to the Invitation is subject to the satisfaction or
waiver of the conditions set forth under Section 13, “Conditions to Purchase” below. The
Authority reserves the right to amend or waive any of the terms of or conditions to this
Invitation, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the Expiration Date or from time to time, in
its sole discretion. This Invitation may be withdrawn by the Authority at any time prior to the
Expiration Date.

10. Acceptance of Offers Constitutes Irrevocable Agreement

Acceptance by the Authority of Target Bonds tendered by Bondowners will constitute an
irrevocable agreement between the tendering Bondowner and the Authority to sell and purchase such
Target Bonds, subject to the conditions and terms of this Invitation, including the Conditions to
Purchase set forth in Section 13.

11. Expected Settlement Date; Purchase of Target Bonds

Subject to satisfaction of all conditions to the Authority’s obligation to purchase tendered
Target Bonds, as described herein, the Expected Settlement Date is the day on which Target Bonds
accepted for purchase will be purchased and paid for at the applicable Offer Purchase Price, and the
Accrued Interest on the Target Bonds that are current interest bonds will also be paid. Such purchase
and payment are expected to occur by [3:00] p.m., New York City time, on the Expected Settlement
Date. The Expected Settlement Date has initially been set as __ , 2022, unless extended by the
Authority, assuming all conditions to the applicable Tender Invitation have been satisfied or waived
by the Authority.

The Authority may, in its sole discretion, change the Expected Settlement Date by giving
notice thereof in the manner described in Section 2 of this Invitation prior to the change. See also
Section 14, “Extension, Termination and Amendment of Invitation.”

Subject to satisfaction of all conditions to the Authority’s obligation to purchase Target
Bonds tendered for purchase pursuant to the Invitation, as described herein, payment by the
Authority will be made through DTC on the Expected Settlement Date. The Authority expects that,
in accordance with DTC’s standard procedures, DTC will transmit the aggregate Offer Purchase
Prices to be paid for the Target Bonds tendered for purchase (plus Accrued Interest on Target Bonds
that are current interest bonds) to DTC participants holding the Target Bonds accepted for purchase
on behalf of Bondowners for subsequent disbursement to the Bondowners. The Authority, the
Dealer Managers and the Information Agent and Tender Agent have no responsibility or
liability for the distribution of the Offer Purchase Prices paid and Accrued Interest by DTC to
DTC participants or by DTC participants to Bondowners.

Promptly following such deliveries and payments, the Authority will instruct the Trustee for
the Target Bonds purchased by the Authority to cause such Target Bonds to be cancelled and retired.

11
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



12. Source of Funds

The source of funds to purchase the Target Bonds validly tendered for purchase pursuant to
the Invitation and accepted by the Authority, including Accrued Interest on Target Bonds that are
current interest bonds, is anticipated to be proceeds received by the Authority from the sale of its
Series 2022 Bonds expected to be issued on the Expected Settlement Date. The Authority reminds
investors that the Authority’s ability to settle the cash purchase of Target Bonds tendered for
purchase is contingent upon the successful delivery of its Series 2022 Bonds.

13. Conditions to Purchase

The consummation of the purchase of the Target Bonds pursuant to this Invitation is
conditioned upon the Authority obtaining satisfactory and sufficient economic benefit therefrom
when taken together with the proposed issuance of the Series 2022 Bonds, all on the terms and
conditions that are in the Authority’s best interest in its sole discretion. Payment on the Expected
Settlement Date is conditioned upon the successful closing of the Series 2022 Bonds. Furthermore,
the Authority will not be required to purchase any Target Bonds, and will incur no liability as a
result, if, before payment for Target Bonds on the Expected Settlement Date:

a. The Authority does not, for any reason, have sufficient funds on the Expected
Settlement Date from the proceeds of the Series 2022 Bonds to pay the Offer Purchase Prices of
tendered Target Bonds accepted for purchase pursuant to the Invitation and pay all fees and expenses
associated with the Series 2022 Bonds and this Invitation, including the Accrued Interest on all
Target Bonds that are current interest bonds accepted for purchase;

b. Litigation or another proceeding is pending or threatened which the Authority
believes may, directly or indirectly, have an adverse impact on this Invitation or the expected benefits
of this Invitation to the Authority or the Bondowners;

C. A war, public health or other national emergency, banking moratorium, suspension of
payments by banks, a general suspension of trading by the New York Stock Exchange or a limitation
of prices on the New York Stock Exchange exists and the Authority believes this fact makes it
inadvisable to proceed with the purchase of Target Bonds;

d. A material change in the business or affairs of the Authority has occurred which the
Authority believes makes it inadvisable to proceed with the purchase of Target Bonds;

e. A material change in the net economics of the transaction contemplated by this
Invitation and the 2022 Bonds POS has occurred due to a material change in market conditions
which the Authority reasonably believes makes it inadvisable to proceed with the purchase of Target
Bonds; or

f. There shall have occurred a material disruption in securities settlement, payment or
clearance services.

These conditions are for the sole benefit of the Authority. They may be asserted by the
Authority, prior to the time of payment for Target Bonds on the Expected Settlement Date,
regardless of the circumstances giving rise to any of these conditions or may be waived by the
Authority in whole or in part at any time and from time to time in its sole discretion and may
be exercised independently for each maturity date and CUSIP number of the Target Bonds.

12
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



The failure by the Authority at any time to exercise any of these rights will not be deemed a
waiver of any of these rights, and the waiver of these rights with respect to particular facts and
other circumstances will not be deemed a waiver of these rights with respect to any other facts
and circumstances. Each of these rights will be deemed an ongoing right of the Authority which
may be asserted at any time and from time to time. Any determination by the Authority
concerning the events described in this Section will be final and binding upon all parties. If,
prior to the time of payment for any Target Bonds any of the events described happens, the
Authority will have the absolute right to cancel its obligations to purchase Target Bonds
without any liability to any Bondowner or any other person.

14. Extension, Termination and Amendment of Invitation

Through and including the Expiration Date, the Authority has the right to extend this
Invitation, to any date in its sole discretion. Notice of an extension of the Expiration Date will be
given in the manner described in Section 2 of this Invitation, on or about [11:00 a.m.], New York
City time, on the first business day after the then current Expiration Date.

The Authority also has the right, prior to the acceptance of offers of Target Bonds tendered
for purchase as described in Section 10 above to terminate this Invitation (or either the Invitation) at
any time by giving notice of such termination in the manner described in Section 2 of this Invitation.

The Authority also has the right, prior to the acceptance of offers of Target Bonds tendered
for purchase as described in Section 10 above to amend or waive the terms of this Invitation (or of
either the Invitation) in any respect and at any time by giving notice of the amendment or waiver in
the manner described in Section 2 of this Invitation. The amendment or waiver will be effective at
the time specified in such notice.

If the Authority amends the terms of this Invitation, including a waiver of any term, in any
material respect, notice of such amendment or waiver will be given no later than three (3) business
days prior to the Expiration Date, as extended to provide reasonable time for dissemination of such
amendment or waiver to Bondowners and for Bondowners to respond. If the Authority changes the
Offer Purchase Price for any of the Target Bonds pursuant to the Invitation, any tenders
submitted with respect to the affected Target Bonds prior to such change in the Offer Purchase
Price for such Target Bonds pursuant to the Invitation, will remain in full force and effect, and
any Bondowner of such affected Target Bonds wishing to revoke their tender of such Target
Bonds must affirmatively withdraw such offer prior to the Expiration Date as described in
Section 8 hereof.

No extension, termination or amendment of this Invitation (or waiver of any terms of this
Invitation) will (i) change the Authority’s right to decline to purchase any Target Bonds without
liability; or (ii) give rise to any liability of the Authority, the Dealer Managers, or the Information
Agent and Tender Agent to any Bondowner or nominee.

15. Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences

[The following is a general summary of the U.S. federal income tax consequences for
tendering Bondowners. The discussion is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the *Code”), the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, and relevant rulings and decisions
now in effect, all of which are subject to change or differing interpretations. No assurances can be
given that future changes in U.S. federal income tax laws will not alter the conclusions reached

13
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



herein. The discussion below does not purport to deal with U.S. federal income tax consequences
applicable to all categories of investors. Further, this summary does not discuss all aspects of U.S.
federal income taxation that may be relevant to a particular investor in the Target Bonds in light of
the investor’s particular circumstances or to certain types of investors subject to special treatment
under U.S. federal income tax laws (including individuals who are neither citizens nor residents of
the United States; foreign corporations, trusts and estates, in each case, as defined for U.S. federal
income tax purposes; insurance companies; tax-exempt organizations; financial institutions; brokers-
dealers; partnerships and other entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax
purposes; and persons who have hedged the risk of owning the Target Bonds). Tendering
Bondowners should note that no rulings have been or will be sought from the Internal Revenue
Service (the “IRS”), and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not take contrary positions, with
respect to any of the U.S. federal income tax consequences discussed below. This U.S. federal
income tax discussion is included for general information only and should not be construed as a tax
opinion nor tax advice by the Authority or any of its advisors or agents to the Bondowners, and
Bondowners therefore should not rely upon such discussion.

BONDOWNERS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS IN
DETERMINING THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL, FOREIGN AND ANY OTHER TAX
CONSEQUENCES TO THEM FROM THE TENDER OF TARGET BONDS PURSUANT TO THE
INVITATION.

A Bondowner who tenders Target Bonds pursuant to the Invitation will generally recognize
gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes in an amount equal to the difference between the
(1) the amount realized by the Bondowner, and (2) the Bondowner’s adjusted tax basis in the
tendered Target Bonds.

In the case of a Bondowner who tenders Target Bonds pursuant to the Invitation, the amount
realized will be the amount of money received by the Bondowner, exclusive of any amount paid for
accrued interest.

Any gain or loss arising in connection with a taxable sale pursuant to the Invitation may be
capital gain or loss (either long-term or short-term, depending on the Bondowner’s holding period for
the tendered Target Bonds) or may be ordinary income or loss, depending on the particular
circumstances of the tendering Bondowner. Non-corporate holders may be eligible for reduced rates
of U.S. federal income tax on long-term capital gains. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to
various limitations.

Under section 3406 of the Code, a tendering Bondowner who is a “United States person,” as
defined in section 7701(a)(30) of Code, may, under certain circumstances, be subject to U.S. federal
backup withholding. Backup withholding applies if such tendering Bondowner: (i) fails to furnish
such Bondowner’s social security number or other taxpayer identification number (“TIN”);
(ii) furnishes an incorrect TIN; (iii) fails to report properly interest, dividends, or other “reportable
payments” as defined in the Code; or (iv) under certain circumstances, fails to provide a certified
statement, signed under penalty of perjury, that the TIN provided is correct and that such Bondowner
is not subject to backup withholding. Bondowners should consult their own tax advisors regarding
whether backup withholding applies to them and, if backup withholding applies, regarding
qualification for an exemption from backup withholding and the procedures for obtaining such
exemption. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts deducted and withheld should
generally be allowed as a credit against the Bondowner’s U.S. federal income tax liability.]

14
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



16. Additional Considerations

In deciding whether to participate in the Invitation, each Bondowner should consider
carefully, in addition to the other information contained in this Invitation, the following:

Market for Target Bonds. The Target Bonds are not listed on any national or regional
securities exchange. To the extent that the Target Bonds are traded, their prices may fluctuate greatly
depending on the trading volume and the balance between buy and sell orders. Bondowners may be
able to effect a sale of the Target Bonds at a price higher than the Offer Purchase Price established
pursuant to the Invitation.

Target Bonds Not Tendered for Purchase. Bondowners of Target Bonds who do not accept
this Invitation will continue to hold their interest in such Target Bonds. If Target Bonds are
purchased pursuant to this Invitation, the principal amount of Target Bonds for a particular CUSIP
that remains outstanding will be reduced, which could adversely affect the liquidity and market value
of the Target Bonds of that CUSIP that remain outstanding.

The terms of the Target Bonds that remain outstanding will continue to be governed by
the terms of the Indenture related to such Target Bonds. The Target 1999C Bonds are not
subject to optional redemption. It is anticipated that, depending on market conditions, any
Bondowners not electing to tender Target 1999C Bonds for purchase may have a portion of
their Target 1999C Bonds maturing on October 1, 2029 defeased to the respective sinking fund
payment dates occurring on October 1 of the years 2023 through 2025 with proceeds of the
Series 2022B Bonds, which are expected to be issued by the Authority on or about the August
15, 2022.

The Target 2013A Bonds maturing on and after October 1, 2024 are subject to
redemption in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority on any date on or after October
1, 2023, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2013A Target
Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed plus accrued but unpaid interest to the date fixed
for redemption. It is anticipated that, depending on market conditions, any Bondowners not
electing to tender their 2013A Target Bonds for purchase may have all or a portion of their
2013A Target Bonds defeased to the first optional call date from proceeds of the Series 2023A
Bonds, which are expected to be issued by the Authority on or about the , 2023. The
Series 2023A Bonds are expected to be issued on a forward delivery basis. Further details
concerning the Authority’s debt refunding plan and the possible defeasance of Target Bonds
that are not purchased pursuant to this Invitation are contained in the 2022 Bonds POS
attached as Appendix A.

To the extent Target Bonds are not purchased pursuant to this Invitation (or otherwise
refunded or defeased as described above) the Authority reserves the right to, and may in the future
decide to, acquire some or all of the Target Bonds through open market purchases, privately
negotiated transactions, subsequent tender offers or otherwise, upon such terms and at such prices as
it may determine, which may be more or less than the consideration offered pursuant to this
Invitation, which could be cash or other consideration. Any future acquisition of Target Bonds may
be on the same terms or on terms that are more or less favorable to Bondowners than the terms of the
Invitation described in this Invitation. The Authority also reserves the right in the future to refund (on
an advance or current basis) any remaining portion of outstanding Target Bonds through the issuance
of publicly offered or privately placed bonds. The decision to undertake any such future transactions

15
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



will depend on various factors existing at that time. There can be no assurance as to which of these
alternatives, if any, the Authority may ultimately choose to pursue in the future.

17. The Dealer Managers

References in this Invitation to the Dealer Managers are to J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and
RBC Capital Markets, LLC only in their capacities as the Dealer Managers.

The Dealer Managers may contact Bondowners regarding this Invitation and may request
brokers, dealers, custodian banks, depositories trust companies and other nominees to forward this
Invitation to beneficial owners of the Target Bonds.

The Authority will pay to the Dealer Managers customary fees for their services in
connection with this Invitation. In addition, the Authority will pay the Dealer Managers their
reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses relating to this Invitation. The obligations of the Dealer
Manager to perform such function are subject to certain conditions. The Authority has agreed to
indemnify the Dealer Managers and their respective affiliates and related persons against certain
liabilities, including liabilities under federal securities laws, in connection with their services, or to
contribute to payments the Dealer Managers and their respective affiliates and related persons may
be required to make because of any of those liabilities.

The Dealer Managers, including their respective affiliates, are full service financial
institutions engaged in various activities, which includes securities trading, commercial and
investment banking, advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment,
hedging, market making, brokerage and other financial and non-financial activities and services. The
Dealer Managers and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the
future perform, a variety of these services for the Authority, for which they received and or will
receive customary fees and expenses. In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the
Dealer Managers and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and
actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities, which may include credit
default swaps) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the
accounts of their customers and may at any time hold long and short positions in such securities and
instruments. Such investment and securities activities may involve securities and instruments of the
Authority. As of the date of the Invitation, the public finance department of the Dealer Managers
may hold Target Bonds in the ordinary course of business as a market maker. Affiliates of the Dealer
Managers may have holdings of Target Bonds that they are unable to disclose for legal or regulatory
reasons.

In addition to their role as Dealer Managers in connection with this Invitation, each Dealer
Manager is currently expected to act as an underwriter of the Series 2022 Bonds and the Series
2023A Bonds anticipated to be issued by the Authority as described in the 2022 Bonds POS attached
as Appendix A and, as such, it will receive an underwriter’s fee in connection with that transaction as
well as for acting as a Dealer Manager in connection with this Invitation.

18. Information Agent and Tender Agent

The Authority has retained Bondholder Communications Group LLC to serve as Information
Agent and Tender Agent in connection with this Invitation. The Authority has agreed to pay the
Information Agent and Tender Agent customary fees for its services and to reimburse the

16
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



Information Agent and Tender Agent for its reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses relating to
this Invitation.

19. Tender of Target Bonds and Allocations of Series 2022 Bonds

The underwriting syndicate for the Series 2022 Bonds, when making allocations of the Series
2022 Bonds, may, but is not required to, take into consideration whether the party submitting an
order for Series 2022 Bonds was a Bondholder who tendered Target Bonds for purchase pursuant to
this Invitation. [The underwriting syndicate, at its discretion, may give such Bondholder a preference
allocation of a like maturity and tenor of Series 2022 Bonds up to the principal amount of Target
Bonds that such Bondholder is tendering.]

20. Miscellaneous

This Invitation is not being made to, and offers will not be accepted from or on behalf of,
Bondowners in any jurisdiction in which this Invitation or the acceptance thereof would not be in
compliance with the laws of such jurisdiction. In those jurisdictions whose laws require this
Invitation to be made through a licensed or registered broker or dealer, this Invitation is being made
on behalf of the Authority by the Dealer Managers.

No one has been authorized by the Authority, the Dealer Managers, or the Information
Agent and Tender Agent to recommend to any Bondowners whether to offer Target Bonds for
purchase pursuant to this Invitation. No one has been authorized to give any information or to
make any representation in connection with this Invitation other than those contained in this
Invitation. Any recommendation, information and representations given or made cannot be
relied upon as having been authorized by the Authority, the Dealer Managers, or the
Information Agent and Tender Agent.

None of the Authority, the Dealer Managers, or the Information Agent and Tender
Agent make any recommendation that any Bondowner offer and tender or refrain from
offering and tendering all or any portion of such Bondowner’s Target Bonds for purchase.
Bondowners must make these decisions and should read consult with their broker, account
executive, financial advisor, attorney and/or other appropriate professionals.

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
By:

Name: Michael Leue
Title: Chief Executive Officer

17
4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



APPENDIX A

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

4859-8471-2223v3/200121-0084



EXHIBIT C-1
FORM OF TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

[to be attached)]

C-1-1



TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE
by and between the
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to
U.S. Bank National Association,
as Trustee

Dated as of | 1, 2022]
Relating to
] |

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2022A

OMM_US:80425344.10



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(This table of contents is not part of the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture and is only for
convenience of reference. The captions herein are of no legal effect and do not vary the meaning
or legal effect of any part of the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture.)

OMM_US:80425344.10

Page
ARTICLE | DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS ... 2
Section 1.01 DEFINITIONS. ...t 2
Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture..................... 5
Section 1.03 Article and Section ReferenCes. .......ccoovvvveiiiiiiniinieee e 5
ARTICLE Il THE SERIES 2022A BONDS ......oo ottt 5
Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2022A Bonds; Principal Amount and
INIETAL AMOUNT.....eoiiiice e 5
Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity............ccccceveivereinennnnn 5
Section 2.03 Terms of the Series 2022A BONGS .......cccooveviereiinneee e 6
Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2022A BONGS...........ccccovevveeiieiieie e 9
Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2022A BONS.........ccoceriririnieieieenc e 9
ARTICLE HIREDEMPTION .....coiiiiiiiieiieseise sttt sttt nena s 11
Section 3.01 Notices t0 BONANOIErS.........cooviiiiieiiiiese e 11
Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds.............ccceveeneee. 12
Section 3.03 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds...........ccccenee.. 12
Section 3.04 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds..................... 13
Section 3.05 Payment of Series 2022A Bonds Called for Redemption.................. 13
Section 3.06 Selection of Series 2022A Bonds for Optional Redemption;
Series 2022A Bonds Redeemed in Part..........cccoovvvevveieiieeniesienenen, 13
Section 3.07 Effect of Call for Redemption..........cccccovveieiccicie e, 14
ARTICLE IV ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF......... 14
Section 4.01 Establishment of Funds and ACCOUNES...........cccoveivieiene e 14
Section 4.02 APPLIcation OF FUNS.......cooiiiiieie s 14
Section 4.03 Series 2022A Debt Service FUN.........ccoovvviiiiniiien e 15
Section 4.04 Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve ACCOUNt..........ccoccevvveriererieennns 16
Section 4.05 Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund............ccooevvvenenenencnnnnnnnn 16
ARTICLE V TAX COVENANTS ..ottt e e e e 17
.-



ARTICLE VI SERIES 2022A BOND INSURANCE POLICY; SERIES 2022A DEBT
SERVICE RESERVE SURETY POLICY; ADDITIONAL
COVENANTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE SERIES 2022A BOND

INSURER ...ttt e e e e nneeas 17
Section 6.01 Application of Article V... 17
Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy...... 18
Section 6.03 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve
SUFELY POHICY. ..t 20
Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2022A
Bond Insurer; Rights of Series 2022A Bond Insurer. ...........cccccvevee. 21
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2022A Bond INSUTEr.........cccoovveienieienieenene 21
ARTICLE VII MISCELLANEQUS .......oo ottt ettt 22
Section 7.01 INOTICES. vttt ettt enes 22
Section 7.02 Modification of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture...................... 22
Section 7.03 SEVEIADIIILY ...vveveciecc e 22
Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days ................... 22
Section 7.05 GOVEIMING LAW ..ottt 22
Section 7.06 CAPLIONS ... 22
Section 7.07 COUNTEIPAITS ...ttt e e sraee e 23
EXHIBIT A FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND ........cccoceiiiiieiie e A-1
EXHIBIT B FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND.......cccooviiiiiieiiesieese e B-1
EXHIBIT C FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND.................... C-1
EXHIBIT D ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022A CAPITAL
APPRECIATION BONDS ... D-1
EXHIBIT E ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022A CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL
APPRECIATION BONDS ...t E-1
- i -

OMM_US:80425344.10



TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

This TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE dated as of | 1,
2022] is by and between the ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a
joint powers authority established under Article I, Chapter 5, Division 7, of Title 1 of the
California Government Code and pursuant to an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement dated as of December 18, 1996, as amended, by and between the City of Long Beach
and the City of Los Angeles (the “Authority”), and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee
(the “Trustee”), and supplements and amends the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1,
1999, by and between the Authority and the Trustee (as amended, the “Master Indenture”).
Capitalized terms used herein which are not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in
the Indenture.

WHEREAS, on February 9, 1999 the Authority issued $494,893,616.80 original
aggregate principal amount of Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior
Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A;

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2013 the Authority issued $248,325,000 original aggregate
principal amount of Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A;

WHEREAS, the Authority has made a tender and exchange offer to the holders of the
Series 1999A Bonds and the Series 2013A Bonds maturing on and after October 1, 2023, and the
holders of certain of such bonds have elected to tender such bonds for purchase by the Authority,
or to exchange such bonds for Series 2022A Bonds (such tendered or exchanged bonds, the
“Tendered Bonds”);

WHEREAS, Section 2.08 of the Master Indenture provides that the Authority may issue
Refunding Bonds from time to time for the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a portion of
its outstanding Bonds;

WHEREAS, Section 2.09 of the Master Indenture provides that such Refunding Bonds
may be issued for the purpose of paying or refunding all or a portion of the Tendered Bonds,
and/or for the purpose of refunding and defeasing the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds maturing
on October 1, 2022, provided that certain conditions are satisfied, including, among others, the
requirement that Maximum Annual Debt Service following the issuance of such Refunding
Bonds will not exceed the Maximum Annual Debt Service prior to such issuance;

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2012, the Authority issued its Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, in the aggregate
principal amount of $83,710,000 pursuant to the Indenture as supplemented and amended by an
Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2012 (the “Eighth Supplemental
Indenture”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5.05(b) of the Eighth Supplemental Indenture, the
consent of the Administrator (as defined in the Eighth Supplemental Indenture) shall not be
required in connection with the issuance of Refunding Bonds pursuant to Sections 2.08 and 2.09

-1-
OMM_US:80425344.10



of the Master Indenture, provided that either (i) aggregate Debt Service on all Senior Lien Bonds
Outstanding through the final maturity of the Series 2012 Bonds shall not be increased or (ii)
Dedicated Revenues as calculated in accordance with Section 2.09 of the Master Indenture
(adjusted as described in Section 5.05(a) of the Eighth Supplemental Indenture) are equal to at
least 125% of Debt Service on Senior Lien Bonds in each Bond Year in which a Series 2012
Bond is Outstanding;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue Refunding Bonds for the purpose of providing
funds to pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund in full, or to exchange, the
Tendered Bonds, and to refund and defease in full the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds maturing
on October 1, 2022;

WHEREAS, Section 8.02 of the Master Indenture provides for the execution and delivery
of Supplemental Indentures setting forth the terms of such Refunding Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now, by execution and delivery of this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture and in compliance with the provisions of the Indenture, sets forth the terms of its
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2022A, provides for the deposit and use of the proceeds of the Series 2022A
Bonds and makes other provisions relating to the Series 2022A Bonds.

ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS

Section 1.01 Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to terms used in this
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture unless clearly stated otherwise:

“Accretion Period” shall mean with respect to any Series 2022A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond, the period from the date of delivery of such Series 2022A Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bond through the Conversion Date.

“Authorized Denominations™ shall mean, (i) with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds
which are Current Interest Bonds, $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, (ii) with respect to the
Series 2022A Bonds which are Capital Appreciation Bonds, denominations such that the
Accreted Value of such Series 2022A Bonds as of the maturity date thereof shall equal $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof, and (iii) with respect to the Series 2022A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds (a) on any date during the Accretion Period, denominations such that the
Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and
(b) subsequent to the Accretion Period, denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

“Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds” shall mean the Series 2022A Bonds held by DTC (or
its nominee) as the registered owner thereof pursuant to the terms and provisions of Section 2.05
hereof.

“Cede & Co.” shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any successor nominee
of DTC with respect to the Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds.

-2-
OMM_US:80425344.10



“Conversion Date” shall mean [October 1, 20 ], the date of expiration of the Accretion
Period.

“DTC” shall mean The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company
organized under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns.

“Escrow Agreement” shall mean the Escrow Agreement dated as of | 1, 2022]
between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time in
accordance therewith.

“Escrow Fund” shall mean the escrow fund established pursuant to the Escrow
Agreement in which certain proceeds from the sale of the Series 2022A Bonds and certain other
available funds under the Indenture shall be deposited and applied to the defeasance of certain
Series 2013A Bonds pursuant to Section 4.02(c) hereof and the terms thereof.

“Indenture” shall mean the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1, 1999 between
the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time (including by
this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture) in accordance therewith.

“Participants’” shall mean the participants of DTC which include securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations.

“Principal Payment Date” shall mean (a) for Series 2022A Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds, October 1 in each of the years in which the principal amount of a Series 2022A
Bonds that is a Current Interest Bond is due and payable, (b) for Series 2022A Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of any year in which the Final Compounded Amount of
any Series 2022A Bond that is a Capital Appreciation Bond is due and payable, and (c) for Series
2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of the year in which the principal
amount or Final Compounded Amount of such Series 2022A Bond is due and payable.

“Record Date shall mean March 15 for any April 1 Interest Payment Date and
September 15 for any October 1 Interest Payment Date.

“Registrar” for purposes of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture shall mean the Trustee.

“Representation Letter” shall mean the Blanket Letter of Representations dated
December 18, 1998 from the Authority and the Trustee to DTC, or such similar letter or
agreement filed with DTC from time to time.

“Series 1999A Bonds” shall mean the $494,893,616.80 original aggregate principal
amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A.”

“Series 1999C Bonds™ shall mean the $497,453,395.70 original aggregate principal
amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Third Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999C”.

OMM_US:80425344.10



““Series 2012 Bonds™ shall mean the $83,710,000 original aggregate principal amount of
Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Eighth Supplemental Indenture and designated
as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012”.

“Series 2013A Bonds” shall mean the $248,325,000 original aggregate principal amount
of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Ninth Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A”.

“Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy” shall mean the municipal bond insurance policy
issued by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer insuring, as provided therein, the payment when due of
the principal of and interest on the Series 2022A Insured Bonds.

“Series 2022A Bond Insurer” shall mean [ ], a [ ]
insurance company, and its successors and assigns. The Series 2022A Bond Insurer shall
constitute a Bond Insurer as such term is defined in the Indenture.

“Series 2022A Bonds™ shall mean the $] | aggregate principal amount and Initial
Amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture
and designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A”.

“Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds™ shall mean the Series 2022A
Bonds designated as “Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds” pursuant to Section 2.01 of this
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and issued pursuant to Sections 2.01 and 2.03 of this Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created in
Section 4.01(a) of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022A Debt Service Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created in Section
4.01(b) of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and into which money shall be deposited to pay
debt service on the Series 2022A Bonds.

“Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account” shall mean the account by that name
created in the Debt Service Reserve Fund pursuant to Section 4.01 of this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture.

“Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy’” shall mean the municipal bond debt
service reserve insurance policy issued by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer to be deposited in the
Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account with the face amount of $| |, which is the
Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to the Series 2022A Bonds on the date of issuance
of the Series 2022A Bonds pursuant to Section 4.04 of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022A Insured Bonds™ shall mean all the Series 2022A Bonds maturing on
October 1 in the years | .

OMM_US:80425344.10



“Series 2022A Rebate Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created and maintained
pursuant to Article V of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022B Bonds™ shall mean the $] | aggregate principal amount and Initial
Amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture
and designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B”.

“Tax Certificate” shall mean the [Tax and Nonarbitrage Certificate] executed by the
Authority, dated the date of issuance of the Series 2022A Bonds, as amended and supplemented
from time to time.

“Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust
Indenture dated as of | 1, 2022], between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended
and supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Indenture.

“Twelfth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean this Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture
dated as of | 1, 2022], between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and
supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Indenture.

Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 1.01 of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, all capitalized
words, terms and phrases used in this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture shall have the same
meanings herein as in the Indenture.

Section 1.03 Article and Section References. Except as otherwise indicated, references
to Articles and Sections are to Articles and Sections of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

ARTICLE II

THE SERIES 2022A BONDS

Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2022A Bonds; Principal Amount and Initial
Amount. There is hereby authorized and created a Series of Bonds, designated as the “Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2022A to be issued in the aggregate principal amount and Initial Amount of $] .
Said Bonds shall consist of “Current Interest Bonds”, “Capital Appreciation Bonds” and
“Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds”.

Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity. The Series 2022A Bonds
are issued under and subject to the terms of the Indenture, shall be Senior Lien Bonds as defined
pursuant to the Indenture and are secured by and payable from the Trust Estate in accordance
with the terms of the Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds shall be on a parity with the
outstanding Series 1999A Bonds, Series 1999C Bonds, Series 2012 Bonds, Series 2013A Bonds,
Series 2022B Bonds and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued under the Indenture, as and to the
extent provided in the Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase
price of, and thereby prepay or refund in full, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the outstanding
Series 2013A Bonds maturing on October 1, 2022.

-5-
OMM_US:80425344.10



Section 2.03 Terms of the Series 2022A Bonds. The Series 2022A Bonds shall, upon
initial issuance, be dated their date of initial delivery. The Series 2022A Bonds shall be issued
only in Authorized Denominations. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit A, which exhibit is a part of this Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be
substantially in the form of Exhibit B, which exhibit is a part of this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit C, which exhibit is a part of this Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds shall be executed, on behalf of the Authority,
by either the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Authority and such
signature may be a facsimile.

The Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date.

@ Current Interest Bonds. Each Series 2022A Bond that is a Current Interest
Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication
thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series
2022A Bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or unless such date of
authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in
which event such Series 2022A Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment
Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date, in which event such
Series 2022A Bond shall bear interest from its date of initial delivery. If interest on the Series
2022A Bonds shall be in default, Series 2022A Bonds issued in exchange for Series 2022A
Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange pursuant to the Indenture shall bear interest from the
Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the Series 2022A Bonds
surrendered to their maturity date or date fixed for redemption.

Interest on the Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be paid on each
Interest Payment Date. Principal on the Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds
shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date. Interest on the Series 2022A Bonds shall
be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve (12) thirty (30)-day months.

The Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall mature, subject to
redemption, in the years and in the principal amounts and shall bear interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Principal Interest
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%)

OMM_US:80425344.10



Maturity Date Principal Interest
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%)

Under the Indenture, the Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall
constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

(b) Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts and shall mature, subject to prior redemption,
in the years and in the Final Compounded Amounts and shall accrete interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Initial Interest Final Compounded
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%) Amount ($)

Under the Indenture, the Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall
constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds.”

Interest on the Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds on October 1 and April 1 of each year shall be as set forth on the Accreted
Value Table attached hereto as Exhibit D, which is part of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.
The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds
on any date other than October 1 and April 1 of any year shall be calculated by the Trustee using
straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding absent manifest error.

(©) Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2022A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts, shall bear interest at the
rates, shall have the Accreted Values as of the Conversion Date and shall mature in the years and
in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule:

OMM_US:80425344.10



Maturity Date Initial Interest Accreted Value as Principal Amount at

(October 1) Amount (3$) Rate (%) of Conversion Maturity (3$)
Date ($)

Under the Master Indenture, (i) during the Accretion Period, the Series 2022A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds” and
(ii) subsequent to the Accretion Period, the Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

During the Accretion Period, interest on the Series 2022A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but shall not be payable, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds on each October 1 and April 1 prior to the Conversion Date shall be as set forth on the
Accreted Value Table attached as Exhibit E, which is part of this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture. Prior to the Conversion Date, the Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds on any date other than October 1 and April 1 shall be
calculated by the Trustee using straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding
absent manifest error.

Subsequent to the Accretion Period, each Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal
amount), at the applicable rate set forth above. Such interest shall be calculated on the basis of a
year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months. Each Series 2022A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of
authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which
event such Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such
date of authentication, or unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the
next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series 2022A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment Date, or unless
such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following the Conversion Date, in
which event such Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from
the Conversion Date. If interest on the Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
shall be in default, Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds issued in exchange for
Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange

-8-
OMM_US:80425344.10



pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to which
interest has been paid in full on the Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
surrendered.

(d) Payments.

Payment of principal of the Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be
made upon surrender of such Series 2022A Bonds to the Trustee. Payment of interest on the
Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds which are not Book-Entry Series 2022A
Bonds shall be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed by first-class mail to the person who
is the registered owner thereof on the Record Date, and such payment shall be mailed to such
owner at his address as it appears on the registration books of the Registrar. Payment of interest
on Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds shall be made as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. Payment
of the Final Compounded Amount or the redemption price of the Series 2022A Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be made upon surrender of such Series 2022A Bonds to the
Trustee. The payment of interest on the Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
subsequent to the Conversion Date that are, in each case, Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds shall
be made as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. Payment of interest on the Series 2022A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds subsequent to the Conversion Date that are not, in each
case, Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds shall be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed by
first-class mail to the person who is the registered owner thereof on the Record Date, and such
payment shall be mailed to such owner at his address as it appears on the registration books of
the Registrar. All payments in respect of the Series 2022A Bonds shall be made by the Authority
in lawful money of the United States of America.

If the principal of or interest on (or Accreted Value of) a Series 2022A Bond becomes
due and payable, but shall not have been paid when due, and no provision is made for its
payment, then interest on overdue principal (or overdue Accreted Value) and, to the extent
lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate applicable to such Series 2022A Bond until all
overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is
provided for as set forth in the Indenture and in this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture).

Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2022A Bonds. Series 2022A Bonds which are
delivered to the Registrar for exchange pursuant to the Indenture may be exchanged for an equal
total principal amount or Initial Amount, as applicable, of Series 2022A Bonds of the same type,
interest rate and maturity date in Authorized Denominations.

Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds.

€)] Upon initial issuance, the registered owner of all of the Series 2022A
Bonds shall be DTC. Payment of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, any Series 2022A Bond registered in the
name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer of New York clearing house or equivalent
next day funds or by wire transfer of same day funds to the account of Cede & Co. at the address
indicated on the Record Date or special record date for Cede & Co. in the registration books of
the Registrar.

OMM_US:80425344.10



(b) The Series 2022A Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate
single authenticated fully registered Series 2022A Bond for each separate stated maturity with
the same interest rate. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Series 2022A Bonds shall be
registered in the registration books of the Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC. The Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2022A Bond Insurer and the Authority may treat
DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Series 2022A Bonds registered in its
name for the purposes of payment of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022A Bonds, selecting the Series
2022A Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be
given to the holders of the Series 2022A Bonds under the Indenture, registering the transfer of
Series 2022A Bonds, and, subject to Section 6.05 hereof, obtaining any consent or other action to
be taken by Bondholders and for all other purposes whatsoever, and none of the Trustee, the
Registrar, the Series 2022A Bond Insurer or the Authority shall be affected by any notice to the
contrary. None of the Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2022A Bond Insurer or the Authority
shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant, any person claiming a beneficial
ownership interest in the Series 2022A Bonds under or through DTC or any Participant, or any
other person who is not shown on the registration books as being a Bondholder, with respect to
the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant; the payment by DTC or any
Participant of any amount in respect of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022A Bonds; any notice which is
permitted or required to be given to the holders of the Series 2022A Bonds under the Indenture;
the selection by DTC or any Participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial
redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds; any consent given or other action taken by DTC as
Bondholder; or any other purpose. The Trustee shall pay the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022A Bonds only
to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy
and discharge the Authority’s obligations with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022A Bonds to
the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated
Series 2022A Bond evidencing the obligation of the Authority to make payments of the principal
or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption price, and interest. as applicable, pursuant
to the Indenture. Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC
has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions
herein with respect to Record Dates, the word “Cede & Co.” in this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(©) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture to the contrary, so
long as any Series 2022A Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption
price of, and interest on, as applicable, such Series 2022A Bond and all notices with respect to
such Series 2022A Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the
Representation Letter.

(d) Subject to Section 6.05 hereof, in connection with any notice or other
communication to be provided to the holders of the Series 2022A Bonds pursuant to the
Indenture by the Authority or the Trustee with respect to any consent or other action to be taken
by Bondholders, the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, shall establish a record date for

-10 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



such consent or other action and give DTC notice of such record date not less than fifteen (15)
calendar days in advance of such record date to the extent possible.

e NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES, THE
CITY OF LONG BEACH, THE REGISTRAR, THE SERIES 2022A BOND INSURER OR
THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DTC
PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS WITH
RESPECT TO: THE PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT OF THE PRINCIPAL OR THE FINAL COMPOUNDED AMOUNT AND
THE REDEMPTION PRICE OF, AND INTEREST ON, AS APPLICABLE, THE SERIES
2022A BONDS; THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE TO DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS; THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS
MAINTAINED BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT,
OR ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS OWNER OF THE
SERIES 2022A BONDS.

ARTICLE I

REDEMPTION

Section 3.01 Notices to Bondholders. The Trustee shall give notice of redemption
(which, in the case of optional redemption, may be conditional), in the name of the Authority, to
Bondholders of the Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this Article 111 at least thirty
(30) days (or at least twenty (20) days for Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds) but not more than
sixty (60) days before each date fixed for redemption. The Trustee shall send such notices of
redemption by first class mail (or with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds held by DTC, in
accordance with DTC operating procedures) to each owner of a Series 2022A Bond to be
redeemed; each such notice shall be sent to the owner’s registered address.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed, the date
of issue, the maturity date thereof, if less than all Series 2022A Bonds of a maturity are called for
redemption, the numbers of the Series 2022A Bonds, the principal amount or Initial Amount, as
applicable, and the CUSIP numbers assigned to the Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed, the
principal or Accreted Value, as applicable, to be redeemed and the interest rate applicable to the
Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed, the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price, the
place or places of payment, the Trustee’s or Paying Agent’s name, that payment will be made
upon presentation and surrender of the Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed to the Trustee, that
interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for redemption and not paid will be paid as specified in
said notice, and that on and after said date interest thereon will cease to accrue on the Series
2022A Bonds called for redemption, to the extent that moneys for payment of the redemption
price, including accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, are being held in trust by the
Trustee therefor. In the case of optional redemptions pursuant to Section 3.02 of this Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture, each such notice shall further state that the proposed redemption is
conditioned on there being on deposit in the applicable account, on the date fixed for redemption,
sufficient money to pay the full redemption price, plus accrued but unpaid interest to the date
fixed for redemption, or the Accreted Value, as applicable, of the Series 2022A Bonds to be
redeemed.

-11 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



Failure to give any required notice of redemption as to any particular Series 2022A
Bonds will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any other Series 2022A Bonds
with respect to which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided herein will be
conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the addressee.
When notice of redemption is given, Series 2022A Bonds called for redemption become due and
payable on the date fixed for redemption at the applicable redemption price; provided that, in the
case of optional redemption, sufficient money to pay the full redemption price of the Series
2022A Bonds to be redeemed is on deposit in the applicable account on the date fixed for
redemption. In the event that funds are deposited by the Authority with the Paying Agent
sufficient for redemption, interest on the Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed will cease to
accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds. The Series 2022A
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to
optional redemption, and the Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after [October
1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that may be
provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such
Series 2022A Bonds so redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without
premium.]

[The Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after
[October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional redemption, and the Series 2022A Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional
redemption, on any date on or after [October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022A Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

[The Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before
[October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional redemption, and the Series 2022A Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__] are subject to optional
redemption, on any date on or after [October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as
of the date fixed for redemption.]

Section 3.03 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds. [The Series 2022A
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory redemption:]

-12 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be

(October 1) Redeemed

"Maturity

[The Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1,
[ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1
in the years and in the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption
price equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Accreted Value to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

[The Series 2022A Bonds that are Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each
October 1 in the years and in the respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a
redemption price equal to the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed
for such mandatory redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

Section 3.04 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds. The Series
2022A Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption as provided in the Indenture.

Section 3.05 Payment of Series 2022A Bonds Called for Redemption. Upon surrender
to the Trustee, Series 2022A Bonds called for redemption shall be paid at the redemption price
stated in the notice, plus, when applicable, interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.06 Selection of Series 2022A Bonds for Optional Redemption; Series 2022A
Bonds Redeemed in Part. Series 2022A Bonds may be selected for optional redemption by the
Authority pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof, in whole or in part, in such order of maturity as the

-13-
OMM_US:80425344.10



Authority may direct and within a maturity by lot, selected in such manner as the Trustee may
deem appropriate (subject, with respect to Series 2022A Bonds held by DTC, to DTC’s
operational requirements); provided that Series 2022A Bonds may be redeemed only in
Authorized Denominations. Upon surrender of a Series 2022A Bond to be redeemed in part
only, the Trustee will authenticate for the holder a new Series 2022A Bond or Series 2022A
Bonds of the same maturity equal in principal amount or Initial Amount, as applicable, to the
unredeemed portion of the Series 2022A Bond surrendered.

Section 3.07 Effect of Call for Redemption. On the date so designated for redemption,
notice having been given in the manner and under the conditions provided herein and moneys for
payment of the redemption price, including, when applicable, accrued interest to the date fixed
for redemption, being held in trust to pay the redemption price, (a) the Series 2022A Bonds so
called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption, (b) interest
on such Series 2022A Bonds shall cease to accrue from and after such date fixed for redemption,
(c) such Series 2022A Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under the
Indenture and (d) the owners of such Series 2022A Bonds shall have no rights in respect thereof
except to receive payment of the redemption price. Series 2022A Bonds which have been duly
called for redemption under the provisions of this Article Il and for which moneys for the
payment of the redemption price thereof, together with interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption, shall have been set aside and held in trust for the holders of the Series 2022A Bonds
to be redeemed, all as provided in this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, shall not be deemed to
be Outstanding under the provisions of the Indenture.

ARTICLE IV

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS
AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF

Section 4.01 Establishment of Funds and Accounts. There is hereby established
within the Debt Service Reserve Fund established pursuant to Section 3.02(c) of the Master
Indenture, the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account, to be held and administered by the
Trustee in accordance with the Indenture and Section 4.04 of this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture. In addition, the following funds are hereby established pursuant to Section 3.02 of the
Master Indenture, each of which shall be held and administered by the Trustee as set forth
herein:

@) The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund, Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A Costs of
Issuance Fund”); and

(b) The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds Debt Service Fund, Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A Debt Service
Fund”), which shall contain an Interest Account, a Principal Account and a Redemption Account
for purposes of the Indenture.

Section 4.02 Application of Funds. The net proceeds of the sale of the Series 2022A
Bonds, being the amount of $] | [(of which $] | shall be paid directly by the

-14 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



initial purchasers to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer for the issuance of the Series 2022A Bond
Insurance Policy and the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy)], shall be received
by the Trustee and be deposited as follows:

@) the sum of $| | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the principal
payment account of the Series 1999A Bonds to be used, together with funds held under the
Indenture and available for such purpose, to pay and refund the Tendered Bonds that are Series
1999A Bonds.

(b) the sum of $| | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the principal
payment account of the Series 2013A Bonds to be used, together with funds held under the
Indenture and available for such purpose, to pay and refund the Tendered Bonds that are Series
2013A Bonds.

(© the sum of 3 | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Escrow
Fund established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement to be used, together with funds held under
the Indenture and available for such purpose, to defease the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds
maturing on October 1, 2022, as provided in the Escrow Agreement.

(d) the sum of 3| | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Series
2022A Debt Service Reserve Account.

(e) the balance (being 3| ]) shall be deposited by the Trustee into the
Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund.

Section 4.03 Series 2022A Debt Service Fund. The Trustee shall withdraw funds and
make payments from the Revenue Fund for deposit in the Series 2022A Debt Service Fund at the
times and in the amounts required by Section 3.03(a) - FIRST of the Master Indenture in respect
of the Series 2022A Bonds. With the funds made available to it pursuant to Section 3.03 of the
Master Indenture for such purpose, the Trustee shall make deposits or transfers into the Series
2022A Debt Service Fund as follows:

@) Interest Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Interest
Account of the Series 2022A Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided in the Master Indenture
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) and this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay interest
due on the Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds. The Trustee shall also deposit
into the Interest Account any other amounts deposited with it for deposit in such Interest
Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts
in the Interest Account shall be credited to such account.

(b) Principal Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Principal
Account of the Series 2022A Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided pursuant to Section
3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay the
principal amount or the Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2022A Bonds at maturity. The
Trustee shall also deposit into the Principal Account any other amounts deposited with it for
deposit into such Principal Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit
therein. Earnings on amounts in the Principal Account shall be credited to such account.

-15 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



(©) Redemption Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the
Redemption Account of the Series 2022A Debt Service Fund amounts required or, in the case of
optional redemption, amounts as instructed by or as received from the Authority, as provided
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, to
be used to pay the redemption price of Series 2022A Bonds being redeemed as provided in
Section 2.12 of the Master Indenture and Sections 3.02 and 3.03 of this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture. The Trustee shall also deposit into the Redemption Account any other amounts
deposited with it for deposit into the Redemption Account or transferred from other funds and
accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts in the Redemption Account shall be credited
to such account, and any remaining earnings or other amounts therein following the applicable
date fixed for redemption shall be withdrawn by the Trustee on the Business Day following such
date fixed for redemption and deposited into the Revenue Fund, unless an Event of Default exists
under the Indenture, in which event the earnings shall be retained in such Redemption Account.

Pursuant to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2022A
Debt Service Fund and the accounts therein may be invested and reinvested as directed by an
Authorized Authority Representative in Permitted Investments.

Section 4.04 Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account. As a condition of issuance
of the Series 2022A Bonds, the amount set forth in Section 4.02(d) shall be deposited in the
Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund so that the
amount credited thereto will be equal to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Series
2022A Bonds. In the event that a Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy shall be deposited in the
Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account as provided in Section 3.05(c) of the Master
Indenture, then any amounts in the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account in excess of the
Debt Service Reserve Requirement resulting from such deposit shall be transferred to the Series
2022A Debt Service Fund, unless an Event of Default exists under the Indenture, in which event
the excess amounts shall be retained in the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account, as
provided in Section 3.05(d) of the Master Indenture.

The Trustee is authorized and directed to enter into the Series 2022A Debt Service
Reserve Surety Policy in its capacity as Trustee under the Indenture and all provisions in the
Indenture relating to the rights, privileges, powers and protections of the Trustee shall apply with
equal force and effect to all actions taken or not taken by the Trustee in connection with the
performance of any duties or responsibilities of the Trustee with respect to or under the Series
2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

Section 4.05 Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund. There shall be deposited into the
Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund the amount provided in Section 4.02(e) above. The
Trustee shall make payments or disbursements from the Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund, if
any, to pay Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2022A Bonds upon receipt from the Authority
of a Requisition meeting the requirements of Section 3.13 of the Master Indenture. Pursuant to
Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2022A Costs of Issuance
Fund may be invested and reinvested as directed by an Authorized Authority Representative in
Permitted Investments. Subject to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, earnings on amounts in
the Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund shall be retained therein. Upon the Trustee’s receipt of
written instructions from an Authorized Authority Representative, all amounts remaining on

-16 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



deposit in the Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund shall be transferred to the Series 2022A Debt
Service Fund, and the Trustee shall close the Series 2022A Costs of Issuance Fund.

ARTICLE V

TAX COVENANTS

The Authority hereby agrees that it will execute the Tax Certificate with respect to the
Series 2022A Bonds. There is hereby created and established by the Authority the “Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds Rebate
Fund, Series 2022A” (the “Series 2022A Rebate Fund”) to be held and administered by the
Authority. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein relating to the deposit of
investment earnings on amounts on deposit in any fund or account hereunder, at the written
direction of the Authority, any earnings which are subject to a federal tax or rebate requirement,
as provided in the Tax Certificate, shall be deposited in the Series 2022A Rebate Fund for that
purpose.

ARTICLE VI

SERIES 2022A BOND INSURANCE POLICY; SERIES 2022A DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE SURETY POLICY; ADDITIONAL COVENANTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE SERIES 2022A BOND INSURER

Section 6.01 Application of Article VI.

@) All provisions herein regarding rights, consents, approvals, directions,
appointments or requests by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer shall be deemed to not require or
permit such consents, approvals, directions, appointments or requests by the Series 2022A Bond
Insurer and shall be read as if the Series 2022A Bond Insurer were not mentioned therein, during
any time in which: (i) the Series 2022A Bond Insurer is in default in its obligation to make
payments under (A) the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy when due, (B) the Series 2022A
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy when due, or (C) any other municipal bond insurance policy
or debt service reserve surety policy issued by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer when due and such
failure shall continue for 30 days unless the obligation of the Series 2022A Bond Insurer to pay
is being contested by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer in good faith by appropriate proceedings;
(ii) the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the Series 2022A Bond
Insurer, or shall be declared to be null and void, in each case by a final, non-appealable order of a
court of competent jurisdiction, or the validity or enforceability of any provision thereof is being
contested by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer or any governmental agency or authority acting as a
receiver or similar capacity for the Series 2022A Bond Insurer, or if the Series 2022A Bond
Insurer is denying further liability or obligation under the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy
or Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy; (iii) a proceeding has been instituted in a
court having jurisdiction in the premises seeking an order for relief, rehabilitation,
reorganization, conservation, liquidation or dissolution in respect of the Series 2022A Bond
Insurer under Article 16 of the Insurance Law of the State of New York or any successor
provision thereto or similar provision of law and such proceeding is not terminated for a period

-17 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



of 90 consecutive days or such court enters an order granting the relief sought in such
proceeding; or (iv) the Series 2022A Insured Bonds are no longer Outstanding and any amounts
due or to become due to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer have been paid in full; provided that to
the extent that the Series 2022A Bond Insurer has made any payment of principal of or interest
on the Series 2022A Bonds under the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2022A
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy, it shall retain its rights of subrogation and reimbursement
under this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Subject to Subsection 6.01(a) hereof, the covenants of the Authority in this
Acrticle VI are solely for the benefit of the Series 2022A Bond Insurer and can be modified or
waived in whole or in part by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer or otherwise agreed to between the
Authority and the Series 2022A Bond Insurer without the consent of the Trustee and the Holders
of the Bonds. The failure by the Authority to comply with any such covenants in this Article VI
shall constitute an Event of Default under the provisions of the Indenture if, and only if, the
Series 2022A Bond Insurer gives a written notice of such failure to the Trustee and to the
Authority, notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary.

Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy. As long
as the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect and the Series 2022A
Bond Insurer is not in default of its obligation to make payments thereunder, the Authority, the
Trustee and any Paying Agent hereby agree to comply with the following provisions:

@ If, on the third Business Day prior to the related scheduled interest
payment date or principal payment date (“Payment Date”) on the Series 2022A Insured Bonds,
there is not on deposit with the Trustee, after making all transfers and deposits required under the
Indenture, moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2022A Insured
Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer
and to its designated agent (if any) (the “Series 2022A Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent”) by
telephone or telecopy of the amount of such deficiency by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on
such Business Day. If, on the second Business Day prior to the related Payment Date, there
continues to be a deficiency in the amount available to pay the principal of and interest on the
Series 2022A Insured Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall make a claim under
the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy and give notice to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer and
the Series 2022A Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent (if any) by telephone of the amount of such
deficiency, and the allocation of such deficiency between the amount required to pay interest on
the Series 2022A Insured Bonds and the amount required to pay principal of the Series 2022A
Insured Bonds, confirmed in writing to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer and the Series 2022A
Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on such second Business Day
by filling in the form of Notice of Claim and Certificate delivered with the Series 2022A Bond
Insurance Policy.

(b) The Trustee shall designate any portion of payment of principal on Series
2022A Insured Bonds paid by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer, whether by virtue of mandatory
sinking fund redemption, maturity or other advancement of maturity, on its books as a reduction
in the principal amount of Series 2022A Insured Bonds registered to the then current Holder of
the Series 2022A Insured Bonds, whether DTC or its nominee or otherwise, and shall issue a
replacement Series 2022A Bond to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer, registered in the name of

-18 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



[BOND INSURER NAME] in a principal amount equal to the amount of principal so paid
(without regard to authorized denominations); provided that the Trustee’s failure to so designate
any payment or issue any replacement Series 2022A Insured Bond shall have no effect on the
amount of principal or interest payable by the Authority on any Series 2022A Insured Bond or
the subrogation rights of the Series 2022A Bond Insurer.

(©) The Trustee shall keep a complete and accurate record of all funds
deposited by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer into the Policy Payments Account (defined below)
and the allocation of such funds to payment of interest on and principal of any Series 2022A
Insured Bond. The Series 2022A Bond Insurer shall have the right to inspect such records at
reasonable times upon reasonable notice to the Trustee.

(d) Upon payment of a claim under the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy,
the Trustee shall establish a separate special purpose trust account for the benefit of holders of
the Series 2022A Insured Bonds, which is referred to herein as the “Policy Payments Account,”
and over which the Trustee shall have exclusive control and sole right of withdrawal. The
Trustee shall receive any amount paid under the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy in trust on
behalf of Holders of the Series 2022A Insured Bonds and shall deposit any such amount in the
Policy Payments Account and distribute such amount only for purposes of making the payments
for which a claim was made. Such amounts shall be disbursed by the Trustee to Holders of the
Series 2022A Insured Bonds in the same manner as principal and interest payments are to be
made with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds under the sections of the Indenture regarding
payment of Senior Lien Bonds. It shall not be necessary for such payments to be made by
checks or wire transfers separate from the check or wire transfer used to pay debt service with
other funds available to make such payments.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, the Authority
agrees to pay to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer: (i) a sum equal to the total of all amounts paid
by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer under the Series 2022A Bond Insurance Policy (the “Insurer
Advances”), which Insurer Advances shall be payable with monies deposited into the Series
2022A Debt Service Fund pursuant to Section 3.03(a) paragraph FIRST of the Indenture; and (ii)
interest on such Insurer Advances from the date paid by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer until
payment thereof in full, payable to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate per
annum (collectively, the “Insurer Reimbursement Amounts”), which Insurer Reimbursement
Amounts shall be payable as Financing Fees with monies deposited pursuant to Section 3.03(a)
paragraph THIRD of the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate” means the lesser of: (A) the greater of
(I) the per annum rate of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase
Bank at its principal office in The City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (any
change in such rate of interest to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan
Chase Bank) plus 3%, and (1) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2022A
Insured Bonds, and (B) the maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws
limiting interest rates. The Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days.

() Funds held-in the Policy Payments Account shall not be invested by the
Trustee and may not be applied to satisfy any costs, expenses or liabilities of the Trustee. Any

-19 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



funds remaining in the Policy Payments Account following a Payment Date of the Series 2022A
Insured Bonds shall promptly be remitted to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer.

Section 6.03 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy.

@) The Trustee shall ascertain the necessity for making a claim upon the
Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy in accordance with the provisions of
subparagraph (d) hereof and shall provide notice to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer in accordance
with the terms of the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy at least five (5) Business
Days prior to each date upon which interest or principal is due on the Series 2022A Bonds.
Where deposits are required to be made by the Authority with the Trustee to the Series 2022A
Debt Service Fund more often than semi-annually, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series
2022A Bond Insurer of any failure of the Authority to make timely payment in full of such
deposits within two Business Days of the due date.

(b) The Authority shall repay, or cause to be repaid, any draws under the
Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and pay all related reasonable expenses
incurred by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer and shall pay interest thereon from the date of
payment by the Series 2022A Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate, which amounts shall be
payable as a Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligation pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of
the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate means the lesser of: (x) the greater of (i) the per annum rate
of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank at its principal office
in the City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (“Prime Rate”) (any change in such
Prime Rate to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank) plus
3%, and (ii) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2022A Bonds, and (y) the
maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws limiting interest rates. The
Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed over a
year of 360 days. In the event JPMorgan Chase Bank ceases to announce its Prime Rate
publicly, Prime Rate shall be the publicly announced prime or base lending rate of such national
bank as the Series 2022A Bond Insurer shall specify.

If the interest provisions of this subparagraph (b) shall result in an effective rate of
interest which, for any period, exceeds the limit of the usury or any other laws applicable to the
indebtedness created herein, then all sums in excess of those lawfully collectible as interest for
the period in question shall, without further agreement or notice between or by any party hereto,
be applied as additional interest for any later periods of time when amounts are outstanding
hereunder to the extent that interest otherwise due hereunder for such periods plus such
additional interest would not exceed the limit of the usury or such other laws, and any excess
shall be applied upon principal immediately upon receipt of such moneys by the Series 2022A
Bond Insurer, with the same force and effect as if the Authority had specifically designated such
extra sums to be so applied and the Series 2022A Bond Insurer had agreed to accept such extra
payment(s) as additional interest for such later periods. In no event shall any agreed-to or actual
exaction as consideration for the indebtedness created herein exceed the limits imposed or
provided by the law applicable to this transaction for the use or detention of money or for
forbearance in seeking its collection.

-20 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



(©) Repayment of draws and payment of expenses and accrued interest
thereon at the Late Payment Rate (collectively, “Policy Costs”) shall commence in the first
month following each draw, and each such monthly payment shall be in an amount at least equal
to 1/12 of the aggregate of Policy Costs related to such draw.

Policy Costs constitute Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligations with respect
to the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and shall be paid as provided in Section
3.03(c) of the Master Indenture.

Amounts in respect of Policy Costs paid to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer shall be
credited: first to interest due, then to the expenses due, and then to principal due. As and to the
extent that payments are made to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer on account of principal due, the
coverage under the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy will be increased by a like
amount, subject to the terms of the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

(d) All cash and investments in the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve
Account shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Series 2022A Debt Service Fund for payment
of debt service on the Series 2022A Bonds before any drawing may be made on the Series
2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy or any other credit facility credited to the Series
2022A Debt Service Reserve Account in lieu of cash (a “Credit Facility”). Payment of any
Policy Costs shall be made prior to replenishment of any such cash amounts. Draws on all
Credit Facilities (including the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy) on which
there is available coverage shall be made by the Trustee on a pro-rata basis (calculated by
reference to the coverage then available thereunder) after applying all available cash and
investments in the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve Account, payment of Policy Costs and
reimbursement of amounts with respect to other Credit Facilities shall be made on a pro-rata
basis prior to replenishment of any cash drawn from the Series 2022A Debt Service Reserve
Account. For the avoidance of doubt, “available coverage” means the coverage then available
for disbursement pursuant to the terms of the applicable Credit Facility without regard to the
legal or financial ability or willingness of the provider of such instrument to honor a claim or
draw thereon or the failure of such provider to honor any such claim or draw.

(e) The Indenture shall not be discharged until all Policy Costs owing to the
Series 2022A Bond Insurer shall have been paid in full. The Authority’s obligation to pay such
amounts shall expressly survive payment in full of the Series 2022A Bonds.

Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2022A Bond
Insurer; Rights of Series 2022A Bond Insurer.

@) [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2022A Bond Insurer.

@) [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]

-21-
OMM_US:80425344.10



ARTICLE VII

MISCELLANEOUS
Section 7.01 Notices.

@) Any notice, request, direction, designation, consent, acknowledgment,
certification, appointment, waiver or other communication required or permitted by this Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture or the Series 2022A Bonds must be in writing except as expressly
provided otherwise in this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Any notice or other communication, unless otherwise specified, shall be
sufficiently given and deemed given when (i) mailed by first-class mail, postage prepaid,
addressed to the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture, or to the
Series 2022A Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, (ii) delivered by hand
and received by the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture or (iii)
sent by facsimile to the Authority or the Trustee at the number provided in the Indenture, or to
the Series 2022A Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, provided the
machine receiving such facsimile is equipped with automatic answer-back capacity. Any
addressee may designate additional or different addresses for purposes of this Section.

Section 7.02 Modification of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority
may, from time to time and at any time, execute and deliver Supplemental Indentures
supplementing and/or amending this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture in the manner set forth in
Article VIII of the Master Indenture.

Section 7.03 Severability. If any provision of this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture
shall be determined to be unenforceable, that shall not affect any other provision of this Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture.

Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days. If a payment
date is not a Business Day at the place of payment or if any action required hereunder is required
on a date that is not a Business Day, then payment may be made at that place on the next
Business Day or such action may be taken on the next Business Day with the same effect as if
payment were made or the action taken on the stated date, and no interest shall accrue on that
payment for the intervening period.

Section 7.05 Governing Law. This Twelfth Supplemental Indenture shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 7.06 Captions. The captions in this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture are for
convenience only and do not define or limit the scope or intent of any provisions or Sections of
this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

-22 -
OMM_US:80425344.10



Section 7.07 Counterparts. This Twelfth Supplemental Indenture may be signed in
several counterparts. Each will be an original, but all of them together constitute the same
instrument.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]

-23-
OMM_US:80425344.10



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture to be duly executed all as of the date first above written.

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

Attest:

By:

[Chief Executive Officer]

By:

Secretary of the
Authority Governing Board

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

By:

[Vice President]

S-1

OMM_US:80425344.10



EXHIBIT A

[FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022A
(Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Final Compounded Amount:

Initial Amount:

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of
or premium, if any, on this bond. Payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded
Amount of or premium, if any, on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority
and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the
Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Final Compounded Amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof until the maturity date hereof, at the interest
rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2022] and semiannually thereafter on October
1 and April 1 of each year), as provided in this bond.

A-1

OMM_US:80425344.10



Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

A-2

OMM_US:80425344.10



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022A Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

A-3

OMM_US:80425344.10



1. Master Indenture; Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has entered
into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master Indenture”),
with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the
“Series 2022A Bonds”). The Series 2022A Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the *“Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022A Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), Current Interest Bonds and Series
2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate Initial Amount
of 3| ]. The Series 2022A Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the Master
Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a “Senior Lien
Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds shall be on a parity with the
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series
1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the Authority on
February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by the Authority on June 21, 2012, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A
issued by the Authority on February 12, 2013 (the “Series 2013A Bonds”), the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B issued
by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time
under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series
2022A Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or
exchange, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds maturing on
October 1, 2022, as further described in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2022A Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture and
the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from time to
time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms used but
not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022A Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master
Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or

A-4

OMM_US:80425344.10



lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior
Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time Outstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. Interest on this bond shall accrue, but shall not be payable until
maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond, compounded
semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1, 2022].

Interest on overdue Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will
accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts (including interest
thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set forth in the
Indenture).

4. Payment of Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount. Payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2022A Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture. The Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount will be paid in lawful money of
the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it will be made on
the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

5. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__] are not subject to
optional redemption, and the Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__] are subject to optional redemption,
on any date on or after [October 1, 1, in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022A
Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in
the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

A-5
OMM_US:80425344.10



Mandatory Redemption Date Accreted Value to be
(October 1) Redeemed

"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022A Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to
give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2022A Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture will be
conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the
addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022A
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

6. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds are available in denominations such that the Accreted Value of such Capital
Appreciation Bonds at their maturity shall be $5,000 or an integral multiple thereof. A holder
may transfer or exchange Series 2022A Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture and the
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder, among
other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any taxes
and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

7. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

8. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the Accreted Value or Final
Compounded Amount or premium, if any, remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be
paid to or for the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look
only to the Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

A-6

OMM_US:80425344.10



9. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any, on all
Outstanding Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then
payable by the Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all
Supplemental Indentures thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look
only to the deposited money and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits
with the Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture
sufficient to pay in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any,
on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was
made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master
Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

10.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver.  The Master Indenture, the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022A Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this bond
shall bind any subsequent owner of this bond or any Series 2022A Bond delivered in substitution
for this bond.

11. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022A Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022A Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, may
direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

12. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022A Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022A
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

13.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

14.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

A-7

OMM_US:80425344.10



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint
agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:
(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80425344.10



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

A-9

OMM_US:80425344.10



EXHIBIT B
[FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022A

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No.

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Registered Owner:

Principal Sum:

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this
bond. Payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this bond is a special
limited obligation of the Authority and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of
Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date stated above, unless
earlier redeemed, and to pay from those sources interest thereon at the Interest Rate stated above,
as provided in this bond.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

B-1



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022A Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

B-2



1. Master Indenture; Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has entered
into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master Indenture”),
with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank,
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the
“Series 2022A Bonds”). The Series 2022A Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the “Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022A Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds (including this bond) and Series
2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $] |. The Series 2022A Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the
Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a “Senior
Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds shall be on a parity
with the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the Authority on
February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by the Authority on June 21, 2012, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A
issued by the Authority on February 12, 2013 (the “Series 2013A Bonds™), the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B issued
by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time
under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series
2022A Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or
exchange, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds maturing on
October 1, 2022, as further described in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2022A Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture and
the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from time to
time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms used but
not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022A Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master
Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or
lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior

B-3



Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time QOutstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. This bond shall bear interest from its date until its maturity or prior
redemption at the Interest Rate shown on the face of this bond. Interest on overdue principal
and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this
bond until all overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such
amounts is provided for as set forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on
the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months.

4. Interest Payment and Record Dates. Interest hereon will be due and payable on
[October 1, 2022] and on each October 1 and April 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2022A Bond, as defined in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, interest
hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is a
Book-Entry Series 2022A Bond, interest will be paid as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal. Principal of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2022A Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of principal
as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. Principal and interest will be paid in lawful
money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it will
be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue on that payment for the
intervening period as a result.

6. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest
Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20__] are not subject to optional
redemption, and the Series 2022A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing
on and after [October 1, 20__] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on
or after [October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from
any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of such Series 2022A Bonds so redeemed plus
accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking
fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the

B-4



respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for
such mandatory redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022A Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to
give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2022A Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture will be
conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the
addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022A
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

7. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds are available in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A
holder may transfer or exchange Series 2022A Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture
and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder,
among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

8. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

9. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal of, premium, if
any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for the account of

B-5



the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the Authority and
not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all Outstanding Bonds (including this
bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the Authority under the
Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures thereto will be
discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money and securities
for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or Government
Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with
respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no
longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022A Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this bond
shall bind any subsequent owners of this bond or any Series 2022A Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022A Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022A Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, may
direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022A Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022A
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

14. Authentication. This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

B-6



B-7



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act
for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on
the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must
be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor
institution.)

B-8



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

B-9

OMM_US:80425344.10



EXHIBIT C
[FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022A
(Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Principal Amount at Maturity: $

Initial Amount: $

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
or interest on this bond. Payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
on or interest on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority and is secured
only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The
Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the principal amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof through the end of the Accretion Period at

OMM_US:80425344.10

C-1



the interest rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2022] and semiannually thereafter
on October 1 and April 1 of each year (each, a “Compounding Date™) as provided in this bond.
Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the
Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount), at the interest rate specified above.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

OMM_US:80425344.10

C-2



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022A Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

OMM_US:80425344.10
C-1



1. Master Indenture; Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the
“Series 2022A Bonds”). The Series 2022A Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the “Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022A Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds and Series 2022A Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), are being issued in the aggregate Initial
Amount of $] |. The Series 2022A Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the
Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a “Senior
Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022A Bonds shall be on a parity
with the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the Authority on
February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by the Authority on June 21, 2012, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A
issued by the Authority on February 12, 2013 (the “Series 2013A Bonds™), the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B issued
by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time
under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series
2022A Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or
exchange, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds maturing on
October 1, 2022, as further described in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2022A Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture and
the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from time to
time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms used but
not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022A Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master
Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or
lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior

OMM_US:80425344.10

C-2



Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time QOutstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. During the Accretion Period, interest on this bond shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value
as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount) from the Interest Payment Date next
preceding the date of authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or
unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest
Payment Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following
the Conversion Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from the Conversion Date. If
interest on this Bond shall be in default, the bond issued in exchange for the bond surrendered for
transfer or exchange pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest
Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the bond surrendered.

Interest on overdue principal or Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue
interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts
(including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set
forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360
days and twelve 30-day months.

4. Interest Payment and Record Dates. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, interest
hereon will be due and payable on each April 1 and October 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2022A Bond, as defined in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, interest
hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is a Book
Entry Series 2022A Bond, as defined in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, interest will be
paid as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal or Accreted Value. Payment of the principal or Accreted
Value of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior redemption upon surrender of this bond to the
Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds, the Paying Agent
may make arrangements for payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, as provided in the
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The principal or Accreted Value of, and interest thereon, will
be paid in lawful money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-
Business Day, it will be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

OMM_US:80425344.10



6. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional
redemption and the Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after
[October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that
may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the Accreted
Value on such Series 2022A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as of the date fixed
for redemption.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds that are Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to
the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory
redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022A Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022A Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days before each
redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022A Bond to be redeemed, which notice may be
conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to give any required notice of
redemption will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any Series 2022A
Bond in respect of which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided in the
Twelfth Supplemental Indenture will be conclusively presumed to have been given
whether or not actually received by the addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022A Bonds
called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption at the
applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the redemption date; in such case
when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, interest on the
Series 2022A Bonds to be redeemed ceases to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

OMM_US:80425344.10

Cc-4



7. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds are (i) on any date during the Accretion Period, available in denominations
such that the Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof; and (ii) on any date subsequent to the Accretion Period, available in denominations of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A holder may transfer or exchange Series 2022A Bonds
in accordance with the Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee
and the Registrar may require a holder, among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements
and transfer documents and to pay any taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Master
Indenture.

8. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

9. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal or Accreted Value
of, premium, if any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for
the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the
Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on all Outstanding
Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the
Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures
thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money
and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or
Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the
principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on any portion of the
Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer
be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to
the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11. Amendment, Supplement, Waiver.  The Master Indenture, the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022A Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this bond
shall bind any subsequent owner of this bond or any Series 2022A Bond delivered in substitution
for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022A Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022A Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, may
direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

OMM_US:80425344.10

C-5



13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022A Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022A
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

14.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

OMM_US:80425344.10

C-6



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80425344.10



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

C-8

OMM_US:80425344.10



EXHIBITD
[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022A CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS]

[see attached]

D-1

OMM_US:80425344.10



EXHIBIT E

[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022A CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION
BONDS]

[see attached]

E-1

OMM_US:80425344.10



EXHIBIT C-2
FORM OF THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

[to be attached)]

C-2-1



THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE
by and between the
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to
U.S. Bank National Association,
as Trustee

Dated as of | 1, 2022]
Relating to
] |

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2022B

OMM_US:80508072.6



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(This table of contents is not part of the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture and is only for
convenience of reference. The captions herein are of no legal effect and do not vary the meaning
or legal effect of any part of the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture.)

OMM_US:80508072.6

Page
ARTICLE | DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS ... 2
Section 1.01 DEFINITIONS. ...t 2
Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture..................... 5
Section 1.03 Article and Section ReferenCes. .......ccoovvvveiiiiiiniinieee e 5
ARTICLE Il THE SERIES 2022B BONDS........ccoii et 5
Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2022B Bonds; Principal Amount and
INIETAL AMOUNT.....eoiiiice e 5
Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity............ccccceveivereinennnnn 5
Section 2.03 Terms of the Series 2022B BONAS ........cccocevverviienieeiesene e 6
Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2022B BONS..........cccccoveveiieiieie e 9
Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2022B BONGS ............coovrerinieieienenc e 9
ARTICLE HIREDEMPTION .....coiiiiiiiieiieseise sttt sttt nena s 11
Section 3.01 Notices t0 BONANOIErS.........cooviiiiieiiiiese e 11
Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds...........c.ccccceveneee. 12
Section 3.03 [Make-Whole Optional Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds...... 12
Section 3.04 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds..............c......... 13
Section 3.05 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds.................... 14
Section 3.06 Payment of Series 2022B Bonds Called for Redemption.................. 14
Section 3.07 Selection of Series 2022B Bonds for Optional Redemption;
Series 2022B Bonds Redeemed in Part .........cccccooeveivnenineniinnienen, 14
Section 3.08 Effect of Call for Redemption...........ccocooiiiiiiiiieie e 15
ARTICLE IV ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF......... 15
Section 4.01 Establishment of Funds and ACCOUNES..........cccveveiiiiiiiinie e 15
Section 4.02 Application Of FUNS........cccoveiiie e 15
Section 4.03 Series 2022B Debt Service FUNd..........ccooveiiiieiinnine e 16
Section 4.04 Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve ACCOUNT.........ccocvrererireriennnn. 17
Section 4.05 Series 2022B Costs of Issuance FuNd...........ccooeieiiniininncnieniens 17
ARTICLE V INTENTIONALLY OMITTED......ccoiititieieiiesieee e 17
.-



ARTICLE VI SERIES 2022B BOND INSURANCE POLICY; SERIES 2022B DEBT

SERVICE RESERVE SURETY POLICY; ADDITIONAL
COVENANTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE SERIES 2022B BOND

INSURER ...ttt e e e e nneeas 17
Section 6.01 Application of Article V... 18
Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy ...... 18

Section 6.03

Provisions Relating to the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve

SUFELY POHICY. ..t 20

Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2022B
Bond Insurer; Rights of Series 2022B Bond Insurer. ...........cccccvev..... 22
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2022B Bond INSUFEr.........cccoovrerenenesisenenes 22
ARTICLE VII MISCELLANEQUS .......oo ottt ettt 22
Section 7.01 INOTICES. vttt ettt enes 22
Section 7.02 Modification of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture................... 22
Section 7.03 SEVEIADIIILY ...vveveciecc e 23
Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days ................... 23
Section 7.05 GOVEIMING LAW ..ottt 23
Section 7.06 CAPLIONS ... 23
Section 7.07 COUNTEIPAITS ...ttt e e sraee e 23
EXHIBIT A FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND ........cccoceiiiiieiie e A-1
EXHIBIT B FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND.......cccooviiiiiieiiesieese e B-1
EXHIBIT C FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND.................... C-1

EXHIBIT D ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022B CAPITAL

APPRECIATION BONDS ... D-1

EXHIBIT E ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022B CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL
APPRECIATION BONDS ..o E-1

- i -

OMM_US:80508072.6



THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

This THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE dated as of | 1,
2022] is by and between the ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a
joint powers authority established under Article I, Chapter 5, Division 7, of Title 1 of the
California Government Code and pursuant to an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement dated as of December 18, 1996, as amended, by and between the City of Long Beach
and the City of Los Angeles (the “Authority”), and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee
(the “Trustee”), and supplements and amends the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1,
1999, by and between the Authority and the Trustee (as amended, the “Master Indenture”).
Capitalized terms used herein which are not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in
the Indenture.

WHEREAS, on February 9, 1999 the Authority issued $497,453,395.70 original
aggregate principal amount of Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C;

WHEREAS, the Authority has made a tender and exchange offer to the holders of the
Series 1999C Bonds, and the holders of certain of such bonds have elected to tender such bonds
for purchase by the Authority, or to exchange such bonds for Series 2022B Bonds (such tendered
or exchanged bonds, the “Tendered Bonds™);

WHEREAS, Section 2.08 of the Master Indenture provides that the Authority may issue
Refunding Bonds from time to time for the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a portion of
its outstanding Bonds;

WHEREAS, Section 2.09 of the Master Indenture provides that such Refunding Bonds
may be issued for the purpose of paying or refunding all or a portion of the Tendered Bonds,
and/or for the purpose of refunding and defeasing the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing
on October 1, 2022 and the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing October 1, 2029 to their
2023, 2024 and 2025 sinking fund dates, provided that certain conditions are satisfied, including,
among others, the requirement that Maximum Annual Debt Service following the issuance of
such Refunding Bonds will not exceed the Maximum Annual Debt Service prior to such
issuance;

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2012, the Authority issued its Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, in the aggregate
principal amount of $83,710,000 pursuant to the Indenture as supplemented and amended by an
Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2012 (the “Eighth Supplemental
Indenture”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5.05(b) of the Eighth Supplemental Indenture, the
consent of the Administrator (as defined in the Eighth Supplemental Indenture) shall not be
required in connection with the issuance of Refunding Bonds pursuant to Sections 2.08 and 2.09
of the Master Indenture, provided that either (i) aggregate Debt Service on all Senior Lien Bonds
Outstanding through the final maturity of the Series 2012 Bonds shall not be increased or (ii)

-1-
OMM_US:80508072.6



Dedicated Revenues as calculated in accordance with Section 2.09 of the Master Indenture
(adjusted as described in Section 5.05(a) of the Eighth Supplemental Indenture) are equal to at
least 125% of Debt Service on Senior Lien Bonds in each Bond Year in which a Series 2012
Bond is Outstanding;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue Refunding Bonds for the purpose of providing
funds to pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund in full, or to exchange, the
Tendered Bonds, and to refund and defease in full the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing
on October 1, 2022 and the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing October 1, 2029 to their
2023, 2024 and 2025 sinking fund dates;

WHEREAS, Section 8.02 of the Master Indenture provides for the execution and delivery
of Supplemental Indentures setting forth the terms of such Refunding Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now, by execution and delivery of this Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture and in compliance with the provisions of the Indenture, sets forth the
terms of its Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2022B, provides for the deposit and use of the proceeds of the Series 2022B Bonds
and makes other provisions relating to the Series 2022B Bonds.

ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS

Section 1.01 Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to terms used in this
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture unless clearly stated otherwise:

“Accretion Period” shall mean with respect to any Series 2022B Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond, the period from the date of delivery of such Series 2022B Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bond through the Conversion Date.

“Authorized Denominations” shall mean, (i) with respect to the Series 2022B Bonds
which are Current Interest Bonds, $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, (ii) with respect to the
Series 2022B Bonds which are Capital Appreciation Bonds, denominations such that the
Accreted Value of such Series 2022B Bonds as of the maturity date thereof shall equal $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof, and (iii) with respect to the Series 2022B Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds (a) on any date during the Accretion Period, denominations such that the
Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and
(b) subsequent to the Accretion Period, denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

“Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds™ shall mean the Series 2022B Bonds held by DTC (or
its nominee) as the registered owner thereof pursuant to the terms and provisions of Section 2.05
hereof.

“Cede & Co.” shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any successor nominee
of DTC with respect to the Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds.

OMM_US:80508072.6



“Conversion Date” shall mean [October 1, 20 ], the date of expiration of the Accretion
Period.

“DTC” shall mean The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company
organized under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns.

“Escrow Agreement™ shall mean the Escrow Agreement dated as of [ 1, 2022]
between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time in
accordance therewith.

“Escrow Fund” shall mean the escrow fund established pursuant to the Escrow
Agreement in which certain proceeds from the sale of the Series 2022B Bonds and certain other
available funds under the Indenture shall be deposited and applied to the defeasance of certain
Series 1999C Bonds pursuant to Section 4.02(b) hereof and the terms thereof.

“Indenture” shall mean the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1, 1999 between
the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time (including by
this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture) in accordance therewith.

“Participants” shall mean the participants of DTC which include securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations.

“Principal Payment Date” shall mean (a) for Series 2022B Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds, October 1 in each of the years in which the principal amount of a Series 2022B
Bonds that is a Current Interest Bond is due and payable, (b) for Series 2022B Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of any year in which the Final Compounded Amount of
any Series 2022B Bond that is a Capital Appreciation Bond is due and payable, and (c) for Series
2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of the year in which the principal
amount or Final Compounded Amount of such Series 2022B Bond is due and payable.

“Record Date shall mean March 15 for any April 1 Interest Payment Date and
September 15 for any October 1 Interest Payment Date.

“Registrar” for purposes of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture shall mean the
Trustee.

“Representation Letter” shall mean the Blanket Letter of Representations dated
December 18, 1998 from the Authority and the Trustee to DTC, or such similar letter or
agreement filed with DTC from time to time.

“Series 1999A Bonds” shall mean the $494,893,616.80 original aggregate principal
amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A.”

“Series 1999C Bonds™ shall mean the $497,453,395.70 original aggregate principal
amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Third Supplemental Indenture and

-3-

OMM_US:80508072.6



designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999C”.

““Series 2012 Bonds™ shall mean the $83,710,000 original aggregate principal amount of
Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Eighth Supplemental Indenture and designated
as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012”.

“Series 2013A Bonds” shall mean the $248,325,000 original aggregate principal amount
of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Ninth Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A”.

“Series 2022A Bonds™ shall mean the $] | aggregate principal amount and Initial
Amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture
and designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A”.

“Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy”” shall mean the municipal bond insurance policy
issued by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer insuring, as provided therein, the payment when due of
the principal of and interest on the Series 2022B Insured Bonds.

“Series 2022B Bond Insurer” shall mean [ ], a [ ]
insurance company, and its successors and assigns. The Series 2022B Bond Insurer shall
constitute a Bond Insurer as such term is defined in the Indenture.

“Series 2022B Bonds™ shall mean the $] | aggregate principal amount and Initial
Amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture
and designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B”.

“Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds” shall mean the Series 2022B
Bonds designated as “Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds” pursuant to Section 2.01 of this
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture and issued pursuant to Sections 2.01 and 2.03 of this
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund™ shall mean the fund by that name created in
Section 4.01(a) of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022B Debt Service Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created in Section
4.01(b) of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture and into which money shall be deposited to
pay debt service on the Series 2022B Bonds.

“Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account” shall mean the account by that name
created in the Debt Service Reserve Fund pursuant to Section 4.01 of this Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture.

OMM_US:80508072.6



“Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy’” shall mean the municipal bond debt
service reserve insurance policy issued by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer to be deposited in the
Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account with the face amount of $] |, which is the
Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to the Series 2022B Bonds on the date of issuance
of the Series 2022B Bonds pursuant to Section 4.04 of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022B Insured Bonds shall mean all the Series 2022B Bonds maturing on
October 1 in the years | .

“Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean this Thirteenth Supplemental Trust
Indenture dated as of | 1, 2022], between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended
and supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Indenture.

“Twelfth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture
dated as of | 1, 2023], between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and
supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Indenture.

Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 1.01 of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, all capitalized
words, terms and phrases used in this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture shall have the same
meanings herein as in the Indenture.

Section 1.03 Article and Section References. Except as otherwise indicated, references
to Articles and Sections are to Articles and Sections of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

ARTICLE II

THE SERIES 2022B BONDS

Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2022B Bonds; Principal Amount and Initial
Amount. There is hereby authorized and created a Series of Bonds, designated as the “Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2022B” to be issued in the aggregate principal amount and Initial Amount of $] .
Said Bonds shall consist of “Current Interest Bonds”, “Capital Appreciation Bonds” and
“Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds”.

Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity. The Series 2022B Bonds
are issued under and subject to the terms of the Indenture, shall be Senior Lien Bonds as defined
pursuant to the Indenture and are secured by and payable from the Trust Estate in accordance
with the terms of the Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds shall be on a parity with the
outstanding Series 1999A Bonds, Series 1999C Bonds, Series 2012 Bonds, Series 2013A Bonds,
Series 2022A Bonds, and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued under the Indenture, as and to the
extent provided in the Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase
price of, and thereby prepay or refund in full, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the outstanding
Series 1999C Bonds maturing on October 1, 2022 and the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds
maturing October 1, 2029 to their 2023, 2024 and 2025 sinking fund dates.

-5-

OMM_US:80508072.6



Section 2.03 Terms of the Series 2022B Bonds. The Series 2022B Bonds shall, upon
initial issuance, be dated their date of initial delivery. The Series 2022B Bonds shall be issued
only in Authorized Denominations. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit A, which exhibit is a part of this Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be
substantially in the form of Exhibit B, which exhibit is a part of this Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit C, which exhibit is a part of this Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds shall be executed, on behalf of the Authority,
by either the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Authority and such
signature may be a facsimile.

The Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date.

@ Current Interest Bonds. Each Series 2022B Bond that is a Current Interest
Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication
thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series
2022B Bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or unless such date of
authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in
which event such Series 2022B Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment
Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date, in which event such
Series 2022B Bond shall bear interest from its date of initial delivery. If interest on the Series
2022B Bonds shall be in default, Series 2022B Bonds issued in exchange for Series 2022B
Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange pursuant to the Indenture shall bear interest from the
Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the Series 2022B Bonds
surrendered to their maturity date or date fixed for redemption.

Interest on the Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be paid on each
Interest Payment Date. Principal on the Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds
shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date. Interest on the Series 2022B Bonds shall
be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve (12) thirty (30)-day months.

The Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall mature, subject to
redemption, in the years and in the principal amounts and shall bear interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Principal Interest
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%)

OMM_US:80508072.6



Maturity Date Principal Interest
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%)

Under the Indenture, the Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall
constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

(b) Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts and shall mature, subject to prior redemption,
in the years and in the Final Compounded Amounts and shall accrete interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Initial Interest Final Compounded
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%) Amount ($)

Under the Indenture, the Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall
constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds.”

Interest on the Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds on October 1 and April 1 of each year shall be as set forth on the Accreted Value Table
attached hereto as Exhibit D, which is part of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The
Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds on
any date other than October 1 and April 1 of any year shall be calculated by the Trustee using
straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding absent manifest error.

(©) Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2022B
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts, shall bear interest at the
rates, shall have the Accreted Values as of the Conversion Date and shall mature in the years and
in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule:

-7-
OMM_US:80508072.6



Maturity Date Initial Interest Accreted Value as Principal Amount at

(October 1) Amount (3$) Rate (%) of Conversion Maturity (3$)
Date ($)

Under the Master Indenture, (i) during the Accretion Period, the Series 2022B
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds” and
(ii) subsequent to the Accretion Period, the Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

During the Accretion Period, interest on the Series 2022B Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but shall not be payable, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds on each October 1 and April 1 prior to the Conversion Date shall be as set forth on the
Accreted Value Table attached as Exhibit E, which is part of this Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture. Prior to the Conversion Date, the Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022B
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds on any date other than October 1 and April 1 shall be
calculated by the Trustee using straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding
absent manifest error.

Subsequent to the Accretion Period, each Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal
amount), at the applicable rate set forth above. Such interest shall be calculated on the basis of a
year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months. Each Series 2022B Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of
authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which
event such Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such
date of authentication, or unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the
next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series 2022B Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment Date, or unless
such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following the Conversion Date, in
which event such Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from
the Conversion Date. If interest on the Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
shall be in default, Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds issued in exchange for
Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange

-8-

OMM_US:80508072.6



pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to which
interest has been paid in full on the Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
surrendered.

(d) Payments.

Payment of principal of the Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be
made upon surrender of such Series 2022B Bonds to the Trustee. Payment of interest on the
Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds which are not Book-Entry Series 2022B
Bonds shall be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed by first-class mail to the person who
is the registered owner thereof on the Record Date, and such payment shall be mailed to such
owner at his address as it appears on the registration books of the Registrar. Payment of interest
on Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds shall be made as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. Payment
of the Final Compounded Amount or the redemption price of the Series 2022B Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be made upon surrender of such Series 2022B Bonds to the
Trustee. The payment of interest on the Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
subsequent to the Conversion Date that are, in each case, Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds shall
be made as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. Payment of interest on the Series 2022B
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds subsequent to the Conversion Date that are not, in each
case, Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds shall be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed by
first-class mail to the person who is the registered owner thereof on the Record Date, and such
payment shall be mailed to such owner at his address as it appears on the registration books of
the Registrar. All payments in respect of the Series 2022B Bonds shall be made by the Authority
in lawful money of the United States of America.

If the principal of or interest on (or Accreted Value of) a Series 2022B Bond becomes
due and payable, but shall not have been paid when due, and no provision is made for its
payment, then interest on overdue principal (or overdue Accreted Value) and, to the extent
lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate applicable to such Series 2022B Bond until all
overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is
provided for as set forth in the Indenture and in this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture).

Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2022B Bonds. Series 2022B Bonds which are
delivered to the Registrar for exchange pursuant to the Indenture may be exchanged for an equal
total principal amount or Initial Amount, as applicable, of Series 2022B Bonds of the same type,
interest rate and maturity date in Authorized Denominations.

Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds.

€)] Upon initial issuance, the registered owner of all of the Series 2022B
Bonds shall be DTC. Payment of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, any Series 2022B Bond registered in the
name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer of New York clearing house or equivalent
next day funds or by wire transfer of same day funds to the account of Cede & Co. at the address
indicated on the Record Date or special record date for Cede & Co. in the registration books of
the Registrar.

OMM_US:80508072.6



(b) The Series 2022B Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate
single authenticated fully registered Series 2022B Bond for each separate stated maturity with
the same interest rate. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Series 2022B Bonds shall be
registered in the registration books of the Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC. The Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2022B Bond Insurer and the Authority may treat
DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Series 2022B Bonds registered in its
name for the purposes of payment of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022B Bonds, selecting the Series
2022B Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be
given to the holders of the Series 2022B Bonds under the Indenture, registering the transfer of
Series 2022B Bonds, and, subject to Section 6.05 hereof, obtaining any consent or other action to
be taken by Bondholders and for all other purposes whatsoever, and none of the Trustee, the
Registrar, the Series 2022B Bond Insurer or the Authority shall be affected by any notice to the
contrary. None of the Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2022B Bond Insurer or the Authority
shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant, any person claiming a beneficial
ownership interest in the Series 2022B Bonds under or through DTC or any Participant, or any
other person who is not shown on the registration books as being a Bondholder, with respect to
the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant; the payment by DTC or any
Participant of any amount in respect of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022B Bonds; any notice which is
permitted or required to be given to the holders of the Series 2022B Bonds under the Indenture;
the selection by DTC or any Participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial
redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds; any consent given or other action taken by DTC as
Bondholder; or any other purpose. The Trustee shall pay the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022B Bonds only
to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy
and discharge the Authority’s obligations with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022B Bonds to
the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated
Series 2022B Bond evidencing the obligation of the Authority to make payments of the principal
or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption price, and interest. as applicable, pursuant
to the Indenture. Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC
has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions
herein with respect to Record Dates, the word “Cede & Co.” in this Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(©) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture to the contrary, so
long as any Series 2022B Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption
price of, and interest on, as applicable, such Series 2022B Bond and all notices with respect to
such Series 2022B Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the
Representation Letter.

(d) Subject to Section 6.05 hereof, in connection with any notice or other
communication to be provided to the holders of the Series 2022B Bonds pursuant to the
Indenture by the Authority or the Trustee with respect to any consent or other action to be taken
by Bondholders, the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, shall establish a record date for

-10 -

OMM_US:80508072.6



such consent or other action and give DTC notice of such record date not less than fifteen (15)
calendar days in advance of such record date to the extent possible.

e NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES, THE
CITY OF LONG BEACH, THE REGISTRAR, THE SERIES 2022B BOND INSURER OR
THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DTC
PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS WITH
RESPECT TO: THE PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT OF THE PRINCIPAL OR THE FINAL COMPOUNDED AMOUNT AND
THE REDEMPTION PRICE OF, AND INTEREST ON, AS APPLICABLE, THE SERIES
2022B BONDS; THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE TO DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS; THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS
MAINTAINED BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT,
OR ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS OWNER OF THE
SERIES 2022B BONDS.

ARTICLE I

REDEMPTION

Section 3.01 Notices to Bondholders. The Trustee shall give notice of redemption
(which, in the case of optional redemption, may be conditional), in the name of the Authority, to
Bondholders of the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this Article I11 at least thirty
(30) days (or at least twenty (20) days for Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds) but not more than
sixty (60) days before each date fixed for redemption. The Trustee shall send such notices of
redemption by first class mail (or with respect to the Series 2022B Bonds held by DTC, in
accordance with DTC operating procedures) to each owner of a Series 2022B Bond to be
redeemed; each such notice shall be sent to the owner’s registered address.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed, the date
of issue, the maturity date thereof, if less than all Series 2022B Bonds of a maturity are called for
redemption, the numbers of the Series 2022B Bonds, the principal amount or Initial Amount, as
applicable, and the CUSIP numbers assigned to the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed, the
principal amount or Accreted Value, as applicable, to be redeemed and the interest rate
applicable to the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed, the date fixed for redemption, the
redemption price, the place or places of payment, the Trustee’s or Paying Agent’s name, that
payment will be made upon presentation and surrender of the Series 2022B Bonds to be
redeemed to the Trustee, that interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for redemption and not
paid will be paid as specified in said notice, and that on and after said date interest thereon will
cease to accrue on the Series 2022B Bonds called for redemption, to the extent that moneys for
payment of the redemption price, including accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, are
being held in trust by the Trustee therefor. In the case of optional redemptions pursuant to
Section 3.02 of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, each such notice shall further state that
the proposed redemption is conditioned on there being on deposit in the applicable account, on
the date fixed for redemption, sufficient money to pay the full redemption price, plus accrued but
unpaid interest to the date fixed for redemption, or the Accreted Value, as applicable, of the
Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed.

-11 -
OMM_US:80508072.6



Failure to give any required notice of redemption as to any particular Series 2022B Bonds
will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any other Series 2022B Bonds with
respect to which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided herein will be
conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the addressee.
When notice of redemption is given, Series 2022B Bonds called for redemption become due and
payable on the date fixed for redemption at the applicable redemption price; provided that, in the
case of optional redemption, sufficient money to pay the full redemption price of the Series
2022B Bonds to be redeemed is on deposit in the applicable account on the date fixed for
redemption. In the event that funds are deposited by the Authority with the Paying Agent
sufficient for redemption, interest on the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed will cease to
accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds. The Series 2022B
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to
optional redemption, and the Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after [October
1, 2032], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that may be
provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such
Series 2022B Bonds so redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without
premium.]

[The Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after
[October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional redemption and the Series 2022B Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional
redemption, on any date on or after [October 1, 2032], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022B Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

[The Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before
[October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional redemption, and the Series 2022B Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__] are subject to optional
redemption, on any date on or after [October 1, 2032], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as
of the date fixed for redemption.]

Section 3.03 [Make-Whole Optional Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds.

The Series 2022B Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Authority at any
time in whole or in part, at redemption price equal to the greater of:

(1) 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed; or

(2) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and
interest to the stated maturity date of such Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed, not including
any portion of those payments of interest accrued and unpaid as of the date on which such Series
2022B Bonds are to be redeemed, discounted to the date on which such Series 2022B Bonds are

-12 -
OMM_US:80508072.6



to be redeemed on a semi-annual basis, assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months, at the Treasury Rate (defined below) plus [ ] basis points, plus, in each case, accrued
interest on such Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed to but not including the redemption date.

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any redemption date, the yield to maturity as of
such redemption date of U.S. Treasury securities with a constant maturity most nearly equal to
the period from the redemption date to the maturity date of such Series 2022B Bond (taking into
account any sinking fund installments for such Series 2022B Bonds); however, if the period from
the redemption date to such maturity date (taking into account any sinking fund installments for
such Series 2022B Bonds) is less than one year, the yield to maturity of the U.S. Treasury
securities with a constant maturity of one year, in each case as compiled and published in the
most recent Federal Reserve Release H.15 which has become publicly available at least two
business days, but not more than 45 calendar days, prior to the redemption date (excluding
inflation indexed securities) or, if such Release is no longer published, any publicly available
source of similar market data reasonably selected by the Trustee.]

Section 3.04 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds. [The Series 2022B
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

[The Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1,
[ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1
in the years and in the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption
price equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Accreted Value to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

[The Series 2022B Bonds that are Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each
October 1 in the years and in the respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a

-13-

OMM_US:80508072.6



redemption price equal to the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed
for such mandatory redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

Section 3.05 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds. The Series
2022B Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption as provided in the Indenture.

Section 3.06 Payment of Series 2022B Bonds Called for Redemption. Upon surrender
to the Trustee, Series 2022B Bonds called for redemption shall be paid at the redemption price
stated in the notice, plus, when applicable, interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.07 Selection of Series 2022B Bonds for Optional Redemption; Series 2022B
Bonds Redeemed in Part. [If less than all of the Series 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed, the
particular maturities of Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed at the option of the Authority will be
determined by the Authority in its sole discretion.

If the Series 2022B Bonds are registered in book-entry only form and so long as DTC or
a successor securities depository is the sole registered owner of such Series 2022B Bonds, if less
than all of the Series 2022B Bonds of a maturity are called for prior redemption, the particular
Series 2022B Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be allocated on a pro rata pass-
through distribution of principal basis in accordance with DTC procedures, provided that, so
long as the Series 2022B Bonds are held in book-entry form, the selection for redemption of such
Series 2022B Bonds shall be made in accordance with the operational arrangements of DTC then
in effect, and, if the DTC operational arrangements do not allow for redemption on a pro rata
pass-through distribution of principal basis, the Series 2022B Bonds will be selected for
redemption, in accordance with DTC procedures, by lot.

For purposes of calculation of the “pro rata pass-through distribution of principal,” “pro
rata” means, for any amount of principal to be paid, the application of a fraction to each
denomination of the respective Series 2022B Bonds where (a) the numerator of which is equal to
the amount due to the respective bondholders on a payment date, and (b) the denominator of
which is equal to the total original par amount of the respective Series 2022B Bonds.

If the Series 2022B Bonds are no longer registered in book-entry-only form, each owner
will receive an amount of Series 2022B Bonds equal to the original face amount then
beneficially held by that owner, registered in such investor’s name. Thereafter, any redemption
of less than all of the Series 2022B Bonds of any maturity will continue to be paid to the
registered owners of such Series 2022B Bonds on a pro-rata basis, based on the portion of the
original face amount of any such Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed.]

-14 -
OMM_US:80508072.6



Section 3.08 Effect of Call for Redemption. On the date so designated for redemption,
notice having been given in the manner and under the conditions provided herein and moneys for
payment of the redemption price, including, when applicable, accrued interest to the date fixed
for redemption, being held in trust to pay the redemption price, (a) the Series 2022B Bonds so
called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption, (b) interest
on such Series 2022B Bonds shall cease to accrue from and after such date fixed for redemption,
(c) such Series 2022B Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under the
Indenture and (d) the owners of such Series 2022B Bonds shall have no rights in respect thereof
except to receive payment of the redemption price. Series 2022B Bonds which have been duly
called for redemption under the provisions of this Article Il and for which moneys for the
payment of the redemption price thereof, together with interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption, shall have been set aside and held in trust for the holders of the Series 2022B Bonds
to be redeemed, all as provided in this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, shall not be deemed to
be Outstanding under the provisions of the Indenture.

ARTICLE IV

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS
AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF

Section 4.01 Establishment of Funds and Accounts. There is hereby established
within the Debt Service Reserve Fund established pursuant to Section 3.02(c) of the Master
Indenture, the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account, to be held and administered by the
Trustee in accordance with the Indenture and Section 4.04 of this Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture. In addition, the following funds are hereby established pursuant to Section 3.02 of the
Master Indenture, each of which shall be held and administered by the Trustee as set forth
herein:

(@) The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B Costs of
Issuance Fund”); and

(b) The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds Debt Service Fund, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B Debt Service
Fund”), which shall contain an Interest Account, a Principal Account and a Redemption Account
for purposes of the Indenture.

Section 4.02 Application of Funds. The net proceeds of the sale of the Series 2022B
Bonds, being the amount of $ | [(of which $] | shall be paid directly by the
initial purchasers to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer for the issuance of the Series 2022B Bond
Insurance Policy and the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy)], shall be received
by the Trustee and be deposited as follows:

(@) the sum of $| | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the principal
payment account of the Series 1999C Bonds to be used, together with funds held under the
Indenture and available for such purpose, to pay and refund the Tendered Bonds that are Series
1999C Bonds.

-15-

OMM_US:80508072.6



(b) the sum of $ | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Escrow
Fund established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement to be used, together with funds held under
the Indenture and available for such purpose, to defease the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds
maturing on October 1, 2022 and the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing October 1, 2029
to their 2023, 2024 and 2025 sinking fund dates, as provided in the Escrow Agreement.

(© the sum of 3| | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Series
2022B Debt Service Reserve Account.

(d) the balance (being 3| ]) shall be deposited by the Trustee into the
Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund.

Section 4.03 Series 2022B Debt Service Fund. The Trustee shall withdraw funds and
make payments from the Revenue Fund for deposit in the Series 2022B Debt Service Fund at the
times and in the amounts required by Section 3.03(a) - FIRST of the Master Indenture in respect
of the Series 2022B Bonds. With the funds made available to it pursuant to Section 3.03 of the
Master Indenture for such purpose, the Trustee shall make deposits or transfers into the Series
2022B Debt Service Fund as follows:

@ Interest Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Interest
Account of the Series 2022B Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided in the Master Indenture
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) and this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay interest
due on the Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds. The Trustee shall also deposit
into the Interest Account any other amounts deposited with it for deposit in such Interest
Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts
in the Interest Account shall be credited to such account.

(b) Principal Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Principal
Account of the Series 2022B Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided pursuant to Section
3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay the
principal amount or the Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2022B Bonds at maturity. The
Trustee shall also deposit into the Principal Account any other amounts deposited with it for
deposit into such Principal Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit
therein. Earnings on amounts in the Principal Account shall be credited to such account.

(c) Redemption Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the
Redemption Account of the Series 2022B Debt Service Fund amounts required or, in the case of
optional redemption, amounts as instructed by or as received from the Authority, as provided
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture,
to be used to pay the redemption price of Series 2022B Bonds being redeemed as provided in
Section 2.12 of the Master Indenture and Sections 3.02 and 3.03 of this Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Trustee shall also deposit into the Redemption Account any other amounts
deposited with it for deposit into the Redemption Account or transferred from other funds and
accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts in the Redemption Account shall be credited
to such account, and any remaining earnings or other amounts therein following the applicable
date fixed for redemption shall be withdrawn by the Trustee on the Business Day following such

-16 -

OMM_US:80508072.6



date fixed for redemption and deposited into the Revenue Fund, unless an Event of Default exists
under the Indenture, in which event the earnings shall be retained in such Redemption Account.

Pursuant to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2022B
Debt Service Fund and the accounts therein may be invested and reinvested as directed by an
Authorized Authority Representative in Permitted Investments.

Section 4.04  Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account. As a condition of issuance
of the Series 2022B Bonds, the amount set forth in Section 4.02(b) shall be deposited in the
Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund so that the
amount credited thereto will be equal to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Series
2022B Bonds. In the event that a Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy shall be deposited in the
Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account as provided in Section 3.05(c) of the Master
Indenture, then any amounts in the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account in excess of the
Debt Service Reserve Requirement resulting from such deposit shall be transferred to the Series
2022B Debt Service Fund, unless an Event of Default exists under the Indenture, in which event
the excess amounts shall be retained in the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account, as
provided in Section 3.05(d) of the Master Indenture.

The Trustee is authorized and directed to enter into the Series 2022B Debt Service
Reserve Surety Policy in its capacity as Trustee under the Indenture and all provisions in the
Indenture relating to the rights, privileges, powers and protections of the Trustee shall apply with
equal force and effect to all actions taken or not taken by the Trustee in connection with the
performance of any duties or responsibilities of the Trustee with respect to or under the Series
2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

Section 4.05 Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund. There shall be deposited into the
Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund the amount provided in Section 4.02(c) above. The
Trustee shall make payments or disbursements from the Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund, if
any, to pay Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2022B Bonds upon receipt from the Authority
of a Requisition meeting the requirements of Section 3.13 of the Master Indenture. Pursuant to
Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2022B Costs of Issuance
Fund may be invested and reinvested as directed by an Authorized Authority Representative in
Permitted Investments. Subject to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, earnings on amounts in
the Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund shall be retained therein. Upon the Trustee’s receipt of
written instructions from an Authorized Authority Representative, all amounts remaining on
deposit in the Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund shall be transferred to the Series 2022B Debt
Service Fund, and the Trustee shall close the Series 2022B Costs of Issuance Fund.

ARTICLE V

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED

ARTICLE VI

SERIES 2022B BOND INSURANCE POLICY; SERIES 2022B DEBT SERVICE

-17 -
OMM_US:80508072.6



RESERVE SURETY POLICY; ADDITIONAL COVENANTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE SERIES 2022B BOND INSURER

Section 6.01  Application of Article VI.

@ All provisions herein regarding rights, consents, approvals, directions,
appointments or requests by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer shall be deemed to not require or
permit such consents, approvals, directions, appointments or requests by the Series 2022B Bond
Insurer and shall be read as if the Series 2022B Bond Insurer were not mentioned therein, during
any time in which: (i) the Series 2022B Bond Insurer is in default in its obligation to make
payments under (A) the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy when due, (B) the Series 2022B
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy when due, or (C) any other municipal bond insurance policy
or debt service reserve surety policy issued by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer when due and such
failure shall continue for 30 days unless the obligation of the Series 2022B Bond Insurer to pay
is being contested by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer in good faith by appropriate proceedings;
(ii) the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the Series 2022B Bond
Insurer, or shall be declared to be null and void, in each case by a final, non-appealable order of a
court of competent jurisdiction, or the validity or enforceability of any provision thereof is being
contested by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer or any governmental agency or authority acting as a
receiver or similar capacity for the Series 2022B Bond Insurer, or if the Series 2022B Bond
Insurer is denying further liability or obligation under the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy or
Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy; (iii) a proceeding has been instituted in a
court having jurisdiction in the premises seeking an order for relief, rehabilitation,
reorganization, conservation, liquidation or dissolution in respect of the Series 2022B Bond
Insurer under Article 16 of the Insurance Law of the State of New York or any successor
provision thereto or similar provision of law and such proceeding is not terminated for a period
of 90 consecutive days or such court enters an order granting the relief sought in such
proceeding; or (iv) the Series 2022B Insured Bonds are no longer Outstanding and any amounts
due or to become due to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer have been paid in full; provided that to
the extent that the Series 2022B Bond Insurer has made any payment of principal of or interest
on the Series 2022B Bonds under the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2022B
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy, it shall retain its rights of subrogation and reimbursement
under this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Subject to Subsection 6.01(a) hereof, the covenants of the Authority in this
Article VI are solely for the benefit of the Series 2022B Bond Insurer and can be modified or
waived in whole or in part by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer or otherwise agreed to between the
Authority and the Series 2022B Bond Insurer without the consent of the Trustee and the Holders
of the Bonds. The failure by the Authority to comply with any such covenants in this Article VI
shall constitute an Event of Default under the provisions of the Indenture if, and only if, the
Series 2022B Bond Insurer gives a written notice of such failure to the Trustee and to the
Authority, notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary.

Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy. As long
as the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect and the Series 2022B

-18-

OMM_US:80508072.6



Bond Insurer is not in default of its obligation to make payments thereunder, the Authority, the
Trustee and any Paying Agent hereby agree to comply with the following provisions:

@) If, on the third Business Day prior to the related scheduled interest
payment date or principal payment date (“Payment Date”) on the Series 2022B Insured Bonds,
there is not on deposit with the Trustee, after making all transfers and deposits required under the
Indenture, moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2022B Insured
Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer
and to its designated agent (if any) (the “Series 2022B Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent”) by
telephone or telecopy of the amount of such deficiency by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on
such Business Day. If, on the second Business Day prior to the related Payment Date, there
continues to be a deficiency in the amount available to pay the principal of and interest on the
Series 2022B Insured Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall make a claim under
the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy and give notice to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer and
the Series 2022B Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent (if any) by telephone of the amount of such
deficiency, and the allocation of such deficiency between the amount required to pay interest on
the Series 2022B Insured Bonds and the amount required to pay principal of the Series 2022B
Insured Bonds, confirmed in writing to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer and the Series 2022B
Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on such second Business Day
by filling in the form of Notice of Claim and Certificate delivered with the Series 2022B Bond
Insurance Policy.

(b) The Trustee shall designate any portion of payment of principal on Series
2022B Insured Bonds paid by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer, whether by virtue of mandatory
sinking fund redemption, maturity or other advancement of maturity, on its books as a reduction
in the principal amount of Series 2022B Insured Bonds registered to the then current Holder of
the Series 2022B Insured Bonds, whether DTC or its nominee or otherwise, and shall issue a
replacement Series 2022B Bond to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer, registered in the name of
[BOND INSURER NAME] in a principal amount equal to the amount of principal so paid
(without regard to authorized denominations); provided that the Trustee’s failure to so designate
any payment or issue any replacement Series 2022B Insured Bond shall have no effect on the
amount of principal or interest payable by the Authority on any Series 2022B Insured Bond or
the subrogation rights of the Series 2022B Bond Insurer.

(c) The Trustee shall keep a complete and accurate record of all funds
deposited by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer into the Policy Payments Account (defined below)
and the allocation of such funds to payment of interest on and principal of any Series 2022B
Insured Bond. The Series 2022B Bond Insurer shall have the right to inspect such records at
reasonable times upon reasonable notice to the Trustee.

(d) Upon payment of a claim under the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy,
the Trustee shall establish a separate special purpose trust account for the benefit of holders of
the Series 2022B Insured Bonds, which is referred to herein as the “Policy Payments Account,”
and over which the Trustee shall have exclusive control and sole right of withdrawal. The
Trustee shall receive any amount paid under the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy in trust on
behalf of Holders of the Series 2022B Insured Bonds and shall deposit any such amount in the
Policy Payments Account and distribute such amount only for purposes of making the payments

-19-

OMM_US:80508072.6



for which a claim was made. Such amounts shall be disbursed by the Trustee to Holders of the
Series 2022B Insured Bonds in the same manner as principal and interest payments are to be
made with respect to the Series 2022B Bonds under the sections of the Indenture regarding
payment of Senior Lien Bonds. It shall not be necessary for such payments to be made by
checks or wire transfers separate from the check or wire transfer used to pay debt service with
other funds available to make such payments.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, the Authority
agrees to pay to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer: (i) a sum equal to the total of all amounts paid
by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer under the Series 2022B Bond Insurance Policy (the “Insurer
Advances”), which Insurer Advances shall be payable with monies deposited into the Series
2022B Debt Service Fund pursuant to Section 3.03(a) paragraph FIRST of the Indenture; and (ii)
interest on such Insurer Advances from the date paid by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer until
payment thereof in full, payable to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate per
annum (collectively, the “Insurer Reimbursement Amounts”), which Insurer Reimbursement
Amounts shall be payable as Financing Fees with monies deposited pursuant to Section 3.03(a)
paragraph THIRD of the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate” means the lesser of: (A) the greater of
() the per annum rate of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase
Bank at its principal office in The City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (any
change in such rate of interest to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan
Chase Bank) plus 3%, and (1) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2022B
Insured Bonds, and (B) the maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws
limiting interest rates. The Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days.

U] Funds held-in the Policy Payments Account shall not be invested by the
Trustee and may not be applied to satisfy any costs, expenses or liabilities of the Trustee. Any
funds remaining in the Policy Payments Account following a Payment Date of the Series 2022B
Insured Bonds shall promptly be remitted to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer.

Section 6.03 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy.

(@) The Trustee shall ascertain the necessity for making a claim upon the
Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy in accordance with the provisions of
subparagraph (d) hereof and shall provide notice to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer in accordance
with the terms of the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy at least five (5) Business
Days prior to each date upon which interest or principal is due on the Series 2022B Bonds.
Where deposits are required to be made by the Authority with the Trustee to the Series 2022B
Debt Service Fund more often than semi-annually, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series
2022B Bond Insurer of any failure of the Authority to make timely payment in full of such
deposits within two Business Days of the due date.

(b) The Authority shall repay, or cause to be repaid, any draws under the
Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and pay all related reasonable expenses
incurred by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer and shall pay interest thereon from the date of
payment by the Series 2022B Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate, which amounts shall be

-20 -

OMM_US:80508072.6



payable as a Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligation pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of
the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate means the lesser of: (x) the greater of (i) the per annum rate
of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank at its principal office
in the City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (“Prime Rate”) (any change in such
Prime Rate to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank) plus
3%, and (ii) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2022B Bonds, and (y) the
maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws limiting interest rates. The
Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed over a
year of 360 days. In the event JPMorgan Chase Bank ceases to announce its Prime Rate
publicly, Prime Rate shall be the publicly announced prime or base lending rate of such national
bank as the Series 2022B Bond Insurer shall specify.

If the interest provisions of this subparagraph (b) shall result in an effective rate of
interest which, for any period, exceeds the limit of the usury or any other laws applicable to the
indebtedness created herein, then all sums in excess of those lawfully collectible as interest for
the period in question shall, without further agreement or notice between or by any party hereto,
be applied as additional interest for any later periods of time when amounts are outstanding
hereunder to the extent that interest otherwise due hereunder for such periods plus such
additional interest would not exceed the limit of the usury or such other laws, and any excess
shall be applied upon principal immediately upon receipt of such moneys by the Series 2022B
Bond Insurer, with the same force and effect as if the Authority had specifically designated such
extra sums to be so applied and the Series 2022B Bond Insurer had agreed to accept such extra
payment(s) as additional interest for such later periods. In no event shall any agreed-to or actual
exaction as consideration for the indebtedness created herein exceed the limits imposed or
provided by the law applicable to this transaction for the use or detention of money or for
forbearance in seeking its collection.

(c) Repayment of draws and payment of expenses and accrued interest
thereon at the Late Payment Rate (collectively, “Policy Costs”) shall commence in the first
month following each draw, and each such monthly payment shall be in an amount at least equal
to 1/12 of the aggregate of Policy Costs related to such draw.

Policy Costs constitute Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligations with respect
to the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and shall be paid as provided in Section
3.03(c) of the Master Indenture.

Amounts in respect of Policy Costs paid to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer shall be
credited: first to interest due, then to the expenses due, and then to principal due. As and to the
extent that payments are made to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer on account of principal due, the
coverage under the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy will be increased by a like
amount, subject to the terms of the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

(d) All cash and investments in the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve
Account shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Series 2022B Debt Service Fund for payment
of debt service on the Series 2022B Bonds before any drawing may be made on the Series 2022B
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy or any other credit facility credited to the Series 2022B Debt
Service Reserve Account in lieu of cash (a “Credit Facility””). Payment of any Policy Costs shall

-21 -

OMM_US:80508072.6



be made prior to replenishment of any such cash amounts. Draws on all Credit Facilities
(including the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy) on which there is available
coverage shall be made by the Trustee on a pro-rata basis (calculated by reference to the
coverage then available thereunder) after applying all available cash and investments in the
Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account, payment of Policy Costs and reimbursement of
amounts with respect to other Credit Facilities shall be made on a pro-rata basis prior to
replenishment of any cash drawn from the Series 2022B Debt Service Reserve Account. For the
avoidance of doubt, “available coverage” means the coverage then available for disbursement
pursuant to the terms of the applicable Credit Facility without regard to the legal or financial
ability or willingness of the provider of such instrument to honor a claim or draw thereon or the
failure of such provider to honor any such claim or draw.

(e) The Indenture shall not be discharged until all Policy Costs owing to the
Series 2022B Bond Insurer shall have been paid in full. The Authority’s obligation to pay such
amounts shall expressly survive payment in full of the Series 2022B Bonds.

Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2022B Bond
Insurer; Rights of Series 2022B Bond Insurer.

@) [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2022B Bond Insurer.
(b) [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]

ARTICLE VII

MISCELLANEOUS
Section 7.01 Notices.

@ Any notice, request, direction, designation, consent, acknowledgment,
certification, appointment, waiver or other communication required or permitted by this
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture or the Series 2022B Bonds must be in writing except as
expressly provided otherwise in this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Any notice or other communication, unless otherwise specified, shall be
sufficiently given and deemed given when (i) mailed by first-class mail, postage prepaid,
addressed to the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture, or to the
Series 2022B Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, (ii) delivered by hand
and received by the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture or (iii)
sent by facsimile to the Authority or the Trustee at the number provided in the Indenture, or to
the Series 2022B Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, provided the
machine receiving such facsimile is equipped with automatic answer-back capacity. Any
addressee may designate additional or different addresses for purposes of this Section.

Section 7.02 Modification of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority
may, from time to time and at any time, execute and deliver Supplemental Indentures

-22 -
OMM_US:80508072.6



supplementing and/or amending this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture in the manner set forth
in Article VI1II of the Master Indenture.

Section 7.03  Severability. If any provision of this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture
shall be determined to be unenforceable, that shall not affect any other provision of this
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days. If a payment
date is not a Business Day at the place of payment or if any action required hereunder is required
on a date that is not a Business Day, then payment may be made at that place on the next
Business Day or such action may be taken on the next Business Day with the same effect as if
payment were made or the action taken on the stated date, and no interest shall accrue on that
payment for the intervening period.

Section 7.05 Governing Law. This Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 7.06 Captions. The captions in this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture are for
convenience only and do not define or limit the scope or intent of any provisions or Sections of
this Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

Section 7.07 Counterparts. This Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture may be signed in
several counterparts. Each will be an original, but all of them together constitute the same
instrument.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]

-23-

OMM_US:80508072.6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture to be duly executed all as of the date first above written.

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

Attest:

By:

[Chief Executive Officer]

By:

Secretary of the
Authority Governing Board

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

By:

[Vice President]

S-1

OMM_US:80508072.6



EXHIBIT A

[FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAXABLE SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022B
(Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Final Compounded Amount:

Initial Amount:

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of
or premium, if any, on this bond. Payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded
Amount of or premium, if any, on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority
and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the
Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Final Compounded Amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof until the maturity date hereof, at the interest
rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2022] and semiannually thereafter on October
1 and April 1 of each year) as provided in this bond.

A-1

OMM_US:80508072.6



Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

A-2

OMM_US:80508072.6



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022B Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

A-3

OMM_US:80508072.6



1. Master Indenture; Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the
“Series 2022B Bonds”). The Series 2022B Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the “Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022B Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), Current Interest Bonds and Series
2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate Initial Amount
of 9| |. The Series 2022B Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the Master
Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a “Senior Lien
Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds shall be on a parity with the
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series
1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the Authority on
February 9, 1999 (the “Series 1999C Bonds”), the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by the Authority on June 21,
2012, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A issued by the Authority on February 12, 2013, the Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2022A issued by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued
from time to time under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Master
Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase price of, and thereby
prepay or refund, or exchange, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the outstanding Series 1999C
Bonds maturing on October 1, 2022 and the outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing October
1, 2029 to their 2023, 2024 and 2025 sinking fund dates, as further described in the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2022B Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture
and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from
time to time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms
used but not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the
Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022B Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master

A-4

OMM_US:80508072.6



Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master
Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or
lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior
Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time Outstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. Interest on this bond shall accrue, but shall not be payable until
maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond, compounded
semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1, 2022].

Interest on overdue Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will
accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts (including interest
thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set forth in the
Indenture).

4. Payment of Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount. Payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2022B Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount as provided in the Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount will be paid in lawful money of
the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it will be made on
the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

5. Redemption.

€)] [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to
optional redemption and the Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__] are subject to optional redemption,
on any date on or after [October 1, 2032], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022B
Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

(b) [Make-Whole Optional Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds.

The Series 2022B Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Authority
at any time in whole or in part, at redemption price equal to the greater of:

(1) 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed; or

A-5

OMM_US:80508072.6



(2) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal
and interest to the stated maturity date of such Series 2022B Bonds to be
redeemed, not including any portion of those payments of interest accrued and
unpaid as of the date on which such Series 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed,
discounted to the date on which such Series 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed on a
semi-annual basis, assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months,
at the Treasury Rate (defined below) plus [ ] basis points, plus, in each case,
accrued interest on such Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed to but not including
the redemption date.

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any redemption date, the yield to maturity
as of such redemption date of U.S. Treasury securities with a constant maturity
most nearly equal to the period from the redemption date to the maturity date of
such Series 2022B Bond (taking into account any sinking fund installments for
such Series 2022B Bonds); however, if the period from the redemption date to
such maturity date (taking into account any sinking fund installments for such
Series 2022B Bonds) is less than one year, the yield to maturity of the U.S.
Treasury securities with a constant maturity of one year, in each case as compiled
and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Release H.15 which has become
publicly available at least two business days, but not more than 45 calendar days,
prior to the redemption date (excluding inflation indexed securities) or, if such
Release is no longer published, any publicly available source of similar market
data reasonably selected by the Trustee.]

(©) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in
the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Accreted Value to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

(d) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(e) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022B Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to

A-6

OMM_US:80508072.6



give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2022B Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture will
be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by
the addressee.

U] Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022B
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

6. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds are available in denominations such that the Accreted Value of such Capital
Appreciation Bonds at their maturity shall be $5,000 or an integral multiple thereof. A holder
may transfer or exchange Series 2022B Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture and the
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder, among
other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any taxes
and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

7. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

8. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the Accreted Value or Final
Compounded Amount or premium, if any, remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be
paid to or for the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look
only to the Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

9. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any, on all
Outstanding Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then
payable by the Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all
Supplemental Indentures thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look
only to the deposited money and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits
with the Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture
sufficient to pay in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any,
on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was
made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master
Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

10.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022B Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master

A-7
OMM_US:80508072.6



Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owner of this bond or any Series 2022B Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

11. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022B Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022B Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

12. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022B Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022B
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

13.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

14.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

A-8

OMM_US:80508072.6



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint
agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:
(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80508072.6



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

A-10

OMM_US:80508072.6



EXHIBIT B
[FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAXABLE SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022B

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No.

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Registered Owner:

Principal Sum:

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this
bond. Payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this bond is a special
limited obligation of the Authority and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of
Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date stated above, unless
earlier redeemed, and to pay from those sources interest thereon at the Interest Rate stated above,
as provided in this bond.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

B-1



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022B Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

B-2



1. Master Indenture; Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S.
Bank, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the
“Series 2022B Bonds”). The Series 2022B Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the “Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022B Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds (including this bond) and Series
2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $] |]. The Series 2022B Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the
Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a
“Senior Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds shall be on a
parity with the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the
Authority on February 9, 1999 (the “Series 1999C Bonds”), the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by
the Authority on June 21, 2012, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt
Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A issued by the Authority on February 12,
2013, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A issued by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other
Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent
provided in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase
price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or exchange, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the
outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing on October 1, 2022 and the outstanding Series 1999C
Bonds maturing October 1, 2029 to their 2023, 2024 and 2025 sinking fund dates, as further
described in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2022B Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture
and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from
time to time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms
used but not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the
Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022B Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master

B-3



Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or
lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior
Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time Outstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. This bond shall bear interest from its date until its maturity or prior
redemption at the Interest Rate shown on the face of this bond. Interest on overdue principal
and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this
bond until all overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such
amounts is provided for as set forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on
the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months.

4. Interest Payment and Record Dates. Interest hereon will be due and payable on
[October 1, 2022] and on each October 1 and April 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2022B Bond, as defined in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture,
interest hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is
a Book-Entry Series 2022B Bond, interest will be paid as provided in the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal. Principal of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2022B Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of principal
as provided in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. Principal and interest will be paid in
lawful money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it
will be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue on that payment for the
intervening period as a result.

6. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest
Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional
redemption, and the Series 2022B Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing
on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on
or after [October 1, 2032], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from
any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of such Series 2022B Bonds so redeemed plus
accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.]

B-4



(b) [Make-Whole Optional Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds.

The Series 2022B Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Authority
at any time in whole or in part, at redemption price equal to the greater of:

(1) 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed; or

(2) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal
and interest to the stated maturity date of such Series 2022B Bonds to be
redeemed, not including any portion of those payments of interest accrued and
unpaid as of the date on which such Series 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed,
discounted to the date on which such Series 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed on a
semi-annual basis, assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months,
at the Treasury Rate (defined below) plus [ ] basis points, plus, in each case,
accrued interest on such Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed to but not including
the redemption date.

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any redemption date, the yield to maturity
as of such redemption date of U.S. Treasury securities with a constant maturity
most nearly equal to the period from the redemption date to the maturity date of
such Series 2022B Bond (taking into account any sinking fund installments for
such Series 2022B Bonds); however, if the period from the redemption date to
such maturity date (taking into account any sinking fund installments for such
Series 2022B Bonds) is less than one year, the yield to maturity of the U.S.
Treasury securities with a constant maturity of one year, in each case as compiled
and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Release H.15 which has become
publicly available at least two business days, but not more than 45 calendar days,
prior to the redemption date (excluding inflation indexed securities) or, if such
Release is no longer published, any publicly available source of similar market
data reasonably selected by the Trustee.]

() [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking
fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for
such mandatory redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
T
"Maturity

B-5



(d) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(e) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022B Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to
give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2022B Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture will
be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by
the addressee.

()] Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022B
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

7. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds are available in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A
holder may transfer or exchange Series 2022B Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture
and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder,
among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

8. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

9. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal of, premium, if
any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for the account of
the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the Authority and
not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all Outstanding Bonds (including this
bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the Authority under the
Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures thereto will be
discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money and securities
for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or Government
Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with

B-6



respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no
longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022B Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owners of this bond or any Series 2022B Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022B Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022B Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022B Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022B
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

14.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

B-7



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act
for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on
the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must
be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor
institution.)

B-8



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

B-9

OMM_US:80508072.5



EXHIBIT C
[FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAXABLE SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022B
(Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Principal Amount at Maturity: $

Initial Amount: $

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
or interest on this bond. Payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
on or interest on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority and is secured
only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The
Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the principal amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof through the end of the Accretion Period at

OMM_US:80508072.6

C-1



the interest rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2022] and semiannually thereafter
on October 1 and April 1 of each year (each, a “Compounding Date™) as provided in this bond.
Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the
Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount), at the interest rate specified above.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

OMM_US:80508072.6

C-2



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022B Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

OMM_US:80508072.6
C-1



1. Master Indenture; Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority
has entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the
“Series 2022B Bonds”). The Series 2022B Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the “Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022B Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds and Series 2022B Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), are being issued in the aggregate Initial
Amount of $] ]. The Series 2022B Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the
Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a
“Senior Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds shall be on a
parity with the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the
Authority on February 9, 1999 (the “Series 1999C Bonds”), the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by
the Authority on June 21, 2012, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt
Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A issued by the Authority on February 12,
2013, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A issued by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other
Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent
provided in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022B Bonds are being issued to pay the purchase
price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or exchange, the Tendered Bonds, and to refund the
outstanding Series 1999C Bonds maturing on October 1, 2022 and the outstanding Series 1999C
Bonds maturing October 1, 2029 to their 2023, 2024 and 2025 sinking fund dates, as further
described in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2022B Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture
and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from
time to time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms
used but not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the
Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022B Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master

OMM_US:80508072.6

C-2



Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or
lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior
Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time Outstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. During the Accretion Period, interest on this bond shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value
as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount) from the Interest Payment Date next
preceding the date of authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or
unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest
Payment Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following
the Conversion Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from the Conversion Date. If
interest on this Bond shall be in default, the bond issued in exchange for the bond surrendered for
transfer or exchange pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest
Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the bond surrendered.

Interest on overdue principal or Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue
interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts
(including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set
forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360
days and twelve 30-day months.

4. Interest Payment and Record Dates. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, interest
hereon will be due and payable on each April 1 and October 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2022B Bond, as defined in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture,
interest hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is
a Book Entry Series 2022B Bond, as defined in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, interest
will be paid as provided in the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal or Accreted Value. Payment of the principal or Accreted
Value of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior redemption upon surrender of this bond to the
Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds, the Paying Agent
may make arrangements for payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, as provided in the
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The principal or Accreted Value of, and interest thereon,

OMM_US:80508072.6

C-3



will be paid in lawful money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-
Business Day, it will be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

6. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022B Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional
redemption and the Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after
[October 1, 2032], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys
that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
Accreted Value on such Series 2022B Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as of the
date fixed for redemption.]

(b) [Make-Whole Optional Redemption of the Series 2022B Bonds.

The Series 2022B Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Authority
at any time in whole or in part, at redemption price equal to the greater of:

(1) 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed; or

(2) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal
and interest to the stated maturity date of such Series 2022B Bonds to be
redeemed, not including any portion of those payments of interest accrued and
unpaid as of the date on which such Series 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed,
discounted to the date on which such Series 2022B Bonds are to be redeemed on a
semi-annual basis, assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months,
at the Treasury Rate (defined below) plus [ ] basis points, plus, in each case,
accrued interest on such Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed to but not including
the redemption date.

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any redemption date, the yield to maturity
as of such redemption date of U.S. Treasury securities with a constant maturity
most nearly equal to the period from the redemption date to the maturity date of
such Series 2022B Bond (taking into account any sinking fund instaliments for
such Series 2022B Bonds); however, if the period from the redemption date to
such maturity date (taking into account any sinking fund installments for such
Series 2022B Bonds) is less than one year, the yield to maturity of the U.S.
Treasury securities with a constant maturity of one year, in each case as compiled
and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Release H.15 which has become
publicly available at least two business days, but not more than 45 calendar days,
prior to the redemption date (excluding inflation indexed securities) or, if such
Release is no longer published, any publicly available source of similar market
data reasonably selected by the Trustee.]

OMM_US:80508072.6

Cc-4



(©) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds that are Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to
the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory
redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

(d) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022B Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(e) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022B Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days before each
redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022B Bond to be redeemed, which notice may be
conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to give any required notice of
redemption will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any Series 2022B
Bond in respect of which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided in the
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture will be conclusively presumed to have been given
whether or not actually received by the addressee.

()] Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022B Bonds
called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption at the
applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the redemption date; in such case
when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, interest on the
Series 2022B Bonds to be redeemed ceases to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

7. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022B Convertible Capital

Appreciation Bonds are (i) on any date during the Accretion Period, available in denominations
such that the Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof; and (ii) on any date subsequent to the Accretion Period, available in denominations of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A holder may transfer or exchange Series 2022B Bonds
in accordance with the Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. The
Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder, among other things, to furnish appropriate
endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any taxes and fees required by law or permitted
by the Master Indenture.

OMM_US:80508072.6

C-5



8. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

9. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal or Accreted Value
of, premium, if any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for
the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the
Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on all Outstanding
Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the
Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures
thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money
and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or
Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the
principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on any portion of the
Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer
be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to
the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022B Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owner of this bond or any Series 2022B Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022B Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022B Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022B Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022B
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

OMM_US:80508072.6

C-6



14.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

OMM_US:80508072.6

C-7



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80508072.6



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

C-1

OMM_US:80508072.6



EXHIBITD
[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022B CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS]

[see attached]

D-1

OMM_US:80508072.6



EXHIBIT E

[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022B CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION
BONDS]

[see attached]

E-1

OMM_US:80508072.6



EXHIBIT C-3
FORM OF FOURTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

[to be attached)]

C-3-1



FOURTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE
by and between the
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to
U.S. Bank National Association,
as Trustee

Dated as of | 1, 2022]

Relating to
&y |

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2022C

OMM_US:80523996.5



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(This table of contents is not part of the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture and is only for
convenience of reference. The captions herein are of no legal effect and do not vary the meaning
or legal effect of any part of the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture.)

Page
ARTICLE | DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS ... 2
Section 1.01  DefiNItiONS.......cooiiiiiiieiisise e 2
Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture.........c...cccccovene.. 4
Section 1.03  Article and Section ReferenCeS.........cocvvvreriiininisieeese s 4
ARTICLE Il THE SERIES 2022C BONDS........cooiiiie et e e 4
Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2022C Bonds; Principal Amount and
INIETAL AMOUNT.....eiiiecece et nreas 4
Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity..........ccccceeveviveneiiesnennene 4
Section 2.03  NO ACCEIEIALION ......ocviiieiieieeie et nns 4
Section 2.04. Terms of the Series 2022C BONS .........ccocvierieiiniiiieie e 5
Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2022C BONGS..........ccocviiriiiniiienene s 8
Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2022C BONAS ..........ccceeveeriiiiieieeie e 8
ARTICLE [ REDEMPTION ... ..oiiiie ettt ettt e e e a e e e 10
Section 3.01  Notices to BONAhOIErS..........cooviiiiiieiee e 10
Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2022C Bonds..........cccccvevvvrveriennnnnn. 11
Section 3.03 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2022C Bonds............ccccevevveenene. 11
Section 3.04 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2022C Bonds............ccccevuvenene. 12
Section 3.05 Payment of Series 2022C Bonds Called for Redemption........................ 12
Section 3.06  Selection of Series 2022C Bonds for Optional Redemption; Series
2022C Bonds Redeemed iN Part.........ccooeveieiininininieiee e 12
Section 3.07 Effect of Call for Redemption...........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 13
ARTICLE IV ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF......... 13
Section 4.01  Establishment of Funds and ACCOUNTS.........ccceviiiriiiienieiese e 13
Section 4.02  Application Of FUNS.........cccoviieiiie e 14
Section 4.03  Series 2022C Debt Service FUNd ..........cccoovviiiiiiiniieieseseee e 14
Section 4.04  Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve ACCOUNt..........ccoovrerereniniesieinnnns 15

OMM_US:80523996.5



Section 4.05 Series 2022C Costs of 1Ssuance FUN .......c..oeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 15

ARTICLE V TAX COVENANTS ..ottt e e s e e e e nnneas 16
ARTICLE VI 16
Section 6.01  Application of ArtiCle VI .......ccooviiiiiiee s 16
Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy ............ 17
Section 6.03 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve
SUPELY POLICY. .. 18
Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2022C
Bond Insurer; Rights of Series 2022C Bond INSUrer. ...........ccccceevvevvennen. 20
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2022C Bond INSUTEr. ........cooveieieiiniieninesieees 20
ARTICLE VI MISCELLANEQUS........ootiititie sttt st 20
RSTTo L] A O R 0] (o= SRR 20
Section 7.02 Modification of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture........................ 21
Section 7.03  SeVErability ........cccooiiiiiiie e 21
Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days ............c.c.cee...... 21
Section 7.05  GOVEIMING LAW .....ooviiviiiiiiiiiiiisieieie et 21
LT {1 A G I O o) £ o] SRR 21
SeCtion 7.07  COUNTEIPAITS ....c.veveieteiiesii sttt bbbttt bbbt 21
EXHIBIT A FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND .......ccccoviiiiiiiiienece e A-1
EXHIBIT B FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND.......cccoi i B-1
EXHIBIT C FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND...........ccc...... C-1
EXHIBIT D ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022C CAPITAL
APPRECIATION BONDS. ..ottt D-1
EXHIBIT E ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022C CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL
APPRECIATION BONDS......ccooiiiiiieitiinieie e E-1

OMM_US:80523996.5



FOURTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

This FOURTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE dated as of | 1,
2022] is by and between the ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a
joint powers authority established under Article I, Chapter 5, Division 7, of Title 1 of the
California Government Code and pursuant to an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement dated as of December 18, 1996, as amended, by and between the City of Long Beach
and the City of Los Angeles (the “Authority”), and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee
(the “Trustee), and supplements and amends the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1,
1999, by and between the Authority and the Trustee (as amended, the “Master Indenture”).
Capitalized terms used herein which are not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in
the Indenture.

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2016 the Authority issued $556,860,000 aggregate principal
amount of Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B;

WHEREAS, the Authority has made a tender and exchange offer to the holders of the
Series 2016B Bonds, and the holders of certain of such bonds have elected to tender such bonds
for purchase by the Authority, or to exchange such bonds for Series 2022C Bonds (such tendered
or exchanged Series 2016B Bonds, the “Tendered Bonds”);

WHEREAS, Section 2.08 of the Master Indenture provides that the Authority may issue
Refunding Bonds from time to time for the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a portion of
its outstanding Bonds;

WHEREAS, Section 2.09(c) of the Master Indenture (as amended by Section 6.01 of the
Eleventh Supplemental Indenture) provides that the Authority may issue Second Subordinate
Lien Bonds for the purpose of refunding Bonds previously issued under the Master Indenture
provided that certain conditions are satisfied, including, among others, the requirement that
Maximum Annual Debt Service on all outstanding Second Subordinate Lien Bonds following the
issuance of such Refunding Bonds will not exceed Maximum Annual Debt Service on all
outstanding Second Subordinate Lien Bonds prior to the issuance of such Refunding Bonds;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue Refunding Bonds for the purpose of providing
funds to pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund in full, or to exchange, the
Tendered Bonds;

WHEREAS, Section 8.02 of the Master Indenture provides for the execution and delivery
of Supplemental Indentures setting forth the terms of such Refunding Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now, by execution and delivery of this Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture and in compliance with the provisions of the Master Indenture, sets forth
the terms of its Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022C, provides for the deposit and use of the proceeds
of the Series 2022C Bonds and makes other provisions relating to the Series 2022C Bonds.

OMM_US:80523996.5
-1-



ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS

Section 1.01 Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to terms used in this
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture unless clearly stated otherwise:

“Accretion Period shall mean with respect to any Series 2022C Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond, the period from the date of delivery of such Series 2022C Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bond through the Conversion Date.

“Authorized Denominations™ shall mean, (i) with respect to the Series 2022C Bonds
which are Current Interest Bonds, $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, (ii) with respect to the
Series 2022C Bonds which are Capital Appreciation Bonds, denominations such that the
Accreted Value of such Series 2022C Bonds as of the maturity date thereof shall equal $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof, and (iii) with respect to the Series 2022C Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds (a) on any date during the Accretion Period, denominations such that the
Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and
(b) subsequent to the Accretion Period, denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

“Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds™” shall mean the Series 2022C Bonds held by DTC (or
its nominee) as the registered owner thereof pursuant to the terms and provisions of Section 2.05
hereof.

“Cede & Co.” shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any successor nominee
of DTC with respect to the Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds.

“Conversion Date” shall mean [October 1, 20 ], the date of expiration of the Accretion
Period.

“DTC” shall mean The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company
organized under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns.

“Eleventh Supplemental Indenture” shall mean the Eleventh Supplemental Trust
Indenture dated as of May 1, 2016, between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and
supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Indenture.

“Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean this Fourteenth Supplemental Trust
Indenture dated as of | , 2022], between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended
and supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Indenture.

“Indenture” shall mean the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1, 1999, between
the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time (including by
this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture) in accordance therewith.

“Participants’ shall mean the participants of DTC which include securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations.

OMM_US:80523996.5



“Principal Payment Date” shall mean (a) for Series 2022C Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds, October 1 in each of the years in which the principal amount of a Series 2022C
Bonds that is a Current Interest Bond is due and payable, (b) for Series 2022C Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of any year in which the Final Compounded Amount of
any Series 2022C Bond that is a Capital Appreciation Bond is due and payable, and (c) for Series
2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of the year in which the principal
amount or Final Compounded Amount of such Series 2022C Bond is due and payable.

“Record Date shall mean March 15 for any April 1 Interest Payment Date and
September 15 for any October 1 Interest Payment Date.

“Registrar” for purposes of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture shall mean the
Trustee.

“Representation Letter” shall mean the Blanket Letter of Representations dated
December 18, 1998 from the Authority and the Trustee to DTC, or such similar letter or
agreement filed with DTC from time to time.

“Series 2016B Bonds™ shall mean the $556,860,000 aggregate principal amount of
Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Eleventh Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B”.

“Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy” shall mean the municipal bond insurance policy
issued by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer insuring, as provided therein, the payment when due of
the principal of and interest on the Series 2022C Insured Bonds.

“Series 2022C Bond Insurer” shall mean [ ], a [ ]
insurance company, and its successors and assigns. The Series 2022C Bond Insurer shall
constitute a Bond Insurer as such term is defined in the Indenture.

“Series 2022C Bonds” shall mean the $] | aggregate principal amount and Initial
Amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture
and designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022C”.

“Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds™ shall mean the Series 2022C
Bonds designated as “Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds” pursuant to Section 2.01 of this
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture and issued pursuant to Sections 2.01 and 2.03 of this
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created in
Section 4.01(a) of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022C Debt Service Fund™ shall mean the fund by that name created in Section
4.01(b) of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture and into which money shall be deposited to
pay debt service on the Series 2022C Bonds.

OMM_US:80523996.5



“Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account” shall mean the account by that name
created in the Debt Service Reserve Fund pursuant to Section 4.01 of this Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy” shall mean the municipal bond debt
service reserve insurance policy issued by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer to be deposited in the
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account with the face amount of $| |, which is the
Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to the Series 2022C Bonds on the date of issuance
of the Series 2022C Bonds pursuant to Section 4.04 of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2022C Insured Bonds™ shall mean all the Series 2022C Bonds maturing on

October 1 in the years | .

“Series 2022C Rebate Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created and maintained
pursuant to Article V of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Tax Certificate” shall mean the [Tax and Nonarbitrage Certificate] executed by the
Authority, dated the date of issuance of the Series 2022C Bonds, as amended and supplemented
from time to time.

Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 1.01 of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, all capitalized
words, terms and phrases used in this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture shall have the same
meanings herein as in the Indenture.

Section 1.03 Article and Section References. Except as otherwise indicated, references
to Articles and Sections are to Articles and Sections of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

ARTICLE II
THE SERIES 2022C BONDS

Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2022C Bonds; Principal Amount and Initial
Amount. There is hereby authorized and created a Series of Bonds, designated as the “Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2022C” to be issued in the aggregate principal amount and Initial Amount of
3 |. Said Bonds shall consist of “Current Interest Bonds”, “Capital Appreciation
Bonds” and “Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds”.

Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity. The Series 2022C Bonds
are issued under and subject to the terms of the Indenture, shall be Second Subordinate Lien
Bonds as defined pursuant to the Indenture and are secured by and payable from the Trust Estate
in accordance with the terms of the Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds shall be on a parity with
the outstanding Series 2016B Bonds and any other Second Subordinate Lien Bonds issued under
the Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds are being
issued to pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund in full, the Tendered Bonds.

Section 2.03 No Acceleration. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default with
respect to the Series 2022C Bonds, and notwithstanding any other provision in the Master

OMM_US:80523996.5
-4-



Indenture or this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture to the contrary, the Final Compounded
Amounts of, and interest on, any Series 2022C Bond may not be accelerated or otherwise
declared due and payable prior to its stated Principal Payment Date. Except as expressly
provided in this Section 2.03, the remedies available to the holders of the Series 2022C Bonds
upon the occurrence of any Event of Default shall be as set forth in Article VI of the Master
Indenture in all respects.

Section 2.04. Terms of the Series 2022C Bonds. The Series 2022C Bonds shall, upon
initial issuance, be dated their date of initial delivery. The Series 2022C Bonds shall be issued
only in Authorized Denominations. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit A, which exhibit is a part of this Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be
substantially in the form of Exhibit B, which exhibit is a part of this Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit C, which exhibit is a part of this Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds shall be executed, on behalf of the Authority,
by either the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Authority and such
signature may be a facsimile.

The Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date.

@ Current Interest Bonds. Each Series 2022C Bond that is a Current Interest
Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication
thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series
2022C Bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or unless such date of
authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in
which event such Series 2022C Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment
Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date, in which event such
Series 2022C Bond shall bear interest from its date of initial delivery. If interest on the Series
2022C Bonds shall be in default, Series 2022C Bonds issued in exchange for Series 2022C
Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange pursuant to the Indenture shall bear interest from the
Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the Series 2022C Bonds
surrendered to their maturity date or date fixed for redemption.

Interest on the Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be paid on each
Interest Payment Date. Principal on the Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds
shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date. Interest on the Series 2022C Bonds shall
be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve (12) thirty (30)-day months.

The Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall mature, subject to
redemption, in the years and in the principal amounts and shall bear interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Principal Interest
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%)

OMM_US:80523996.5



Maturity Date Principal Interest
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%)

Under the Indenture, the Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall
constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

(b) Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts and shall mature, subject to prior redemption,
in the years and in the Final Compounded Amounts and shall accrete interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Initial Interest ~ Final Compounded

(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%) Amount ($)

[*Series 2022C Insured Bonds]

Under the Indenture, the Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall
constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds.”

Interest on the Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds on October 1 and April 1 of each year shall be as set forth on the Accreted Value Table
attached hereto as Exhibit D, which is part of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The
Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds on
any date other than October 1 and April 1 of any year shall be calculated by the Trustee using
straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding absent manifest error.

(©) Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2022C
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts, shall bear interest at the

OMM_US:80523996.5



rates, shall have the Accreted Values as of the Conversion Date and shall mature in the years and
in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Initial Interest Accreted Value as Principal Amount at
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%) of Conversion Maturity (3$)
Date ($)

Under the Master Indenture, (i) during the Accretion Period, the Series 2022C
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds” and
(ii) subsequent to the Accretion Period, the Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

During the Accretion Period, interest on the Series 2022C Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but shall not be payable, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds on each October 1 and April 1 prior to the Conversion Date shall be as set forth on the
Accreted Value Table attached as Exhibit E, which is part of this Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture. Prior to the Conversion Date, the Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2022C
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds on any date other than October 1 and April 1 shall be
calculated by the Trustee using straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding
absent manifest error.

Subsequent to the Accretion Period, each Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal
amount), at the applicable rate set forth above. Such interest shall be calculated on the basis of a
year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months. Each Series 2022C Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of
authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which
event such Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such
date of authentication, or unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the
next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series 2022C Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment Date, or unless
such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following the Conversion Date, in
which event such Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from

OMM_US:80523996.5
-7-



the Conversion Date. If interest on the Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
shall be in default, Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds issued in exchange for
Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange
pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to which
interest has been paid in full on the Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
surrendered.

(d) Payments.

Payment of principal of the Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be
made upon surrender of such Series 2022C Bonds to the Trustee. Payment of interest on the
Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds which are not Book-Entry Series 2022C
Bonds shall be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed by first-class mail to the person who
is the registered owner thereof on the Record Date, and such payment shall be mailed to such
owner at his address as it appears on the registration books of the Registrar. Payment of interest
on Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds shall be made as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. Payment
of the Final Compounded Amount or the redemption price of the Series 2022C Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be made upon surrender of such Series 2022C Bonds to the
Trustee. The payment of interest on the Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
subsequent to the Conversion Date that are, in each case, Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds shall
be made as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. Payment of interest on the Series 2022C
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds subsequent to the Conversion Date that are not, in each
case, Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds shall be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed by
first-class mail to the person who is the registered owner thereof on the Record Date, and such
payment shall be mailed to such owner at his address as it appears on the registration books of
the Registrar. All payments in respect of the Series 2022C Bonds shall be made by the Authority
in lawful money of the United States of America.

If the principal of or interest on (or Accreted Value of) a Series 2022C Bond becomes
due and payable, but shall not have been paid when due, and no provision is made for its
payment, then interest on overdue principal (or overdue Accreted Value) and, to the extent
lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate applicable to such Series 2022C Bond until all
overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is
provided for as set forth in the Indenture and in this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture).

Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2022C Bonds. Series 2022C Bonds which are
delivered to the Registrar for exchange pursuant to the Indenture may be exchanged for an equal
total principal amount or Initial Amount, as applicable, of Series 2022C Bonds of the same type,
interest rate and maturity date in Authorized Denominations.

Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds.

@ Upon initial issuance, the registered owner of all of the Series 2022C
Bonds shall be DTC. Payment of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, any Series 2022C Bond registered in the
name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer of New York clearing house or equivalent
next day funds or by wire transfer of same day funds to the account of Cede & Co. at the address

OMM_US:80523996.5



indicated on the Record Date or special record date for Cede & Co. in the registration books of
the Registrar.

(b) The Series 2022C Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate
single authenticated fully registered Series 2022C Bond for each separate stated maturity with
the same interest rate. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Series 2022C Bonds shall be
registered in the registration books of the Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC. The Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2022C Bond Insurer and the Authority may treat
DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Series 2022C Bonds registered in its
name for the purposes of payment of the principal or Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022C Bonds, selecting the Series
2022C Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be
given to the holders of the Series 2022C Bonds under the Indenture, registering the transfer of
Series 2022C Bonds, and, subject to Section 6.05 hereof, obtaining any consent or other action to
be taken by Bondholders and for all other purposes whatsoever, and none of the Trustee, the
Registrar, the Series 2022C Bond Insurer or the Authority shall be affected by any notice to the
contrary. None of the Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2022C Bond Insurer or the Authority
shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant, any person claiming a beneficial
ownership interest in the Series 2022C Bonds under or through DTC or any Participant, or any
other person who is not shown on the registration books as being a Bondholder, with respect to
the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant; the payment by DTC or any
Participant of any amount in respect of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022C Bonds; any notice which is
permitted or required to be given to the holders of the Series 2022C Bonds under the Indenture;
the selection by DTC or any Participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial
redemption of the Series 2022C Bonds; any consent given or other action taken by DTC as
Bondholder; or any other purpose. The Trustee shall pay the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022C Bonds only
to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy
and discharge the Authority’s obligations with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2022C Bonds to
the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated
Series 2022C Bond evidencing the obligation of the Authority to make payments of the principal
or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption price, and interest, as applicable, pursuant
to the Indenture. Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC
has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions
herein with respect to Record Dates, the word “Cede & Co.” in this Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(©) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture to the contrary, so long as
any Series 2022C Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption
price of, and interest on, as applicable, such Series 2022C Bond and all notices with respect to
such Series 2022C Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the
Representation Letter.

OMM_US:80523996.5



(d) Subject to Section 6.05 hereof, in connection with any notice or other
communication to be provided to the holders of the Series 2022C Bonds pursuant to the
Indenture by the Authority or the Trustee with respect to any consent or other action to be taken
by the holders of the Series 2022C Bonds, the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, shall
establish a record date for such consent or other action and give DTC notice of such record date
not less than fifteen (15) calendar days in advance of such record date to the extent possible.

(e) NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES, THE CITY OF
LONG BEACH, THE REGISTRAR, THE SERIES 2022C BOND INSURER OR THE
TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DTC
PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS WITH
RESPECT TO: THE PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT OF THE PRINCIPAL OR THE FINAL COMPOUNDED AMOUNT AND
THE REDEMPTION PRICE OF, AND INTEREST ON, AS APPLICABLE, THE SERIES
2022C BONDS; THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE TO DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS; THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS
MAINTAINED BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT,
OR ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS OWNER OF THE
SERIES 2022C BONDS.

ARTICLE I
REDEMPTION

Section 3.01 Notices to Bondholders. The Trustee shall give notice of redemption
(which, in the case of optional redemption, may be conditional), in the name of the Authority, to
the holders of the Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this Article 111 at least thirty
(30) days (or at least twenty (20) days for Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds) but not more than
sixty (60) days before each date fixed for redemption. The Trustee shall send such notices of
redemption by first-class mail (or with respect to the Series 2022C Bonds held by DTC, in
accordance with DTC operating procedures) to each owner of a Series 2022C Bond to be
redeemed; each such notice shall be sent to the owner’s registered address.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed, the date
of issue, the maturity date thereof, if less than all Series 2022C Bonds of a maturity are called for
redemption, the numbers of the Series 2022C Bonds, the principal amount or Initial Amount, as
applicable, and the CUSIP numbers assigned to the Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed, the
principal or Accreted Value, as applicable, to be redeemed and the interest rate applicable to the
Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed, the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price, the
place or places of payment, the Trustee’s or Paying Agent’s name, that payment will be made
upon presentation and surrender of the Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed to the Trustee, that
interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for redemption and not paid will be paid as specified in
said notice, and that on and after said date interest thereon will cease to accrue on the Series
2022C Bonds called for redemption, to the extent that moneys for payment of the redemption
price, including accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, are being held in trust by the
Trustee therefor. In the case of optional redemptions pursuant to Section 3.02 of this Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture, each such notice shall further state that the proposed redemption is
conditioned on there being on deposit in the applicable account, on the date fixed for redemption,

OMM_US:80523996.5
-10-



sufficient money to pay the full redemption price, plus accrued but unpaid interest to the date
fixed for redemption, or the Accreted Value, as applicable, of the Series 2022C Bonds to be
redeemed.

Failure to give any required notice of redemption as to any particular Series 2022C Bonds
will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any other Series 2022C Bonds with
respect to which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided herein will be
conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the addressee.
When notice of redemption is given, Series 2022C Bonds called for redemption become due and
payable on the date fixed for redemption at the applicable redemption price; provided that, in the
case of optional redemption, sufficient money to pay the full redemption price of the Series
2022C Bonds to be redeemed is on deposit in the applicable account on the date fixed for
redemption. In the event that funds are deposited by the Authority with the Paying Agent
sufficient for redemption, interest on the Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed will cease to
accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2022C Bonds. The Series 2022C
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to
optional redemption, and the Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 __] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after [October
1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that may be
provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such
Series 2022C Bonds so redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without
premium.]

[The Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after
[October 1, 20__] are not subject to optional redemption, and the Series 2022C Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional
redemption, on any date on or after [October 1, __ 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022C Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

[The Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before
[October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional redemption, and the Series 2022C Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional
redemption, on any date on or after [October 1, ___ 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as
of the date fixed for redemption.]

Section 3.03 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2022C Bonds. [The Series 2022C
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory redemption:]

OMM_US:80523996.5
-11-



Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be

(October 1) Redeemed

"Maturity

[The Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1,
[ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1
in the years and in the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption
price equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Accreted Value to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

[The Series 2022C Bonds that are Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each
October 1 in the years and in the respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a
redemption price equal to the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed
for such mandatory redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

Section 3.04 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2022C Bonds. The Series
2022C Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption as provided in the Indenture.

Section 3.05 Payment of Series 2022C Bonds Called for Redemption. Upon surrender
to the Trustee, Series 2022C Bonds called for redemption shall be paid at the redemption price
stated in the notice, plus, when applicable, interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.06 Selection of Series 2022C Bonds for Optional Redemption; Series 2022C
Bonds Redeemed in Part. Series 2022C Bonds may be selected for optional redemption by the
Authority pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof, in whole or in part, in such order of maturity as the

OMM_US:80523996.5
-12-



Authority may direct and within a maturity by lot, selected in such manner as the Trustee may
deem appropriate (subject, with respect to Series 2022C Bonds held by DTC, to DTC’s
operational requirements); provided that Series 2022C Bonds may be redeemed only in
Authorized Denominations. Upon surrender of a Series 2022C Bond to be redeemed in part
only, the Trustee will authenticate for the holder a new Series 2022C Bond or Series 2022C
Bonds of the same maturity equal in principal amount or Initial Amount, as applicable, to the
unredeemed portion of the Series 2022C Bond surrendered.

Section 3.07 Effect of Call for Redemption. On the date so designated for redemption,
notice having been given in the manner and under the conditions provided herein and moneys for
payment of the redemption price, including, when applicable, accrued interest to the date fixed
for redemption, being held in trust to pay the redemption price, (a) the Series 2022C Bonds so
called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption, (b) interest
on such Series 2022C Bonds shall cease to accrue from and after such date fixed for redemption,
(c) such Series 2022C Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under the
Indenture, and (d) the owners of such Series 2022C Bonds shall have no rights in respect thereof
except to receive payment of the redemption price. Series 2022C Bonds which have been duly
called for redemption under the provisions of this Article Il and for which moneys for the
payment of the redemption price thereof, together with interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption, shall have been set aside and held in trust for the holders of the Series 2022C Bonds
to be redeemed, all as provided in this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, shall not be deemed
to be Outstanding under the provisions of the Indenture.

ARTICLE IV
ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS
AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF

Section 4.01 Establishment of Funds and Accounts. There is hereby established
within the Debt Service Reserve Fund established pursuant to Section 3.02(c) of the Master
Indenture, the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account, to be held and administered by the
Trustee in accordance with the Indenture and Section 4.04 of this Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture. In addition, the following funds are hereby established pursuant to Section 3.02 of the
Master Indenture, each of which shall be held and administered by the Trustee as set forth
herein:

(@) The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund, Series 2022C (the “Series
2022C Costs of Issuance Fund”); and

(b) The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds Debt Service Fund, Series 2022C (the “Series
2022C Debt Service Fund”), which shall contain an Interest Account, a Principal Account and a
Redemption Account for purposes of the Indenture.

OMM_US:80523996.5
13-



Section 4.02 Application of Funds.

The net proceeds of the sale of the Series 2022C Bonds, being the amount of
$[ 1 [(of which $ | shall be paid directly by the initial purchasers to the
Series 2022C Bond Insurer for the issuance of the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy and the
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy)], shall be received by the Trustee and be
deposited as follows:

@) the sum of $ | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the
principal payment account of the Series 2016B Bonds to be used, together with funds held under
the Indenture and available for such purpose, to pay and refund the Tendered Bonds.

(b) the sum of 3| | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Series
2022C Debt Service Reserve Account.

(©) The balance (being $] |) shall be deposited by the Trustee into
the Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund.

Section 4.03 Series 2022C Debt Service Fund. The Trustee shall withdraw funds and
make payments from the Revenue Fund for deposit in the Series 2022C Debt Service Fund at the
times and in the amounts required by Section 3.03(a) - EIGHTH of the Master Indenture in
respect of the Series 2022C Bonds. With the funds made available to it pursuant to Section 3.03
of the Master Indenture for such purpose, the Trustee shall make deposits or transfers into the
Series 2022C Debt Service Fund as follows:

@ Interest Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Interest
Account of the Series 2022C Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided in the Master Indenture
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) and this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay
interest due on the Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds. The Trustee shall also
deposit into the Interest Account any other amounts deposited with it for deposit in such Interest
Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts
in the Interest Account shall be credited to such account.

(b) Principal Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Principal
Account of the Series 2022C Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided pursuant to Section
3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay
the principal amount or the Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2022C Bonds at maturity.
The Trustee shall also deposit into the Principal Account any other amounts deposited with it for
deposit into such Principal Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit
therein. Earnings on amounts in the Principal Account shall be credited to such account.

(c) Redemption Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the
Redemption Account of the Series 2022C Debt Service Fund amounts required or, in the case of
optional redemption, amounts as instructed by or as received from the Authority, as provided
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture,
to be used to pay the redemption price of Series 2022C Bonds being redeemed as provided in
Section 2.12 of the Master Indenture and Sections 3.02 and 3.03 of this Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Trustee shall also deposit into the Redemption Account any other amounts

OMM_US:80523996.5
-14-



deposited with it for deposit into the Redemption Account or transferred from other funds and
accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts in the Redemption Account shall be credited
to such account, and any remaining earnings or other amounts therein following the applicable
date fixed for redemption shall be withdrawn by the Trustee on the Business Day following such
date fixed for redemption and deposited into the Revenue Fund, unless an Event of Default exists
under the Indenture, in which event the earnings shall be retained in such Redemption Account.

Pursuant to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2022C
Debt Service Fund and the accounts therein may be invested and reinvested as directed by an
Authorized Authority Representative in Permitted Investments.

Section 4.04 Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account. As a condition of issuance
of the Series 2022C Bonds, the amount set forth in Section 4.02(b) shall be deposited in the
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund so that the
amount credited thereto will be equal to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Series
2022C Bonds. In the event that a Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy shall be deposited in the
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account as provided in Section 3.05(c) of the Master
Indenture, then any amounts in the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account in excess of the
Debt Service Reserve Requirement resulting from such deposit shall be transferred to the Series
2022C Debt Service Fund, unless an Event of Default exists under the Indenture, in which event
the excess amounts shall be retained in the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account, as
provided in Section 3.05(d) of the Master Indenture.

The Trustee is authorized and directed to enter into the Series 2022C Debt Service
Reserve Surety Policy in its capacity as Trustee under the Indenture and all provisions in the
Indenture relating to the rights, privileges, powers and protections of the Trustee shall apply with
equal force and effect to all actions taken or not taken by the Trustee in connection with the
performance of any duties or responsibilities of the Trustee with respect to or under the Series
2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

Section 4.05 Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund. There shall be deposited into the
Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund the amount provided in Section 4.02(c) above. The
Trustee shall make payments or disbursements from the Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund, if
any, to pay Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2022C Bonds upon receipt from the Authority
of a Requisition meeting the requirements of Section 3.13 of the Master Indenture. Pursuant to
Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2022C Costs of Issuance
Fund may be invested and reinvested as directed by an Authorized Authority Representative in
Permitted Investments. Subject to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, earnings on amounts in
the Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund shall be retained therein. Upon the Trustee’s receipt of
written instructions from an Authorized Authority Representative, all amounts remaining on
deposit in the Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund shall be transferred to the Series 2022C Debt
Service Fund, and the Trustee shall close the Series 2022C Costs of Issuance Fund.

OMM_US:80523996.5
-15-



ARTICLE V
TAX COVENANTS

The Authority hereby agrees that it will execute the Tax Certificate with respect to the
Series 2022C Bonds. There is hereby created and established by the Authority the “Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds Rebate
Fund, Series 2022C” (the “Series 2022C Rebate Fund”) to be held and administered by the
Authority. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein relating to the deposit of
investment earnings on amounts on deposit in any fund or account hereunder, at the written
direction of the Authority, any earnings which are subject to a federal tax or rebate requirement,
as provided in the Tax Certificate, shall be deposited in the Series 2022C Rebate Fund for that
purpose.

ARTICLE VI
SERIES 2022C BOND INSURANCE POLICY; SERIES 2022C DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE SURETY POLICY; ADDITIONAL COVENANTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE SERIES 2022C BOND INSURER

Section 6.01 Application of Article VI.

@ All provisions herein regarding rights, consents, approvals, directions,
appointments or requests by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer shall be deemed to not require or
permit such consents, approvals, directions, appointments or requests by the Series 2022C Bond
Insurer and shall be read as if the Series 2022C Bond Insurer were not mentioned therein, during
any time in which: (i) the Series 2022C Bond Insurer is in default in its obligation to make
payments under (A) the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy when due, (B) the Series 2022C
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy when due, or (C) any other municipal bond insurance policy
or debt service reserve surety policy issued by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer when due and such
failure shall continue for 30 days unless the obligation of the Series 2022C Bond Insurer to pay
is being contested by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer in good faith by appropriate proceedings;
(i) the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the Series 2022C Bond
Insurer, or shall be declared to be null and void, in each case by a final, non-appealable order of a
court of competent jurisdiction, or the validity or enforceability of any provision thereof is being
contested by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer or any governmental agency or authority acting as a
receiver or similar capacity for the Series 2022C Bond Insurer, or if the Series 2022C Bond
Insurer is denying further liability or obligation under the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy or
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy; (iii) a proceeding has been instituted in a
court having jurisdiction in the premises seeking an order for relief, rehabilitation,
reorganization, conservation, liquidation or dissolution in respect of the Series 2022C Bond
Insurer under Article 16 of the Insurance Law of the State of New York or any successor
provision thereto or similar provision of law and such proceeding is not terminated for a period
of 90 consecutive days or such court enters an order granting the relief sought in such
proceeding; or (iv) the Series 2022C Insured Bonds are no longer Outstanding and any amounts
due or to become due to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer have been paid in full; provided that to
the extent that the Series 2022C Bond Insurer has made any payment of principal of or interest
on the Series 2022C Bonds under the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2022C

OMM_US:80523996.5
-16-



Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy, it shall retain its rights of subrogation and reimbursement
under this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Subject to Subsection 6.01(a) hereof, the covenants of the Authority in this
Article VI are solely for the benefit of the Series 2022C Bond Insurer and can be modified or
waived in whole or in part by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer or otherwise agreed to between the
Authority and the Series 2022C Bond Insurer without the consent of the Trustee and the Holders
of the Bonds. The failure by the Authority to comply with any such covenants in this Article VI
shall constitute an Event of Default under the provisions of the Indenture if, and only if, the
Series 2022C Bond Insurer gives a written notice of such failure to the Trustee and to the
Authority, notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary.

Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy. As long
as the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect and the Series 2022C
Bond Insurer is not in default of its obligation to make payments thereunder, the Authority, the
Trustee and any Paying Agent hereby agree to comply with the following provisions:

@) If, on the third Business Day prior to the related scheduled interest
payment date or principal payment date (“Payment Date”) on the Series 2022C Insured Bonds,
there is not on deposit with the Trustee, after making all transfers and deposits required under the
Indenture, moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2022C Insured
Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer
and to its designated agent (if any) (the “Series 2022C Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent”) by
telephone or telecopy of the amount of such deficiency by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on
such Business Day. If, on the second Business Day prior to the related Payment Date, there
continues to be a deficiency in the amount available to pay the principal of and interest on the
Series 2022C Insured Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall make a claim under
the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy and give notice to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer and
the Series 2022C Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent (if any) by telephone of the amount of such
deficiency, and the allocation of such deficiency between the amount required to pay interest on
the Series 2022C Insured Bonds and the amount required to pay principal of the Series 2022C
Insured Bonds, confirmed in writing to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer and the Series 2022C
Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on such second Business Day
by filling in the form of Notice of Claim and Certificate delivered with the Series 2022C Bond
Insurance Policy.

(b) The Trustee shall designate any portion of payment of principal on Series
2022C Insured Bonds paid by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer, whether by virtue of mandatory
sinking fund redemption, maturity or other advancement of maturity, on its books as a reduction
in the principal amount of Series 2022C Insured Bonds registered to the then current Holder of
the Series 2022C Insured Bonds, whether DTC or its nominee or otherwise, and shall issue a
replacement Series 2022C Bond to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer, registered in the name of
[BOND INSURER NAME] in a principal amount equal to the amount of principal so paid
(without regard to authorized denominations); provided that the Trustee’s failure to so designate
any payment or issue any replacement Series 2022C Insured Bond shall have no effect on the
amount of principal or interest payable by the Authority on any Series 2022C Insured Bond or
the subrogation rights of the Series 2022C Bond Insurer.

OMM_US:80523996.5
-17-



(©) The Trustee shall keep a complete and accurate record of all funds
deposited by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer into the Policy Payments Account (defined below)
and the allocation of such funds to payment of interest on and principal of any Series 2022C
Insured Bond. The Series 2022C Bond Insurer shall have the right to inspect such records at
reasonable times upon reasonable notice to the Trustee.

(d) Upon payment of a claim under the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy,
the Trustee shall establish a separate special purpose trust account for the benefit of holders of
the Series 2022C Insured Bonds, which is referred to herein as the “Policy Payments Account,”
and over which the Trustee shall have exclusive control and sole right of withdrawal. The
Trustee shall receive any amount paid under the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy in trust on
behalf of Holders of the Series 2022C Insured Bonds and shall deposit any such amount in the
Policy Payments Account and distribute such amount only for purposes of making the payments
for which a claim was made. Such amounts shall be disbursed by the Trustee to Holders of the
Series 2022C Insured Bonds in the same manner as principal and interest payments are to be
made with respect to the Series 2022C Bonds under the sections of the Indenture regarding
payment of Senior Lien Bonds. It shall not be necessary for such payments to be made by
checks or wire transfers separate from the check or wire transfer used to pay debt service with
other funds available to make such payments.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, the Authority
agrees to pay to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer: (i) a sum equal to the total of all amounts paid
by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer under the Series 2022C Bond Insurance Policy (the “Insurer
Advances”), which Insurer Advances shall be payable with monies deposited into the Series
2022C Debt Service Fund pursuant to Section 3.03(a) paragraph [ ___] of the Indenture; and (ii)
interest on such Insurer Advances from the date paid by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer until
payment thereof in full, payable to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate per
annum (collectively, the “Insurer Reimbursement Amounts”), which Insurer Reimbursement
Amounts shall be payable as Financing Fees with monies deposited pursuant to Section 3.03(a)
paragraph [ ] of the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate” means the lesser of: (A) the greater of
(I) the per annum rate of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase
Bank at its principal office in The City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (any
change in such rate of interest to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan
Chase Bank) plus 3%, and (I1) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2022C
Insured Bonds, and (B) the maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws
limiting interest rates. The Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days.

()] Funds held-in the Policy Payments Account shall not be invested by the
Trustee and may not be applied to satisfy any costs, expenses or liabilities of the Trustee. Any
funds remaining in the Policy Payments Account following a Payment Date of the Series 2022C
Insured Bonds shall promptly be remitted to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer.

Section 6.03 Provisions Relating to the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy.

OMM_US:80523996.5
-18-



@) The Trustee shall ascertain the necessity for making a claim upon the
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy in accordance with the provisions of
subparagraph (d) hereof and shall provide notice to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer in accordance
with the terms of the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy at least five (5) Business
Days prior to each date upon which interest or principal is due on the Series 2022C Bonds.
Where deposits are required to be made by the Authority with the Trustee to the Series 2022C
Debt Service Fund more often than semi-annually, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series
2022C Bond Insurer of any failure of the Authority to make timely payment in full of such
deposits within two Business Days of the due date.

(b) The Authority shall repay, or cause to be repaid, any draws under the
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and pay all related reasonable expenses
incurred by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer and shall pay interest thereon from the date of
payment by the Series 2022C Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate, which amounts shall be
payable as a Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligation pursuant to Section [3.03(c)] of
the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate means the lesser of: (x) the greater of (i) the per annum rate
of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank at its principal office
in the City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (“Prime Rate”) (any change in such
Prime Rate to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank) plus
3%, and (ii) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2022C Bonds, and (y) the
maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws limiting interest rates. The
Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed over a
year of 360 days. In the event JPMorgan Chase Bank ceases to announce its Prime Rate
publicly, Prime Rate shall be the publicly announced prime or base lending rate of such national
bank as the Series 2022C Bond Insurer shall specify.

If the interest provisions of this subparagraph (b) shall result in an effective rate of
interest which, for any period, exceeds the limit of the usury or any other laws applicable to the
indebtedness created herein, then all sums in excess of those lawfully collectible as interest for
the period in question shall, without further agreement or notice between or by any party hereto,
be applied as additional interest for any later periods of time when amounts are outstanding
hereunder to the extent that interest otherwise due hereunder for such periods plus such
additional interest would not exceed the limit of the usury or such other laws, and any excess
shall be applied upon principal immediately upon receipt of such moneys by the Series 2022C
Bond Insurer, with the same force and effect as if the Authority had specifically designated such
extra sums to be so applied and the Series 2022C Bond Insurer had agreed to accept such extra
payment(s) as additional interest for such later periods. In no event shall any agreed-to or actual
exaction as consideration for the indebtedness created herein exceed the limits imposed or
provided by the law applicable to this transaction for the use or detention of money or for
forbearance in seeking its collection.

() Repayment of draws and payment of expenses and accrued interest
thereon at the Late Payment Rate (collectively, “Policy Costs”) shall commence in the first
month following each draw, and each such monthly payment shall be in an amount at least equal
to 1/12 of the aggregate of Policy Costs related to such draw.

OMM_US:80523996.5
-19-



Policy Costs constitute Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligations with respect
to the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and shall be paid as provided in Section
[3.03(c)] of the Master Indenture.

Amounts in respect of Policy Costs paid to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer shall be
credited: first to interest due, then to the expenses due, and then to principal due. As and to the
extent that payments are made to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer on account of principal due, the
coverage under the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy will be increased by a like
amount, subject to the terms of the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

(d) All cash and investments in the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve
Account shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Series 2022C Debt Service Fund for payment
of debt service on the Series 2022C Bonds before any drawing may be made on the Series 2022C
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy or any other credit facility credited to the Series 2022C Debt
Service Reserve Account in lieu of cash (a “Credit Facility””). Payment of any Policy Costs shall
be made prior to replenishment of any such cash amounts. Draws on all Credit Facilities
(including the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy) on which there is available
coverage shall be made by the Trustee on a pro-rata basis (calculated by reference to the
coverage then available thereunder) after applying all available cash and investments in the
Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account, payment of Policy Costs and reimbursement of
amounts with respect to other Credit Facilities shall be made on a pro-rata basis prior to
replenishment of any cash drawn from the Series 2022C Debt Service Reserve Account. For the
avoidance of doubt, “available coverage” means the coverage then available for disbursement
pursuant to the terms of the applicable Credit Facility without regard to the legal or financial
ability or willingness of the provider of such instrument to honor a claim or draw thereon or the
failure of such provider to honor any such claim or draw.

(e) The Indenture shall not be discharged until all Policy Costs owing to the
Series 2022C Bond Insurer shall have been paid in full. The Authority’s obligation to pay such
amounts shall expressly survive payment in full of the Series 2022C Bonds.

Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2022C Bond
Insurer; Rights of Series 2022C Bond Insurer.

€)] [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2022C Bond Insurer.
(@) [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.01 Notices.

€)] Any notice, request, direction, designation, consent, acknowledgment,
certification, appointment, waiver or other communication required or permitted by this

OMM_US:80523996.5
-20-



Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture or the Series 2022C Bonds must be in writing except as
expressly provided otherwise in this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Any notice or other communication, unless otherwise specified, shall be
sufficiently given and deemed given when (i) mailed by first-class mail, postage prepaid,
addressed to the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture, or to the
Series 2022C Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, (ii) delivered by hand
and received by the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture, or (iii)
sent by facsimile to the Authority or the Trustee at the number provided in the Indenture, or to
the Series 2022C Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, provided the
machine receiving such facsimile is equipped with automatic answer-back capacity. Any
addressee may designate additional or different addresses for purposes of this Section.

Section 7.02 Modification of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority
may, from time to time and at any time, execute and deliver Supplemental Indentures
supplementing and/or amending this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture in the manner set forth
in Article VI1II of the Master Indenture.

Section 7.03 Severability. If any provision of this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture
shall be determined to be unenforceable, that shall not affect any other provision of this
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days. If a payment
date is not a Business Day at the place of payment or if any action required hereunder is required
on a date that is not a Business Day, then payment may be made at that place on the next
Business Day or such action may be taken on the next Business Day with the same effect as if
payment were made or the action taken on the stated date, and no interest shall accrue on that
payment for the intervening period.

Section 7.05 Governing Law. This Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 7.06 Captions. The captions in this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture are for
convenience only and do not define or limit the scope or intent of any provisions or Sections of
this Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

Section 7.07 Counterparts. This Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture may be signed in
several counterparts. Each will be an original, but all of them together constitute the same
instrument.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]

OMM_US:80523996.5
-21-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture to be duly executed all as of the date first above written.

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

Attest:

By:
[Chief Executive Officer]

By:

Secretary of the
Authority Governing Board

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

By:

[Vice President]

OMM_US:80523996.5

S-1



EXHIBIT A

[FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
TAX-EXEMPT SECOND SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022C
(Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Final Compounded Amount:
Initial Amount:
Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP
[ 1% L 1] L 1] L 1]

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of
or premium, if any, on this bond. Payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded
Amount of or premium, if any, on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority
and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the
Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Final Compounded Amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof until the maturity date hereof, at the interest
rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2022] and semiannually thereafter on October
1 and April 1 of each year), as provided in this bond.

OMM_US:80523996.5

A-1



Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

OMM_US:80523996.5

A-2



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
in trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022C Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:
Chief Financial Officer]

OMM_US:80523996.5
A-3



1. Master Indenture; Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor-in-trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2022C (the “Series 2022C Bonds”). The Series 2022C Bonds are issued under the Master
Indenture and a Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the
“Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by
Resolution No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022C Bonds,
which consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), Current Interest Bonds and
Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate Initial
Amount of $[ ]. The Series 2022C Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the
Master Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a
“Second Subordinate Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds
shall be on a parity with [the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B (“Series 2016B Bonds™) and] any
other Second Subordinate Lien Bonds issued from time to time under the Master Indenture, as
and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds are being issued to
pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or exchange, the Tendered Bonds.

The terms of the Series 2022C Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture
and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from
time to time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms
used but not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the
Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022C Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Second Subordinate Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of
the Master Indenture shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the Senior Lien Bonds and
the First Subordinate Lien Bonds, shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues, and shall be secured
by and have a priority with respect to the Trust Estate as set forth in the Master Indenture. The
Authority covenants that, except as provided in the Master Indenture, until all the Second
Subordinate Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and
the interest thereon shall have been paid or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not,
except as provided in the Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or
security interest in the Trust Estate of the priority level for the Second Subordinate Lien Bonds
as is set forth in the Master Indenture.

OMM_US:80523996.5

A-4



3. Interest Rate. Interest on this bond shall accrue, but shall not be payable until
maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond, compounded
semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1, 2022].

Interest on overdue Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will
accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts (including interest
thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set forth in the
Indenture).

4. Payment of Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount. Payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2022C Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount will be paid in lawful money of
the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it will be made on
the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

5. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__] are not subject to
optional redemption, and the Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__] are subject to optional redemption,
on any date on or after [October 1, ], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2022C
Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in
the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
T
"Maturity

() Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

OMM_US:80523996.5

A-5



(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022C Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to
give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2022C Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture will
be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by
the addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022C
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

6. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds are available in denominations such that the Accreted Value of such Capital
Appreciation Bonds at their maturity shall be $5,000 or an integral multiple thereof. A holder
may transfer or exchange Series 2022C Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture and the
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder, among
other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any taxes
and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

7. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
pUrposes.

8. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the Accreted Value or Final
Compounded Amount or premium, if any, remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be
paid to or for the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look
only to the Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

0. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any, on all
Outstanding Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then
payable by the Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all
Supplemental Indentures thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look
only to the deposited money and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits
with the Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture
sufficient to pay in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any,
on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was

OMM_US:80523996.5
A-6



made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master
Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

10.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022C Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owners of this bond or any Series 2022C Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

11. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022C Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022C Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

12. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022C Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022C
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

13.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

14.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

OMM_US:80523996.5
A-7



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint
agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:
(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80523996.5



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

OMM_US:80523996.5

A-9



EXHIBIT B
[FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SECOND SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022C

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No.

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Registered Owner:

Principal Sum:

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this
bond. Payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this bond is a special
limited obligation of the Authority and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of
Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date stated above, unless
earlier redeemed, and to pay from those sources interest thereon at the Interest Rate stated above,
as provided in this bond.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

B-1



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022C Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

B-2



1. Master Indenture; Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor-in-trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2022C (the “Series 2022C Bonds™). The Series 2022C Bonds are issued under the Master
Indenture and a Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the
“Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by
Resolution No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022C Bonds,
which consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds (including this bond) and
Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate
principal amount of $] ]. The Series 2022C Bonds are equally and ratably secured
under the Master Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be
deemed a “Second Subordinate Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series
2022C Bonds shall be on a parity with the [Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-
Exempt Second Subordinate lien revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B and] any other Second
Subordinate Lien Bonds issued from time to time under the Master Indenture, as and to the
extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds are being issued to pay the
purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or exchange, the Tendered Bonds.

The terms of the Series 2022C Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture
and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from
time to time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms
used but not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the
Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022C Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Second Subordinate Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of
the Master Indenture shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the Senior Lien Bonds and
the First Subordinate Lien Bonds, shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues, and shall be secured
by and have a priority with respect to the Trust Estate as set forth in the Master Indenture. The
Authority covenants that, except as provided in the Master Indenture, until all the Second
Subordinate Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and
the interest thereon shall have been paid or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not,
except as provided in the Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or
security interest in the Trust Estate of the priority level for the Second Subordinate Lien Bonds
as is set forth in the Master Indenture.

B-3



3. Interest Rate. This bond shall bear interest from its date until its maturity or prior
redemption at the Interest Rate shown on the face of this bond. Interest on overdue principal
and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this
bond until all overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such
amounts is provided for as set forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on
the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months.

4, Interest Payment and Record Dates. Interest hereon will be due and payable on
[October 1, 2022] and on each October 1 and April 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2022C Bond, as defined in the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture,
interest hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is
a Book-Entry Series 2022C Bond, interest will be paid as provided in the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal. Principal of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2022C Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of principal
as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. Principal and interest will be paid in
lawful money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it
will be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue on that payment for the
intervening period as a result.

6. Redemption.

@ [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest
Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional
redemption, and the Series 2022C Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing
on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on
or after [October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from
any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of such Series 2022C Bonds so redeemed plus
accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking
fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for
such mandatory redemption:]

B-4



Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be

(October 1) Redeemed

"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022C Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to
give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2022C Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture will
be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by
the addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022C
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

7. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds are available in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A
holder may transfer or exchange Series 2022C Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture
and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder,
among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

8. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
pUrposes.

0. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal of, premium, if
any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for the account of
the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the Authority and
not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

B-5



10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all Outstanding Bonds (including this
bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the Authority under the
Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures thereto will be
discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money and securities
for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or Government
Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with
respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no
longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022C Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owners of this bond or any Series 2022C Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022C Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022C Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022C Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022C
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

14. Authentication. This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

B-6



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act
for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on
the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must
be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor
institution.)

B-7



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

B-8

OMM_US:80523996.5



EXHIBIT C
[FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SECOND SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2022C
(Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Principal Amount at Maturity: $

Initial Amount: $

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
or interest on this bond. Payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
on or interest on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority and is secured
only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The
Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the principal amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof through the end of the Accretion Period at

OMM_US:80523996.5

C-1



the interest rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2022] and semiannually thereafter
on October 1 and April 1 of each year (each, a “Compounding Date™) as provided in this bond.
Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the
Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount), at the interest rate specified above.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

OMM_US:80523996.5

C-2



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2022]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2022C Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

OMM_US:80523996.5
C-3



1. Master Indenture; Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority
has entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor-in-trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2022C (the “Series 2022C Bonds™). The Series 2022C Bonds are issued under the Master
Indenture and a Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2022] (the
“Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by
Resolution No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2022C Bonds,
which consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds and Series 2022C
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), are being issued in the aggregate
Initial Amount of $] ]. The Series 2022C Bonds are equally and ratably secured under
the Master Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a
“Second Subordinate Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds
shall be on a parity with [the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Second
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016B (“Series 2016B Bonds”) and] any
other Second Subordinate Lien Bonds issued from time to time under the Master Indenture, as
and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series 2022C Bonds are being issued to
pay the purchase price of, and thereby prepay or refund, or exchange, the Tendered Bonds.

The terms of the Series 2022C Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture
and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from
time to time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms
used but not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the
Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2022C Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Second Subordinate Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of
the Master Indenture shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the Senior Lien Bonds and
the First Subordinate Lien Bonds, shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues, and shall be secured
by and have a priority with respect to the Trust Estate as set forth in the Master Indenture. The
Authority covenants that, except as provided in the Master Indenture, until all the Second
Subordinate Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and
the interest thereon shall have been paid or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not,
except as provided in the Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or
security interest in the Trust Estate of the priority level for the Second Subordinate Lien Bonds
as is set forth in the Master Indenture.

OMM_US:80523996.5

Cc-4



3. Interest Rate. During the Accretion Period, interest on this bond shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2022]. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value
as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount) from the Interest Payment Date next
preceding the date of authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or
unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest
Payment Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following
the Conversion Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from the Conversion Date. If
interest on this Bond shall be in default, the bond issued in exchange for the bond surrendered for
transfer or exchange pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest
Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the bond surrendered.

Interest on overdue principal or Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue
interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts
(including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set
forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360
days and twelve 30-day months.

4. Interest Payment and Record Dates. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, interest
hereon will be due and payable on each April 1 and October 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2022C Bond, as defined in the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture,
interest hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is
a Book Entry Series 2022C Bond, as defined in the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, interest
will be paid as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal or Accreted Value. Payment of the principal or Accreted
Value of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior redemption upon surrender of this bond to the
Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds, the Paying Agent
may make arrangements for payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, as provided in the
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The principal or Accreted Value of, and interest thereon,
will be paid in lawful money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-
Business Day, it will be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

6. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2022C Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 __] are not subject to optional
redemption and the Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after
[October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that
may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the Accreted

OMM_US:80523996.5

C-5



Value on such Series 2022C Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as of the date fixed
for redemption.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds that are Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to
the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory
redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2022C Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2022C Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days before each
redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Fourteenth Supplemental
Indenture to each owner of a Series 2022C Bond to be redeemed, which notice may be
conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to give any required notice of
redemption will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any Series 2022C
Bond in respect of which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided in the
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture will be conclusively presumed to have been given
whether or not actually received by the addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2022C Bonds
called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption at the
applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the redemption date; in such case
when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, interest on the
Series 2022C Bonds to be redeemed ceases to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

7. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2022C Convertible Capital

Appreciation Bonds are (i) on any date during the Accretion Period, available in denominations
such that the Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof; and (ii) on any date subsequent to the Accretion Period, available in denominations of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A holder may transfer or exchange Series 2022C Bonds
in accordance with the Master Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. The
Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder, among other things, to furnish appropriate

OMM_US:80523996.5

C-6



endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any taxes and fees required by law or permitted
by the Master Indenture.

8. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

9. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal or Accreted Value
of, premium, if any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for
the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the
Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on all Outstanding
Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the
Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures
thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money
and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or
Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the
principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on any portion of the
Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer
be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to
the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2022C Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owner of this bond or any Series 2022C Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2022C Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2022C Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2022C Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2022C

OMM_US:80523996.5

C-7



Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

14.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

OMM_US:80523996.5

C-8



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80523996.5



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

OMM_US:80523996.5

C-10



EXHIBITD
[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022C CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS]

[see attached]

OMM_US:80523996.5

D-1



EXHIBIT E

[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2022C CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION
BONDS]

[see attached]

OMM_US:80523996.5

E-1



EXHIBIT C-4
FORM OF FIFTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

[to be attached)]

C-4-1



FIFTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE
by and between the
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to
U.S. Bank National Association,
as Trustee

Dated as of | 1, 2023]

Relating to
] |

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2023A
(Forward Delivery)

OMM_US:80526547.4



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(This table of contents is not part of the Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture and is only for
convenience of reference. The captions herein are of no legal effect and do not vary the meaning
or legal effect of any part of the Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture.)

OMM_US:80526547.4

Page
ARTICLE | DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS ... 2
Section 1.01 DEFINITIONS. ...t 2
Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture..................... 5
Section 1.03 Article and Section ReferenCes. .......ccoovvvveiiiiiiniinieee e 5
ARTICLE Il THE SERIES 2023A BONDS .....ooo ottt 5
Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2023A Bonds; Principal Amount and
INIETAL AMOUNT.....eoiiiice e 5
Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity............ccccceveivereinennnnn 5
Section 2.03 Terms of the Series 2023A BONUS .......cccoovvvierieiieneee e 5
Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2023A BONGS..........cccccvveveiieiieie e 9
Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2023A BONGS........ccoooviiiininieieieee e 9
ARTICLE HIREDEMPTION .....coiiiiiiiieiieseise sttt sttt nena s 11
Section 3.01 Notices t0 BONANOIErS.........cooviiiiieiiiiese e 11
Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2023A Bonds.............ccccceveneee. 12
Section 3.03 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2023A Bonds...........ccccueneee. 12
Section 3.04 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2023A Bonds..................... 13
Section 3.05 Payment of Series 2023A Bonds Called for Redemption.................. 13
Section 3.06 Selection of Series 2023A Bonds for Optional Redemption;
Series 2023A Bonds Redeemed in Part...........ccooevvevviieiieniesiennnen, 13
Section 3.07 Effect of Call for Redemption..........cccccovveieiccicie e, 14
ARTICLE IV ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF......... 14
Section 4.01 Establishment of Funds and ACCOUNES...........cccoveivieiene e 14
Section 4.02 APPLIcation OF FUNS.......cooiiiiieie s 14
Section 4.03 Series 2023A Debt Service FUN.........cccoovviiiiiiiieen e 15
Section 4.04 Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve ACCOUNt..........ccoccevvereniriennnns 16
Section 4.05 Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund............ccooevevenenenencnnsnnnen 16
ARTICLE V TAX COVENANTS ..ottt e e e e 16
.-



ARTICLE VI SERIES 2023A BOND INSURANCE POLICY; SERIES 2023A DEBT
SERVICE RESERVE SURETY POLICY; ADDITIONAL
COVENANTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE SERIES 2023A BOND

INSURER ...ttt e e e e nneeas 17
Section 6.01 Application of Article V... 17
Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy...... 18
Section 6.03 Provisions Relating to the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve
SUFELY POHICY. ..t 19
Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2023A
Bond Insurer; Rights of Series 2023A Bond Insurer. ...........ccccvevee.. 21
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2023A Bond INSUTEr.........cccoovveieneienieenene 21
ARTICLE VII MISCELLANEQUS .......oo ottt ettt 21
Section 7.01 INOTICES. vttt ettt enes 21
Section 7.02 Modification of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture..................... 22
Section 7.03 SEVEIADIIILY ...vveveciecc e 22
Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days ................... 22
Section 7.05 GOVEIMING LAW ..ottt 22
Section 7.06 CAPLIONS ... 22
Section 7.07 COUNTEIPAITS ...ttt e e sraee e 22
EXHIBIT A FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND ........cccoceiiiiieiie e A-1
EXHIBIT B FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND.......cccooviiiiiieiiesieese e B-1
EXHIBIT C FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND.................... C-1
EXHIBIT D ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2023A CAPITAL
APPRECIATION BONDS ... D-1
EXHIBIT E ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2023A CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL
APPRECIATION BONDS ...t E-1
- i -

OMM_US:80526547.4



FIFTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

This FIFTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE dated as of | 1,
2023] is by and between the ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a
joint powers authority established under Article I, Chapter 5, Division 7, of Title 1 of the
California Government Code and pursuant to an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement dated as of December 18, 1996, as amended, by and between the City of Long Beach
and the City of Los Angeles (the “Authority”), and U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee
(the “Trustee”), and supplements and amends the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1,
1999, by and between the Authority and the Trustee (as amended, the “Master Indenture”).
Capitalized terms used herein which are not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in
the Indenture.

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2013 the Authority issued $248,325,000 original aggregate
principal amount of Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A;

WHEREAS, Section 2.08 of the Master Indenture provides that the Authority may issue
Refunding Bonds from time to time for the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a portion of
its outstanding Bonds;

WHEREAS, Section 2.09 of the Master Indenture provides that such Refunding Bonds
may be issued for the purpose of refunding and defeasing all of the outstanding Series 2013A
Bonds provided that certain conditions are satisfied, including, among others, the requirement
that Maximum Annual Debt Service following the issuance of such Refunding Bonds will not
exceed the Maximum Annual Debt Service prior to such issuance;

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2012, the Authority issued its Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, in the aggregate
principal amount of $83,710,000 pursuant to the Indenture as supplemented and amended by an
Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2012 (the “Eighth Supplemental
Indenture”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5.05(b) of the Eighth Supplemental Indenture, the
consent of the Administrator (as defined in the Eighth Supplemental Indenture) shall not be
required in connection with the issuance of Refunding Bonds pursuant to Sections 2.08 and 2.09
of the Master Indenture, provided that either (i) aggregate Debt Service on all Senior Lien Bonds
Outstanding through the final maturity of the Series 2012 Bonds shall not be increased or (ii)
Dedicated Revenues as calculated in accordance with Section 2.09 of the Master Indenture
(adjusted as described in Section 5.05(a) of the Eighth Supplemental Indenture) are equal to at
least 125% of Debt Service on Senior Lien Bonds in each Bond Year in which a Series 2012
Bond is Outstanding;

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue Refunding Bonds for the purpose of providing
funds to refund and defease in full all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds;

-1-
OMM_US:80526547.4



WHEREAS, Section 8.02 of the Master Indenture provides for the execution and delivery
of Supplemental Indentures setting forth the terms of such Refunding Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now, by execution and delivery of this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture and in compliance with the provisions of the Indenture, sets forth the terms of its
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2023A, provides for the deposit and use of the proceeds of the Series 2023A
Bonds and makes other provisions relating to the Series 2023A Bonds.

ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS; INTERPRETATIONS

Section 1.01 Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to terms used in this
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture unless clearly stated otherwise:

“Accretion Period” shall mean with respect to any Series 2023A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond, the period from the date of delivery of such Series 2023A Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bond through the Conversion Date.

“Authorized Denominations™ shall mean, (i) with respect to the Series 2023A Bonds
which are Current Interest Bonds, $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, (ii) with respect to the
Series 2023A Bonds which are Capital Appreciation Bonds, denominations such that the
Accreted Value of such Series 2023A Bonds as of the maturity date thereof shall equal $5,000 or
any integral multiple thereof, and (iii) with respect to the Series 2023A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds (a) on any date during the Accretion Period, denominations such that the
Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and
(b) subsequent to the Accretion Period, denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

“Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds™ shall mean the Series 2023A Bonds held by DTC (or
its nominee) as the registered owner thereof pursuant to the terms and provisions of Section 2.05
hereof.

“Cede & Co.” shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any successor nominee
of DTC with respect to the Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds.

“Conversion Date” shall mean [October 1, 20 ], the date of expiration of the Accretion
Period.

“DTC” shall mean The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company
organized under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns.

“Escrow Agreement™ shall mean the Escrow Agreement dated as of [ 1, 2023]
between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time in
accordance therewith.

“Escrow Fund” shall mean the escrow fund established pursuant to the Escrow
Agreement in which certain proceeds from the sale of the Series 2023A Bonds and certain other

-2-

OMM_US:80526547.4



available funds under the Indenture shall be deposited and applied to the defeasance of certain
Series 2013A Bonds pursuant to Section 4.02(a) hereof and the terms thereof.

“Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture” shall mean this Fifteenth Supplemental Trust
Indenture dated as of | 1, 2023], between the Authority and the Trustee, as amended
and supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Indenture.

“Indenture” shall mean the Master Trust Indenture dated as of January 1, 1999 between
the Authority and the Trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time (including by
this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture) in accordance therewith.

“Participants™ shall mean the participants of DTC which include securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations.

“Principal Payment Date” shall mean (a) for Series 20223A Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds, October 1 in each of the years in which the principal amount of a Series 20223A
Bonds that is a Current Interest Bond is due and payable, (b) for Series 20223A Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of any year in which the Final Compounded Amount of
any Series 20223A Bond that is a Capital Appreciation Bond is due and payable, and (c) for
Series 20223A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, October 1 of the year in which the
principal amount or Final Compounded Amount of such Series 20223A Bond is due and
payable.

“Record Date” shall mean March 15 for any April 1 Interest Payment Date and
September 15 for any October 1 Interest Payment Date.

“Registrar” for purposes of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture shall mean the
Trustee.

“Representation Letter” shall mean the Blanket Letter of Representations dated
December 18, 1998 from the Authority and the Trustee to DTC, or such similar letter or
agreement filed with DTC from time to time.

“Series 1999A Bonds” shall mean the $494,893,616.80 original aggregate principal
amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A.”

“Series 1999C Bonds™ shall mean the $497,453,395.70 original aggregate principal
amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Third Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999C”.

““Series 2012 Bonds™ shall mean the $83,710,000 original aggregate principal amount of
Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Eighth Supplemental Indenture and designated
as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012”.

OMM_US:80526547.4



““Series 2013A Bonds” shall mean the $248,325,000 original aggregate principal amount
of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Ninth Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A”.

“Series 2022A Bonds” shall mean the $] | aggregate principal and Initial Amount
of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A”.

“Series 2022B Bonds” shall mean the $] | aggregate principal and Initial Amount
of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture and
designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B”.

“Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy” shall mean the municipal bond insurance policy
issued by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer insuring, as provided therein, the payment when due of
the principal of and interest on the Series 2023A Insured Bonds.

“Series 2023A Bond Insurer” shall mean [ ], a [ ]
insurance company, and its successors and assigns. The Series 2023A Bond Insurer shall
constitute a Bond Insurer as such term is defined in the Indenture.

“Series 2023A Bonds™ shall mean the $] | aggregate principal amount and Initial
Amount of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture and this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture
and designated as the “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A”.

“Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds™ shall mean the Series 2023A
Bonds designated as “Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds” pursuant to Section 2.01 of this
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture and issued pursuant to Sections 2.01 and 2.03 of this Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund™ shall mean the fund by that name created in
Section 4.01(a) of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2023A Debt Service Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created in Section
4.01(b) of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture and into which money shall be deposited to pay
debt service on the Series 2023A Bonds.

“Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account” shall mean the account by that name
created in the Debt Service Reserve Fund pursuant to Section 4.01 of this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture.

“Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy’” shall mean the municipal bond debt
service reserve insurance policy issued by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer to be deposited in the
Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account with the face amount of $| |, which is the

-4 -
OMM_US:80526547.4



Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to the Series 2023A Bonds on the date of issuance
of the Series 2023A Bonds pursuant to Section 4.04 of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Series 2023A Insured Bonds™ shall mean all the Series 2023A Bonds maturing on
October 1 in the years | .

“Series 2023A Rebate Fund” shall mean the fund by that name created and maintained
pursuant to Article V of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

“Tax Certificate” shall mean the [Tax and Nonarbitrage Certificate] executed by the
Authority, dated the date of issuance of the Series 2023A Bonds, as amended and supplemented
from time to time.

Section 1.02 Incorporation of Definitions Contained in the Indenture. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 1.01 of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, all capitalized
words, terms and phrases used in this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture shall have the same
meanings herein as in the Indenture.

Section 1.03 Article and Section References. Except as otherwise indicated, references
to Articles and Sections are to Articles and Sections of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

ARTICLE II

THE SERIES 2023A BONDS

Section 2.01 Designation of the Series 2023A Bonds; Principal Amount and Initial
Amount. There is hereby authorized and created a Series of Bonds, designated as the “Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2023A” to be issued in the aggregate principal amount and Initial Amount of $] .
Said Bonds shall consist of “Current Interest Bonds”, “Capital Appreciation Bonds” and
“Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds”.

Section 2.02 Bonds Under The Indenture; Security; Parity. The Series 2023A Bonds
are issued under and subject to the terms of the Indenture, shall be Senior Lien Bonds as defined
pursuant to the Indenture and are secured by and payable from the Trust Estate in accordance
with the terms of the Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds shall be on a parity with the
outstanding Series 1999A Bonds, Series 1999C Bonds, Series 2012 Bonds, Series 2013A Bonds,
Series 2022A Bonds and Series 2022B Bonds and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued under the
Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds are being
issued to refund all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds.

Section 2.03 Terms of the Series 2023A Bonds. The Series 2023A Bonds shall, upon
initial issuance, be dated their date of initial delivery. The Series 2023A Bonds shall be issued
only in Authorized Denominations. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit A, which exhibit is a part of this Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be
substantially in the form of Exhibit B, which exhibit is a part of this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation

-5-

OMM_US:80526547.4



Bonds shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit C, which exhibit is a part of this Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds shall be executed, on behalf of the Authority,
by either the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Authority and such
signature may be a facsimile.

The Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date.

@) Current Interest Bonds. Each Series 2023A Bond that is a Current Interest
Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication
thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series
2023A Bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or unless such date of
authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in
which event such Series 2023A Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment
Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date, in which event such
Series 2023A Bond shall bear interest from its date of initial delivery. If interest on the Series
2023A Bonds shall be in default, Series 2023A Bonds issued in exchange for Series 2023A
Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange pursuant to the Indenture shall bear interest from the
Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the Series 2023A Bonds
surrendered to their maturity date or date fixed for redemption.

Interest on the Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall be paid on each
Interest Payment Date. Principal on the Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds
shall be paid on the applicable Principal Payment Date. Interest on the Series 2023A Bonds shall
be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve (12) thirty (30)-day months.

The Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall mature, subject to
redemption, in the years and in the principal amounts and shall bear interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Principal Interest
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%)

Under the Indenture, the Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds shall
constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

OMM_US:80526547.4



(b) Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts and shall mature, subject to prior redemption,
in the years and in the Final Compounded Amounts and shall accrete interest at the rates, as set
forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Initial Interest Final Compounded
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%) Amount ($)

Under the Indenture, the Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall
constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds.”

Interest on the Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2023]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds on October 1 and April 1 of each year shall be as set forth on the Accreted
Value Table attached hereto as Exhibit D, which is part of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.
The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds
on any date other than October 1 and April 1 of any year shall be calculated by the Trustee using
straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding absent manifest error.

(©) Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Series 2023A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be in the Initial Amounts, shall bear interest at the
rates, shall have the Accreted Values as of the Conversion Date and shall mature in the years and
in the principal amounts set forth in the following schedule:

Maturity Date Initial Interest Accreted Value as Principal Amount at
(October 1) Amount ($) Rate (%) of Conversion Maturity ($)
Date ($)
-7-

OMM_US:80526547.4



Maturity Date Initial Interest Accreted Value as Principal Amount at

(October 1) Amount (3$) Rate (%) of Conversion Maturity (3$)
Date ($)

Under the Master Indenture, (i) during the Accretion Period, the Series 2023A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds shall constitute “Capital Appreciation Bonds” and
(i) subsequent to the Accretion Period, the Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds shall constitute “Current Interest Bonds.”

During the Accretion Period, interest on the Series 2023A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds shall accrue, but shall not be payable, at the applicable rate set forth above,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2023]. The Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bonds on each October 1 and April 1 prior to the Conversion Date shall be as set forth on the
Accreted Value Table attached as Exhibit E, which is part of this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture. Prior to the Conversion Date, the Accreted Value with respect to the Series 2023A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds on any date other than October 1 and April 1 shall be
calculated by the Trustee using straight line interpolation, which calculation will be binding
absent manifest error.

Subsequent to the Accretion Period, each Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation
Bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal
amount), at the applicable rate set forth above. Such interest shall be calculated on the basis of a
year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months. Each Series 2023A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of
authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest Payment Date, in which
event such Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such
date of authentication, or unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the
next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which event such Series 2023A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest Payment Date, or unless
such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following the Conversion Date, in
which event such Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond shall bear interest from
the Conversion Date. If interest on the Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
shall be in default, Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds issued in exchange for
Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange
pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to which
interest has been paid in full on the Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds
surrendered.

OMM_US:80526547.4



(d) Payments. Payment of principal of the Series 2023A Bonds that are
Current Interest Bonds shall be made upon surrender of such Series 2023A Bonds to the Trustee.
Payment of interest on the Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds which are not
Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds shall be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed by first-
class mail to the person who is the registered owner thereof on the Record Date, and such
payment shall be mailed to such owner at his address as it appears on the registration books of
the Registrar. Payment of interest on Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds shall be made as provided
in Section 2.05 hereof. Payment of the Final Compounded Amount or the redemption price of
the Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be made upon surrender of
such Series 2023A Bonds to the Trustee. The payment of interest on the Series 2023A
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds subsequent to the Conversion Date that are, in each
case, Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds shall be made as provided in Section 2.05 hereof.
Payment of interest on the Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds subsequent to
the Conversion Date that are not, in each case, Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds shall be paid by
check or draft of the Trustee mailed by first-class mail to the person who is the registered owner
thereof on the Record Date, and such payment shall be mailed to such owner at his address as it
appears on the registration books of the Registrar. All payments in respect of the Series 2023A
Bonds shall be made by the Authority in lawful money of the United States of America.

If the principal of or interest on (or Accreted Value of) a Series 2023A Bond becomes
due and payable, but shall not have been paid when due, and no provision is made for its
payment, then interest on overdue principal (or overdue Accreted Value) and, to the extent
lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate applicable to such Series 2023A Bond until all
overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is
provided for as set forth in the Indenture and in this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture).

Section 2.04 Exchange of Series 2023A Bonds. Series 2023A Bonds which are
delivered to the Registrar for exchange pursuant to the Indenture may be exchanged for an equal
total principal amount or Initial Amount, as applicable, of Series 2023A Bonds of the same type,
interest rate and maturity date in Authorized Denominations.

Section 2.05 Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds.

€)] Upon initial issuance, the registered owner of all of the Series 2023A
Bonds shall be DTC. Payment of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, any Series 2023A Bond registered in the
name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer of New York clearing house or equivalent
next day funds or by wire transfer of same day funds to the account of Cede & Co. at the address
indicated on the Record Date or special record date for Cede & Co. in the registration books of
the Registrar.

(b) The Series 2023A Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate
single authenticated fully registered Series 2023A Bond for each separate stated maturity with
the same interest rate. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Series 2023A Bonds shall be
registered in the registration books of the Registrar in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC. The Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2023A Bond Insurer and the Authority may treat
DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Series 2023A Bonds registered in its

-9-

OMM_US:80526547.4



name for the purposes of payment of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2023A Bonds, selecting the Series
2023A Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be
given to the holders of the Series 2023A Bonds under the Indenture, registering the transfer of
Series 2023A Bonds, and, subject to Section 6.05 hereof, obtaining any consent or other action to
be taken by Bondholders and for all other purposes whatsoever, and none of the Trustee, the
Registrar, the Series 2023A Bond Insurer or the Authority shall be affected by any notice to the
contrary. None of the Trustee, the Registrar, the Series 2023A Bond Insurer or the Authority
shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant, any person claiming a beneficial
ownership interest in the Series 2023A Bonds under or through DTC or any Participant, or any
other person who is not shown on the registration books as being a Bondholder, with respect to
the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant; the payment by DTC or any
Participant of any amount in respect of the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the
redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2023A Bonds; any notice which is
permitted or required to be given to the holders of the Series 2023A Bonds under the Indenture;
the selection by DTC or any Participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial
redemption of the Series 2023A Bonds; any consent given or other action taken by DTC as
Bondholder; or any other purpose. The Trustee shall pay the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2023A Bonds only
to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy
and discharge the Authority’s obligations with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded
Amount and the redemption price of, and interest on, as applicable, the Series 2023A Bonds to
the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than DTC shall receive an authenticated
Series 2023A Bond evidencing the obligation of the Authority to make payments of the principal
or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption price, and interest, as applicable, pursuant
to the Indenture. Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC
has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions
herein with respect to Record Dates, the word “Cede & Co.” in this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(© Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture to the contrary, so
long as any Series 2023A Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to the principal or the Final Compounded Amount and the redemption
price of, and interest on, as applicable, such Series 2023A Bond and all notices with respect to
such Series 2023A Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the
Representation Letter.

(d) Subject to Section 6.05 hereof, in connection with any notice or other
communication to be provided to the holders of the Series 2023A Bonds pursuant to the
Indenture by the Authority or the Trustee with respect to any consent or other action to be taken
by Bondholders, the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, shall establish a record date for
such consent or other action and give DTC notice of such record date not less than fifteen (15)
calendar days in advance of such record date to the extent possible.

()  NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES, THE

CITY OF LONG BEACH, THE REGISTRAR, THE SERIES 2023A BOND INSURER OR

THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DTC
-10 -

OMM_US:80526547.4



PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS WITH
RESPECT TO: THE PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT OF THE PRINCIPAL OR THE FINAL COMPOUNDED AMOUNT AND
THE REDEMPTION PRICE OF, AND INTEREST ON, AS APPLICABLE, THE SERIES
2023A BONDS; THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE TO DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS; THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS
MAINTAINED BY DTC, ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT,
OR ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS OWNER OF THE
SERIES 2023A BONDS.

ARTICLE I

REDEMPTION

Section 3.01 Notices to Bondholders. The Trustee shall give notice of redemption
(which, in the case of optional redemption, may be conditional), in the name of the Authority, to
Bondholders of the Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this Article 111 at least thirty
(30) days (or at least twenty (20) days for Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds) but not more than
sixty (60) days before each date fixed for redemption. The Trustee shall send such notices of
redemption by first class mail (or with respect to the Series 2023A Bonds held by DTC, in
accordance with DTC operating procedures) to each owner of a Series 2023A Bond to be
redeemed; each such notice shall be sent to the owner’s registered address.

Each notice of redemption shall specify the Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed, the date
of issue, the maturity date thereof, if less than all Series 2023A Bonds of a maturity are called for
redemption, the numbers of the Series 2023A Bonds, the principal amount or Initial Amount, as
applicable, and the CUSIP numbers assigned to the Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed, the
principal or Accreted Value, as applicable, to be redeemed and the interest rate applicable to the
Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed, the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price, the
place or places of payment, the Trustee’s or Paying Agent’s name, that payment will be made
upon presentation and surrender of the Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed to the Trustee, that
interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for redemption and not paid will be paid as specified in
said notice, and that on and after said date interest thereon will cease to accrue on the Series
2023A Bonds called for redemption, to the extent that moneys for payment of the redemption
price, including accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, are being held in trust by the
Trustee therefor. In the case of optional redemptions pursuant to Section 3.02 of this Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture, each such notice shall further state that the proposed redemption is
conditioned on there being on deposit in the applicable account, on the date fixed for redemption,
sufficient money to pay the full redemption price, plus accrued but unpaid interest to the date
fixed for redemption, or the Accreted Value, as applicable, of the Series 2023A Bonds to be
redeemed.

Failure to give any required notice of redemption as to any particular Series 2023A
Bonds will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any other Series 2023A Bonds
with respect to which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided herein will be
conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the addressee.
When notice of redemption is given, Series 2023A Bonds called for redemption become due and

-11 -
OMM_US:80526547.4



payable on the date fixed for redemption at the applicable redemption price; provided that, in the
case of optional redemption, sufficient money to pay the full redemption price of the Series
2023A Bonds to be redeemed is on deposit in the applicable account on the date fixed for
redemption. In the event that funds are deposited by the Authority with the Paying Agent
sufficient for redemption, interest on the Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed will cease to
accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.02 [Optional Redemption of the Series 2023A Bonds. The Series 2023A
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20__] are not subject to
optional redemption, and the Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 __] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after [October
1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that may be
provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such
Series 2023A Bonds so redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without
premium.]

[The Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after
[October 1, 20__] are not subject to optional redemption, and the Series 2023A Bonds that are
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional
redemption , on any date on or after [October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2023A Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

[The Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before
[October 1, 20__] are not subject to optional redemption, and the Series 2023A Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional
redemption, on any date on or after [October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as
of the date fixed for redemption.]

Section 3.03 [Mandatory Redemption of the Series 2023A Bonds. [The Series 2023A
Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity
-12 -

OMM_US:80526547.4



[The Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1,
[ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1
in the years and in the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption
price equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Accreted Value to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

[The Series 2023A Bonds that are Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each
October 1 in the years and in the respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a
redemption price equal to the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed
for such mandatory redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

Section 3.04 Extraordinary Redemption of the Series 2023A Bonds. The Series
2023A Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption as provided in the Indenture.

Section 3.05 Payment of Series 2023A Bonds Called for Redemption. Upon surrender
to the Trustee, Series 2023A Bonds called for redemption shall be paid at the redemption price
stated in the notice, plus, when applicable, interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

Section 3.06 Selection of Series 2023A Bonds for Optional Redemption; Series 2023A
Bonds Redeemed in Part. Series 2023A Bonds may be selected for optional redemption by the
Authority pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof, in whole or in part, in such order of maturity as the
Authority may direct and within a maturity by lot, selected in such manner as the Trustee may
deem appropriate (subject, with respect to Series 2023A Bonds held by DTC, to DTC’s
operational requirements); provided that Series 2023A Bonds may be redeemed only in
Authorized Denominations. Upon surrender of a Series 2023A Bond to be redeemed in part
only, the Trustee will authenticate for the holder a new Series 2023A Bond or Series 2023A
Bonds of the same maturity equal in principal amount or Initial Amount, as applicable, to the
unredeemed portion of the Series 2023A Bond surrendered.

-13-

OMM_US:80526547.4



Section 3.07 Effect of Call for Redemption. On the date so designated for redemption,
notice having been given in the manner and under the conditions provided herein and moneys for
payment of the redemption price, including, when applicable, accrued interest to the date fixed
for redemption, being held in trust to pay the redemption price, (a) the Series 2023A Bonds so
called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption, (b) interest
on such Series 2023A Bonds shall cease to accrue from and after such date fixed for redemption,
(c) such Series 2023A Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under the
Indenture and (d) the owners of such Series 2023A Bonds shall have no rights in respect thereof
except to receive payment of the redemption price. Series 2023A Bonds which have been duly
called for redemption under the provisions of this Article Il and for which moneys for the
payment of the redemption price thereof, together with interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption, shall have been set aside and held in trust for the holders of the Series 2023A Bonds
to be redeemed, all as provided in this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, shall not be deemed to
be Outstanding under the provisions of the Indenture.

ARTICLE IV

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS
AND ADMINISTRATION THEREOF

Section 4.01 Establishment of Funds and Accounts. There is hereby established
within the Debt Service Reserve Fund established pursuant to Section 3.02(c) of the Master
Indenture, the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account, to be held and administered by the
Trustee in accordance with the Indenture and Section 4.04 of this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture. In addition, the following funds are hereby established pursuant to Section 3.02 of the
Master Indenture, each of which shall be held and administered by the Trustee as set forth
herein:

@ The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund, Series 2023A (the “Series 2023A Costs of
Issuance Fund”); and

(b) The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds Debt Service Fund, Series 2023A (the “Series 2023A Debt Service
Fund”), which shall contain an Interest Account, a Principal Account and a Redemption Account
for purposes of the Indenture.

Section 4.02 Application of Funds. The net proceeds of the sale of the Series 2023A
Bonds, being the amount of $ | [(of which $] | shall be paid directly by the
initial purchasers to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer for the issuance of the Series 2023A Bond
Insurance Policy and the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy)], shall be received
by the Trustee and be deposited as follows:

€)] the sum of $] | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Escrow
Fund established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement to be used, together with funds held under
the Indenture and available for such purpose, to defease all of the outstanding Series 2013A
Bonds, as provided in the Escrow Agreement.

-14 -
OMM_US:80526547.4



(b) the sum of $] | shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Series
2023A Debt Service Reserve Account.

(©) the balance (being $] ]) shall be deposited by the Trustee into the
Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund.

Section 4.03  Series 2023A Debt Service Fund. The Trustee shall withdraw funds and
make payments from the Revenue Fund for deposit in the Series 2023A Debt Service Fund at the
times and in the amounts required by Section 3.03(a) - FIRST of the Master Indenture in respect
of the Series 2023A Bonds. With the funds made available to it pursuant to Section 3.03 of the
Master Indenture for such purpose, the Trustee shall make deposits or transfers into the Series
2023A Debt Service Fund as follows:

@) Interest Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Interest
Account of the Series 2023A Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided in the Master Indenture
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) and this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay interest
due on the Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds. The Trustee shall also deposit
into the Interest Account any other amounts deposited with it for deposit in such Interest
Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts
in the Interest Account shall be credited to such account.

(b) Principal Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the Principal
Account of the Series 2023A Debt Service Fund amounts, as provided pursuant to Section
3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, to be used to pay the
principal amount or the Final Compounded Amount of the Series 2023A Bonds at maturity. The
Trustee shall also deposit into the Principal Account any other amounts deposited with it for
deposit into such Principal Account or transferred from other funds and accounts for deposit
therein. Earnings on amounts in the Principal Account shall be credited to such account.

() Redemption Account. The Trustee shall deposit or transfer into the
Redemption Account of the Series 2023A Debt Service Fund amounts required or, in the case of
optional redemption, amounts as instructed by or as received from the Authority, as provided
pursuant to Section 3.03(a) of the Master Indenture and this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, to
be used to pay the redemption price of Series 2023A Bonds being redeemed as provided in
Section 2.12 of the Master Indenture and Sections 3.02 and 3.03 of this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Trustee shall also deposit into the Redemption Account any other amounts
deposited with it for deposit into the Redemption Account or transferred from other funds and
accounts for deposit therein. Earnings on amounts in the Redemption Account shall be credited
to such account, and any remaining earnings or other amounts therein following the applicable
date fixed for redemption shall be withdrawn by the Trustee on the Business Day following such
date fixed for redemption and deposited into the Revenue Fund, unless an Event of Default exists
under the Indenture, in which event the earnings shall be retained in such Redemption Account.

Pursuant to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2023A
Debt Service Fund and the accounts therein may be invested and reinvested as directed by an
Authorized Authority Representative in Permitted Investments.

-15-

OMM_US:80526547.4



Section 4.04 Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account. As a condition of issuance
of the Series 2023A Bonds, the amount set forth in Section 4.02(b) shall be deposited in the
Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund so that the
amount credited thereto will be equal to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Series
2023A Bonds. In the event that a Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy shall be deposited in the
Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account as provided in Section 3.05(c) of the Master
Indenture, then any amounts in the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account in excess of the
Debt Service Reserve Requirement resulting from such deposit shall be transferred to the Series
2023A Debt Service Fund, unless an Event of Default exists under the Indenture, in which event
the excess amounts shall be retained in the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account, as
provided in Section 3.05(d) of the Master Indenture.

The Trustee is authorized and directed to enter into the Series 2023A Debt Service
Reserve Surety Policy in its capacity as Trustee under the Indenture and all provisions in the
Indenture relating to the rights, privileges, powers and protections of the Trustee shall apply with
equal force and effect to all actions taken or not taken by the Trustee in connection with the
performance of any duties or responsibilities of the Trustee with respect to or under the Series
2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

Section 4.05 Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund. There shall be deposited into the
Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund the amount provided in Section 4.02(c) above. The
Trustee shall make payments or disbursements from the Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund, if
any, to pay Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2023A Bonds upon receipt from the Authority
of a Requisition meeting the requirements of Section 3.13 of the Master Indenture. Pursuant to
Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Series 2023A Costs of Issuance
Fund may be invested and reinvested as directed by an Authorized Authority Representative in
Permitted Investments. Subject to Section 3.11 of the Master Indenture, earnings on amounts in
the Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund shall be retained therein. Upon the Trustee’s receipt of
written instructions from an Authorized Authority Representative, all amounts remaining on
deposit in the Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund shall be transferred to the Series 2023A Debt
Service Fund, and the Trustee shall close the Series 2023A Costs of Issuance Fund.

ARTICLE V

TAX COVENANTS

The Authority hereby agrees that it will execute the Tax Certificate with respect to the
Series 2023A Bonds. There is hereby created and established by the Authority the “Alameda
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds Rebate
Fund, Series 2023A” (the “Series 2023A Rebate Fund”) to be held and administered by the
Authority. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein relating to the deposit of
investment earnings on amounts on deposit in any fund or account hereunder, at the written
direction of the Authority, any earnings which are subject to a federal tax or rebate requirement,
as provided in the Tax Certificate, shall be deposited in the Series 2023A Rebate Fund for that
purpose.

-16 -

OMM_US:80526547.4



ARTICLE VI

SERIES 2023A BOND INSURANCE POLICY; SERIES 2023A DEBT SERVICE
RESERVE SURETY POLICY; ADDITIONAL COVENANTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE SERIES 2023A BOND INSURER

Section 6.01 Application of Article VI.

@) All provisions herein regarding rights, consents, approvals, directions,
appointments or requests by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer shall be deemed to not require or
permit such consents, approvals, directions, appointments or requests by the Series 2023A Bond
Insurer and shall be read as if the Series 2023A Bond Insurer were not mentioned therein, during
any time in which: (i) the Series 2023A Bond Insurer is in default in its obligation to make
payments under (A) the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy when due, (B) the Series 2023A
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy when due, or (C) any other municipal bond insurance policy
or debt service reserve surety policy issued by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer when due and such
failure shall continue for 30 days unless the obligation of the Series 2023A Bond Insurer to pay
is being contested by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer in good faith by appropriate proceedings;
(ii) the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the Series 2023A Bond
Insurer, or shall be declared to be null and void, in each case by a final, non-appealable order of a
court of competent jurisdiction, or the validity or enforceability of any provision thereof is being
contested by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer or any governmental agency or authority acting as a
receiver or similar capacity for the Series 2023A Bond Insurer, or if the Series 2023A Bond
Insurer is denying further liability or obligation under the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy
or Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy; (iii) a proceeding has been instituted in a
court having jurisdiction in the premises seeking an order for relief, rehabilitation,
reorganization, conservation, liquidation or dissolution in respect of the Series 2023A Bond
Insurer under Article 16 of the Insurance Law of the State of New York or any successor
provision thereto or similar provision of law and such proceeding is not terminated for a period
of 90 consecutive days or such court enters an order granting the relief sought in such
proceeding; or (iv) the Series 2023A Insured Bonds are no longer Outstanding and any amounts
due or to become due to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer have been paid in full; provided that to
the extent that the Series 2023A Bond Insurer has made any payment of principal of or interest
on the Series 2023A Bonds under the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy or the Series 2023A
Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy, it shall retain its rights of subrogation and reimbursement
under this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Subject to Subsection 6.01(a) hereof, the covenants of the Authority in this
Article VI are solely for the benefit of the Series 2023A Bond Insurer and can be modified or
waived in whole or in part by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer or otherwise agreed to between the
Authority and the Series 2023A Bond Insurer without the consent of the Trustee and the Holders
of the Bonds. The failure by the Authority to comply with any such covenants in this Article VI
shall constitute an Event of Default under the provisions of the Indenture if, and only if, the
Series 2023A Bond Insurer gives a written notice of such failure to the Trustee and to the
Authority, notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary.

-17 -
OMM_US:80526547.4



Section 6.02 Provisions Relating to the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy. As long
as the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect and the Series 2023A
Bond Insurer is not in default of its obligation to make payments thereunder, the Authority, the
Trustee and any Paying Agent hereby agree to comply with the following provisions:

@) If, on the third Business Day prior to the related scheduled interest
payment date or principal payment date (“Payment Date”) on the Series 2023A Insured Bonds,
there is not on deposit with the Trustee, after making all transfers and deposits required under the
Indenture, moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2023A Insured
Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer
and to its designated agent (if any) (the “Series 2023A Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent”) by
telephone or telecopy of the amount of such deficiency by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on
such Business Day. If, on the second Business Day prior to the related Payment Date, there
continues to be a deficiency in the amount available to pay the principal of and interest on the
Series 2023A Insured Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall make a claim under
the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy and give notice to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer and
the Series 2023A Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent (if any) by telephone of the amount of such
deficiency, and the allocation of such deficiency between the amount required to pay interest on
the Series 2023A Insured Bonds and the amount required to pay principal of the Series 2023A
Insured Bonds, confirmed in writing to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer and the Series 2023A
Bond Insurer’s Fiscal Agent by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on such second Business Day
by filling in the form of Notice of Claim and Certificate delivered with the Series 2023A Bond
Insurance Policy.

(b) The Trustee shall designate any portion of payment of principal on Series
2023A Insured Bonds paid by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer, whether by virtue of mandatory
sinking fund redemption, maturity or other advancement of maturity, on its books as a reduction
in the principal amount of Series 2023A Insured Bonds registered to the then current Holder of
the Series 2023A Insured Bonds, whether DTC or its nominee or otherwise, and shall issue a
replacement Series 2023A Bond to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer, registered in the name of
[BOND INSURER NAME] in a principal amount equal to the amount of principal so paid
(without regard to authorized denominations); provided that the Trustee’s failure to so designate
any payment or issue any replacement Series 2023A Insured Bond shall have no effect on the
amount of principal or interest payable by the Authority on any Series 2023A Insured Bond or
the subrogation rights of the Series 2023A Bond Insurer.

(c) The Trustee shall keep a complete and accurate record of all funds
deposited by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer into the Policy Payments Account (defined below)
and the allocation of such funds to payment of interest on and principal of any Series 2023A
Insured Bond. The Series 2023A Bond Insurer shall have the right to inspect such records at
reasonable times upon reasonable notice to the Trustee.

(d) Upon payment of a claim under the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy,
the Trustee shall establish a separate special purpose trust account for the benefit of holders of
the Series 2023A Insured Bonds, which is referred to herein as the “Policy Payments Account,”
and over which the Trustee shall have exclusive control and sole right of withdrawal. The
Trustee shall receive any amount paid under the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy in trust on

-18-

OMM_US:80526547.4



behalf of Holders of the Series 2023A Insured Bonds and shall deposit any such amount in the
Policy Payments Account and distribute such amount only for purposes of making the payments
for which a claim was made. Such amounts shall be disbursed by the Trustee to Holders of the
Series 2023A Insured Bonds in the same manner as principal and interest payments are to be
made with respect to the Series 2023A Bonds under the sections of the Indenture regarding
payment of Senior Lien Bonds. It shall not be necessary for such payments to be made by
checks or wire transfers separate from the check or wire transfer used to pay debt service with
other funds available to make such payments.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, the Authority
agrees to pay to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer: (i) a sum equal to the total of all amounts paid
by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer under the Series 2023A Bond Insurance Policy (the “Insurer
Advances”), which Insurer Advances shall be payable with monies deposited into the Series
2023A Debt Service Fund pursuant to Section 3.03(a) paragraph FIRST of the Indenture; and (ii)
interest on such Insurer Advances from the date paid by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer until
payment thereof in full, payable to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate per
annum (collectively, the “Insurer Reimbursement Amounts”), which Insurer Reimbursement
Amounts shall be payable as Financing Fees with monies deposited pursuant to Section 3.03(a)
paragraph THIRD of the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate” means the lesser of: (A) the greater of
() the per annum rate of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase
Bank at its principal office in The City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (any
change in such rate of interest to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan
Chase Bank) plus 3%, and (II) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2023A
Insured Bonds, and (B) the maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar 2023A
limiting interest rates. The Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days.

()] Funds held-in the Policy Payments Account shall not be invested by the
Trustee and may not be applied to satisfy any costs, expenses or liabilities of the Trustee. Any
funds remaining in the Policy Payments Account following a Payment Date of the Series 2023A
Insured Bonds shall promptly be remitted to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer.

Section 6.03 Provisions Relating to the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety
Policy.

(@) The Trustee shall ascertain the necessity for making a claim upon the
Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy in accordance with the provisions of
subparagraph (d) hereof and shall provide notice to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer in accordance
with the terms of the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy at least five (5) Business
Days prior to each date upon which interest or principal is due on the Series 2023A Bonds.
Where deposits are required to be made by the Authority with the Trustee to the Series 2023A
Debt Service Fund more often than semi-annually, the Trustee shall give notice to the Series
2023A Bond Insurer of any failure of the Authority to make timely payment in full of such
deposits within two Business Days of the due date.

(b) The Authority shall repay, or cause to be repaid, any draws under the
Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and pay all related reasonable expenses

-19-

OMM_US:80526547.4



incurred by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer and shall pay interest thereon from the date of
payment by the Series 2023A Bond Insurer at the Late Payment Rate, which amounts shall be
payable as a Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligation pursuant to Section 3.03(c) of
the Indenture. “Late Payment Rate means the lesser of: (x) the greater of (i) the per annum rate
of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank at its principal office
in the City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate (“Prime Rate”) (any change in such
Prime Rate to be effective on the date such change is announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank) plus
3%, and (ii) the then applicable highest rate of interest on the Series 2023A Bonds, and (y) the
maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws limiting interest rates. The
Late Payment Rate shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed over a
year of 360 days. In the event JPMorgan Chase Bank ceases to announce its Prime Rate
publicly, Prime Rate shall be the publicly announced prime or base lending rate of such national
bank as the Series 2023A Bond Insurer shall specify.

If the interest provisions of this subparagraph (b) shall result in an effective rate of
interest which, for any period, exceeds the limit of the usury or any other laws applicable to the
indebtedness created herein, then all sums in excess of those lawfully collectible as interest for
the period in question shall, without further agreement or notice between or by any party hereto,
be applied as additional interest for any later periods of time when amounts are outstanding
hereunder to the extent that interest otherwise due hereunder for such periods plus such
additional interest would not exceed the limit of the usury or such other laws, and any excess
shall be applied upon principal immediately upon receipt of such moneys by the Series 2023A
Bond Insurer, with the same force and effect as if the Authority had specifically designated such
extra sums to be so applied and the Series 2023A Bond Insurer had agreed to accept such extra
payment(s) as additional interest for such later periods. In no event shall any agreed-to or actual
exaction as consideration for the indebtedness created herein exceed the limits imposed or
provided by the law applicable to this transaction for the use or detention of money or for
forbearance in seeking its collection.

(c) Repayment of draws and payment of expenses and accrued interest
thereon at the Late Payment Rate (collectively, “Policy Costs”) shall commence in the first
month following each draw, and each such monthly payment shall be in an amount at least equal
to 1/12 of the aggregate of Policy Costs related to such draw.

Policy Costs constitute Debt Service Reserve Surety Repayment Obligations with respect
to the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy and shall be paid as provided in Section
3.03(c) of the Master Indenture.

Amounts in respect of Policy Costs paid to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer shall be
credited: first to interest due, then to the expenses due, and then to principal due. As and to the
extent that payments are made to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer on account of principal due, the
coverage under the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy will be increased by a like
amount, subject to the terms of the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy.

(d) All cash and investments in the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve
Account shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Series 2023A Debt Service Fund for payment
of debt service on the Series 2023A Bonds before any drawing may be made on the Series

-20 -

OMM_US:80526547.4



2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy or any other credit facility credited to the Series
2023A Debt Service Reserve Account in lieu of cash (a “Credit Facility”). Payment of any
Policy Costs shall be made prior to replenishment of any such cash amounts. Draws on all
Credit Facilities (including the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Surety Policy) on which
there is available coverage shall be made by the Trustee on a pro-rata basis (calculated by
reference to the coverage then available thereunder) after applying all available cash and
investments in the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve Account, payment of Policy Costs and
reimbursement of amounts with respect to other Credit Facilities shall be made on a pro-rata
basis prior to replenishment of any cash drawn from the Series 2023A Debt Service Reserve
Account. For the avoidance of doubt, “available coverage” means the coverage then available
for disbursement pursuant to the terms of the applicable Credit Facility without regard to the
legal or financial ability or willingness of the provider of such instrument to honor a claim or
draw thereon or the failure of such provider to honor any such claim or draw.

(e) The Indenture shall not be discharged until all Policy Costs owing to the
Series 2023A Bond Insurer shall have been paid in full. The Authority’s obligation to pay such
amounts shall expressly survive payment in full of the Series 2023A Bonds.

Section 6.04 Covenants of the Authority For the Benefit of the Series 2023A Bond
Insurer; Rights of Series 2023A Bond Insurer.

@) [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]
Section 6.05 Notices to the Series 2023A Bond Insurer.
(b) [To be provided following engagement of bond insurer]

ARTICLE VII

MISCELLANEOUS
Section 7.01 Notices.

€)] Any notice, request, direction, designation, consent, acknowledgment,
certification, appointment, waiver or other communication required or permitted by this Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture or the Series 2023A Bonds must be in writing except as expressly
provided otherwise in this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Any notice or other communication, unless otherwise specified, shall be
sufficiently given and deemed given when (i) mailed by first-class mail, postage prepaid,
addressed to the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture, or to the
Series 2023A Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, (ii) delivered by hand
and received by the Authority or the Trustee at the addresses provided in the Indenture or (iii)
sent by facsimile to the Authority or the Trustee at the number provided in the Indenture, or to
the Series 2023A Bond Insurer at the address provided in Section 6.05 hereof, provided the
machine receiving such facsimile is equipped with automatic answer-back capacity. Any
addressee may designate additional or different addresses for purposes of this Section.

-21-

OMM_US:80526547.4



Section 7.02 Modification of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority
may, from time to time and at any time, execute and deliver Supplemental Indentures
supplementing and/or amending this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture in the manner set forth in
Article VIII of the Master Indenture.

Section 7.03 Severability. [If any provision of this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture
shall be determined to be unenforceable, that shall not affect any other provision of this Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture.

Section 7.04 Payments or Actions Occurring on Non-Business Days. If a payment
date is not a Business Day at the place of payment or if any action required hereunder is required
on a date that is not a Business Day, then payment may be made at that place on the next
Business Day or such action may be taken on the next Business Day with the same effect as if
payment were made or the action taken on the stated date, and no interest shall accrue on that
payment for the intervening period.

Section 7.05 Governing Law. This Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 7.06 Captions. The captions in this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture are for
convenience only and do not define or limit the scope or intent of any provisions or Sections of
this Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

Section 7.07 Counterparts. This Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture may be signed in
several counterparts. Each will be an original, but all of them together constitute the same
instrument.

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.]

-22 -
OMM_US:80526547.4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture to be duly executed all as of the date first above written.

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

Attest:

By:

[Chief Executive Officer]

By:

Secretary of the
Authority Governing Board

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

By:

[Vice President]

S-1

OMM_US:80526547.4



EXHIBIT A

[FORM OF CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2023A
(Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Final Compounded Amount:

Initial Amount:

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of
or premium, if any, on this bond. Payment of the Accreted Value or Final Compounded
Amount of or premium, if any, on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority
and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the
Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Final Compounded Amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof until the maturity date hereof, at the interest
rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2023] and semiannually thereafter on October
1 and April 1 of each year), as provided in this bond.

A-1

OMM_US:80526547.4



Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

A-2

OMM_US:80526547.4



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2023]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2023A Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

A-3

OMM_US:80526547.4



1. Master Indenture; Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A (the
“Series 2023A Bonds”). The Series 2023A Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2023] (the “Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2023A Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), Current Interest Bonds and Series
2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate Initial Amount
of 3 ]. The Series 2023A Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the Master
Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a “Senior Lien
Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds shall be on a parity with the
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series
1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation
Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the Authority on
February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by the Authority on June 21, 2012, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A
issued by the Authority on February 12, 2013 (the “Series 2013A Bonds”), the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A
issued by the Authority on | , 2022], the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority
Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B issued by the Authority on
[ , 2022], and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time under the Master
Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds are
being issued to refund all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds, as further described in the
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2023A Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture and
the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from time to
time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms used but
not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2023A Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master
Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The

A-4

OMM_US:80526547.4



Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or
lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior
Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time Outstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. Interest on this bond shall accrue, but shall not be payable until
maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond, compounded
semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1, 2023].

Interest on overdue Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will
accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts (including interest
thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set forth in the
Indenture).

4, Payment of Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount. Payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2023A Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of the
Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount as provided in the Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture. The Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount will be paid in lawful money of
the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it will be made on
the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

5. Redemption.

€)] [Optional Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to
optional redemption, and the Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital Appreciation
Bonds maturing on and after [October 1, 20__ ] are subject to optional redemption,
on any date on or after [October 1, 1, in whole or in part, at the option of the
Authority, from any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the Accreted Value on such Series 2023A
Bonds as of the date fixed for redemption.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in
the respective Accreted Values set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the Accreted Value thereof as of the date fixed for redemption:]

A-5
OMM_US:80526547.4



Mandatory Redemption Date Accreted Value to be
(October 1) Redeemed

"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2023A Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to
give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2023A Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture will
be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by
the addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2023A
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

6. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Capital
Appreciation Bonds are available in denominations such that the Accreted Value of such Capital
Appreciation Bonds at their maturity shall be $5,000 or an integral multiple thereof. A holder
may transfer or exchange Series 2023A Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture and the
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder, among
other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any taxes
and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

7. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

8. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the Accreted Value or Final
Compounded Amount or premium, if any, remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be
paid to or for the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look
only to the Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

A-6
OMM_US:80526547.4



9. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any, on all
Outstanding Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then
payable by the Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all
Supplemental Indentures thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look
only to the deposited money and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits
with the Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture
sufficient to pay in full the Accreted Value or Final Compounded Amount and premium, if any,
on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was
made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master
Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

10.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. = The Master Indenture, the Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2023A Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owner of this bond or any Series 2023A Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

11. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2023A Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2023A Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

12. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2023A Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2023A
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

13.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

14.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

A-7

OMM_US:80526547.4



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint
agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:
(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80526547.4



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

A-9

OMM_US:80526547.4



EXHIBIT B
[FORM OF CURRENT INTEREST BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2023A

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No.

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Registered Owner:

Principal Sum:

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this
bond. Payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on this bond is a special
limited obligation of the Authority and is secured only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of
Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date stated above, unless
earlier redeemed, and to pay from those sources interest thereon at the Interest Rate stated above,
as provided in this bond.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

OMM_US:80526547.4
B-1



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2023]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2023A Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

OMM_US:80526547.4
B-2



1. Master Indenture; Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S.
Bank, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A (the
“Series 2023A Bonds”). The Series 2023A Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2023] (the “Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2023A Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds (including this bond) and Series
2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds, are being issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $] |. The Series 2023A Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the
Master Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a
“Senior Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds shall be on a
parity with the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the
Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by the Authority on June 21, 2012, the
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2013A issued by the Authority on February 12, 2013 (the “Series 2013A Bonds”),
the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2022A issued by the Authority on | , 2022], the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B issued
by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time
under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series
2023A Bonds are being issued to refund all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds, as further
described in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2023A Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture and
the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from time to
time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms used but
not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2023A Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master
Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or

OMM_US:80526547.4
B-3



lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior
Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time Outstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. This bond shall bear interest from its date until its maturity or prior
redemption at the Interest Rate shown on the face of this bond. Interest on overdue principal
and, to the extent lawful, on overdue interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this
bond until all overdue amounts (including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such
amounts is provided for as set forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on
the basis of a year of 360 days and twelve 30-day months.

4, Interest Payment and Record Dates. Interest hereon will be due and payable on
[October 1, 2023] and on each October 1 and April 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2023A Bond, as defined in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture,
interest hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is
a Book-Entry Series 2023A Bond, interest will be paid as provided in the Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal. Principal of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior
redemption upon surrender of this bond to the Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-
Entry Series 2023A Bonds, the Paying Agent may make arrangements for payment of principal
as provided in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. Principal and interest will be paid in lawful
money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-Business Day, it will
be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue on that payment for the
intervening period as a result.

6. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest
Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional
redemption, and the Series 2023A Bonds that are Current Interest Bonds maturing
on and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on
or after [October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from
any moneys that may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount of such Series 2023A Bonds so redeemed plus
accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Current
Interest Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory sinking

OMM_US:80526547.4
B-4



7

fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective principal amounts set forth below, in each case at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for
such mandatory redemption:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days
before each redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture to each owner of a Series 2023A Bond to be redeemed,
which notice may be conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to
give any required notice of redemption will not affect the validity of the call for
redemption of any Series 2023A Bond in respect of which such failure does not
occur. Any notice sent as provided in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture will
be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by
the addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2023A
Bonds called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for
redemption at the applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the
redemption date; in such case when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited
with the Paying Agent, interest on the Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed ceases
to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Current

Interest Bonds are available in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A
holder may transfer or exchange Series 2023A Bonds in accordance with the Master Indenture
and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee and the Registrar may require a holder,
among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Master Indenture.

8.

Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Fifteenth

Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all

purposes.

OMM_US:80526547.4

B-5



9. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal of, premium, if
any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for the account of
the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the Authority and
not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all Outstanding Bonds (including this
bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the Authority under the
Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures thereto will be
discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money and securities
for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or Government
Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on any portion of the Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with
respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no
longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11.  Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. The Master Indenture, the Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2023A Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owners of this bond or any Series 2023A Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2023A Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2023A Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2023A Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2023A
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

14. Authentication. This bond shall not be wvalid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by

OMM_US:80526547.4
B-6



the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

OMM_US:80526547.4
B-7



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act
for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on
the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must
be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor
institution.)

OMM_US:80526547.4
B-8



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

B-9

OMM_US:80526547.4



EXHIBIT C
[FORM OF CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION BOND]
ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BOND,
SERIES 2023A
(Convertible Capital Appreciation Bond)

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY TO THE TRUSTEE FOR REGISTRATION
OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND IS REGISTERED IN
THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (AND
ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY
TRUST COMPANY), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS
THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST THEREIN.

No. Principal Amount at Maturity: $

Initial Amount: $

Interest Rate Maturity Date Original Dated Date CUSIP

Neither the faith and the credit nor the taxing power of the City of Los Angeles, the
Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long Beach, the Harbor
Department of the City of Long Beach, the State of California or any public agency is
pledged to or secures the payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
or interest on this bond. Payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, premium, if any,
on or interest on this bond is a special limited obligation of the Authority and is secured
only by the Trust Estate and a pledge of Revenues, as provided in the Indenture. The
Authority has no power of taxation.

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) promises to pay,
solely from the Trust Estate as provided in the Indenture, to the registered owner stated above, or
registered assigns, the principal amount of Dollars on the maturity
date set forth above (which amount represents the Initial Amount hereof, together with accreted
interest on such Initial Amount, from the date hereof through the end of the Accretion Period at

OMM_US:80526547.4

C-1



the interest rate specified above, compounded on [October 1, 2023] and semiannually thereafter
on October 1 and April 1 of each year (each, a “Compounding Date™) as provided in this bond.
Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value as of the
Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount), at the interest rate specified above.

Additional provisions of this bond are set forth on the following pages of this bond.

OMM_US:80526547.4

C-2



All acts, conditions and other matters required to exist, to happen and to be performed,
precedent to and in the issuance of this bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed
in due time, form and manner as required by law.

Date of Authentication: | , 2023]

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, ALAMEDA CORRIDOR
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
trust to U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, certifies that this is one of the Series

2023A Bonds referred to in the Indenture and

the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

By: By:
Authorized Signatory [Chief Executive Officer]

[Countersigned:

By:

Chief Financial Officer]

OMM_US:80526547.4
C-3



1. Master Indenture; Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Authority has
entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999, as amended (the “Master
Indenture™), with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Master Indenture provides that the
Authority may issue bonds and incur other indebtedness under the terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Indenture and any Supplemental Indenture. All bonds and other indebtedness
issued thereunder and secured thereby are collectively referred to herein as “Bonds.”

This bond is part of a series of Bonds of the Authority designated as Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A (the
“Series 2023A Bonds”). The Series 2023A Bonds are issued under the Master Indenture and a
Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of | 1, 2023] (the “Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture”), between the Authority and the Trustee and authorized by Resolution
No. | | adopted by the Authority on | , 2022]. The Series 2023A Bonds, which
consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Current Interest Bonds and Series 2023A Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds (including this bond), are being issued in the aggregate Initial
Amount of $] |. The Series 2023A Bonds are equally and ratably secured under the
Master Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. This bond shall be deemed a
“Senior Lien Bond” as defined in the Master Indenture. The Series 2023A Bonds shall be on a
parity with the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999A issued by the Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C issued by the
Authority on February 9, 1999, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 issued by the Authority on June 21, 2012, the
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2013A issued by the Authority on February 12, 2013 (the “Series 2013A Bonds”),
the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2022A issued by the Authority on | , 2022], the Alameda Corridor
Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B issued
by the Authority on | , 2022], and any other Senior Lien Bonds issued from time to time
under the Master Indenture, as and to the extent provided in the Master Indenture. The Series
2023A Bonds are being issued to refund all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds, as further
described in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

The terms of the Series 2023A Bonds include the terms set forth in the Master Indenture
and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. Bondholders are referred to the Master Indenture and
the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, each as may be amended and supplemented from time to
time (collectively, the “Indenture”), for a statement of those terms. Capitalized terms used but
not otherwise defined in this bond shall have the meanings given to them in the Indenture.

2. Source of Payments. The Series 2023A Bonds, together with all other Bonds, are
secured by the Trust Estate and payable from the Revenues, as described in the Master Indenture.
Pursuant to the Master Indenture, the Authority has pledged the Revenues, subject to application
and priorities as described therein, to secure payment of all Bonds issued under the Master
Indenture. The Senior Lien Bonds authorized and issued under the provisions of the Master
Indenture shall be secured by a pledge of Revenues and a first lien on the Trust Estate. The
Authority hereby represents and states that it has not previously created any pledge, charge or

OMM_US:80526547.4

Cc-4



lien on any security interest in the Trust Estate prior to or on parity with the lien of the Senior
Lien Bonds, and the Authority covenants that, until all the Senior Lien Bonds authorized and
issued under the provisions of the Master Indenture and the interest thereon shall have been paid
or deemed to have been paid, the Authority will not, except as specifically provided in the
Master Indenture, grant any prior or parity pledge of or any lien on or security interest in the
Trust Estate, or create or permit to be created any charge or lien thereon or any security interest
therein ranking prior to or on a parity with the charge or lien of the Senior Lien Bonds from time
to time Outstanding under the Master Indenture.

3. Interest Rate. During the Accretion Period, interest on this bond shall accrue, but
shall not be payable until maturity or prior redemption, at the rate shown on the face of this bond,
compounded semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each year, commencing [October 1,
2023]. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, this bond shall bear interest on the Accreted Value
as of the Conversion Date (i.e., the principal amount) from the Interest Payment Date next
preceding the date of authentication thereof unless such date of authentication is an Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such date of authentication, or
unless such date of authentication is after a Record Date and before the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from such succeeding Interest
Payment Date, or unless such date of authentication is prior to the first Record Date following
the Conversion Date, in which event this bond shall bear interest from the Conversion Date. If
interest on this Bond shall be in default, the bond issued in exchange for the bond surrendered for
transfer or exchange pursuant to the Master Indenture shall bear interest from the Interest
Payment Date to which interest has been paid in full on the bond surrendered.

Interest on overdue principal or Accreted Value and, to the extent lawful, on overdue
interest will accrue at the rate shown on the face of this bond until all overdue amounts
(including interest thereon) are paid in full (or payment of such amounts is provided for as set
forth in the Indenture). Interest on this bond shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360
days and twelve 30-day months.

4. Interest Payment and Record Dates. Subsequent to the Accretion Period, interest
hereon will be due and payable on each April 1 and October 1 thereafter until maturity or prior
redemption, and will be paid by the Paying Agent to the party who is the owner hereof on the
Record Date for such payment. The Record Date for an April 1 payment is the preceding March
15, and the Record Date for an October 1 payment is the preceding September 15. If this bond is
not a Book-Entry Series 2023A Bond, as defined in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture,
interest hereon will be paid by check mailed to the holder’s registered address, and if this bond is
a Book Entry Series 2023A Bond, as defined in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, interest
will be paid as provided in the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture.

5. Payment of Principal or Accreted Value. Payment of the principal or Accreted
Value of this bond will be paid at maturity or prior redemption upon surrender of this bond to the
Paying Agent, except that with respect to Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds, the Paying Agent
may make arrangements for payment of the principal or Accreted Value of, as provided in the
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The principal or Accreted Value of, and interest thereon, will
be paid in lawful money of the United States. If any payment on this bond is due on a non-
Business Day, it will be made on the next Business Day, and no interest will accrue as a result.

OMM_US:80526547.4

C-5



6. Redemption.

@) [Optional Redemption. The Series 2023A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds maturing on or before [October 1, 20 ] are not subject to optional
redemption and the Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on
and after [October 1, 20 ] are subject to optional redemption, on any date on or after
[October 1, 1], in whole or in part, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that
may be provided for such purpose, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the Accreted
Value on such Series 2023A Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds as of the date fixed
for redemption.]

(b) [Mandatory Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds that are Convertible
Capital Appreciation Bonds maturing on October 1, [ ] shall be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity on each October 1 in the years and in the
respective [principal amounts] set forth below, in each case at a redemption price equal to
the [principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for such mandatory
redemption]:]

Mandatory Redemption Date Principal Amount to be
(October 1) Redeemed
t
"Maturity

(©) Extraordinary Redemption. The Series 2023A Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption as provided in the Master Indenture.

(d) Notice of Redemption. At least thirty (30) days (or at least twenty (20)
days for Book-Entry Series 2023A Bonds) but not more than sixty (60) days before each
redemption, the Trustee will give notice as provided in the Fifteenth Supplemental
Indenture to each owner of a Series 2023A Bond to be redeemed, which notice may be
conditional in the case of optional redemption. Failure to give any required notice of
redemption will not affect the validity of the call for redemption of any Series 2023A
Bond in respect of which such failure does not occur. Any notice sent as provided in the
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture will be conclusively presumed to have been given
whether or not actually received by the addressee.

(e) Effect of Redemption. When notice of redemption is given and funds
sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, Series 2023A Bonds
called for redemption become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption at the
applicable redemption price plus accrued interest to the redemption date; in such case
when funds sufficient for redemption are deposited with the Paying Agent, interest on the
Series 2023A Bonds to be redeemed ceases to accrue as of the date fixed for redemption.

OMM_US:80526547.4

C-6



7. Denominations; Transfer; Exchange. The Series 2023A Convertible Capital
Appreciation Bonds are (i) on any date during the Accretion Period, available in denominations
such that the Accreted Value on the Conversion Date shall equal $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof; and (ii) on any date subsequent to the Accretion Period, available in denominations of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. A holder may transfer or exchange Series 2023A Bonds
in accordance with the Master Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. The Trustee
and the Registrar may require a holder, among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements
and transfer documents and to pay any taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Master
Indenture.

8. Persons Deemed Owners. Except as provided in Section [6.04] of the Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the registered owner of this bond shall be treated as its owner for all
purposes.

9. Unclaimed Money. If moneys for the payment of the principal or Accreted Value
of, premium, if any, or interest remain unclaimed for one year, such moneys will be paid to or for
the account of the Authority. After that, holders entitled to such moneys must look only to the
Authority and not to the Paying Agent or the Trustee for payment.

10. Discharge Before Maturity. If the Authority at any time deposits with the
Trustee money or Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay
in full the principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on all Outstanding
Bonds (including this bond), and if the Authority also pays all other sums then payable by the
Authority under the Master Indenture, then the Master Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures
thereto will be discharged. After discharge, Bondholders must look only to the deposited money
and securities for payment. If the Authority at any time deposits with the Trustee money or
Government Obligations as described in the Master Indenture sufficient to pay in full the
principal or Accreted Value of, interest on and premium, if any, on any portion of the
Outstanding Bonds, then such Bonds with respect to which the deposit was made shall no longer
be deemed to be Outstanding and shall no longer be secured by the Master Indenture except to
the extent of the funds set aside therefor.

11. Amendment, Supplement, Waiver. = The Master Indenture, the Fifteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Series 2023A Bonds may be amended or supplemented, and any
past default or compliance with any provision may be waived, only as provided in the Master
Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture. Any consent given by the owner of this
bond shall bind any subsequent owner of this bond or any Series 2023A Bond delivered in
substitution for this bond.

12. Defaults and Remedies. The Master Indenture provides that the occurrences of
certain events constitute Events of Default. Bondholders may not enforce the Indenture or the
Series 2023A Bonds except as provided in the Master Indenture. The Trustee may refuse to
enforce the Indenture or the Series 2023A Bonds unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it in
accordance with Section 7.07 of the Master Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders of
25% or more of the Bond Obligation amount of the Bonds (including this bond), determined in
accordance with the terms of the Master Indenture and the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture,
may direct the Trustee in its exercise of certain of such trusts or powers.

OMM_US:80526547.4

C-7



13. No Recourse Against Others. No member, director, officer, official or employee
of the Authority shall have any personal liability for any obligations of the Authority under the
Series 2023A Bonds, the Master Indenture or the Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture or for any
claim based on such obligations or their creation or be subject to any personal liability or
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. Each Bondholder, by accepting a Series 2023A
Bond, waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration
for the issuance of this bond.

14.  Authentication.  This bond shall not be valid until the Trustee or an
authenticating agent signs the certificate of authentication on the second page of this bond.

15.  Abbreviations. Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a
Bondholder or an assignee, such as TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by
the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common),
CUST (= custodian) and U/G/M/A (= Uniform Gifts to Minors Act).

OMM_US:80526547.4

C-8



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

I or we assign and transfer this bond to

[insert social security number or other identifying number of assignee]

[print or type assignee’s name, address and zip code]

and irrevocably appoint

agent to transfer this bond on the books of the Authority. The agent may substitute another to act

for him.

Date: Signature:

(Sign exactly as name appears on the face of this bond)

Signature guarantee:

(NOTE: Signature must be guaranteed by an
eligible guarantor institution.)

OMM_US:80526547.4



STATEMENT OF INSURANCE

[To be included, if applicable]

C-10

OMM_US:80526547.4



EXHIBITD
[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2023A CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS]

[see attached]

D-1

OMM_US:80526547.4



EXHIBIT E

[ACCRETED VALUE TABLE SERIES 2023A CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL APPRECIATION
BONDS]

[see attached]

E-1

OMM_US:80526547.4



EXHIBIT D-1
FORM OF BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT (2022A/2022B)

[to be attached)]

D-1-1



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 6/8/2022

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

$ $
TAX-EXEMPT SENIOR LIEN TAXABLE SENIOR
REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS,
2022A SERIES 2022B

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

, 2022

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200
Long Beach, California 90806

Ladies and Gentlemen:

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, on behalf of itself and as representative (the “Representative”) of
the underwriters listed in Schedule 1 hereto (collectively with the Representative, the “Underwriters”),
hereby offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with the
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority””), whereby the Underwriters will purchase
and the Authority will sell the Bonds (as defined and described below). The offer made hereby is
subject to receipt by the Underwriters of (i) the documents referred to in Paragraph 5 hereof and (ii) the
letters of representation, dated the date hereof and in the forms attached hereto as Exhibits A through
D (collectively, the “Letters of Representation”), from BNSF Railway Company (“BNSF”), the Union
Pacific Railroad Company (“Union Pacific” and together with BNSF, the “Railroads”), the City of Los
Angeles, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (the “Port of Los Angeles”), and
the City of Long Beach, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (the “Port of Long
Beach” and together with the Port of Los Angeles, the “Ports”), and is subject to acceptance by the
Authority by execution and delivery of this Purchase Agreement to the Representative at or prior to
9:00 P.M., California time, on the date first above written. 1f such documents are not received or if
this offer is not so accepted, this offer will be subject to withdrawal by the Underwriters upon notice
delivered to the Chief Financial and the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority by the Representative
at any time prior to such receipt and the acceptance hereof by the Authority. Upon the receipt of such
documents and the acceptance of this offer in accordance with the terms hereof, this Purchase
Agreement shall be in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and shall bind both the
Authority and the Underwriters.

Capitalized terms in this Purchase Agreement that are not otherwise defined shall have the
meanings given to such terms in the Indenture herein after mentioned.

1. Purchase and Sale. Upon the terms and conditions and in reliance upon the
representations and agreements hereinafter set forth, the Underwriters hereby agree, jointly and
severally, to purchase from the Authority for offering to the public, and the Authority hereby agrees to
sell and deliver to the Underwriters for such purpose, all (but not less than all) of $ aggregate
principal amount or Initial Amount of Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A Bonds™) and $ aggregate
principal amount or Initial Amount of Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B Bonds” and, together with the Series
2022A Bonds, the “Bonds”), to be dated the date of the Closing (as hereinafter defined). The Bonds
shall accrue or accrete interest at the rates, shall mature (subject to prior redemption) on the dates and
in the amounts and shall be subject to redemption as shown on Schedule 2 hereto. The Bonds will be
issued as (i) current interest bonds, (ii) capital appreciation bonds and (iii) convertible capital
appreciation bonds.

[Payment when due of the principal of and interest on or the Accreted Value of the Series
2022A Bonds maturing on October 1, 20__ [and bearing interestat % or having the accreted values
set forth in Schedule 2], and October 1, 20__ [and bearing interest at __ % or having the accreted
values set forth in Schedule 2] (collectively, the “Series 2022A Insured Bonds™) shall be insured by

(the “Insurer”). Payment when due of the principal of and interest on or the Accreted Value
of the Series 2022B Bonds maturing on October 1, 20__ [and bearing interest at __ % or having the
accreted values set forth in Schedule 2], and October 1, 20__ [and bearing interest at % or having
the accreted values set forth in Schedule 2] (collectively, the “Series 2022B Insured Bonds” and,
together with the Series 2022A Insured Bonds, the “Insured Bonds”) shall be insured by the Insurer.]

The aggregate purchase price for the Series 2022A Bonds (the “Series 2022A Purchase Price”)
shall be $ (representing the aggregate principal amount or Initial Amount of the Series 2022A
Bonds, [plus/less original issue premium/discount] of $ and less Underwriters” discount of
$ ). The aggregate purchase price for the Series 2022B Bonds (the “Series 2022B Purchase Price”
and, together with the Series 2022A Purchase Price, the “Purchase Price”) shall be $
(representing the aggregate principal amount or Initial Amount of the Series 2022B Bonds, [plus/less
original issue premium/discount] of $ and less Underwriters’ discount of $ ).

2. The Bonds; Purpose of Issue. The Bonds shall be issued under and secured by a Master
Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999 (the “Master Indenture”), as supplemented and amended
by the First Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Third
Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of January 1,
1999, the Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2003, the Sixth Supplemental Trust
Indenture and the Seventh Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of February 1, 2004, the Eighth
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2012, the Ninth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated
as of February 1, 2013, the Tenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2016, the Eleventh
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2016 (collectively, the “Prior Supplemental
Indentures™), and by the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Trust
Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, each to be dated as of 1, 2022 (the
“Twelfth Supplemental Indenture,” the “Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture” and the “Fourteenth
Supplemental Indenture,” respectively, and the Master Indenture, as supplemented and amended by
the Prior Supplemental Indentures and by the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, the “Indenture”), each between
the Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as successor in trust to U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), and pursuant to Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of
the California Government Code, commencing with Section 6500 thereof (the “Act”). The execution
and delivery by the Authority of the Master Indenture and the Prior Supplemental Indentures were
authorized by the Governing Board of the Authority (the “Board”) pursuant to Resolution No. JPA-
26-98, adopted by the Board on October 14, 1998, as supplemented by Resolution No. JPA-30-98,
adopted by the Board on December 17, 1998, Resolution No. JPA-3-03, adopted by the Board on

2
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



July 10, 2003, Resolution No. JPA-1-04, adopted by the Board on February 5, 2004, Resolution
No. JPA-12-1, adopted by the Board on June 14, 2012, Resolution No. JPA-12-3, adopted by the Board
on November 8, 2012, Resolution No. JPA-13-1, adopted by the Board on January 10, 2013,
Resolution No. JPA-16-2, adopted by the Board on March 10, 2016 and Resolution No. JPA-16-3,
adopted by the Board on April 14, 2016 (collectively, the “Prior Resolutions™). The issuance of the
Bonds and the execution and delivery by the Authority of the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and the
Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture were authorized by the Board pursuant to Resolution No. JPA-22-
__,adopted by the Boardon ____, 2022 (the “2022 Resolution” and the 2022 Resolution together with
the Prior Resolutions, the “Resolutions™).

As described in further detail below, the Series 2022A Bonds purchased pursuant to this
Purchase Agreement are being issued (i) to defease the Authority’s outstanding Tax-Exempt Senior
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A (the “Series 2013A Bonds”) maturing on October 1,
2022 to their maturity (the “Refunded 2013A Bonds”); (ii) to pay the purchase price to all holders of
the Authority’s outstanding Series 2013A Bonds (other than those maturing on October 1, 2022) who
elect to tender such Series 2013A Bonds to the Authority and for which the Authority accepts such
tender; (iii) [in exchange for all of the Series 2013A Bonds (other than those maturing on October 1,
2022) that the qualified holders of such Series 2013A Bonds elect to exchange with the Authority] ;
(iv) to pay the purchase price to all holders of the Authority’s outstanding Tax-Exempt Senior Lien
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “Series 1999A Bonds”) who elect to tender such Series 1999A
Bonds to the Authority and for which the Authority accepts such tender; (vi) [in exchange for all of
the Series 1999A Bonds that the qualified holders of such Series 1999A Bonds elect to exchange with
the Authority]; (v) to fund a deposit to the debt service reserve account for the Series 2022A Bonds
[and to purchase a debt service reserve fund surety policy for the Series 2022A Bonds (the “2022A
Reserve Account Surety Policy”)]; (vii) to purchase a municipal bond insurance policy for a portion of
the Series 2022A Bonds, and (viii) to pay costs of issuing the Series 2022A Bonds and costs associated
with the tender of the Series 2013A Bonds and the Series 1999A Bonds.

The Series 2022B Bonds purchased pursuant to this Purchase Agreement are being issued (i)
to defease the Authority’s outstanding Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C (the “Series
1999C Bonds”) maturing on October 1, 2022 to their maturity, and the sinking fund payments due
October 1, 2023 through 2025 on the Series 1999C Bonds maturing on October 1, 2029 to their sinking
fund redemption dates (the “Refunded 1999C Bonds”); (ii) to pay the purchase price to all holders of
the Authority’s outstanding Taxable Series 1999C Bonds who elect to tender such Series 1999C Bonds
to the Authority and for which the Authority accepts such tender; (iii) [in exchange for all of the Series
1999C Bonds that the qualified holders of such Series 1999C Bonds elect to exchange with the
Authority]; (iv) to fund a deposit to the debt service reserve account for the Series 2022B Bonds and
to purchase a debt service reserve fund surety policy for the Series 2022B Bonds (the “2022B Reserve
Account Surety Policy, and together with the 2022A Reserve Account Policy, the “2022 Reserve
Account Policies™)]; (v) to purchase a municipal bond insurance policy for a portion of the Series
2022B Bonds; and (vi) to pay costs of issuing the Series 2022B Bonds.

The Authority has invited the holders of (i) all of its outstanding Series 1999A Bonds, (ii) all
of its outstanding its Series 1999C Bonds (the “Target 1999C Bonds”) other than the Refunded Series
1999C Bond and (iii) its outstanding Series 2013A Bonds other than the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds
(the “Target 2013A Bonds™) to tender such bonds for purchase [or, in the case of institutional holders
or sophisticated municipal market professionals,] for exchange, as more fully described in the
Invitation to Tender Bonds, dated , 2022 (the “Invitation”).

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



[Subject to the terms of the Invitation, the Authority will issue its Series 2022A Bonds in
exchange for the Series 1999A Bonds and the Target 2013A Bonds tendered for exchange and accepted
by the Authority pursuant to the Invitation (the “Exchanged Series 2022A Bonds”). Subject to the
terms of the Invitation, the Authority will issue its Series 2022B Bonds in exchange for the Target
1999C Bonds tendered for exchange and accepted by the Authority pursuant to the Invitation (the
“Exchanged Series 2022B Bonds” and, together with the Exchanged Series 2022A Bonds, the
“Exchanged Bonds™).]

Subject to the terms of the Invitation, the Authority will apply the proceeds of the Series 2022A
Bonds sold pursuant to this Purchase Agreement (the “Purchased Series 2022A Bonds™) to refund and
discharge the 1999A Bonds and the Target 2013A Bonds tendered for purchase and accepted by the
Authority pursuant to the Invitation. Subject to the terms of the Invitation, the Authority will apply the
proceeds of the Series 2022B Bonds sold pursuant to this Purchase Agreement (the “Purchased Series
2022B Bonds” and, together with the Purchased Series 2022A Bonds, the “Purchased Bonds”) to
refund and discharge the Target 1999C Bonds tendered for purchase and accepted by the Authority
pursuant to the Invitation.

All of the Bonds being offered, [whether for exchange under the Invitation or] for sale under
this Purchase Agreement are described in the Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement],
and the issuance of the Exchanged Bonds will occur concurrently with issuance of the Purchased
Bonds]. J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC (collectively, the “Dealer
Managers”) are serving as dealer managers for the tender [and exchange] under the Invitation pursuant
to a Dealer Manager Agreement with the Authority, dated , 2022 (the *“Dealer Manager
Agreement”), and will be paid compensation under such agreement separate and apart from any
compensation received hereunder. [As the Official Statement describes all Bonds, [whether offered
for exchange or sale,] for the convenience of the parties, the Authority acknowledges that all
representations and warranties made hereunder to the Underwriters and all certificates and opinions
delivered hereunder for the benefit of the Underwriters are also made for the benefit of, or will be
delivered, to the Dealer Manager. As it relates to the Exchanged Bonds, the Dealer Manager Agreement
is made solely for the benefit of the Dealer Managers and the Authority and any partner, director,
officer, agent, employee, controlling person or affiliate, and their respective successors, assigns, and
legal representatives; and no other person, including Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC, Samuel A. Ramirez
& Co., Inc. and Siebert Williams Shank & Co., LLC, shall acquire or have any right or obligation under
or by virtue of the Dealer Manager Agreement.]

3. Authority of Representative; No Fiduciary Relationship.

@) The Representative has been duly authorized by the Underwriters to execute
this Purchase Agreement and to act hereunder by and on behalf of the Underwriters.

(b) The individual executing this Purchase Agreement on behalf of the
Representative has been duly authorized by the Representative to execute this Purchase Agreement on
behalf of the Representative.

(©) The Authority acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the purchase and sale of the
Bonds pursuant to this Purchase Agreement is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the
Authority and the Underwriters, and the Underwriters have financial and other interests that differ from
those of the Authority, (ii) the Underwriters are acting solely as principals and are not acting as
municipal advisors, financial advisors or fiduciaries to the Authority and have not assumed any

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



advisory or fiduciary responsibility to the Authority with respect to the transaction contemplated herein
and the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the
Underwriters have provided other services or are currently providing other services to the Authority
on other matters) or any other obligation to the Authority except the obligations expressly set forth in
this Purchase Agreement; and (iii) the Authority has consulted its own financial and/or municipal,
legal, accounting, tax and other advisors, as applicable, to the extent it has deemed appropriate.

4. Purchase. It shall be a condition to the Authority’s obligations to sell and to deliver
the Bonds to the Underwriters and to the Underwriters’ obligations to purchase, to accept delivery of
and to pay for the Bonds at the Closing that the entire aggregate principal amount or Initial Amount of
the Bonds referred to in Paragraph 1 shall be issued, sold and delivered by the Authority and purchased,
accepted and paid for by the Underwriters.

5. Preliminary Official Statement; Official Statement; Verification Report; and
Accountants’ Letter.

@) In connection with the public offering and sale of the Bonds, the Authority
hereby ratifies, confirms and approves the use and distribution by the Underwriters prior to the date
hereof of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds, dated ___, 2022, and including the
cover page, the Appendices thereto and any documents incorporated therein by reference, the
“Preliminary Official Statement”). The Authority has “deemed final” and hereby deems final the
Preliminary Official Statement for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (“Rule 15c2-12"), except for information permitted to be omitted therefrom by
Rule 15¢2-12. The Representative and the Authority each confirms it agreed to the preparation and
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement in printed and electronic form.

(b) The Authority shall provide to the Underwriters within seven (7) business days
after the date of this Purchase Agreement, but in any event at least three (3) business days prior to the
date of the Closing and in sufficient time to accompany any confirmation that requests payment from
any customer and in sufficient time to enable the Underwriters to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of
Rule 15¢2-12 and with the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), copies
of a final Official Statement dated as of the date hereof (which shall be substantially in the form of the
Preliminary Official Statement, with the addition of the pricing information and only such other
changes as shall have been accepted by the Representative and including the Appendices thereto and
any documents incorporated therein by reference being hereinafter called the “Official Statement”) in
the quantities requested by the Underwriters to enable the Underwriters to comply with the
requirements of the MSRB and Rule 15c¢2-12, provided, that the Underwriters shall be responsible for
paying the costs of printing Official Statements in excess of 500. The Authority authorizes the
Representative to file the Official Statement with the MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Market
Access System (“EMMA”) within one (1) business day after receipt of printed copies of the Official
Statement and if any amendments or supplements to the Official Statement are prepared by the
Authority and delivered to the Underwriters in accordance with Paragraph 8(e), the Authority
authorizes the Representative to make required filings of such amendments or supplements to the
Official Statement with the MSRB or its designee. The Authority hereby agrees to deliver to the
Underwriters an electronic copy of the Official Statement in a form that permits the Underwriters to
satisfy their obligations under the rules and regulations of the MSRB and the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Authority and the Representative each confirms that it does not
object to the distribution of the Official Statement in electronic form. The Authority hereby authorizes

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



and approves the use and distribution by the Underwriters of the Official Statement in connection with
the public offering and sale of the Bonds.

(©) On the date of this Purchase Agreement, the Authority shall deliver or cause to
be delivered to the Underwriters verbal confirmation from , the verification agent (the
“Verification Agent”), as to the adequacy of the escrow for the defeasance to maturity or to the
applicable sinking fund redemption date, as applicable, of the Refunded 2013A Bonds and the
Refunded 1999C Bonds.

(d) On or prior to the date of this Purchase Agreement, the Authority shall deliver
or cause to be delivered to the Underwriters one copy of the letter of Moss Adams LLP, dated |
2022, in form and substance satisfactory to the Representative consenting to the inclusion of the audited
financial statements of the Authority and Moss Adams LLP’s report thereon in Appendix A to the
Preliminary Official Statement and to references to its name and to its report in the Preliminary Official
Statement.

6. Public Offering. The Underwriters intend to make a bona fide public offering of all of
the Bonds initially at prices set forth in Schedule 2; however, the Underwriters reserve the right to
change such initial public offering prices as the Underwriters deem necessary or desirable, in their sole
discretion, in connection with the marketing of the Bonds (but in all cases subject to the requirements
of Paragraph 7 hereof), and may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers, unit investment trusts and
money market funds, certain of which may be sponsored or managed by one or more of the
Underwriters at prices lower than the public offering prices or yields greater than the yields set forth
therein (but in all cases subject to the requirements of Paragraph 7 hereof).

7. Establishment of the Issue Price.

@ The Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agrees to assist the
Authority in establishing the issue price of the Series 2022A Bonds and shall execute and deliver to
the Authority at Closing (as hereinafter defined) an “issue price” or similar certificate, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit I, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent
communications, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable
opinion of the Representative, the Authority and Nixon Peabody LLP, Special Tax Counsel (“Special
Tax Counsel”), to accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price
or prices to the public of the Series 2022A Bonds. All actions to be taken by the Authority under this
Paragraph to establish the issue price of the Series 2022A Bonds may be taken on behalf of the
Authority by the Authority’s municipal advisor identified herein and any notice or report to be provided
to the Authority may be provided to the Authority’s municipal advisor.

(b) Except as otherwise set forth in Schedule 2 attached hereto, the Authority will
treat the first price at which 10% of each maturity of the Series 2022A Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold
to the public as the issue price of that maturity. At or promptly after the execution of this Purchase
Agreement, the Representative shall report to the Authority the price or prices at which it has sold to
the public each maturity of Series 2022A Bonds. If at that time the 10% test has not been satisfied as
to any maturity of the Series 2022A Bonds, the Representative agrees to promptly report to the
Authority the prices at which Series 2022A Bonds of that maturity have been sold by the Underwriters
to the public. That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the Closing date has occurred,
until either (i) all Series 2022A Bonds of that maturity have been sold or (ii) the 10% test has been
satisfied as to the Series 2022A Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the Underwriters’ reporting

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



obligation after the Closing date may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of
the Representative, the Authority or Special Tax Counsel. For purposes of this Paragraph, if Series
2022A Bonds mature on the same date but have different interest rates, each separate CUSIP number
within that maturity will be treated as a separate maturity of the Series 2022A Bonds.

(© The Representative confirms that the Underwriters have offered the Series
2022A Bonds to the public on or before the date of this Purchase Agreement at the offering price or
prices (the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in Schedule 2
attached hereto, except as otherwise set forth therein. Schedule 2 also sets forth, as of the date of this
Agreement, the maturities, if any, of the Series 2022A Bonds for which the 10% test has not been
satisfied and for which the Authority and the Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agree that
the restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply, which will allow the Authority to treat the
initial offering price to the public of each such maturity as of the sale date as the issue price of that
maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”). So long as the hold-the-offering-price rule remains
applicable to any maturity of the Series 2022A Bonds, the Underwriters will neither offer nor sell
unsold Series 2022A Bonds of that maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the initial
offering price to the public during the period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the
following:

Q) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or

(i) the date on which the Underwriters have sold at least 10% of that
maturity of the Series 2022A Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering
price to the public.

The Representative will advise the Authority promptly after the close of the fifth (5th) business
day after the sale date whether it has sold 10% of that maturity of the Series 2022A Bonds to the public
at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.

(d) The Representative confirms that:

0] Any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and
each third-party distribution agreement (to which the Representative is a party) relating to the initial
sale of the Series 2022A Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will
contain language obligating each Underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group and
each broker-dealer that is a party to such third-party distribution agreement, as applicable:

(A) (i) to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series
2022A Bonds of each maturity allocated to it, whether or not the date of Closing has
occurred, until either all Series 2022A Bonds of that maturity allocated to it have been
sold or it is notified by the Representative that the 10% test has been satisfied as to the
Series 2022A Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the reporting obligation after the
date of Closing may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of
the Representative, and (ii) to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if
applicable, if and for so long as directed by the Representative and as set forth in the
related pricing wires,

(B)  to promptly notify the Representative of any sales of Series 2022A
Bonds that, to its knowledge, are made to a purchaser who is a related party to an

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



Underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds to the public
(each such term being used as defined below), and

(C)  to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the Underwriter,
dealer or broker-dealer, the Representative shall assume that each order submitted by
the Underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer is a sale to the public.

(i) Any agreement among underwriters or selling group agreement
relating to the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing
wires, contains or will contain language obligating each Underwriter or dealer that is a party to a third-
party distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2022A
Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such third-party distribution
agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series 2022A Bonds of each
maturity allocated to it, whether or not the date of Closing has occurred, until either all Series 2022A
Bonds of that maturity allocated to it have been sold or it is notified by the Representative or such
Underwriter or dealer that the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Series 2022A Bonds of that maturity,
provided that, the reporting obligation after the date of Closing may be at reasonable periodic intervals
or otherwise upon request of the Representative or such Underwriter or dealer, and (B) comply with
the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, if and for so long as directed by the Representative or
the Underwriter or the dealer and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

(e) The Authority acknowledges that, in making the representations set forth in
this Paragraph, the Representative will rely on (i) the agreement of each Underwriter to comply with
the requirements for establishing issue price of the Series 2022A Bonds, including, but not limited to,
its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Series 2022A Bonds,
as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event that a
selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds to the
public, the agreement of each dealer who is member of the selling group to comply with the
requirements for establishing issue price of the Series 2022A Bonds, including, but not limited to, its
agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Series 2022A Bonds, as
set forth in the selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event that an
Underwriter or dealer who is a member of the selling group is a party to a third-party distribution
agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds to the
public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the
requirements for establishing issue price of the Series 2022A Bonds, including, but not limited to, its
agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Series 2022A Bonds, as
set forth in the third-party distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Authority further
acknowledges that each Underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement
regarding the requirements for establishing issue price of the Series 2022A Bonds, including, but not
limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Series
2022A Bonds, and that no Underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other Underwriter, or of
any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a third-party
distribution agreement, to comply with its corresponding agreement to comply with the requirements
for establishing issue price of the Series 2022A Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to
comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Series 2022A Bonds.

()] The Underwriters acknowledge that sales of any Series 2022A Bonds to any
person that is a related party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



to the public (each such term being used as defined below) shall not constitute sales to the public for
purposes of this Paragraph. Further, for purposes of this Paragraph:

(M “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(i) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Authority (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to
participate in the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees
pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate
in the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a
party to a third-party distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Series 2022A Bonds
to the public),

(iii)  apurchaser of any of the Series 2022A Bonds is a “related party” to an
underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (A) more than
50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are
corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (B) more than 50% common
ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct
ownership by one partnership of another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of the value of
the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as
applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership
of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv)  “sale date” means the date of execution of this Purchase Agreement by
all parties.

8. Representations and Agreements of the Authority. The Authority represents to and
agrees with the Underwriters that, as of the date hereof and as of the date of the Closing:

@) (i) the Board has full legal right, power and authority to adopt the 2022
Resolution; (ii) the Authority has full legal right, power and authority (A) to accept the Letters of
Representation and to enter into and to execute and deliver this Purchase Agreement, the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, the Tax and Compliance Certificate
relating to the Series 2022A Bonds, to be dated the date of Closing (the “Tax Certificate™), the Escrow
Agreement, to be dated as of 1, 2022 (the “Escrow Agreement”), between the Authority and U.S.
Bank Trust Company, National Association, as escrow agent (“Escrow Agent”), and the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate, to be dated the date of Closing (the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate” and
together with the Purchase Agreement, the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, and the Tax Certificate and the 2022 Resolution, the “2022
Documents” and together with the Indenture, the Amended and Restated Alameda Corridor Use and
Operating Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2016 (the “Use and Operating Agreement”), among
the Authority, the Railroads and the Ports, and the DTC Letter of Representations mentioned below,
the “Transaction Documents”), and to comply with all terms and conditions thereof, to collect and
pledge the Revenues to the payment of the Bonds as provided in the Indenture, to collect and apply the
M & O Charges (as defined in the Use and Operating Agreement) and to observe, perform and
consummate the covenants, agreements and transactions provided for in the 2022 Resolution, the
Indenture, this Purchase Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and in the agreements listed
in Schedule 3 hereto (the “Operating Agreements” and together with the Transaction Documents, the
“Authority Documents™) and described in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official

4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



Statement; (B) to operate the Rail Corridor; and (C) to issue the Bonds for the purposes described in
the Official Statement and in the Indenture and to issue, sell and deliver the Bonds to the Underwriters
as provided herein; (iii) by all necessary official action, the Authority has authorized, ratified, approved
and “deemed final” the Preliminary Official Statement and has duly authorized and approved the
Official Statement, has authorized the execution of the Official Statement, has approved and ratified
the delivery of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement to the Underwriters, the
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement by the Underwriters to potential purchasers of the
Bonds and the distribution of the Official Statement by the Underwriters to potential purchasers and
purchasers of the Bonds; and (iv) the Authority has duly executed the Official Statement.

(b) the Board has duly adopted the Resolutions at meetings duly noticed, called
and held pursuant to applicable law and at each of which a quorum was present and acting throughout,
and the Resolutions are in full force and effect and have not been amended, modified, rescinded or
repealed; the Authority Documents are in full force and effect and have not been amended except as
described in the Official Statement; by all necessary official action, the Authority has duly authorized
and approved the issuance and sale of the Bonds, the execution and delivery of, and the observance
and performance by the Authority of its covenants and agreements contained in, this Purchase
Agreement and the other Authority Documents, and the consummation by it of all other transactions
contemplated therein to have been performed or consummated at or prior to the Closing; and the
Authority has complied, and at the Closing will be in compliance in all respects, with its obligations in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds on its part contained in the Authority Documents;

(©) the Preliminary Official Statement was as of its date, and is, as of the date
hereof, true and correct, with the exception of information relating to the pricing and sale of the Bonds
and other information permitted to be omitted pursuant to the Rule, deemed final pursuant to
Rule 15¢2-12 and other than information concerning The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) and its
book-entry system, [the Insurer], the City of Los Angeles, California (the “City of Los Angeles™) and
the City of Long Beach, California (the “City of Long Beach” and together with the City of Los
Angeles, the “Cities”) and information under the headings “THE PORTS,” “THE RAILROADS,”
[“THE SERIES 2022 BOND INSURER,”] “RATINGS” [(with respect to the ratings assigned to the
Insurer)], “FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” (with respect to information about the Ports),
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE—The Authority and the Ports” (with respect to information about the
Ports) and “—The Railroads” and “UNDERWRITING” and in Appendices B, C, D, F, G, I and J (as
to all of which no representation is made) and did not, as of its date, and does not, as of the date hereof,
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

(d) the Official Statement is as of its date, and will be, as of the date of Closing,
true and correct, other than information concerning DTC and its book-entry system, [the Insurer], the
prices or yields on the Bonds stated on the inside front cover of the Official Statement, CUSIP numbers
and the Cities and information under the headings “THE PORTS,” “THE RAILROADS,” [“THE
SERIES 2022 BOND INSURER,”] “RATINGS” [(with respect to the ratings assigned to the Insurer)],
“FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” (with respect to information about the Ports), “CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE—The Authority and the Ports” (with respect to information about the Ports) and “—
The Railroads” and “UNDERWRITING” and in Appendices B, C, D, F, G, I and J (as to all of which
no representation is made), and does not as of the date hereof and will not as of the date of Closing
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and
if the Official Statement is supplemented or amended pursuant to Paragraph 8(e), the Official

10
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



Statement, as so amended or supplemented, will be true and correct and will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (except that no
representation is or will be made as to the information contained in the Official Statement, as so
amended or supplemented, regarding DTC and its book-entry system, [the Insurer], the Cities, the
prices or yields on the Bonds stated on the inside front cover of the Official Statement, CUSIP numbers,
and information under the headings “THE PORTS,” “THE RAILROADS,” “THE SERIES 2022
BOND INSURER,” “RATINGS” [(with respect to the ratings assigned to the Insurer)], “FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS” (with respect to information about the Ports), “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE—The
Authority and the Ports” (with respect to information about the Ports) and “—The Railroads” and
“UNDERWRITING” and in Appendices B, C, D, F, G, | and J);

(e) (A) if, between the date of this Purchase Agreement and the earlier of (i) 90
days following the “end of the underwriting period” (as such term is defined in Rule 15¢2-12) or (ii) the
time when the Official Statement is available to any person from the MSRB, but in no case less than
25 days following the end of the underwriting period, any event shall occur or any new or pre-existing
fact or condition shall become known that might or that would cause the Official Statement, as then
supplemented or amended, to contain any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading, the Authority shall promptly notify the Underwriters thereof and if,
in the reasonable opinion of the Representative or the Authority, such event, fact or condition requires
the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, the Authority
at its expense will supplement or amend the Official Statement and shall provide to the Underwriters
copies of such amendment or supplement in quantities sufficient to enable the Underwriters to comply
with the rules of the MSRB; and, in connection with any such event or any such amendment or
supplement, the Authority agrees to provide to the Underwriters prior written notice of any such
supplement or amendment and to provide or to cause to be provided such additional certificates and
opinions of counsel as the Representative shall request to evidence the accuracy and completeness of
the Official Statement, including any amendment or supplement thereto, and (B) between the date of
this Purchase Agreement and the end of the underwriting period, the Authority shall not supplement
or amend the Official Statement or cause the Official Statement to be supplemented or amended
without prior written notice to the Underwriters. The Authority may assume that the end of the
underwriting period has occurred at the time of the Closing unless the Representative or another
Underwriter notifies the Authority in writing on or prior to the Closing that there exists an unsold
balance of the Bonds for sale to the public, in which case the end of the underwriting period shall be
25 days after the Closing;

()] the Authority is a validly existing joint powers authority of the State of
California (the “State”) established under the Act;

(9) between the date hereof and at the time of Closing, except as disclosed in the
Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement, the Authority will not without the prior
written consent of the Representative offer or issue any bonds or securities with a lien on Revenues on
a parity with or superior to the lien of the Bonds, or offer or issue to any party other than the
Underwriters any bonds or securities in lieu of the Bonds and will not, without prior written consent
of the Representative, offer or issue any other bonds, notes or other obligations for borrowed money
or incur any other material liabilities, direct or contingent, other than in the ordinary course of its
business;

11
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



(h) the Authority is not in breach of or in default under any of the Transaction
Documents, the effects of which would affect the financial or business operations of the Authority, the
security for the Bonds or the Authority’s ability to pay the Bonds, and the Authority is not in material
breach of or in material default under any of the other Authority Documents; the Authority is not in
material breach of or in material default under (A) any applicable constitutional provision, law or
administrative regulation of the State or the United States of America or any agency or instrumentality
of either or any applicable judgment or decree or (B) any other loan agreement, note, bond, resolution,
indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the Authority is, or on the date of the Closing will
be, a party or to which the Authority or any of its properties or assets is otherwise subject; and no event
has occurred and is continuing that constitutes or that, with the passage of time or the giving of notice,
or both, would constitute a breach of or default under the Transaction Documents or a material breach
of or default or event of material default under any other such agreement, law, regulation or instrument,
or that would constitute a breach of or a default or an event of default under the Indenture, the Bonds,
the Use and Operating Agreement or this Purchase Agreement; the adoption of the 2022 Resolution,
the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, and the execution and delivery of this Purchase
Agreement, the other 2022 Documents and the Bonds and the observance and performance of the
provisions thereof will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default by the Authority under any
constitutional provision, law, administrative regulation, judgment, court decree, loan agreement,
indenture, bond, note, resolution, or other material agreement or instrument to which the Authority is
subject, or by which it or any of its properties is bound, nor will any such adoption, execution, delivery,
observance or performance result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security
interest or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever by the Authority upon any of its properties or under
the terms of any such law, regulation or instrument, except as provided by the Bonds, the Indenture
and the 2022 Resolution;

0] there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity,
before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, pending with respect to which the
Authority has been served with process or, to the best of the Authority’s knowledge after due
investigation, threatened, against the Authority affecting the existence of the Authority or the Board or
the titles of its officers to their respective offices or affecting or seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin
the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds or the collection by the Authority of Revenues pledged or
to be pledged to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds or the pledge
thereof or the application of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds or the collection and application of
M & O Charges, or contesting or affecting the powers of the Authority with respect to, or the validity
or enforceability of, or any authority for, any of the Transaction Documents or contesting the powers
of the Authority or any authority of the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds or the adoption of the
2022 Resolution or the execution and delivery of the 2022 Documents or performance by the Authority
of its obligations under the 2022 Documents and the other Transaction Documents, or seeking to
restrain or enjoin or otherwise to affect the operation of the Rail Corridor, or contesting the tax-exempt
status of the interest on the Bonds, or contesting or challenging the consummation of the transactions
contemplated in the Transaction Documents or any of its obligations under the Transaction Documents,
or contesting the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official
Statement or asserting that the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement contained or
contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state any material fact necessary
to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading or that might result in a material adverse change in the operations of the Rail Corridor or
in the financial condition of the Authority or its ability to pay the Bonds, nor, to the best knowledge of
the Authority, is there any basis for any action, suit proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the nature
described in this clause; the Authority shall advise the Representative promptly of the institution of

12
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



any legal or regulatory proceedings of which its Co-General Counsel is aware prohibiting or otherwise
affecting the use of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement in connection with the
offering or sale of the Bonds;

()] the Authority shall furnish such information, execute such instruments and take
such other action not inconsistent with law in cooperation with the Underwriters as may be requested:
(i) to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky or other securities laws and regulations
of such states and other jurisdictions of the United States of America as may be designated by the
Underwriters and (ii) to determine the eligibility of the Bonds for investment under the laws of such
states and other jurisdictions, and shall cooperate with the Underwriters to continue such qualifications
in effect so long as required for the distribution of the Bonds; provided, however, that the Authority
shall not be required to execute any general or special consents to service of process or to qualify to do
business in connection with any such qualification or determination in any jurisdiction;

(k) the Bonds, if and when issued and delivered in accordance with the Indenture
and the 2022 Resolution and sold to the Underwriters as provided herein, and this Purchase Agreement
and the other 2022 Documents when executed and delivered, will be legal, valid and binding
obligations of the Authority, enforceable in accordance with their terms, except to the extent that
enforceability is subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws
affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally and to the application of equitable principles where
equitable remedies are sought and to the limitations on the exercise of legal remedies against public
agencies in the State of California; the owners of the Bonds will be entitled to the benefits of the
Indenture; upon such issuance and delivery of the Bonds, the Indenture will provide, for the benefit of
the owners from time to time of the Bonds, a legally valid and binding lien and charge upon Revenues,
and none of the Ports, the Railroads or any creditor of any of them have or shall have any claim on
payments made or to be made under the Use and Operating Agreement or to any other Revenues except
as specifically provided and subject to the terms and conditions of the Indenture;

M all authorizations, approvals, licenses, permits, consents and orders of any
governmental authority, legislative body, court, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of
the matter which are required to be obtained by the Authority for the due authorization of, which would
constitute a condition precedent to, or the absence of which would materially adversely affect, the due
observance and performance by the Authority of its obligations in connection with, the issuance and
sale of the Bonds under the Indenture and this Purchase Agreement, the execution and delivery of the
2022 Documents, the operation of the Rail Corridor, or the performance by the Authority of its
obligations under the Transaction Documents, have been duly obtained, except for such approvals,
consents and orders as may be required under the Blue Sky or securities laws of any state in connection
with the offering and sale of the Bonds, as to which no representation is made; and all approvals,
consents and authorizations related to the issuance and sale of the Bonds and the performance by the
Authority of its obligations under the Indenture required to have been obtained pursuant to the
Transaction Documents from the Ports, the Railroads and any other person have been obtained,;

(m)  the financial statements and other historical financial information of the
Authority contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement fairly present
the financial position of the Authority as of the dates indicated and the results of its operations, for the
periods therein specified, and, as described independent auditor’s report, are in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the Authority applied on a consistent basis, and
there has been no material adverse change in the financial condition or results of operations of the
Authority since the respective dates;

13
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



(n) any certificate signed by any official of the Authority and delivered to the
Representative or to the Underwriters pursuant hereto or in connection herewith shall be deemed to be
a representation by the Authority (and not of such official in his or her individual capacity) to each of
the Underwriters as to the statements made therein;

(o) the Authority has never defaulted in the payment of principal of or interest on
any of its debt obligations;

(p) the Authority has not been notified of any listing or proposed listing by the
Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the Authority is a bond issuer upon whose arbitrage
certificates a bondowner may not rely;

(@) within the past five years, the Authority has not failed to comply in any material
respects with its past continuing undertakings pursuant to Paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15¢2-12;

(n in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Rule 15¢2-12, the
Authority will undertake, pursuant to the Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the form
of which is included in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement as Appendix H,
to provide certain annual financial information and to provide notices upon the occurrence of certain
events;

(s) the Authority has obtained or caused to be obtained all insurance policies
required under the Authority Documents for the Project (as defined in the Indenture), and the premiums
thereon have been paid, and the Authority will obtain or cause to be obtained all other insurance
policies as and when required under the Authority Documents;

® the Authority has obtained all material permits required to be obtained for the
operation of the Project, all of which are in full force and effect, and the Authority has no reason to
believe that the permits that cannot be obtained for the operation of the Project as of the date hereof or
that must be renewed in the future will not be obtained or renewed when required; and

(w since the date of the latest audited financial statements included in the
Preliminary Official Statement and in Official Statement, the Authority has not sustained any material
loss or interference with its business from fire, explosion, flood or other calamity, whether or not
covered by insurance, or from any labor dispute or court or governmental action, order or decree,
otherwise than as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement; and
there has not been any material change in the long-term debt of the Authority or any material adverse
change, or any development involving a prospective material adverse change, in or affecting the
general affairs, management, financial position or results of operations of the Authority, other than as
disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement.

9. Closing. At A.M., California time, on ___, 2022, or at such other date and time
as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the Authority and the Representative, and subject to the
terms of this Purchase Agreement, the Authority shall deliver or cause to be delivered: (i) to DTC (or
to the Trustee in accordance with DTC’s Fast Automated Securities Transfer System), the Bonds in
definitive form duly executed by the Authority as described below; and (ii) to the Underwriters at the
offices of O’Melveny & Myers LLP (“Bond Counsel”) in Los Angeles, California (or at such other
location as may be designated by the Representative and approved by the Authority), the other
documents noted in Paragraph 10(d) hereof, and subject to the terms and conditions contained herein,

14
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



the Underwriters shall accept such delivery and pay to the Trustee for the account of the Authority the
Purchase Price of the Bonds in immediately available funds. Such payment and delivery is referred to
herein as the “Closing.”

The Representative shall order CUSIP identification numbers, and the Authority shall cause
such CUSIP identification numbers to be printed on the Bonds, but neither the failure to print such
number on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or refusal by
the Underwriters to accept delivery of and to pay for the Bonds in accordance with the terms of this
Purchase Agreement. The Bonds shall be prepared and delivered for inspection by the Representative
at least one business day prior to the date of the Closing and shall be in the form of one certificate for
each series, maturity and interest rate, fully registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

10. Closing Conditions. The obligations of the Underwriters hereunder shall be subject to
the performance by the Authority of its obligations hereunder at or prior to the Closing and are also
subject to the following conditions:

@) the representations of the Authority contained or incorporated herein shall be
true, complete and correct on the date hereof and on and as of the date of the Closing as if made on the
date of Closing;

(b) the representations of the Railroads and of the Ports contained or incorporated
in the Letters of Representation shall be true, complete and correct on the date hereof and on and as of
the date of the Closing as if made on the date of Closing;

(©) at the time of the Closing (i) the Resolutions and the Authority Documents shall
be in full force and effect and shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented after the date
of the Official Statement except as shall have been agreed to in writing by the Representative; and
(ii) the Authority shall have performed its obligations required under or specified in the Resolutions
and in the Authority Documents to be performed at or prior to the Closing; and

(d) at or prior to the Closing, the Underwriters shall receive the following
documents, in each case reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Representative:

0] the Official Statement, duly executed on behalf of the Authority by the
Authority’s Chief Executive Officer or by his authorized designee;

(i) the 2022 Documents, duly executed and delivered by the respective
parties thereto;

(iii)  certified copies of all of the other Authority Documents with only such
changes or amendments thereto after the date hereof as may have been agreed to in writing by the
Representative;

(iv)  copy of the Authority’s Blanket Letter of Representations to DTC;

(V) the legal opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the date of the Closing and
addressed to the Authority, substantially in the form set forth in Appendix G of the Official Statement,
and a letter or letters addressed to the Trustee, [the Insurer] and the Underwriters to the effect that the
Trustee, [the Insurer] and the Underwriters may rely upon such opinion as if it were addressed to the
Trustee, [the Insurer] and the Underwriters;

15
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



(vi)  the legal opinion of Special Tax Counsel, dated the date of the Closing
and addressed to the Authority, substantially in the form set forth in Appendix G of the Official
Statement, and a letter or letters addressed to the Trustee, [the Insurer] and the Underwriters to the
effect that the Trustee, [the Insurer] and the Underwriters may rely upon such opinion as if it were
addressed to the Trustee, [the Insurer] and the Underwriters;

(vii)  asupplemental opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to
the Underwriters [and the Insurer], of Bond Counsel substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit E;

(viii)  asupplemental opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to
the Underwriters [and the Insurer], of Special Tax Counsel substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit F;

(ix)  an opinion, dated the date of Closing and addressed to the Authority
and the Trustee, of Bond Counsel delivered pursuant to Sections 8.02(a) of the Master Indenture to the
effect that the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture are
authorized or permitted by the Master Indenture and shall, upon the execution and delivery thereof, be
valid and binding upon the Authority in accordance with its terms, together with a reliance letter
addressed to the Underwriters;

(x) the defeasance opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Refunded
2013A Bonds and the Refunded 1999C Bonds, addressed to the Authority and the Underwriters;

(xi) A letter, dated as of the date of Closing and addressed to the
Underwriters, of Sheppard, Mullin, Richter & Hampton LLP, as Disclosure Counsel, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit G;

(xii) an opinion, dated the date of Closing and addressed to the
Underwriters, the Trustee [and the Insurer], of Co-General Counsel of the Authority, solely in such
counsel’s official capacity and not in any personal capacity, to the effect that:

@) the Authority is a joint powers authority of the State duly
created under the Act and is in compliance in all material respects with the provisions of the Act in
respect of the issuance and sale of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, and the Purchase Agreement and the performance of its obligations
thereunder;

(b) the Board has power and authority under the Act and the Joint
Powers Agreement to adopt the 2022 Resolution and the 2022 Resolution were duly adopted at
meetings duly noticed, called and held;

(©) the Authority has power and authority (A)to execute and
deliver the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, and the Purchase Agreement, (B) to issue, sell and
deliver the Bonds to the Underwriters as provided in the Indenture and the Purchase Agreement, (C) to
authorize and to approve the use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the
execution, use and distribution of the Official Statement and (D) to operate the Rail Corridor, to collect

16
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



and pledge the Revenues, to collect and apply the M & O Charges and to carry out and consummate
all other transactions contemplated in the Authority Documents;

(d) to the best knowledge of such Co-General Counsel, after due
investigation, the Authority is not in breach of or in default under the any of the Transaction Documents
and is not in material breach of or in material default under any of the other Authority Documents;

(e to the best knowledge of such Co-General Counsel, after due
investigation, the Authority is not in material breach of or in material default under any applicable
constitutional provision, law or administrative regulation of the State or the United States of America
or any agency or instrumentality of either or any applicable judgment or decree or any other loan
agreement, note, bond, resolution, indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the Authority is,
or on or after the date of the Closing will be, a party or to which the Authority or any of its properties
or assets is otherwise subject, and to the best knowledge of such Co-General Counsel, after due
investigation, no event has occurred and is continuing that constitutes or that, with the passage of time
or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material breach of or material default or event of
default by the Authority under any such agreement, law, regulation or instrument;

() the adoption of the 2022 Resolution and the execution and
delivery of the Bonds, the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture,
the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, and the Purchase Agreement and the
observance and performance of the provisions thereof will not conflict with or constitute a breach of
or default by the Authority under any constitutional provision, law, administrative regulation,
judgment, court decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution or other agreement or
instrument to which the Authority is subject, or by which it or any of its properties is bound, nor will
any such adoption, execution, delivery, observance or performance result in the creation or imposition
of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever by the Authority
or upon any of its properties or under the terms of any such law, regulation or instrument, except as
provided by the Bonds and the Authority Documents;

(9) there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at
law or in equity, before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, pending with respect
to which the Authority has been served with process or, to such Co-General Counsel’s knowledge after
due investigation, threatened, against the Authority affecting the existence of the Authority or the
Board or the titles of its officers to their respective offices; affecting or seeking to prohibit, restrain or
enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds, the collection by the Authority of Revenues pledged
to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds or the pledge thereof, the
application of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds or the collection and application of M & O Charges;
contesting or affecting the powers of the Authority with respect to, or the validity or enforceability of,
or any authority for, any of the Authority Documents, contesting the powers of the Authority or any
authority of the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds or the adoption of the 2022 Resolution or the
execution and delivery of the Purchase Agreement, the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or the
performance by the Authority of its obligations under any of the Authority Documents; seeking to
restrain or enjoin or otherwise to affect the operation of the Rail Corridor; contesting the tax-exempt
status of the interest on the Bonds; contesting or challenging the consummation of the transactions
contemplated in the Authority Documents or the Authority’s ability to collect and pledge the Revenues
to the payment of the Bonds as provided in the Indenture, to collect and apply the M & O Charges or
to pay the Bonds or any of its obligations under the Authority Documents; contesting the completeness

17
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement or asserting that the
Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement contains or contained any untrue statement of
a material fact or omits or omitted to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein,
in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or that might result in a
material adverse change in the operations of the Rail Corridor or in the financial condition of the
Authority or its ability to pay the Bonds; nor, to the best knowledge of such counsel, is there any basis
for any action, suit proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the nature described in this clause;

(h) all authorizations, approvals, licenses, permits, consents and
orders of any governmental authority, legislative body, court, board, agency or commission having
jurisdiction of the matter which are required to be obtained by the Authority for the due authorization
of, which would constitute a condition precedent to, or the absence of which would materially
adversely affect, the due observance and performance by the Authority of its obligations in connection
with, the issuance and sale of the Bonds under the Indenture and the Purchase Agreement, the execution
and delivery of the Bonds, the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental
Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, the Official Statement or the
Purchase Agreement, the operations of the Rail Corridor, or the performance by the Authority of its
obligations under the Authority Documents, have been duly obtained (except for such approvals,
consents and orders as may be required under the Blue Sky or securities laws of any state in connection
with the offering and sale of the Bonds as to which no opinion need be given); and all approvals,
consents and authorizations required to have been obtained under the Authority Documents from the
Railroads, the Ports and from any other person in connection with the issuance of the Bonds have been
obtained;

Q) the execution and delivery by the Authority of, and
performance by the Authority of its obligations under, the Bonds, the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture,
the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement,
and the Purchase Agreement were duly authorized, and the Bonds, the Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture, the Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow
Agreement, and the Purchase Agreement have been duly executed and delivered and are legal, valid
and binding obligations of the Authority enforceable in accordance with their terms, except to the
extent that enforceability is subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other
laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally and to the application of equitable principles
where equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to
the limitations on legal remedies against public agencies in the State of California and, in the case of
indemnification provisions in this Purchase Agreement, except as enforcement thereof may be limited
by federal securities laws and public policy;

()] the Authority has duly authorized the delivery of the
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement to the Underwriters and the distribution by
the Underwriters of the Preliminary Official Statement to potential purchasers of the Bonds and of the
Official Statement to potential purchasers and purchasers of the Bonds; and in addition, such Co-
General Counsel shall state in a separate letter or letters dated the date of the Closing and addressed to
the Underwriters that, based upon the participation of such counsel in the preparation of the Preliminary
Official Statement and the Official Statement as Co-General Counsel of the Authority, such Co-
General Counsel has no reason to believe that the Preliminary Official Statement, as of its date and as
of the date hereof, and the Official Statement, as of its date and as of the date of Closing, (except for
any financial, statistical, demographic or economic data or forecasts, numbers, charts, tables, graphs,
estimates, projections, assumptions or expressions of opinion and except for any information

18
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



concerning DTC and its book-entry system, the Insurer, the tax treatment of the Bonds and information
concerning the Cities, CUSIP numbers, the prices and yields on the Bonds shown on the inside cover
of the Official Statement, information under the headings “THE PORTS” and “THE RAILROADS,”
and information under the headings [“THE SERIES 2022 BOND INSURER,”] “RATINGS” [(but only
with respect to the ratings assigned to the Insurer)], “TAX MATTERS,” “UNDERWRITING,”
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE—The Authority and the Ports” (with respect to information about the
Ports) and “—The Railroads” and “FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” (with respect to information about
the Ports) and in Appendices B, C, D, F, G, | and J, as to all of which no view need be expressed)
contained or contains, any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state any material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were or are made, not misleading;

(xiii) an opinion, dated the date of Closing and addressed to the Authority,
the Insurer and the Underwriters, of counsel to each of the Ports to the effect that: (a) the execution
and delivery by the Port of the Letter of Representation and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and
the performance by the Port of its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the
Letter of Representation was duly authorized by the respective City, acting through its Board of Harbor
Commissioners, and each of the Letter of Representation and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate
was executed and delivered by such City, and the Letter of Representation, the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate and each of the Port Agreements (as defined in the applicable Letter of Representation) is
the legal, valid and binding obligation of, such City, enforceable in accordance with its respective
terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally, to the application of equitable
principles where equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate
cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against public agencies in the State of California; (b) to
the best knowledge of such counsel, the execution and delivery of the Letter of Representation and the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the performance by the Port of its obligations under the Letter
of Representation, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and each of the Port Agreements do not and
will not, in any material respect, conflict with or constitute a breach of, or default by, the Port under
any constitutional provision, law, administrative regulation, judgment, court decree, loan agreement,
indenture, bond, note, resolution, or other material agreement or instrument to which the Port or the
transactions contemplated in the Letter of Representation, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and
in each of the Port Agreements is subject, or by which the Port or any of its properties is bound (and
of which such counsel is aware after reasonable investigation); (c) to the best knowledge of such
counsel, all authorizations, approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority, legislative
body, court, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of the matter which are required to be
obtained by the Port for the due authorization, execution and delivery of, or which would constitute a
condition precedent to, or the absence of which would materially adversely affect, the due observance
and performance by the Port of its obligations under or in connection with, the Letter of Representation,
the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and each of the Port Agreements have been obtained and are in
full force and effect; (d) to such counsel’s knowledge after due investigation (which involved only
inquiries of the City Clerk and the Executive Secretary of the Board), there is no action, suit,
proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, government agency,
public board or body, pending or threatened against the Port affecting the existence of the Port or the
validity or enforceability of, or any authority for, the Letter of Representation, the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate or any of the Port Agreements or contesting the performance by the Port of the
Letter of Representation, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or any of the Port Agreements; and
(e) to the best knowledge of such counsel, the Port is not in material breach of or in material default
under any of the Port Agreements;

19
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



(xiv) an opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional
Corporation, counsel to the Underwriters, dated the date of Closing and addressed to the Underwriters,
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H;

(xv)  acertificate of the Authority, dated the date of the Closing and signed
on behalf of the Authority by the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority or by his authorized
designee, to the effect that (a) the representations of the Authority contained in the Purchase Agreement
are true and correct in all respects on and as of the date of the Closing as if made on the date of the
Closing; (b) there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or
by any court, government agency, public board or body, pending with respect to which the Authority
has been served with process, or, to the best of the Authority’s knowledge after due investigation,
threatened, against the Authority affecting the existence of the Authority or the Board or the titles of
its officers to their respective offices or affecting or seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance,
sale or delivery of the Bonds or the collection by the Authority of Revenues pledged to pay the principal
of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds or the pledge thereof or the application of the
proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, the collection and application of M & O Charges or contesting or
affecting the powers of the Authority with respect to, or the validity or enforceability of, or any
authority for, the Authority Documents or contesting the powers of the Authority or any authority of
the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds or the adoption of the 2022 Resolution or the execution
and delivery of the Purchase Agreement, the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, the Thirteenth
Supplemental Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the Official
Statement or performance by the Authority of its obligations under the Authority Documents, or
seeking to restrain or enjoin or otherwise to affect the operation of the Rail Corridor, or seeking to
challenge or revoke any Permit (as defined in the Indenture), or contesting the tax-exempt status of the
interest on the Series 2022A Bonds, or contesting or challenging the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Authority Documents, or contesting the completeness or accuracy of the
Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement or asserting that the Preliminary Official
Statement or the Official Statement contains or contained any untrue statement of a material fact or
omits or omitted to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading or that might result in a material adverse
change in the operations of the Rail Corridor or in the financial condition of the Authority or its ability
to pay the Bonds, nor, to the best of the Authority’s knowledge, is there any basis for any action, suit
proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the nature described in this clause; and (c) since the date of the
Official Statement, no material adverse change in the financial condition or prospects of the Authority
or the Project and no other event adversely affecting the Authority or the Project or the Authority’s
condition, financial or otherwise, or the Authority’s ability to collect or pledge the Revenues pledged
to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds or to collect and apply M & O
Charges has occurred, which should be disclosed in the Official Statement in order that the Official
Statement not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact or necessary
to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not
misleading;

(xvi) a certificate of each of the Ports, dated the date of the Closing and
signed by the Chief Financial Officer, in the case of the Port of Los Angeles, and by the Director of
Finance, in the case of the Port of Long Beach, to the effect that representations in such Port’s Letter
of Representation are true and correct in all respects as of date of Closing;

(xvii) a certificate of each of the Railroads, dated the date of the Closing and
signed by the Chief Financial Officer or by a Vice President of such Railroad, to the effect that

20
4882-9290-0893v4/200121-0084



representations in such Railroad’s Letter of Representation are true and correct in all respects as of
date of Closing;

(xviii) a letter from Moss Adams LLP, dated the date of the Closing,
consenting to the inclusion in the Official Statement of the report, dated ___, 2022, with respect to the
audited financial statements of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, include as
Appendix A to the Official Statement and to the reference to Moss Adams LLP and to its report under
the heading “FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” and elsewhere in the Official Statement;

(xix)  copies of the items delivered on the date of this Purchase Agreement
pursuant to Paragraph 5 hereof;

(xx)  a certificate of the Trustee, dated the date of the Closing, in form and
substance satisfactory to the Representative;

(xxi) aspecimen Bond of each series, maturity and interest rate;

(xxii) a Form 8038-G with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds executed by
the Authority;

(xxiii) evidence satisfactory to the Underwriters that the [Insured Bonds have
been rated ” by S&P Global Ratings (“S&P”), and “ _ ” by Moody’s Investors Service
(“Moody’s™), with the understanding that the municipal bond insurance policy will be delivered on the
date of Closing;] and evidence satisfactory to the Underwriters of the assignment of ratings on the
Bonds [without taking the municipal bond insurance policy into account, of “___ "] by S&P, of “___”
by Moody’s and of “___ " by Fitch Ratings, Inc., together with a confirmation from the Authority that
there has been no adverse change in or withdrawal of any of such ratings as of the date of the Closing;

(xxiv) the Invitation and the Dealer Manager Agreement;

(xxv) [acopy of the Bond Insurance Policies for the Insured Bonds issued by
the Insurer;]

(xxvi) [a copy of the 2022 Reserve Account Surety Policies for the Bonds
issued by the Insurer;]

(xxvii) [an opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the
Authority and the Underwriters, of the General Counsel of the Insurer in form and substance
satisfactory to the Representative;]

(xxviii) an opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, counsel to the Trustee, dated the
date of Closing and addressed to the Underwriters, [the Insurer Jand the Authority, to the effect that
the Trustee is authorized to enter into and has duly executed and delivered the Twelfth Supplemen